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BEAPNAY OHOIPY AKUWOH EPNIK KOFAMBI

JSC KazMunaiGas Exploration Production
(incorporated in the Republic of Kazakhstan under the Joint Stock Companies Law with registered number 15971-1901-A0)

Global Offer of 17,898,878 Shares and 5,187,913 Shares in the form of global depositary receipts offered internationally
outside of Kazakhstan (the “GDRs”), each representing one sixth of a Share, at an Offer Price of KZT11,163.39 per
Share and US$14.64 per Global Depositary Receipt.

JSC KazMunaiGas Exploration Production (the “Company”) is offering 23,086,791 common shares (the “Shares”), of which
17,898,878 Shares will be offered in the form of Shares and 5,187,913 Shares will be offered internationally outside of
Kazakhstan in the form of GDRs each representing one sixth of a Share.

In connection with the Global Offer, JSC NC KazMunaiGas (“NC KMG”) will sell 3,463,019 shares (equivalent in size to
15% of the Global Offer) to the Underwriters for the purpose of making over-allotments and to conduct stabilisation
activities in GDRs (the “Parent GDRs”). Under the over-allotment structure, NC KMG will grant the Underwriters a put
option, exercisable for a period of up to 30 days from the commencement of dealings, to sell to NC KMG any GDRs which
have been purchased in the market as a result of stabilisation activities. The GDRs, and not the Shares will be over-allotted
and subject to stabilisation. The Shares being offered by the Company and the shares represented by the Parent GDRs are
together referred to as the “Offer Shares”.

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for up to 215,000,000 GDRs to be admitted to the Official List of the
UK Listing Authority and to the London Stock Exchange plc (the “LSE” or “London Stock Exchange”) for such GDRs to be
admitted to trading under the symbol “KMG” on its market for listed securities through the International Order Book (the
“IOB”) (“Admission”), of which 51,905,592 will represent Offer Shares, and the balance may be issued from time to time. The
LSE is a regulated market for purposes of Investment Services Directive 93/22/EC. It is expected that conditional dealings in
the GDRs will commence on 4 October 2006 and that Admission will become effective and unconditional dealings in the
GDRs will commence on 5 October 2006.

Application has also been made to have the Rule 144A GDRs (as defined herein) designated eligible for trading in The
PORTAL Market of the NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. (“PORTAL”).

On 20 December 2004, application was made to the KASE for all of the Shares, issued and to be issued, to be admitted to the
Official List of the KASE. On 31 December 2004, the KASE admitted the Shares to Category “A” of the Official List of the
KASE. It is expected that unconditional dealings on the KASE in the Offer Shares will commence on 4 October 2006.

The GDRs are of a specialist nature and should only be bought and traded by investors who are particularly knowledgeable in
investment matters. See the section of this document headed “Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain factors that should be
considered in connection with an investment in the Offer Shares or the GDRs.

The Offer Shares (including GDRs) have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “US Securities Act”), and may not be offered or sold within the United States (as defined in Regulation S under the US
Securities Act (“Regulation S”)) except to certain “qualified institutional buyers” (“QIBs”) (as defined in Rule 144A under the
US Securities Act (“Rule 144A”)) in reliance on Rule 144A or another exemption from, or transaction not subject to, the
registration requirements of the US Securities Act. Prospective purchasers are hereby notified that the Company may be
relying on the exemption from the provisions of Section 5 of the US Securities Act provided by Rule 144A. For a description of
these and certain further restrictions on offers, sales and transfers of the Shares and GDRs and the distribution of this
document, see “Details of the Global Offer”.

The GDRs are being offered to certain institutional investors in the UK, QIBs in the United States and certain institutional
investors in the rest of the world. The Shares are being offered to certain institutions and individuals in Kazakhstan and in the
rest of the world.

The GDRs will be issued in global form and will be evidenced by a Master Rule 144A GDR registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), and a Master Regulation S GDR (together with the
Master Rule 144A GDR, the “Master GDRs”) registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees)
Limited, as nominee for The Bank of New York, London Branch, as common depositary for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.,, as
operator of the Euroclear System (‘“Euroclear”), and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream”). It is expected
that delivery of the GDRs will be made against payment therefor in US dollars in same day funds through the facilities of
DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream on or about 4 October 2006. See “Settlement and Transfer”.

Joint Bookrunners and Global Co-ordinators
ABN AMRO Rothschild Credit Suisse

Domestic Lead Manager and Domestic Settlement Agent

Visor Capital

International Co-Lead Manager
Merrill Lynch International
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The Company accepts responsibility for the information contained in this document. To the best of the
knowledge and belief of the Company (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case)
the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely
to affect its import.

ABN AMRO Rothschild (the unincorporated equity capital markets joint venture between
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. and NM Rothschild & Sons Limited), Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
(“Credit Suisse”) and Merrill Lynch International, each of which are regulated in the United Kingdom by
the Financial Services Authority, are acting exclusively for the Company and no-one else in connection
with the Global Offer and will not be responsible to any other person for providing the protections
afforded to their respective clients or for providing advice in relation to the Global Offer. For the
avoidance of doubt, none of ABN AMRO Rothschild, Credit Suisse, and Merrill Lynch International will
offer to sell Shares or GDRs in Kazakhstan and none of them will be responsible for the offer of securities
into Kazakhstan.

This document comprises a prospectus relating to the Company in respect of the GDRs but not the
Shares prepared in accordance with the prospectus rules of the UK Listing Authority issued pursuant to
section 73A of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended (“FSMA”) (“Prospectus Rules”).

In connection with the Global Offer, the Underwriters and any of their affiliates, acting as investors
for their own accounts, may take up Offer Shares and/or GDRs in the Global Offer and in that capacity
may retain, purchase, sell, offer to sell or otherwise deal in for their own accounts such securities and any
other securities of the Company or related investments and may offer or sell such securities or other
investments other than in connection with the Global Offer. Accordingly, references in this document to
the Offer Shares and/or GDRs being issued, offered, subscribed, acquired, placed or otherwise dealt in
should be read as including any issue or offer to, or subscription, acquisition, dealing or placing by, the
Underwriters and any of their affiliates acting as an investor for their own accounts. The Underwriters do
not intend to disclose the extent of any such investments or transactions other than in accordance with any
legal or regulatory obligation to do so.

Prior to the Global Offer, there has been no market inside or outside the Republic of Kazakhstan for
the GDRs. From Admission, the Offer Shares including those represented by the GDRs will rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing Shares including the right to receive dividends or other
distributions declared, made or paid on the Shares after Admission.

Investors should rely only on the information in this document. No person has been authorised to give
any information or make any representations other than those contained in this document and, if given or
made, such information or representations must not be relied on as having been authorised by the
Company, NC KMG or any of the Underwriters or any affiliate of any thereof. Without prejudice to any
obligation of the Company to publish a supplementary prospectus pursuant to section 87G FSMA and
paragraph 3.4 of the Prospectus Rules, neither the delivery of this document nor any purchase made under
this document shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the
affairs of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) since, or that the
information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to, the date of this document.

The contents of this document are not to be construed as legal, financial or tax advice. Each
prospective investor should consult his, her or its own legal adviser, financial adviser or tax adviser for
legal, financial or tax advice. Neither of the Company, NC KMG nor any of the Underwriters is making
any representation to any offeree or purchaser of Offer Shares or GDRs regarding the legality of an
investment by such offeree or purchaser.

The information contained in this document has been provided by the Company and other sources
identified herein. None of the Underwriters makes any representation, express or implied, or accepts any
responsibility, with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this document. This
document is not intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered
as a recommendation by any of the Company, NC KMG or the Underwriters that any recipient of this
document should subscribe for or purchase Offer Shares or GDRs. Each potential investor in Offer Shares
or GDRs should read this document in its entirety and determine for itself the relevance of the information
contained in this document and its subscription of Offer Shares or GDRs should be based upon such
investigation as it deems necessary. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely upon
their own examination of the Group and the terms of this document, including the risks involved.
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The distribution of this document and the offer and sale of the Offer Shares and GDRs in certain
jurisdictions may be restricted by law. No action has been taken by the Company, NC KMG or the
Underwriters that would permit a public offer of Offer Shares or GDRs or possession, publication or
distribution of this document (or any other offer or publicity material or application form relating to the
Offer Shares) in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, other than in the United
Kingdom. Persons into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about and observe
any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the
securities laws of any such jurisdiction. This document does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation to
subscribe or purchase, any Offer Shares or GDRs in any jurisdiction in which such offer or sale would be
unlawful. Further information with regard to restrictions on offers and sales of Offer Shares or GDRs and
the distribution of this document is set out in the section headed “Details of the Global Offer”.

This document may be provided to investors in the Republic of Kazakhstan for information purposes
only and may not be relied upon.

Each subscriber or purchaser of Offer Shares or GDRs offered hereby, in making its subscription or
purchase, will be deemed to have made certain acknowledgements, representations and agreements as set
out under “Conditionality of Global Offer” in “Details of the Global Offer”.

NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN THE UNITED STATES

The Offer Shares and GDRs have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act or
with any securities regulatory authority of any state or other jurisdiction in the United States and may not
be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act and in compliance with
any applicable state securities laws. Neither the US Securities and Exchange Commission (the “US SEC”)
nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or determined if this
document is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the
United States.

NOTICE PURSUANT TO INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CIRCULAR 230

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CIRCULAR 230, EACH
INVESTOR IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISCUSSION OF UNITED STATES FEDERAL
TAX ISSUES IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND
CANNOT BE USED, BY THE INVESTOR OR ANY TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF
AVOIDING ANY PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE TAXPAYER UNDER THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. SUCH DISCUSSION IS WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE
PROMOTION OR MARKETING BY THE ISSUER OF THE SHARES AND GLOBAL
DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS. THIS PROSPECTUS IS LIMITED TO THE US FEDERAL TAX ISSUES
DESCRIBED HEREIN. IT IS POSSIBLE THAT ADDITIONAL ISSUES MAY EXIST THAT COULD
AFFECT THE US FEDERAL TAX TREATMENT OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SHARES AND
GLOBAL DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS, OR THE MATTER THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE
DISCUSSION HEREIN, AND THIS DISCUSSION DOES NOT CONSIDER OR PROVIDE ANY
CONCLUSIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUCH ADDITIONAL ISSUES. EACH INVESTOR
SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON ITS PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN
INDEPENDENT ADVISOR.
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NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS ONLY

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A
LICENCE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421 B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED
STATUTES (“RSA 421 B”) WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A
SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER RSA 421 B IS TRUE,
COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN
EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS
THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE HAS PASSED IN
ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN
APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON, SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE
OR CAUSE TO BE MADE TO ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY
REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN THE REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

The Offer Shares and GDRs offered hereby may only be offered or sold in the Republic of
Kazakhstan to institutions or individuals in the Republic of Kazakhstan, including banks, brokers, dealers
participants, pension funds, and collective investment institutions, as well as central government, large
international and supranational organisations, other institutional investors and other parties, including
treasury departments of commercial enterprises which as an ancillary activity regularly invest in securities.
This document was prepared for the purpose of offering GDRs outside the Republic of Kazakhstan and,
accordingly, may be provided to investors in the Republic of Kazakhstan for information purposes only and
may not be relied upon by them.

ABN AMRO Rothschild, Credit Suisse and Merrill Lynch International will not be responsible for the
placement of shares into Kazakhstan.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company has agreed that, so long as any of the Offer Shares or GDRs are “restricted securities”
within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the US Securities Act, in order to permit holders of
Offer Shares or GDRs to effect resales under Rule 144A, the Company will, during any period in which
the Company is neither subject to Section 13 or 15(d) of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “US Exchange Act”), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder,
furnish, upon written request, to any holder of Offer Shares or GDRs, or any prospective purchaser
designated by such holder, the information required to be delivered pursuant to Rule 144A(d)(4) under
the US Securities Act.

FINANCIAL REPORTING PURSUANT TO THE KAZAKHSTAN STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The Company is presently in negotiations with the KASE to extend the period for filing its financial
statements for the period ending 30 June 2006 and does not intend to publish such statements until the
completion of the stabilisation period.

Under present KASE rules, Kazakhstan companies are required to publish quarterly unaudited,
unreviewed financial information within two months of the end of the relevant quarter. Pursuant to the
Company’s listing of the GDRs on the LSE, the Company is only required to publish half-yearly financial
information. The Company is in discussions with KASE to change its rules such that it would be exempt, as
a dual listed company, from quarterly reporting following the Global Offer. If it obtains such an
exemption, the Company does not intend to publish quarterly financial statements.

ENFORCEMENT OF FOREIGN JUDGMENTS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan and all of its operations
are located in the Republic of Kazakhstan. None of the Company’s directors or executive officers is a
resident of the United States and all of the Company’s assets and the assets of such persons are located
outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within
the United States upon the Company or such persons or to enforce against any of them judgments of
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US federal or state courts, including judgments predicated upon civil liabilities under the securities laws of
the United States or any state or territory within the United States.

Kazakhstan’s courts will not enforce any judgment obtained in a court established in a country other
than Kazakhstan unless there is in effect a treaty between such country and Kazakhstan providing for
reciprocal enforcement of judgments and then only in accordance with the terms of such treaty. There is
no such treaty in effect between Kazakhstan and the United Kingdom or the United States.

STABILISATION

In connection with the Global Offer, Credit Suisse, as the Stabilisation Manager, (or any agent or
other person acting thereof) may over-allot or effect transactions intended to enable it to satisfy any
over-allocations or which stabilise, maintain, support or otherwise affect the market price of the GDRs at a
level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a period of 30 days after the commencement of
dealings. However, there is no obligation on the Stabilisation Manager, or any agent thereof to do this.
Such transactions may be effected on the LSE, or any other securities market, over the counter market,
stock exchange or otherwise. Such stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time, and must be
brought to an end 30 days after the commencement of dealings. Save as required by law, the Stabilisation
Manager does not intend to disclose the extent of any over-allotments and/or stabilisation transactions
under the Global Offer or the amount of any long or short positions.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Financial Information

The Company’s financial statements included in this document are presented in Tenge and have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The functional
currency of the Company is the Tenge. Accordingly, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency are translated into Tenge at the exchange rates prevailing on the applicable transaction
dates.

As presented in this document, “EBITDA” means earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation,
depletion and amortisation. EBITDA is a supplemental measure of the Company’s performance and
liquidity that is not required by or presented in accordance with IFRS. Furthermore, EBITDA should not
be considered as an alternative to income after taxes, income before taxes or any other performance
measures derived in accordance with IFRS or as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a
measure of the Company’s liquidity or as a measure of cash available to the Company to invest in the
growth of its business.

The Company presents EBITDA because the Company believes it is frequently used by securities
analysts, investors and other interested parties in evaluating similar issuers, most of which present
EBITDA when reporting their results. The Company also presents EBITDA as a supplemental measure of
the Company’s ability to service its indebtedness. Nevertheless, EBITDA has limitations as an analytical
tool and it should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s
results of operations. As a measure of performance, EBITDA presents some limitations for the
following reasons:

* it does not reflect the Company’s cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures
or contractual commitments;

* it does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, the Company’s working capital needs;

* it does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service
interest or principal payments, on the Company’s debt;

* it does not capture differences in income taxes, which may be significant even for companies
operating in the same sector or country;

 although depreciation, depletion and amortisation are non-cash charges, the assets being
depreciated, depleted and amortised will often have to be replaced in the future and EBITDA does
not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements;

* it does not reflect foreign exchange gains or losses; and

* other companies in the Company’s industry may calculate these measures differently from the way
the Company does, limiting its usefulness as a comparative measure.

Rounding adjustments have been made in calculating some of the financial information included in
this document. As a result, figures shown as totals in some tables may not be exact arithmetic aggregations
of the figures that precede them.

The Company’s financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2004 were re-issued
when its financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2005 were published, in order to
correct errors in the earlier financial statements. Financial statements of the Company as at and for the
three month period ended 31 March 2006 are available on the website of the KASE. These financial
statements have been superseded by the Company’s financial statements as at and for the five month
period ended 31 May 2006 and do not form part of this document.

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to “KZT” or “Tenge” are to the lawful currency of the
Republic of Kazakhstan and all references to “US$” or “US dollars” are to the lawful currency of the
United States of America.

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in Tenge. Amounts stated in US dollars
and derived from Tenge amounts, unless otherwise indicated, have been translated from Tenge at a fixed
rate solely for convenience and should not be construed as representations that the Tenge amounts actually
represent such US dollar amounts or could be converted into US dollars at the rate indicated or any other
rate or at all. All such convenience translations are unaudited and should not be construed as



presentations under IFRS. Unless otherwise indicated, such US dollar amounts have been translated from
Tenge at the following rates: financial information extracted from the balance sheets of the Company has
been converted at the appropriate period end exchange rate for the five month period ended 31 May 2006
and the years ended 31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003 as set out in “Exchange Rate Information” and
financial information extracted from the statements of income and cash flows of the Company has been
converted at the appropriate average exchange rate for the five month period ended 31 May 2006 and the
years ended 31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003 as set out in “Exchange Rate Information”. See “Exchange
Rate Information”.

Certain Reserves Information

Cautionary Note to US Investors—The US SEC permits oil and gas companies, in their filings with the
SEC, to disclose only proved reserves that the company has demonstrated by actual production or
conclusive formation tests to be economically and legally producible under existing economic and
operating conditions. The crude oil reserves within this document have been estimated by Gaffney,
Cline & Associates (“GCA”) according to standards established by the Society of Petroleum Engineers
(“SPE”) and the World Petroleum Congresses (“WPC”) and thus proved reserves may differ from those
estimated according to the definitions of the US SEC. Further, the Company uses certain terms in this
document in referring to the Company’s reserves, such as “probable” or “possible” reserves, that the US
SEC’s guidelines would prohibit it from including in filings with the US SEC if the Company were subject
to reporting requirements under the US Exchange Act. Prospective investors should read “The
Company—Company’s Reserves” and the report of GCA, an international oil and gas consultant, on the
Company’s reserves, included in this document (the “GCA Report”), for more information on the
Company’s reserves and the reserves definitions the Company uses.

Hydrocarbon Data

The Company uses two methodologies for estimating its hydrocarbon reserves: Kazakhstan standards
and the international standards established by the SPE and the WPC.

The Company is obliged to submit data according to Kazakhstan standards for reporting purposes to
state bodies. Kazakhstan’s method of classifying oil reserves is based on a system employed in the former
Soviet Union and differs substantially from the standard international methodology. See “Regional
Overview of the Oil and Gas Industry—Resource Classifications”.

Since 1998, the Company has engaged GCA, an international oil and gas consultant, to conduct an
annual review of the Company’s oil reserves. Additionally in 2005, GCA reviewed the Company’s gas and
gas condensate reserves. Applying the reserves definition as promulgated by the SPE/WPC, GCA has
determined that the Company does not have any gas reserves as the volumes available are not commercial.
Thus, wherever gas and gas condensate reserves are stated within this document, these are estimates made
by the Company according to Kazakhstan methodology. See “Regional Overview of the Oil and Gas
Industry—Resource Classifications”.

Unless otherwise stated herein, the estimates set forth in this document of the Company’s proved,
probable and possible crude oil reserves are based on reports prepared for it by GCA in accordance with
the standards established by the SPE and the WPC.

Potential investors should be aware that reserve data set forth on the Company’s website or in other
documents that may be publicly available may be based on Kazakhstan standards, rather than the
international standards used in the preparation of GCA's reports, and that the two sets of data are likely to
be significantly different.

For internal record-keeping purposes, the Company records information relating to production,
transportation and sales of crude oil and gas condensate in tonnes, a unit of measure that reflects the mass
of the relevant hydrocarbon, and, accordingly, the Company presents such information on the same basis
in this document. References in this document to “tonnes” are to metric tonnes. One metric tonne equals
1,000 kilograms. Depending on the field from which the Company’s crude oil is extracted, the factor for
converting from data in tonnes to data in barrels varies between 6.84 and 7.85. Based on 2005 production
levels, GCA has estimated the weighted average conversion factor to be 7.36. For information purposes
only, the Company has included in this document conversions of data in tonnes into barrels of crude oil, a
volumetric measure, at 7.36 barrels per tonne of crude oil. Barrel per day figures have been obtained by
dividing annual barrel figures by 365. These barrel equivalents are indicative amounts only. The actual



number of barrels of crude oil produced, shipped or sold may vary from the barrel equivalents of crude oil
presented herein, as a tonne of heavier crude oil will yield fewer barrels than a tonne of lighter crude oil.
For information purposes only, the Company has also included in this document conversions of data in
tonnes of gas condensate into barrels, a volumetric measure, at 7.87 barrels per tonne of gas condensate,
being the weighted average of the conversion rates for the Company’s gas condensate for 2005. The
conversion of data for other companies in tonnes into barrels may be at different rates.

GCA, however, has used barrel figures for its estimates of reserves and these barrel figures, in contrast
to the barrel equivalent figures discussed above, are not to be taken as indicative amounts only.

Information Regarding the Republic of Kazakhstan and the Company’s Market and Industry

Statistical data and other information appearing in this document relating to the Republic of
Kazakhstan, and the oil and gas industry therein have, unless otherwise stated, been extracted from
documents and other publications released by the Statistics Agency of Kazakhstan, the Ministry of Finance
of Kazakhstan, the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources of Kazakhstan (“MEMR”), the National
Bank of Kazakhstan and other public sources in Kazakhstan, including the National Bank of Kazakhstan’s
Annual Report. Some of the market and competitive position data appearing in this document in
“Regional Overview of the Republic of Kazakhstan” has been obtained from US government publications
and other third-party sources, including publicly available data from the World Bank and International
Monetary Fund as well as from Kazakhstan press reports and publications and edicts and resolutions of the
government of the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Government”). In the case of the presented statistical
information, similar statistics may be obtainable from other sources, although the underlying assumptions
and methodology, and consequently the resulting data, may vary from source to source.

The information described above has been accurately reproduced and as far as the Company is aware
and has been able to ascertain from information published by those sources, no facts have been omitted
which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. Where third party information
has been used in this document the source of such information has been identified.

Information Regarding KazGerMunai and PetroKazakhstan

In this document the information provided regarding KazGerMunai and PetroKazakhstan has been
extracted from publicly available information, including the annual financial statements of
PetroKazakhstan for the year ended 31 December 2004 prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP and
the Central Dispatching Board of the Oil & Gas Industry of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Company
has not undertaken any review of or performed diligence on such information but confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and as far as the Company is aware and has been able to
ascertain from information published by those sources, no facts have been omitted which would render the
reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

NC KMG and the Company

In this document, unless the context otherwise requires, references to “NC KMG” are to the
Company’s parent company, JSC National Company KazMunaiGas, the national oil and gas company of
the Republic of Kazakhstan, references to the “NC KMG Group” are to NC KMG and its subsidiaries
(including the Group), references to the “Company” are to JSC KazMunaiGas Exploration Production
and references to the “Group” and, where the context so requires in “Operating and Financial Review”,
references to the “Company” are to the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries and production
divisions, including those acquired by the Company in the merger of JSC UzenMunaiGas (“UMG”)
and JSC EmbaMunaiGas (“EMG”) in March 2004. See “The Company—History and
Organisational Structure”.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document includes statements that are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements”.
These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including,
but not limited to, the terms “believes”, “estimates”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “may”, “target”,
“will”, or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology, or by
discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or intentions. These forward-looking
statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout
this document and include, but are not limited to, statements regarding the Company’s intentions, beliefs
and statements of current expectations concerning, amongst other things, the Company’s results of
operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and as to the industries in which the

Group operates.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future
events and circumstances that may or may not occur. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
future performance and the actual results of the Group’s operations, financial condition and liquidity and
the development of the country and the industries in which the Group operates may differ materially from
those described in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements contained in this document. Important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company’s expectations are contained
in cautionary statements in this document and include, among others, the following:

* price fluctuations in crude oil, gas and refined products markets and related fluctuations in demand
for such products;

 operational limitations, including equipment failures, labour disputes and processing limitations;
* the availability or cost of transportation routes;

* an inability of the Company to enforce its rights in accordance with Kazakhstan law under the
Relationship Agreement with NC KMG, which regulates the relationship between NC KMG and
the Company, or the Services Agreement with NC KMG under which it has agreed to grant certain
rights to the Company and to refrain from undertaking certain business activities in the Republic
of Kazakhstan;

* an inability to implement any potential acquisition or an inability to acquire such interests on terms
proposed by the Company;

e changes in governmental regulation, including regulatory changes affecting the availability of
permits, and governmental actions that may affect operations or the Company’s planned expansion;

* unfavourable changes in economic or political conditions in Kazakhstan;

* unplanned events or accidents affecting the Company’s operations or facilities;

* incidents or conditions affecting the export of crude oil and gas; and

* reservoir performance, drilling results and implementation of the Company’s oil expansion plans.

These and other factors are discussed in more detail in “Risk Factors” and “The Company”. Many of
these factors are beyond the Company’s control. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from
those described in this document as anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. Save as required by law
or by any appropriate regulatory authority, the Company does not intend, and does not assume any
obligation, to update any industry information or forward-looking statements set out in this document.



EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

Fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the Tenge and the US dollar will affect the US dollar
equivalent of the Tenge price of Shares on the KASE and, as a result, will likely affect the market price of
the GDRs on the LSE.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the average, high, low and period-end daily
exchange rate in Tenge as published by the National Bank of Kazakhstan expressed in Tenge per US$1.00:

Year Ended 31 December Period End  Average®® High Low

2 150.29 146.74  150.20 145.00
2002 . . 155.60 15328  155.60 150.60
2003 . . 144.22 149.58  155.89 143.66
2004 . . 130.00 136.04  143.33  130.00
2005 . . 133.77 132.88  136.12 129.88
2006 (throughto 31 May) . ...t 121.48 128.57  133.85 121.00

(1) The average of the exchange rates on the last business day of each full month during the
relevant period.

As at 28 September 2006, being the last practicable date prior to the publication of this document, the
exchange rate between the Tenge and the US dollar was 127.12 Tenge per US$1.00.
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SUMMARY

The following summary information should be read as an introduction to the more detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this document, including the financial statements included in this document and the
information in the GCA Report from which it is partly derived. Any decision by a prospective investor to invest
in the Offer Shares should be based on consideration of the document as a whole and not solely on this
summarised information. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus Directive
(Directive 2003/71/EC) in each member state of the European Economic Area (“EEA”) civil liability will
attach to the Directors in any such member state for this summary, including any translation hereof if, but only
if, this summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this
document. Where a claim relating to the information contained in this document is brought before a court, the
plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the EEA states, be required to bear the costs of
translating this document before legal proceedings are initiated.

Prospective investors should carefully read the entire document, including the financial statements and
related notes, before making an investment decision. In particular, prospective investors should consider
carefully the factors set forth under the heading “Risk Factors”.

Overview

The Company was created through the merger of JSC UzenMunaiGas and JSC EmbaMunaiGas in
March 2004. The Company is engaged in the production of crude oil, natural and associated gas and is the
third largest crude oil producer in the Republic of Kazakhstan (based on MEMR 2005 data) in terms of
annual production volumes of hydrocarbons (including crude oil) with proved plus probable oil reserves of
approximately 205.9 million tonnes (1,515.2 million barrels) according to GCA. The Company extracts
hydrocarbon resources from 44 oil and gas fields located in the Atyrau and Mangistau regions in western
Kazakhstan. MEMR has granted the Company exclusive rights for exploration and production on
these fields.

The Company conducts its principal exploration and production activities through its UMG and EMG
production divisions in their fields in the Mangistau and the Atyrau regions. The Company is also
conducting or planning to conduct exploration activities in several regions in onshore Kazakhstan.

The Company’s total revenues increased from KZT177.8 billion in 2003 to KZT237.1 billion in 2004
and to KZT346.4 billion in 2005. The Company’s total revenues increased from KZT121.8 billion in the
first five months of 2005 to KZT170.7 billion for the same period in 2006. Similarly, the Company’s net
income increased from KZT7.5 billion in 2003 to KZT13.4 billion in 2004 and to KZT45.1 billion in 2005.
The Company’s total revenues and net income have grown through increased efficiencies in production
and as a result of the increases in hydrocarbon prices.

Competitive Strengths
The Company believes that its competitive strengths are:

* Right of first refusal through NC KMG for existing onshore subsoil oil and gas exploration and
production contracts. The Services Agreement, which expires on 31 December 2006 and must be
renewed by annual tender, provides that NC KMG must make reasonable efforts, if requested to do
so by the Company, to procure the State to exercise its right of first refusal to acquire from the
holder, on behalf of the Company, any interest in an existing onshore subsoil oil and gas exploration
and production contract that the holder proposes to transfer.

Preferential Access through NC KMG to rights to unlicensed onshore oil and gas acreage. Under the
Services Agreement, the Company has the right to request that NC KMG exercise its right under
Kazakhstan law to enter into direct negotiations for exploration and production contracts with
respect to any unlicensed oil and gas acreage in Kazakhstan without engaging in a tender process
and to grant to the Company a right of first refusal to acquire the oil and gas exploration and
production contracts for such acreage.

* Significant existing oil reserve base. ~As of 31 December 2005, the Company’s estimated proved plus
probable oil reserves at the UMG fields and EMG fields were 205.9 million tonnes (1,515.2 million
barrels), of which 42% were classified as proved reserves. The Company has exclusive rights under
its contracts and licences with MEMR to develop the UMG fields and EMG fields until up to 2025
depending on the field.



* Extensive experience in crude oil and gas production. The Company has extensive knowledge of the
geology of its fields and of exploration and production in the region, with its production divisions
having nearly 100 years of production experience in Kazakhstan.

* Access to export pipeline routes. The Company has entered into a contract with JSC KazTransOil
(“KTO”) that contractually guarantees its right to ship specified minimum volumes of crude oil,
subject to MEMR quotas, through the UAS pipeline until the end of 2012. In addition, the
Company has the right to ship crude oil through the CPC pipeline until the end of 2008.

Strategy

The Company’s goal is to maintain its position as a leading oil and gas company in Kazakhstan. As
part of the process of achieving this goal, the Company has developed a five year strategy, with the
following key priorities:

* Increase the Company’s overall production and replace the Company’s reserves through acquisitions in
the short-to-medium term and exploration in the long term. 'The Company has entered into an option
agreement to acquire the 50% interest in KazGerMunai currently held by NC KMG, although the
exercise of this option agreement is subject to a number of conditions precedent. In addition, the
Company understands that NC KMG is prepared to offer to sell to the Company its 33% interest in
PetroKazakhstan (excluding any interest in the Shymkent refinery) following the Global Offer,
although the Company has not entered into any definitive arrangements in respect of either such
transaction. The Company is also currently concentrating its exploration activities on the Taisoigan,
R-9 and Liman blocks and the Triassic reservoirs of the Uzen and Karamandybas fields (and
adjoining territories) and on expanding the size of the Nurzhanov, Makat East and Akingen fields.

* Sustain current levels of oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields over the medium term. The
Company intends to sustain its current level of production at the UMG fields and EMG fields over
the medium term principally through drilling and completing new wells, completing well workovers
and continuing various secondary and enhanced oil recovery methods.

* Rationalise the Company’s operations by divesting non-core and ancillary businesses. ~As part of the
Company’s Asset Optimisation Programme, the Company has begun divesting its ownership
interests in most of its subsidiaries whose operations are non-core to the Company’s upstream
operations and development strategy.

* Bring the Company’s operations into line with international environmental, labour and safety standards.
As part of its development plan, the Company is in the process of implementing policies that it
believes will enable it to meet international standards for environmental protection, human
resource management and employee safety in all of its operations.

* Cost Reduction Plan. The Company has developed a cost reduction plan designed to enable
significant cost reductions. The central components to this plan include: (i) optimisation of
production through the application of enhanced reservoir modelling capabilities; (ii) extending well
lives of existing fields through the application of electric rotary and screw pumps, in addition to
monitoring the quality of oil well tubing; (iii) increasing pipeline life through the replacement of
steel pipes with fibreglass pipes; (iv) modernisation of collection and preparation stations through
the construction of a new preparation facility at Uzen; and (v) optimisation of logistics and business
processes including the automation of measurement systems.

Risk Factors

Prior to investing in the Offer Shares, prospective investors should consider, together with the other
information contained in this document, the factors and risks attaching to an investment in the Company’s
shares, including the following risks:

Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Business

* Any future decrease in crude oil prices could adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations.

* If the level of the Company’s crude oil and gas reserves, or their quality, are lower than estimated or
expected, the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

10



* Failure by the Company to gain access to additional reserves or to acquire additional reserves at
commercially viable prices could materially and adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve its
long-term growth strategy.

* The Government has the ability to require additional deliveries of crude oil to domestic refineries
and these may be at prices that are materially below international market prices.

* The Company relies upon transportation systems owned and operated by third parties which may
become unavailable. The Company may be unable to access these or alternative transportation
systems and could be subject to increased tariffs imposed by such third parties for transportation of
its crude oil.

* The Company may be unable to implement any potential acquisitions or may not be able to acquire
such interests on terms proposed by the Company.

* The Company and its predecessors have generated substantial environmental liabilities that the
Company is required to remediate at its cost.

* The Company’s accounting systems are not as sophisticated or robust as those of companies with a
longer history of compliance with IFRS and certain material weaknesses in the Company’s internal
controls have been identified by the Company’s independent auditor.

* The Company is in the process of implementing new management information systems and
financial controls.

* The Company is subject to an uncertain tax environment which may lead to disputes with taxation
authorities.
Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Relationship with NC KMG

* NC KMG will continue to have significant influence over the Company’s affairs following the
Global Offer and the interests of NC KMG may conflict with the best interests of the Company’s
minority shareholders.

* If NC KMG fails to renew the Services Agreement, the Company will lose its rights under the
Services Agreement.

* The Company may be unable to enforce its rights under the Relationship Agreement and the
Services Agreement.

* The Company’s ability to engage external advisers and establish long-term commercial relationships
with third parties is impaired due to the application of the State Procurement Law to the Company.
Risk Factors Relating to the Republic of Kazakhstan

* All of the Company’s assets are currently located in Kazakhstan and the Company is therefore
susceptible to country specific risk factors such as political, social and economic instability.

* The Company is exposed to a variety of political and country risks, including the risk of adverse
sovereign action by the Government.
Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Shares and GDRs
* The financial market in Kazakhstan is less developed than in Western jurisdictions.

* Sales, or the real or perceived possibility of sales, of a significant number of Shares in the public
market could adversely affect prevailing market prices for the Company’s Shares and GDRs.

* Shares and GDRs may be subject to market price volatility and the market price of Shares and
GDRs may decline disproportionately in response to adverse developments that are unrelated to
the Company’s operating performance.

* The recently introduced Kazakhstan Corporate Governance Code has not yet proven effective at
ensuring strong corporate governance practices in Kazakhstan.
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Summary Reserves Information

As of 31 December 2005, the Company’s estimated proved plus probable oil reserves at the UMG
fields were 155.9 million tonnes (1,147.3 million barrels) and the Company’s estimated proved plus
probable oil reserves at the EMG fields were 50.0 million tonnes (367.9 million barrels). The Company
estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that recoverable reserves of gas and gas condensate at the
UMG fields as of 31 December 2005 were 16.3 billion cubic metres and 1.6 million tonnes (12.7 million
barrels), respectively. Applying the reserves definition as promulgated by the SPE/WPC, GCA has
determined that the Company does not have any gas reserves as the volumes available are not
commercially viable. Thus, wherever gas and gas condensate reserves are stated within this document,
these are estimates made by the Company according to Kazakhstan methodology.

Summary Production Information

In 2005, oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields was 6.5 million tonnes (132.0 thousand
bopd) and 2.8 million tonnes (56.3 thousand bopd) respectively. For the five months ended 31 May 2006,
oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields was 2.7 million tonnes and 1.1 million tonnes
(132.7 thousand bopd and 55.3 thousand bopd respectively). In 2005, gas production at the UMG fields
was 812.1 million cubic metres and gas condensate production at the UMG fields was 23.3 thousand tonnes
(approximately 502 bepd). For the five months ended 31 May 2006, gas production at the UMG fields was
311 million cubic metres and gas condensate production at the UMG fields was 8.4 thousand tonnes
(approximately 439 bepd).

Summary Historical Financial Information

The following tables set forth summary financial information for the periods indicated. The data
presented in Tenge has been extracted without material adjustment from the financial statements included
elsewhere in this document which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Amounts shown in US dollars have been translated from Tenge at the period end rate for the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and the average period rate for the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows solely for the convenience of the reader.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at 31 May As at 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment . . 2,021,779 245,605,660 1,817,536 243,131,834 257,958,200 223,984,629
Other non-current assets. . . . . . 172,651 20,973,624 468,181 62,628,519 31,961,170 6,926,019
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . 249,645 30,326,888 150,913 20,187,588 14,127,579 9,310,184
Other current assets . ....... 1,071,834 130,206,376 825,565 110,435,767 76,706,675 47,475,495
Total assets . . . ........... 3,515,909 427,112,548 3,262,195 436,383,708 380,753,624 287,696,327
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total equity . . .. .......... 1,775,018 215,629,213 1,298,741 173,732,563 168,733,696 155,559,157
Non-current borrowings . . . . . . 345,650 41,989,591 403,893 54,028,740 50,758,435 8,145,588
Other non-current liabilities . . . 538,871 65,462,032 477,681 63,899,328 67,291,605 65,120,194
Current borrowings . . . . ... .. 157,468 19,129,206 157,892 21,121,175 18,100,418 10,160,262
Other current liabilities . . . . .. 698,901 84,902,506 923,988 123,601,902 75,869,470 48,711,126
Total liabilities and equity . . . . 3,515,908 427,112,548 3,262,195 436,383,708 380,753,624 287,696,327
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Five months ended 31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Export:

Crude oil . ....... 1,168,910 150,286,721 104,690,882 2,257,904 300,030,298 203,059,607 146,167,659

Refined products . . . 0 0 651,491 4,903 651,491 6,791,761 3,347,074
Domestic:

Crude oil . ....... 101,577 13,059,758 0 52,159 6,930,889 94,638 3,153,951

Refined products . . . 32,252 4,146,619 13,681,276 246,930 32,812,045 18,487,681 19,641,750

Gas products . . . . . . 12,223 1,571,511 1,408,663 30,720 4,082,068 3,886,963 2,905,790
Other sales and services 12,910 1,659,852 1,323,849 14,469 1,922,654 4,782,568 2,541,149

1,327,872 170,724,461 121,756,161 2,607,085 346,429,445 237,103,218 177,757,373

Operating expenses . . . (530,182) (68,165,441) (70,956,733) (1,539,551) (204,575,552) (162,276,362) (136,586,864)
Profit from operations . 797,690 102,559,020 50,799,428 1,067,534 141,853,893 74,826,856 41,170,509
Finance (expense)

income . . ........ (32,498) (4,178,210) 509,732 8,237 1,094,568 (3,436,830)  (2,228,285)
Profit before tax and

minority interest . . . 765,192 98,380,810 51,309,160 1,075,771 142,948,461 71,390,026 38,942,224
Income tax expense . . . (443,412) (57,009,517) (32,195,396) (746,483) (99,192,639) (58,209,157) (31,513,204)
Profit for the period

from continuing

operations . ...... 321,780 41,371,293 19,113,764 329,288 43,755,822 13,180,869 7,429,020
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit for the period

from discontinued

operations. . . ... .. 0 0 701,563 11,447 1,521,130 283,718 74,211
Profit for the period . . . 321,780 41,371,293 19,815,327 340,736 45,276,952 13,464,587 7,503,231
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the

Company . ....... 321,780 41,371,293 19,721,658 339,213 45,074,642  13.426,853 7,493,361
Minority interest . . . . . 0 0 93,669 1,523 202,310 37,734 9,870

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Five months ended 31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

Net cash generated from

operating activities . . . . . 203,383 26,148,964 26,687,846 564,823 75,053,723 60,494,214 45,211,534
Net cash used in investing

activities . .. ........ (94,125) (12,101,652) (54,238,665) (748,769) (99,496,430) (82,338,545) (33,465,385)
Net cash (used in) from

financing activities . . . . . (24,037) (3,090,452) 57,393,020 226,385 30,082,102 27,160,949  (5,080,542)

Relationship with NC KMG

NC KMG is the national company for oil and gas operations in the Republic of Kazakhstan. NC KMG
is a holding company for approximately 35 companies, which include certain oil and gas companies
operating in Kazakhstan and various other companies that are focused on activities other than exploration.
The Company is the major oil and gas exploration and production subsidiary of NC KMG.

After the Global Offer, NC KMG will own approximately 60.1% of the Company’s voting share
capital (assuming the Underwriters over-allot the Parent GDRs in full and do not exercise the
Underwriters’ Put Option (as defined below)). NC KMG will therefore retain a majority of the Shares and
will hold a majority of votes at a general shareholders’ meeting, which will allow NC KMG to have
significant influence over the strategy and activities of the Company.
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Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered and will continue to enter into various agreements and transactions with
members of the NC KMG Group. Agreements and transactions of significance include the Services
Agreement, the Relationship Agreement, the KMG TradeHouse Agency Agreement, the Disposal of the
Atyrau Refinery Agreement and the KGM Option Agreement.

Recent Developments

In July 2006, NC KMG acquired a 33% stake in PetroKazakhstan for approximately US$1.4 billion
and a 50% stake in KazGerMunai for approximately US$1 billion. The Company has an option to acquire
from NC KMG its 50% stake in KazGerMunai. Also, the Company understands that NC KMG intends to
offer its 33% stake in PetroKazakhstan (excluding any interest in the Shymkent refinery) to it after the
Global Offer. Any such transaction by the Company would be subject to certain conditions precedent
including full due diligence by the Company, approval by a majority of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, sending a circular to shareholders (including holders of GDRs) and the approval of the
transaction by a simple majority vote at a shareholders’ meeting at which GDR holders have the
opportunity to vote their underlying Shares and NC KMG does not vote.

Use of Proceeds

The proceeds of the Global Offer receivable by the Company net of underwriting commissions and
estimated offering expenses will be approximately US$1,970 million. The Company will not receive any
proceeds from the potential sale of the Parent GDRs or the potential re-purchase of the underlying shares
by NC KMG pursuant to the Underwriters’ Put Option. In line with its strategy, the Company will apply
the net proceeds and use its first right of refusal granted pursuant to the Services Agreement by NC KMG
for existing oil acreage, to acquire in the short to medium term, strategically attractive oil production
contracts and to achieve, in the longer term, a capital structure appropriate to exploit its preferential access
through NC KMG to unlicensed onshore oil exploration acreage in Kazakhstan. To achieve this latter
longer term objective, the Company may consider repaying Group borrowings. Pending application of the
proceeds as described above, the Company will invest the proceeds in short-term bank deposits.
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SUMMARY OF THE GLOBAL OFFER

The Issuer . .

The Global Offer .........

The Shares . .

The GDRs . .

Offer Price . .

Closing Date

JSC KazMunaiGas Exploration Production.

The Company is offering 23,086,791 Shares in a simultaneous
institutional international offer of GDRs outside of Kazakhstan and an
offer of Shares in the Republic of Kazakhstan and in the rest of the
world. The GDRs are being offered in the United States to QIBs in
reliance on Rule 144A or another exemption from, or transaction not
subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act
and outside the United States and the Republic of Kazakhstan to
certain persons in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S.
The GDRs will be issued by The Bank of New York, as depositary
(the “Depositary”).

The Offer Shares (whether in the form of Shares or GDRs) are being
offered at the Offer Price on a basis that is preferential only as to
allocation to certain companies, individuals (including Directors and
members of the Company’s management), institutions and/or other
entities in Kazakhstan and elsewhere as the Company may designate,
including certain holders of indebtedness of the Group who will pay in
kind for Offer Shares by surrendering such indebtedness to the
Company.

The Company’s share capital presently (prior to the closing of the
Global Offer) consists of 47,134,144 Shares and 4,136,107 preference
shares which are fully paid. The Shares have the rights described under
“Description of Share Capital and Certain Requirements of
Kazakhstan Legislation”.

Each GDR will represent one sixth of a Share. The GDRs will be
issued by the Depositary pursuant to a deposit agreement (the “Deposit
Agreement”) between the Company and the Depositary. The
Regulation S GDRs (as defined in the Deposit Agreement) will be
evidenced initially by a Master Regulation S GDR and the Rule 144A
GDRs (as defined in the Deposit Agreement) will be evidenced initially
by a Master Rule 144A GDR, each to be issued by the Depositary
pursuant to the Deposit Agreement. The Master Regulation S GDR
and the Master Rule 144A GDR are herein collectively referred to as
the Master GDRs. Pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, the Shares
represented by the GDRs will be held in Kazakhstan by
JSC Kazkommertsbank, as the custodian nominated by the Depositary
(“Custodian”), for the benefit of the Depositary.

Except in the limited circumstances described herein, definitive GDR
certificates will not be issued to holders in exchange for interests in the
GDRs represented by the Master GDRs. Subject to the terms of the
Deposit Agreement, interests in the Master Regulation S GDR may be
exchanged for interests in the corresponding number of GDRs
represented by the Master Rule 144A GDR, and vice versa.

KZT11,163.39 per Offer Share.
US$14.64 per GDR.

The Company is offering GDRs and Shares at an equivalent price,
calculated at the weighted average exchange rate of Tenge to the
US Dollar as determined based on the results of trading during the
morning (base) session at the KASE on 28 September 2006.

4 October 2006.
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Sale and Put Agreement and
Underwriters” Put Option . . .

Transfer Restrictions . ... ...

Dividend Policy ..........

Listing and Market for the
GDRs and Shares.........

In connection with the Global Offer, NC KMG will sell 3,463,019
secondary Shares (equivalent in size to 15% of the Global Offer) to the
Underwriters for the purpose of making over-allotments and to conduct
stabilisation activities in the GDRs. Under the over-allotment
structure, contained in a sale and put agreement between NC KMG
and the underwriters (the “Sale and Put Agreement”), NC KMG has
granted the Underwriters a put option, exerciseable for a period of up
to 30 days from the commencement of dealings, to sell to NC KMG any
GDRs which have been purchased in the market as a result of
stabilisation activities.

The Company, NC KMG and certain Directors of the Company and
members of the Company’s management have agreed, subject to
certain exceptions, not to offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge, charge,
grant options over or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any
Shares in the Company or securities convertible or exchangeable into
or exercisable for any Shares in the Company or enter into any swap or
any other agreement or other transaction that transfers, in whole or in
part, directly or indirectly, any of the economic consequences of
ownership of any Shares, or mandate any third party to do so, or
publicly announce any intention to do any of the foregoing, for a period
of 180 days from the Closing Date with respect to the Company,
NC KMG and the Company’s directors and management, without, in
the case of the Company and NC KMG only, the prior written consent
of the Underwriters. See “Details of the Global Offer—Lock-up
Arrangements”.

The Shares and GDRs will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer
as described under “Description of Share Capital and Certain
Requirements of Kazakhstan Legislation” and “Terms and Conditions
of the Global Depositary Receipts” respectively.

See “Dividends and Dividend Policy”.

Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for a listing of
up to 215,000,000 GDRs, consisting of 51,905,592 GDRs to be issued
on the Closing Date and the remainder to be issued from time to time
against the deposit of Shares with the Depositary, to be admitted to the
Official List and to the LSE for such GDRs to be admitted to trading
on the LSE’s market for listed securities through the International
Order Book (“IOB”) under the symbol “KMG”. The IOB is a
regulated market for the purposes of the Investment Services Directive
93/22/EC. Application has also been made to have the Rule 144A
GDRs designated eligible for trading in PORTAL.

Prior to the Global Offer, there has been no market for the GDRs.
There will be conditional trading in the GDRs on 4 October 2006 only.
Admission to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and to
unconditional trading on the LSE’s regulated market for listed
securities, is expected to take place on 5 October 2006, with closing and
settlement occurring on 4 October 2006.

Additional Shares may be deposited, subject to the provisions set forth
under “Terms and Conditions of the Global Depositary Receipts” and
in the Deposit Agreement, with the Custodian against which the
Depositary shall issue GDRs representing such Shares.
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Settlement Procedures . . ...

General Information

On 20 December 2004, application was made to the KASE for all of the
Shares, issued and to be issued, to be admitted to the Official List of
the KASE. On 31 December 2004, the KASE admitted the Shares to
Category “A” of the Official List of the KASE. It is expected that
unconditional dealings on the KASE in the new Shares will commence
on 4 October 2006.

Payment for the GDRs is expected to be made in US dollars in
same-day funds through the facilities of DTC, Euroclear and
Clearstream. The Depositary has applied to DTC to have the
Rule 144A GDRs accepted into DTC’s book-entry settlement system.
Upon acceptance by DTC, a single Master Rule 144A GDR will be
held in book-entry form and will be issued to DTC and registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. The Master Regulation S
GDR will be registered in the name of The Bank of New York
Depository (Nominees) Limited, as nominee for The Bank of New
York, London Branch as common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream. Euroclear and Clearstream are expected to accept the
Regulation S GDRs for settlement in their respective book-entry
settlement systems. Except in limited circumstances described herein,
investors may hold beneficial interests in the GDRs evidenced by the
corresponding Master GDR only through DTC, Euroclear or
Clearstream, as applicable.

Transfers within DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream will be in accordance
with the usual rules and operating procedures of the relevant system.
See “Settlement and Transfer”.

Each purchaser of the Shares in the Global Offer is required to pay for
any Shares on 3 October 2006, with the exception of those purchasers
that are prohibited from making advance payments under legislation of
the Republic of Kazakhstan, with delivery of the funds the next day
against transfer of the Shares. Purchasers will be required to deliver
funds to the correspondence account of the KASE with the Monetary
Operations Management Division of the National Bank of Kazakhstan.
The Offer Shares will be transferred to such purchasers on 4 October
2006. The funds collected by the KASE will be transferred to the
Company on 4 October 2006.

The Deposit Agreement contains arrangements allowing holders of
GDRs to vote the underlying Shares in accordance with Kazakhstan
law. Holders of Shares are entitled to one vote per Share at a
shareholders’ meeting. See “Description of Share Capital and Certain
Requirements of Kazakhstan Legislation—Summary of the Charter—
General meetings” and “Terms and Conditions of the Global
Depositary Receipts—Condition 12 (Voting Rights)”.

Shares:
ISIN: KAO00AOKEZQ2
KASE trading symbols: RDGZ
Regulation S GDRs:
CUSIP: 48666V204
ISIN: US48666V2043
Common Code: 02661130
Rule 144A GDRs:
CUSIP: 48666V105
ISIN: US48666V1052
Common Code: 026611059
London Stock Exchange GDR trading symbol: KMG
PORTAL Rule 144A GDR trading symbol: JSCKFPC5
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RISK FACTORS

In addition to other information in this document, prospective investors should carefully consider the
following risk factors before investing in the Company’s securities. The risks and uncertainties described below
are not the only ones the Company faces. Additional risks and uncertainties that the Company is not aware of
or that the Company currently believes are immaterial may also adversely affect the Company’s business,
financial condition or results of operations. If any of the possible events described below occurs, the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Business

Any future decrease in crude oil prices could adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations.

Crude oil sales are the Company’s primary source of revenue and the price of crude oil is affected by a
variety of factors beyond the Company’s control. The Company’s business, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations are heavily dependent on prevailing crude oil prices. Historically, crude oil prices
have been highly volatile. The Company’s revenues and net income fluctuate significantly with changes in
crude oil prices. Although oil prices worldwide have increased significantly since 2001, there can be no
assurance that such growth, or the existing level of oil prices, will be maintained in the future. Any future
declines (even relatively modest declines) in oil prices could adversely affect the Company’s business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company’s profitability is determined in large part by the difference between the income received
for crude oil the Company produces and its operating costs, as well as costs incurred in transporting and
selling its crude oil. Therefore, lower crude oil prices may reduce the amount of crude oil that the
Company is able to produce economically or may reduce the economic viability of the production levels of
specific wells or of projects planned or in development because production costs would exceed anticipated
income from such production. Any decline in crude oil prices and/or any curtailment in the Company’s
overall production volumes could result in a reduction in net income, impair the Company’s ability to make
planned capital expenditures and to incur costs necessary for the development of the Company’s fields and
could materially adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations.

Furthermore, the Company does not have any hedging agreements whereby floor and/or ceiling price
index collars are set for the price of crude oil that the Company sells. The Company does not have any
contractual hedging protection in the event that crude oil prices decrease from their current levels.

Prices for oil are subject to large fluctuations in response to a variety of factors beyond the Company’s
control, including:

* effects of the world economy and of geo-political events;

* relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil;

* market uncertainty and speculative activities by those who buy and sell oil on the world markets;
* weather and general economic conditions;

* the actions of the Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries;

* governmental regulation in Kazakhstan and elsewhere;

* political stability in Kazakhstan, neighbouring countries and other oil producing regions; and

* the availability of alternate fuel sources.

Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to receive the same prices per
tonne for crude oil as it currently receives or historically has received. If prices for the Company’s crude oil
fall below current levels and/or if the Company’s overall production volumes are curtailed, this could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations.
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If the level of the Company’s crude oil and gas reserves, or their quality, are lower than estimated or expected, the
Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

Unless stated otherwise, the oil reserves data contained in this document are taken from the GCA
Report which has been prepared in accordance with the standards established by the SPE and the WPC.
The gas reserves have been prepared by the Company in accordance with Kazakhstan methodology.
Despite this, there are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating the quantity and the quality of
reserves and in projecting future rates of production, including many factors beyond the Company’s
control. Estimating the amount and quality of oil and gas reserves is a subjective process and estimates
made by different experts often vary significantly. In addition, results of drilling, testing and production
subsequent to the date of an estimate may result in revisions to that estimate. Accordingly, reserves
estimates may be different from the quantity or quality of crude oil and gas that is ultimately recovered
and, consequently, the revenue therefrom could be less than that currently expected. The significance of
such estimates is highly dependent upon the accuracy of the assumptions on which they are based, the
quality of the information available and the ability to verify such information against industry standards.

The reserves data contained herein are estimates only and should not be construed as representing
exact quantities. These estimates are based on production data, prices, costs, ownership, geological and
engineering data, and other information assembled by the Company, and they assume, among other things,
that the future development of the Company’s oil fields and the future marketability of the Company’s oil
will be similar to past development and marketability. These assumptions may prove to be incorrect and
potential investors should not place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements contained herein
(including data taken from the GCA Report) concerning the Company’s reserves or production levels.

If the assumptions upon which the estimates of the Company’s reserves of crude oil or gas have been
based are wrong, the Company may be unable to produce the estimated levels or quality of crude oil or gas
set out in this document and the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if oil prices fall some of the Company’s
reserves may not be commercially viable to extract.

Failure by the Company to gain access to additional reserves or to acquire additional reserves at commercially
viable prices could materially and adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve its long term growth strategy.

Although based on its estimated production profile the Company anticipates its reserves to last at
least until the end of each contract period (i.e., 2015 — 2024, for respective fields), according to GCA, the
estimated reserve life of the Company’s proved and probable oil reserves at the 2005 rate of production of
approximately 188 thousand bopd is 22 years and therefore, the Company needs to be able to acquire and
develop additional reserves in order to maintain its current production levels in the long term. The
Company’s ability to achieve its growth objectives depends in part upon its success in finding and acquiring
or gaining access to additional reserves. The Company’s ability to find, acquire and gain access to
additional reserves involves certain risks, including: identifying appropriate interests as and when they
become available; being able to compete with other interested purchasers who may have larger financial
resources than the Company has; unidentified historical or future liabilities of the operations that the
Company may acquire; the inability to receive accurate and timely information about these operations in
order to make informed investment decisions; problems in integrating acquired operations; and problems
in hiring and retaining qualified personnel.

Many of the Company’s international competitors are seeking to expand their interests in Central
Asian oil operations to diversify their risk and obtain access to additional reserves. These companies may
be able to pay more for exploratory prospects and productive oil properties and may be able to identify,
evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of prospects and properties, including operatorships and
licences, than the Company’s financial or human resources permit. Any failure by the Company to finance
and acquire additional reserves at commercially viable prices may materially and adversely affect the
Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company’s exploration activities, both in relation to obtaining access to new assets and in relation
to exploiting such assets, also may prove to be unsuccessful or impracticable.

The Company’s ability to maintain and increase levels of reserves in the future will depend on its
ability to select and acquire on commercially viable terms suitable producing properties and the Company
faces competition in doing this. In addition, although the Company has been granted certain preferential
rights under the terms of the Services Agreement in respect of the acquisition of onshore oil exploration
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and production assets, and has entered into an option agreement with NC KMG to acquire its 50% interest
in KazGerMunai, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to take advantage of such
preferential rights, that the Services Agreement will be re-tendered by NC KMG and renewed or that it
will exercise or complete its option to acquire the KazGerMunai interest. See “Risk Factors—Relating to
the Company’s Relationship with NC KMG—The Company may be unable to enforce its rights under the
Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement”, “—The Company may be unable to implement any
proposed acquisitions or may not be able to acquire such interests on terms proposed by the Company”
and “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements

with NC KMG and its affiliates—Option Agreement for KazGerMunai”.

Competitive factors in the exploration and production of crude oil include price, methods and
reliability of delivery and costs of exploration and extraction of crude oil, where the Company will compete
with others in the industry on the basis of its costs and efficiency. Competitors include Western
multinational oil companies which have greater financial resources, staff and facilities than the
Company does.

The Company faces other risks in finding, acquiring and gaining access to additional reserves. For
example, in the past, certain of the Company’s exploration activities were suspended due to proximity to
geographies important to national security. The Company cannot guarantee that its current or any
additional exploration or production activities will not be stopped by Government authorities in the future
for similar or other reasons important to the Government. In addition, the Company believes it is unlikely
that large new oil onshore fields will be found in Kazakhstan. While the Company may consider acquisition
opportunities outside Kazakhstan, it has no specific political support or local expertise outside Kazakhstan
and any such expansion may expose the Company to new risks. These additional risks may materially and
adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company may face unanticipated increases in costs or may be unable to reduce them in line with its strategy
and cost reduction programme.

The Company’s strategy calls for a reduction in oil production costs and other operating costs in the
medium term, but the Company may be unable to implement this strategy for a number of reasons,
including the Company’s continued reliance on secondary, enhanced recovery and well
stimulation techniques and will incur additional costs due to its growth and investment plans.

The oil and gas business is a capital intensive industry. The Company’s main oil fields are considered
to be “mature” and the characteristics of its oil and the complex geological formations of its reservoirs
have tended to make extraction difficult. Accordingly, in order to maintain the Company’s existing crude
oil production levels, its capital and operating expenses have increased, including as a result of its use of
secondary, enhanced recovery, well stimulation techniques, as well as increases in salaries and the cost of
supplies. See “The Company—Production—Oil Field Development and Rehabilitation”. Although these
techniques have been used successfully over the past four years, they may prove in the future to be
inadequate in which case the Company may need to adopt alternative methods which may cause it to incur
additional production costs. The Company’s future capital expenditures and operating expenses may
ultimately be greater than current and currently planned amounts and such differences may materially and
adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company may need to incur various unanticipated costs, examples of which are those associated
with personnel, procurement, internal control over financial reporting and Government taxes and costs.
Personnel costs, including salaries, may increase as the standard of living rises in Kazakhstan or as a result
of the Company’s listing on the LSE, as it needs to attract and retain suitably qualified personnel in order
to comply with the necessary reporting and other requirements. Additionally, trade unions are active in
Kazakhstan particularly in the oil and gas sector. Although there have been no strikes in the history of the
Group and good relations exist with the Company’s trade union, the Company cannot rule out industrial
action and the increased costs associated with it. See “The Company—Employees, Health and Safety”.
The Company’s procurement of materials, machinery and services from third parties may not be as
efficient as similar procurement by competitors, as it is subject to the bureaucratic requirements of the
Kazakhstan laws on state procurement which can divert employee resources and time. See “—The
Company’s ability to engage external advisers and establish long-term commercial relationships with third
parties is impaired due to the application of the Kazakhstan State Procurement Law to the Company”.

The Company is also currently undertaking a programme to improve its internal controls and its risk
management and financial reporting procedures and the cost of implementation of this plan could be
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higher than anticipated, especially if there are delays or if the new controls do not function as the Company
presently expects.

In addition to the increased production and other operational expenses discussed above, the Company
may face unanticipated expenditures in connection with its ongoing plan to acquire or gain access to
additional hydrocarbon reserves. There are numerous uncertainties in predicting such acquisition costs and
if they prove to be higher than the Company presently anticipates, the Company’s business, prospects,
financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

The Company is required under general law and the terms of its production contracts and licences to
pay royalties (whether in cash or in kind) and various taxes, including excess profit tax, corporate income
tax and VAT, to the Government and in certain cases incur costs in respect of social infrastructure
expenditure. There is also a possibility that the government may increase taxes as oil prices increase. See
“—The Company is subject to an uncertain tax environment which may lead to disputes with taxation
authorities”.

An increase in any of these costs could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business,
prospects, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company faces drilling and production risks and hazards which may affect the Company’s ability to produce
crude oil at expected levels, quality and costs.

The Company’s future success will depend, in part, on its ability to develop existing oil reserves in a
timely and cost-effective manner using secondary, enhanced recovery and well stimulation techniques.

The Company’s drilling activities may be unsuccessful and the actual costs incurred of drilling,
operating wells and completing well workovers may exceed budget. The Company may be required to
curtail, delay or cancel any drilling operations because of a variety of factors, including unexpected drilling
conditions, pressure or irregularities in geological formations, equipment failures or accidents, adverse
weather conditions, compliance with governmental requirements and shortages or delays in the availability
of drilling rigs and the delivery of equipment. The occurrence of any of these events could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The technical specification of the oil the Company produces is of a relatively low quality, as it is highly
paraffinic and is of a relatively high sulphur content. These factors may negatively impact the selling price
of the oil the Company produces and therefore its revenues.

The Company’s production operations are also subject to all the production hazards typically
associated with the production of oil and gas resources. These risks include natural catastrophe, fire,
explosion, blowouts, encountering formations with abnormal pressure, the use of secondary recovery
techniques, the level of water cut, cratering and oil spills, each of which could result in substantial damage
to oil wells, producing facilities, other property and the environment or in personal injury. Any of these
risks could result in loss of crude oil and gas or could lead to environmental pollution and other damage to
the Company’s properties or surrounding areas and increase costs.

The Government has the ability to require additional deliveries of crude oil to domestic refineries and these may be
at prices that are materially below international market prices.

The Government has the power to require producers to supply a portion of their crude oil production
to domestic refineries to meet domestic energy requirements. Pursuant to governmental requirements,
during the period of 2003 to 2005 the Company has supplied the LLP Atyrau Refinery (“Atyrau Refinery”)
with an average of approximately 2.2 million tonnes per annum, which is approximately 50% of Atyrau’s
processing capacity.

In 2005, the Company executed a Refinery Supply Undertaking under which it undertook to
participate in each tender held by JSC Trade House KazMunaiGas, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
NC KMG (“KMG TradeHouse”), for the supply of crude. Pursuant to the terms of the Refinery Supply
Undertaking (and of the Relationship Agreement), the Company has agreed to supply the Atyrau Refinery
with not more than 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum between 2006 and 2010 at a price equal to
the Company’s cost of production and transportation, plus a margin of 3%. For the years 2011-2015, the
volume of crude oil to be supplied will be determined in accordance with the Company’s business plan
(as approved by the Board of Directors, which it currently anticipates will be no more than 1.9 million
tonnes per annum) at a price equal to the Company’s cost of production and transportation, plus a
margin of 3%.
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Notwithstanding the terms of the Refinery Supply Undertaking, the Government can still mandate
additional deliveries of crude oil at levels exceeding the agreed 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum.
The price for such additional supplies of crude oil is determined by NC KMG, and may be materially
below international market prices and may even be set at the cost of production. If the Government does
require additional crude oil to be delivered over and above the Company’s production output that it is
currently obligated to supply, in total, to the Atyrau Refinery, such supplies will take precedence over
market sales. In 2006, the Company expects to supply 2.4 million tonnes of crude oil to the domestic
market. Such supplies will generate substantially less revenue than crude oil sold on the export market.
This may materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations.

The Company relies upon transportation systems owned and operated by third parties which may become
unavailable. The Company may be unable to access these or alternative transportation systems could be subject to
increased tariffs imposed by such third parties for transportation of its crude oil.

Access

The crude oil produced by the Company is generally transported via infrastructure owned or operated
by third parties.

Kazakhstan has no direct access to the open sea, and any crude oil to be exported must use routes
through other countries. Kazakhstan crude oil for export must be transported through pipelines, by rail or
by the Caspian sea. The Company currently exports its crude oil exclusively through pipelines crossing
Russia to seaports on the Black Sea, to Baltic seaports and to Central Europe. The Company is therefore
dependent upon the enforcement of the intergovernmental agreement between Kazakhstan and Russia on
the supply of oil through such pipelines and upon the maintenance of stable relations between Kazakhstan
and Russia. Any reduction or cessation in the availability of these pipelines, whether due to serious
malfunctions, security issues, political developments or “acts of God”, could force the Company to cease
its exports and cause long-term damage to its production facilities. Furthermore, the Company does not
currently have a fully developed plan for dealing with a full or partial cessation in the availability
of pipelines.

Oil production in Kazakhstan is increasing which means that access to export routes is increasingly
competitive. The two principal pipelines which the Company uses are the Caspian Pipeline Consortium
(“CPC”) pipeline and the Uzen-Atyrau-Samara (“UAS”) pipeline, each of which is owned and operated by
third parties. Despite the fact that the Company has agreements/arrangements in place with these third
parties or their shareholders (see “The Company—Crude Oil Transportation”), the Company cannot
guarantee that these operators will fulfil their obligations under these agreements/arrangements and
failure to fulfil such obligations could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations.

As regards the CPC pipeline, although NC KMG has agreed pursuant to the Services Agreement to
use reasonable efforts to procure that the Company is allocated a sufficient capacity quota in the CPC
pipeline out of the quota directly held by NC KMG (see “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with
NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates”), the Company
cannot guarantee that NC KMG will fulfil its obligations under the Services Agreement (and moreover the
extent to which obligations under the Services Agreement are enforceable in Kazakhstan is unclear and
untested) or that NC KMG will remain a shareholder in CPC. In addition the Services Agreement will
terminate on 31 December 2006 and will need to be renewed pursuant to an annual tender under the state
procurement law. See ‘“Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party
Transactions—Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates—Services Agreement”. Any failure to fulfil
such obligations, howsoever arising, or to renew the Services Agreement could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

As regards the UAS pipeline, the Company’s agreement with JSC KazTransOil (“KTO”) relating to
transport capacity is subject to the MEMR quotas. MEMR sets and distributes capacity quotas annually in
the UAS pipeline system and could reduce the Company’s capacity quotas or refuse to increase them when
increased production capacity warrants increased transportation capacity. Accordingly, any interruption,
reduction in capacity or inability to increase capacity should production increase could have a material and
adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of its operations.

While plans are currently being discussed regarding the expansion of both the UAS pipeline and the
CPC pipeline, and notwithstanding the provisions of the Services Agreement, the Company cannot be
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certain that it will get access to any increase in their capacity and may not be able to increase its export
volumes as a result. This inability may materially adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects,
financial condition or results of operations.

Tariffs

The tariff for the transportation of crude oil to be paid by shippers on the UAS pipeline, including the
Company, is set by the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan for the Regulation of Natural Monopolies
(“Antimonopoly Agency”) (for the part of the UAS pipeline which is in Kazakhstan) and by the Federal
Service of the Russian Federation for Tariffs (for the part of the UAS pipeline which is in Russia).

The Company currently has a contract with KTO to transport crude oil through the UAS pipeline
until 31 December 2012. Kazakhstan legislation gives KTO the right to apply to the Antimonopoly Agency
for periodic review of the tariff for transportation through the UAS pipeline, in which case the
Antimonopoly Agency must review the application and may increase the tariff. Accordingly, the Company
may face increased costs for transporting its crude oil within Kazakhstan. Furthermore, the Company
currently has no contract in place beyond December 2012 and the terms of a new contract, if any, may be
less favourable to the Company (although NC KMG has undertaken in the Services Agreement that such
terms will be no worse than those offered to other users of the UAS pipeline).

The tariff for the transportation of crude oil to be paid by shippers on the CPC pipeline, including the
Company, is set by the shareholders of CPC and by special resolutions of the Government and the
government of Russia. As the Company is not a shareholder of CPC, it has no control over the setting of
the tariff. In addition, it is expected that there will be a material increase in the tariff for use of the CPC
pipeline as a result of the forecast increase in the capacity of the pipeline.

Therefore, the Company cannot guarantee that the tariffs for use of either the CPC pipeline or the
UAS pipeline will not rise, and any such rise may materially adversely affect the Company’s business,
prospects, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company may be unable to comply with obligations under its licences and related hydrocarbon contracts and
field development plans.

The Company’s operations must be carried out in accordance with the terms of the exploration and
production licences and the related hydrocarbon contracts, field development plans and annual working
programmes and budgets agreed with MEMR. The law provides that fines may be imposed and licences
and hydrocarbon contracts may be suspended, amended or terminated if a licence holder fails to comply
with its obligations under such documents or fails to make timely payments of levies and taxes for the
sub-soil use, provide the required geological information or meet other reporting requirements. Failure to
comply may also lead to suspension, revocation or termination.

There is the possibility of past technical breaches by the Company of its licences. The Company
believes, having discussed this with MEMR, that such breaches are unlikely to be considered material, or
unlikely to lead to a suspension or withdrawal of the relevant licence. However, there can be no assurance
of this.

In addition, the Company has obligations to develop the fields in accordance with the specific
requirements under the Company’s exploration and production licences, hydrocarbon contracts and field
development plans. If the Company were to fail to satisfy such obligations with respect to a specific field,
the licence and hydrocarbon contract for that field may be suspended, revoked or terminated. There can
be no assurance that the views of the Government agencies regarding the development of the Company’s
fields or compliance with the terms of its exploration and production licences and hydrocarbon contracts
will coincide with the Company’s views, which might lead to disagreements that cannot be resolved.

The suspension, revocation or termination of any of the Company’s licences or hydrocarbon contracts
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results
of operations.

The Company may be unable to implement any potential acquisitions or may not be able to acquire such interests on
terms proposed by the Company.

A key element of the Company’s strategy is to increase its overall production levels and replace its
reserves through new discoveries over the long term and acquisitions. However, there can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to continue to identify suitable acquisitions, acquire interests on satisfactory
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terms or obtain the financing necessary to complete and support such acquisitions. Any failure to identify
and execute future acquisitions successfully could adversely impact the Company’s growth strategy.

The Company has an option to acquire from NC KMG its 50% stake in KazGerMunai. Both exercise
of the option and completion of the acquisition are subject to the satisfaction of a number of conditions
precedent, including full due diligence by the Company, approval by a majority of Independent Non-
Executive Directors, sending of a circular to shareholders (including holders of GDRs), and the approval
of the transaction by a simple majority vote at a shareholders’ meeting at which GDR holders have the
opportunity to vote their underlying Shares and NC KMG does not vote. In addition, the exercise price in
respect of such option will need to be agreed at the date of exercise and the Company will need to ensure
that appropriate funding is in place. The Company may not exercise the option and can give no assurance
that it will be able to complete the acquisition of such interest or as to the terms upon which such interest
may be acquired.

Furthermore, there is the potential that NC KMG may offer to the Company its stake in
PetroKazakhstan after the Global Offer. See “The Company—Recent Developments—Possible
Acquisitions—PetroKazakhstan”. This acquisition will be subject to a number of conditions precedent
including full due diligence by the Company, approval by a majority of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, sending of a circular to shareholders (including holders of GDRs) and the approval of the
transaction by a simple majority vote at a shareholders’ meeting at which GDR holders have the
opportunity to vote their underlying Shares and NC KMG does not vote. There can be no assurance that
this will happen, or if it does that an agreement on price will be reached or that such an acquisition may
complete.

The Company has limited experience in integrating acquisitions into its business.

The Company has limited experience in integrating acquisitions into its business. Therefore, if it is
able to successfully acquire another business, including the interests in KazGerMunai and, potentially
PetroKazakhstan, it may encounter unforeseen difficulties. Potential problems may include, but not be
limited to differences in measurement of reserves and resources, integration of management, integration
of common financial reporting procedures and accounting policies, implementing information technology
systems into the acquired businesses and implementing agreed headcount reductions. The Company can
provide no assurance that any such acquisitions, or those of any other potential businesses, whether inside
or outside of Kazakhstan, will be smoothly implemented, which may result in a disruption to the
Company’s business and an adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

The Company and its predecessors have generated substantial environmental liabilities that the Company is
required to remediate at its cost.

The Company’s operations are subject to the environmental risks inherent in the oil and gas
exploration and production industries. There are environmental issues relating to the existing fields and to
the age of and processes applied at past production sites, some of which have been exploited for more than
30 years. Inadequate control of environmental processes in the past by the Government and the
Company’s predecessors allowed a number of major incidents of oil leakage and pipeline fractures to
occur. Temporary reservoirs for the storage of drilling mud, liquid waste and oil were not remediated
properly by the prior operating entities at the sites, causing severe pollution in the Atyrau and Mangistau
regions, which included unauthorised temporary landfills of oil production waste which the Company has
agreed to remediate. In 2005, the Company commissioned a report by AMEC Earth and Environmental
UK Ltd (“AMEC”), independent environmental experts.

Much of the Company’s liability arises from historical contamination that occurred during the period
when Kazakhstan formed part of the former Soviet Union. In July 2005, the Ministry of Environmental
Protection of the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “MEP”) and the Company entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) pursuant to which the MEP agreed not to impose sanctions for historical oil
contamination which occurred before the Company was formed. It states that in exchange for the
Company assuming the liability relating to this historical contamination and restoring it to
pre-contamination conditions by the time that the Company’s production contracts expire for a given area,
all fines and penalties pertaining to that area’s contamination prior to the Company’s incorporation will be
waived by the MEP. Despite this Memorandum of Understanding, there can be no guarantee that the
Company will not be fined or sued by other governmental bodies, national or regional. This is illustrated by
the recently rejected claim of the Mangistau department of the MEP for KZT11.4 billion. See “The
Company—Environmental Matters—Environmental Impact of the Company’s Operations—Mangistau
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Claim.” The MEP recently indicated a wish to renegotiate the MOU. There can be no guarantee that this
will not lead to additional costs to the Company.

Compliance with environmental requirements may make it necessary for the Company, at costs which
may be substantial, to undertake measures in connection with the storage, handling, transport, treatment
or disposal of hazardous materials and wastes and the remediation of contamination. AMEC have
estimated that the Company’s obligatory costs directly associated with environmental remediation (other
than well remediation on closure) and obligatory environmental compliance issues from 2006 to 2025 to be
an aggregate of approximately KZT31.0 billion with a further KZT20.4 billion in contingent costs. See
“The Company—Environmental Matters—Compliance with Kazakhstan Requirements”. As at
31 December 2005, the Company has made a provision of KZT31.0 billion in its financial statements.
There can be no assurance that as remediation work progresses, the costs estimated by AMEC and
provided for on the Company’s balance sheet will be sufficient.

The Company commissioned pilot trials in 2006 that confirmed that the Uzen Lake could be
remediated with no significant cost to the Company through engaging specialist contractors who would
retain certain rights to the salvageable fraction of oil recovered from the oily emulsion. Although certain
contractual agreements have been entered into, no assurance can be provided that the Uzen Lake can be
remediated at no significant cost to the Company pursuant to such or similar contracts. If the Company
had to undertake the removal and treatment of this lake itself, it would be at an estimated cost of
KZT13.3 billion.

The Company’s total costs in 2005 (excluding payment of fines and permit fees) associated with
contaminated land restoration, air emissions treatment, waste water treatment, waste management,
environmental compliance and health and safety, totalled KZT1.8 billion.

Although the Kazakhstan parliament has not ratified the Kyoto Protocol, which entered into force in
February 2005, Kazakhstan is a signatory, and it is anticipated that ratification will take place in 2008. The
Kyoto Protocol is intended to limit or discourage emissions of greenhouse gasses, such as CO,. The effect
of such ratification is still unclear, as the level of permissible CO, emissions may reflect Soviet-era
pollution (resulting in relatively high emission allowances) or immediate post-Soviet levels when industrial
production and power generation was much lower (resulting in relatively low emission allowances).
Accordingly, Kyoto compliance costs are unknown. Nonetheless, assuming that ratification occurs, the
likely effect will be to increase costs for electricity and transportation, restrict emissions levels, impose
added costs for emissions in excess of permitted levels, and increase costs for monitoring, reporting and
financial accounting. As the Group’s business involves incurring certain of these costs, increases in such
costs could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and
results of operations.

The Company’s operations are subject to periodic inspection by MEP. Those inspections have resulted
in the receipt of formal communications from MEP detailing the Company’s non-compliance with
specified environmental regulations and requiring corrective actions. The Company is unable to predict
what action may be taken as a result of these communications but the Company does not believe that they
will have a material impact on the Company’s operations and results. However no assurance can be given
in this respect.

The Company is unable to accurately predict the extent of any potential environmental liabilities
under current legislation or the effect of any additional laws or regulations that may be adopted in the
future, including whether any such laws or regulations would increase its environmental costs. See “The
Company—Environmental Matters—Compliance with Kazakhstan Requirements”. Although the
measures taken by the Company in relation to environmental regulations for its ongoing operations have
not had a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations to date, no assurance
can be given that the costs of such measures in the future and liability due to any environmental damage
that may be caused by the Company will not be material. Moreover, future actions and fines imposed upon
the Company by the environmental protection agencies in Kazakhstan or by the Government cannot be
predicted and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial
condition or results of operations. To the extent that any provision in the Company’s accounts relating to
remediation costs for environmental liabilities proves to be insufficient, this could have an adverse effect
on the Company’s financial condition. In particular, the legal framework for environmental protection and
operational safety is not yet fully developed in Kazakhstan and it is expected that stricter environmental
requirements will be adopted in the near future, such as those governing discharges to air and water, the
handling and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes, land use and reclamation and remediation of
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contamination, and that the environmental authorities may move towards a stricter interpretation of
existing legislation.

Although the Company is obliged to comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, it
cannot, given the changing nature of environmental regulations, guarantee that it will be in compliance at
all times. Any failure to comply with these environmental requirements could subject the Company to,
among other things, civil liabilities and penalty fees and possibly temporary or permanent shutdown of the
Company’s operations. The Company can provide no assurance that it will not be required to strictly
comply with the current environmental legislation or that future fines will not be higher than historical
amounts, which could materially adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or
results of operations.

Fluctuations in the US dollar/Tenge exchange rate may materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations and the value of dividends.

The crude oil which the Company exports is sold at prices quoted in US dollars and cash payment to
the Company is made in US dollars. The Company’s principal expenses are incurred in Tenge.

If the value of the US dollar falls against the Tenge, then the Company will have less Tenge available
to pay its Tenge expenses and its results as expressed in Tenge will be adversely affected, as will all financial
assets denominated in US dollars. This could have a material and adverse affect on the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations.

Since the introduction of the Tenge in 1993 as the national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan
until 2002, the value of the Tenge against the US dollar decreased. From 2003 to the present, the value of
the Tenge against the US dollar has steadily increased. See “Exchange Rate Information”.

There is no significant forward market in the Tenge and as a result the Company does not enter into
hedging contracts to protect against its exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar/Tenge exchange rate. The
Company cannot provide any assurance that the Tenge will not further appreciate against the US dollar.
The Company also cannot provide any assurance that Tenge will continue to be freely exchangeable into
US dollars.

In addition, the Company intends to declare and make dividend payments in Tenge. Any investor
whose functional currency is not Tenge will therefore be exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the exchange
rate between the Tenge and that currency. Moreover, if Tenge are not freely exchangeable into US dollars
dividends on the GDRs may not be available at all.

The Company provides social programmes for the benefit of local communities the costs of which may increase.
The Company is required to invest in social programmes for the benefit of local communities.

As a condition of certain of its subsoil use licenses and contracts and pursuant to certain agreements
with local authorities, the Company is obliged to maintain certain social programmes for the benefit of
local communities. Such obligations include funding the construction of medical, cultural, recuperation
and rehabilitation facilities, community centres, athletic facilities, housing and infrastructure in the areas in
which the Company operates. Furthermore, the Company is obliged under its subsoil use licenses and
contracts to invest in training the local workforce, upgrade the qualifications of its employees and provide
educational grants. The Company incurred expenses of approximately KZT0.3 billion for the five months
ended 31 May 2006 and KZTO0.1 billion for the five months ended 31 May 2005, KZT0.8 billion in 2005,
KZTO0.5 billion in 2004 and KZTO0.5 billion in 2003 in respect of such mandatory programmes.

In addition, at its own initiative and, in the past, at the direction of NC KMG, the Company has
provided and continues to provide social support in the areas where it operates and in other areas in
Kazakhstan. The Company incurred expenses of approximately KZT3.2 billion for the five months ended
31 May 2006, KZT0.6 billion for the five months ended 31 May 2005, KZT3.0 billion in 2005,
KZT1.9 billion in 2004 and KZT1.9 billion in 2003 in respect of such voluntary programmes. These
obligations, as well as additional social projects, may increase or become more burdensome in the future
and may have a negative impact on the Company’s profitability.
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The Company is dependent on external consultants and service providers and on its ability to retain and hire new
qualified personnel and consultants and the Company may as a result incur rising management costs following the
Global Offer.

The Company retains external consultants to provide services that are critical to its operations and
strategy, such as creating geological models used in exploration and performing hydro-fracturing and other
well stimulation techniques. Further, current wage structures in Kazakhstan are lower than in
industrialised nations and it may be difficult to attract and retain experienced and skilled personnel from
outside Kazakhstan at wages that are acceptable to the Company.

As a result of the Global Offer, the Company has also incurred, and may continue to incur, a
significant rise in costs from compensation increases to retain the Company’s senior management and the
implementation of new management structures and changes in the number of its directors and their
functions. The Company may face difficulties in hiring replacements for such senior managers and if it is
required to hire more consultants its wage costs will increase.

If the Company were to be unable to find suitable external consultants or service providers at
commercially viable rates or retain and hire new senior management, and qualified personnel and
consultants, its business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations might be materially
adversely affected.

The Company may be adversely affected if the services of key personnel cease to be available.

The Company is dependent upon its Board of Directors and members of its Management Board and
may be adversely affected if the services of certain members of the Board of Directors or Management
Board cease to be available.

The Company’s accounting systems are not as sophisticated or robust as those of companies with a longer history of
compliance with IFRS and certain material weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls have been identified by
the Company’s independent auditor.

Many Kazakhstan companies which have only recently adopted IFRS, including the Company, have
not implemented accounting systems, processes and controls that are commonplace in countries with a
longer history of IFRS reporting. The lack of such systems may make the Company’s financial information
less reliable than that of companies that have implemented these systems and could jeopardise the quality
of decision making by the Company’s senior management.

The recent introduction of IFRS as a reporting standard in Kazakhstan also means that many
Kazakhstan companies, including the Company, are not as experienced with or knowledgeable about IFRS
as companies with a longer history of IFRS compliance. As a result, the Company:

* lacks sufficient accounting personnel with experience in the application and interpretation of IFRS;
* has limited experience in exercising the judgments required by IFRS;

* has not fully developed and implemented the methodologies required for the preparation of IFRS
financial statements on an automated basis and presently uses manual techniques to convert basic
accounting data; and

* has limited capacity to implement integrated information technology and business process
automation systems that facilitate the preparation of IFRS financial statements.

As a result, the Company’s internal controls are weak and it is likely that there may be a failure to
detect material misstatements in its financial statements on a timely basis.

The Company’s independent auditor has identified, and the Company considers, the above matters as
material weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls. International Standards on Auditing define a
material weakness as a weakness in internal controls that could result in a material misstatement in the
financial statements. This means that the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by errors or fraud,
in amounts that would be material in relation to the consolidated financial statements being audited, may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions.
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The Company’s independent auditors considered these deficiencies in determining the nature, timing
and extent of the procedures it performed in its review of the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the five months ended 31 May 2006 and in its audit of the Company’s 2005 Annual
Financial Statements, and they did not affect the Report of Independent Auditors on the Company’s 2005
Annual Financial Statements and the review of the unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and
for the five months ended 31 May 2006.

While the Company is addressing the issues raised by the auditors and has already resolved some of
them, its internal controls relating to preparation of its financial statements are not yet commensurate with
the increasing scope and volume of its business. The Company’s management is devoting resources to the
development of such internal controls in order to minimise the risks that critical business decisions
regarding budgeting, planning and other matters may be based on incomplete or inaccurate information
and is hiring additional staff and external consultants to work in the relevant departments. However, the
Company may be unable to remedy these material weaknesses or prevent future weaknesses from
occurring or be successful in hiring and/or retaining suitably qualified staff, in which case there is not only a
risk of misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company but also that publication of IFRS financial statements may be delayed.

The Company is in the process of implementing new management information systems and financial controls.

As the Company believed that its previous management information systems and financial controls
were not comparable to systems and controls in similar western companies, and contained a material
weakness, it has commenced the installation of new management information systems and financial
controls to replace the old, which it believes are necessary to manage its business effectively and
independently.

The Company is in the process of implementing new systems, including the Enterprise Resource
Planning software system provided by SAP, which it expects to have installed by the end of 2007. It is not
possible to quantify the impact, or guarantee the completion date of this replacement; however, the
process of implementing such systems could have a temporary but adverse effect on the Company’s
business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations.

In addition, the Company is currently assessing its internal audit function for compliance with the
standards expected by investors in a public company. Once this assessment is completed, the Company may
incur significant additional expenditure to bring the internal audit function to an appropriate level.

The Company also lacks a disaster recovery system but is currently drawing up a plan to remedy this
and expects an adequate system to be in place by early 2007. Damage to the Company’s headquarters
could lead to a total loss of systems and data. Any failures in the Company’s information technology
systems, either directly or as a result of security breaches, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s
business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations. Furthermore, the implementation by the
Company of its new IT systems could have a temporary but adverse effect on its business, prospects,
financial condition or results of operations.

The Company is subject to an uncertain tax environment which may lead to disputes with taxation authorities.
General

The Company is subject to local and national tax regimes in Kazakhstan. The local and national tax
environment in Kazakhstan changes frequently and the rules implementing those changes are usually not
established on a timely basis. Non-compliance with Kazakhstan tax laws and regulations can lead to the
imposition of substantial penalties and interest. While certain of the Company’s tax obligations are clearly
established pursuant to tax stabilisation clauses in the Company’s production contracts, some obligations
are linked to the tax regulations. Future tax investigations or inquiries could raise issues or could result in
assessments to which the Company believes it is not subject or with which the Company believes it has
complied.

The tax committee of the Kazakhstan Ministry of Finance has brought a number of claims against the
Company in relation to cash royalties and taxes that are allegedly owed to it. The Company believes the
position of the tax authorities is without merit and has successfully challenged the assessments.

The current penalties and interest related to reported or investigated violations of Kazakhstan law,
decrees and related regulations are severe. Penalties can include fines equalling 50% of the amount at
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issue. Under the current tax code, interest on unpaid taxes is compounded daily on a 365 day basis at an
annual rate equal to 2.5 times the refinancing rate set by the National Bank of Kazakhstan; accordingly,
based on the current refinancing rate of 9% per annum, interest on unpaid taxes is assessable at a rate of
0.06% compounded daily. As a result, penalties can amount to significant percentages of any unreported
and unpaid taxes.

Transfer Pricing

The tax authorities have in the past challenged the price at which the Company has historically sold
its oil to KMG Trade House AG, a subsidiary of KMG TradeHouse incorporated in Switzerland
(“KMG TradeHouse AG”). The export price for oil sold to KMG Trade House AG is set on a monthly
basis based on the mean of quotations published in Platts Crude Oil Marketwire less a discount (the
“Discount”) to cover KMG TradeHouse AG’s transportation, insurance, financing and other expenses
along with a trader’s commission. This Discount may continue to be challenged in the future by the tax
authority. In November 2004, the tax committee, together with the Department of National Security, the
Department of Customs and Control and the Department of Economic Crimes, commenced a joint audit
of UMG and EMG to verify the amount of the Discount on the export price of the Company’s crude oil
that UMG and EMG sold to the Company’s affiliate, KMG TradeHouse AG. The joint audit covered the
years 2001 through 2003 for UMG and the year 2003 for EMG. The tax committee determined that certain
components of the Discount provided to KMG TradeHouse AG for the periods under review either
exceeded the amounts permitted under applicable transfer pricing laws and regulations, or were not
supported by adequate documentation and, therefore, were deemed by the tax committee to exceed such
permitted amounts. In February 2005, the tax committee made an assessment against the Company
totalling approximately KZT2.3 billion, which represents the tax committee’s estimate of the amount of
additional income tax and royalties that the Company would have had to pay if the Discounts provided to
KMG TradeHouse AG had not exceeded the permitted amounts. The Company was also assessed
KZT1.4 billion by the tax authorities, which represents interest, administrative fines and penalties for the
alleged violation of applicable transfer pricing laws and regulations.

In February 2006, the Supreme Court of Kazakhstan dismissed the tax authorities’ claims of transfer
pricing against the Company. However, there can be no assurance that future claims, especially relating to
allegations of transfer pricing abuses, will not result in arbitration or litigation, or that a claim, if
determined adversely to the Company, would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations.

VAT excess profit and social taxes

The Company is exposed to VAT, excess profits tax (“EPT”) and social tax risks resulting from
uncertain provisions of tax legislation. The following paragraphs describe the nature and the amount of
each risk the Company currently faces.

In 2002-2005 the Company applied the current general VAT rate to transfers of oil to the Atyrau
Refinery. It is not certain from the subsurface use contracts whether the transfer of oil to the Atyrau
Refinery should be considered as an out-of-contract activity, which is subject to the VAT general rate.
There is a risk that the tax authorities may consider such transfer of oil as a contract activity and seek to
levy additional VAT. The Company has provided for KZT2.3 billion to cover this VAT exposure in full as
of 31 December 2005.

When calculating EPT for the Uzen contract the Company deducted EPT paid for the previous year
and tax on dividends. However, neither the Uzen contract nor the Law on Taxes is applicable to the Uzen
contract; or provides a clear description of the EPT calculation methodology. Therefore, it is not certain
whether the Company has the right to deduct EPT paid for the previous year and tax on dividends for the
purposes of calculation of EPT. There is a risk that the tax authorities may challenge the Company’s
approach and assess additional EPT of approximately KZT7.6 billion as of 31 December 2005. The
Company has not accrued a provision for this contingent liability since it estimated that the degree of risk
did not warrant this.

Finally, in 2002-2005 the Company applied current social tax rates to the salaries of the service
divisions’ personnel of EMG. There are two types of social tax rate: current and stabilised. It is not clear
from the subsurface use contracts and the tax legislation what rate of social tax should apply in this case.
There is a risk of an additional assessment of social tax in the amount of the difference between the
stabilised social tax rate and current social tax rates, as well as the risk of assessment of late payment
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interest and administrative penalty. The total exposure for 2001-2005 is approximately KZT1 billion. The
Company has accrued an amount of the principal tax and administrative penalty exposure amounting to
KZTO0.73 billion as of 31 December 2005.

Risks related to VAT, EPT and social taxes are uncertain because of the nature of the relevant
legislation. Accordingly, the situations described above may not be a complete list of the specific risks the
Company faces with regard to these rates and the liabilities may be in excess of those described above.

The Company’s insurance coverage may not be adequate for covering losses arising from potential operational
hazards and unforeseen interruptions.

The Company determines the level of its insurance based in part upon the results of a study of the risk
profile of the Company undertaken in 2000. The Company believes the level of its insurance to be
appropriate based on the cost of cover, the risks associated with its business and industry practice. The
Company’s insurance currently includes certain production assets, insurance for out-of-control wells
(including coverage of environmental damage caused thereby), insurance for environmentally hazardous
activities for which there is a cap of KZT17.5 million, third party liability coverage (including employer’s
liability insurance, hazardous facilities and motor vehicles owners’ insurance) and directors and officers
liability insurance, but the Company does not carry business interruption, key-man, terrorism or sabotage
insurance. The Company can give no assurance that the proceeds of insurance applicable to covered risks
will be adequate to cover increased expenses relating to these losses or liabilities. Accordingly, the
Company may suffer material losses from uninsurable or uninsured risks or insufficient
insurance coverage.

Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Relationship with NC KMG

NC KMG will continue to have significant influence over the Company’s affairs following the Global Offer and the
interests of NC KMG may conflict with the best interests of the Company’s minority shareholders.

Prior to the Global Offer, the Company’s largest shareholder, NC KMG, beneficially owned
approximately 97% of the Company’s voting shares. After the Global Offer, NC KMG will beneficially
own at least 60% of the Company’s voting shares. After the Global Offer, NC KMG will not lose its
controlling share of votes and will have a majority of votes at a general shareholders’ meeting which will
allow NC KMG to control the composition of the Board of Directors. By having a majority of votes at the
general shareholders’ meeting, NC KMG will in practice be able to determine the timing and amount of
the Company’s dividend payments, to restrict the Company’s ability to hire necessary personnel and
otherwise to control the Company, including causing it to enter into corporate transactions such as mergers
and acquisitions which are important to the Kazakhstan Government but which have not been approved by
the Company’s minority shareholders or are not in the best interests of the shareholders as a whole.

Under Kazakhstan law, unless the Company’s charter provides otherwise (which the Company’s
Charter does not), a general meeting is quorate only if shareholders holding 50% or more in aggregate of
the voting shares of the Company have registered for attendance and attend. If the meeting cannot be held
because of lack of a quorum, a further meeting can be called which will be quorate only if shareholders
holding 40% or more in aggregate of the Shares have registered for attendance and attend. Therefore, for
so long as NC KMG holds more than 60% of the voting Shares, no general shareholders meeting will be
quorate unless NC KMG registers for and attends such meeting. If NC KMG fails to do so, then the
meeting cannot be held.

The Company has entered into a Relationship Agreement with NC KMG that is intended to allow the
Company to operate its business independently from the NC KMG Group, and to ensure that transactions
and relationships with the NC KMG Group are on arm’s length terms and on a normal commercial basis,
and to require certain material transactions to be approved by the Independent Non-Executive Directors
elected to the Board of Directors. In particular, NC KMG must allow the Company to be operated in the
best interests of its shareholders as a whole, such that the Company will treat all shareholders of the same
class equally at all times. Any directors of the Company nominated by NC KMG must also act in the best
interests of the Company, rather than those of NC KMG. The Company has also incorporated certain
provisions in the Charter and adopted a corporate management code which may be amended from time to
time (“Corporate Governance Code”) which are designed to support the principles set out in the
Relationship Agreement.
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In particular, the shareholders of the Company have elected three Independent Non-Executive
Directors to the Board of Directors who will assist the Company in implementing good corporate
governance arrangements and in ensuring that NC KMG does not breach its obligations under the
Relationship Agreement and the Charter. Certain material transactions or activities proposed to be
implemented by the Company, including any transactions between the Company and NC KMG (or any of
its affiliates), major acquisitions or disposals, changes to the Company’s dividend policy and proposed
changes to the Relationship Agreement, the Services Agreement, the Charter or the Corporate
Governance Code, may only be approved or implemented if such transactions or activities have also been
approved by a majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors attending the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors. However, transactions in accordance with the State Procurement Law are not subject
to the approval of a majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. See “Principal Shareholders,
Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions” for information regarding the Relationship
Agreement with NC KMG.

The provisions of the Relationship Agreement will continue to apply for so long as NC KMG retains
30% or more of the Company’s issued share capital or until the Company’s securities cease to be admitted
to listing by the relevant competent listing authority and cease to trade on any relevant stock exchange
other than the KASE, whichever is the earliest. The provisions of the Charter may be amended by a
resolution passed by a qualified majority of shareholders, although neither the Board of Directors nor
NC KMG may propose any changes to the Charter unless such proposed changes have been approved by a
majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors attending the relevant meeting of the Board
of Directors.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Relationship Agreement and the Charter, NC KMG will
continue to have significant influence on the outcome of shareholder votes, the election of directors, the
decisions of the Board of the Directors (by having a degree of influence over four members of the Board of
Directors) and other decisions affecting the Company. The interests of NC KMG may differ from those of
minority shareholders. As a result of its ownership of a substantial percentage of the Company’s
outstanding shares, NC KMG may prevent the Company from making certain decisions or taking certain
actions that the Company believes would benefit it or would protect the interests of minority shareholders.
In addition, the Company may be directed by NC KMG, its majority shareholder, to make acquisitions
and/or carry out investments contrary to the best interests of the Company and of its minority
shareholders.

The Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement seek to govern the relationship between
NC KMG and the Company in a way which is both different to their previous relationship and
unprecedented in Kazakhstan in terms of both law and practice. Accordingly, there is a risk that the terms
of these agreements will not be strictly adhered to or complied with in their entirety. Similarly, the role and
function of Independent Non-Executive Directors is a relatively new and developing concept in Kazakh
law and accordingly the protections which are sought to be afforded by the Independent Non-Executive
Directors may not be fully realised. See “—The Company may be unable to enforce its rights under the
Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement”.

Further, the terms of the Services Agreement relating to licences for new acreage and existing licences
being transferred are complex, untested and highly dependent on factors outside the Company’s and
NC KMG’s control and are, therefore, not a guarantee that the Company will be able to obtain such
licences.

The influence of NC KMG may also have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in
control, may discourage bids for the Company’s shares and may adversely affect the market price of the
Company’s shares.

The Company currently enjoys a good relationship with NC KMG and its affiliates, although the
Company can give no assurance that such relationship will continue after the Global Offer or that
NC KMG, as controlling shareholder, will always vote its shares in a way that benefits the Company’s
shareholders as a whole. If following the Global Offer NC KMG takes actions that favour its interests over
those of the Company, the Company’s business, prospects, financial position or results of operations may
be materially adversely affected, and the Company may not obtain appropriate value from the services
provided under the Services Agreement in light of the management fee payable by the Company
thereunder.
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If NC KMG fails to renew the Services Agreement, the Company will lose its rights under the Services Agreement.

Under the Services Agreement, NC KMG has undertaken to assist in procuring from relevant
Government bodies certain pre-emptive and preferential rights to acquire controlling interests in any new
or existing onshore oil exploration and production assets in Kazakhstan and to use all reasonable
endeavours to ensure that the Company shall continue to benefit from the export infrastructure used by
the Company during the six months prior to Admission. See “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with
NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Services Agreement” for information regarding the Services
Agreement.

The Services Agreement is subject to the State Procurement Law, which means that the Company will
have to conduct, on an annual basis, a tender process for the services to be provided under the Services
Agreement. See “Risk Factors—The Company’s ability to engage external advisers and establish long-term
commercial relationships with third parties is impaired due to the application of the State Procurement
Law to the Company”. Accordingly, the Services Agreement will terminate on 31 December 2006 and the
agreement will therefore need to be renewed on an annual basis if the Company is able to benefit from its
provisions.

Although the Company has received a written assurance from NC KMG that it will continue to
participate in the annual tender until 2016, such assurance is not legally binding. Therefore, there can be
no guarantee that NC KMG will participate in the tender process each year, or renew the provisions of the
Services Agreement on the same terms as exist immediately after Admission. If the Services Agreement is
not renewed, or renewed on less advantageous terms for the Company, the Company will lose a number of
valuable rights. This would materially harm its business and prospects. See “—The Company may be
unable to enforce its rights under the Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement”.

Changes in the Government’s holding in NC KMG and/or changes in policy by the Government could have an
adverse effect on the Company’s rights under the Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement.

The Government has recently established a holding company, Samruk, which now holds and manages
the state’s interests in various entities, including NC KMG. It is possible that this holding company may
seek to amend the terms of, and the rights granted pursuant to, the Relationship Agreement and the
Services Agreement, which could have an adverse effect on the Company’s ability to acquire additional
reserves or the terms upon which it may access the UAS pipeline and CPC pipeline. In addition, the
Government could introduce further changes to its organisational structure or change its policy with
respect to the rights granted to the Company. Any such changes could have a material and adverse effect
on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company may be unable to enforce its rights under the Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement.

The Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement with NC KMG are governed by the laws of
Kazakhstan, with any disputes being subject to the jurisdiction of the Kazakhstan courts. The rights
granted pursuant to the Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement between NC KMG and the
Company have not been tested in the Kazakhstan courts and if NC KMG is not within full compliance with
the terms of such agreements the Company may be unable to fully enforce its rights in the
Kazakhstan courts which may be severely detrimental to the Company.

The Company’s ability to engage external advisers and establish long-term commercial relationships with third
parties is impaired due to the application of the State Procurement Law to the Company.

For so long as any of the Company’s shares are owned directly or indirectly by a state-controlled entity
such as Samruk, then the Company will be subject to the State Procurement Law, which generally provides
that it may only purchase “goods, works and services” worth more than (as of 2006) approximately
KZT4.0 million in certain ways, the principal way being the conducting of a formal public (or “open”)
tender process. “Goods, works and services” include those of external advisers, such as the Company’s oil
and gas consultants, environmental experts, financial and legal advisers and accountants, as well as other
consultants, contractors and suppliers. The Services Agreement and the arrangements with KMG
TradeHouse (other than the Company’s supply of oil to domestic refineries) are subject to the State
Procurement Law. See “The Company—Regulatory Matters in Kazakhstan” for a description of the State
Procurement Law.
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Typically, the tender process requires the Company to prepare detailed tender documents and to
announce its intention to solicit bids from suppliers and service providers at least 30 days prior to the
deadline for submitting bids. The Company is also required to establish a tender commission for each
tender, which will select the winner of the tender. In addition, the State Procurement Law requires that
each agreement with the winner of the tender will be valid only until 31 December of the calendar year in
which such agreement is executed. This agreement can be renewed only after completion of a further
tender. This results in the Company’s having to undertake and implement a significant number of tenders
with the resultant delays, increased costs and management time associated with such process. In the past,
the tender process has resulted in delays in the Company’s engagement of advisers and contractors and
corresponding costs to the Company. The Company’s inability to engage necessary external advisers and
contractors in a timely fashion or establish long-term commercial relationships with preferred third parties
as a result of being obliged to comply with the State Procurement Law could impair its operations.

Risk Factors Relating to the Republic of Kazakhstan

All of the Company’s assets are currently located in Kazakhstan and the Company is therefore susceptible to country
specific risk factors such as political, social and economic instability.

Kazakhstan’s creation as an independent state in 1991 resulted from the break-up of the Soviet Union.
As such, it has a relatively short history as an independent nation. All of the Company’s assets are currently
located in Kazakhstan and the Company is therefore susceptible to social, political, economic, legal and
fiscal instability and civil disturbance.

The occurrence of any such events could have a material adverse effect on the business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Kazakhstan has actively pursued a programme of economic reform and inward foreign investment
designed to establish a free market economy, but there can be no assurance that in the future such reforms
and other reforms will continue.

Emerging markets such as Kazakhstan change rapidly and, therefore, the information set out in this
document may become outdated relatively quickly. Accordingly, investors should exercise particular care in
evaluating the risks involved and must decide for themselves whether, in light of those risks, their
investment is appropriate. Generally, investment in emerging markets is only suitable for sophisticated
investors who fully appreciate the significant risks involved. Investors are urged to consult their own legal
and financial advisers before making an investment in the Company’s securities.

As has happened in the past, financial problems or an increase in the perceived risks associated with
investing in emerging economies could dampen foreign investment in Kazakhstan and adversely affect the
Kazakhstan economy. In addition, during such times, emerging market companies can face severe liquidity
constraints as foreign funding resources are withdrawn. Thus, even if the Kazakhstan economy remains
relatively stable, financial turmoil in any emerging market country, in particular countries in the Caspian
Sea or Central Asian regions, which recently have experienced significant political instability (including
terrorism or internal conflicts), could seriously disrupt the Company’s business, which would have a
material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations.

The Company is exposed to a variety of political and country risks, including the risk of adverse sovereign action by
the Government.

The oil and gas industry is central to Kazakhstan’s economy and its future prospects for development,
and thus can be expected to be the focus of continuing political and social attention and debate. See
“Regional Overview of the Oil and Gas Industry—Kazakhstan’s Oil and Gas Industry” and “—Regional
Overview of the Oil and Gas Industry—Major Oil and Gas Projects in Kazakhstan”. As of the date of this
document, the Company is the third largest oil producer in the country. In similar circumstances in other
developing countries, petroleum companies have faced the risks of expropriation or re-nationalisation,
breach or abrogation of project agreements, application to such companies of laws and regulations from
which they were intended to be exempt, denials of required permits and approvals, increases in royalty
rates and taxes that were intended to be stable, application of exchange or capital controls, and other risks.
In addition, the Company faces risks arising from political instability in the region and the difficulties of
operating in a political, legal and business environment characterised by rapidly changing law, inconsistent
application of law and regulation, corruption and an unpredictable judicial system.
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Any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations or the Company’s ability to operate its business in line with
its strategy.

Any changes in the existing policies of the Government, or a change in the Government or the president of
Kazakhstan, may adversely affect the Company’s ability to operate its business.

Since independence in 1991, Kazakhstan has had only one president and the country has been largely
free from political violence. The Company’s operations have benefited from these stable conditions. The
Company could face enhanced risk and uncertainty in the event of a change in Government, including the
possibility that a successor Government would seek to reopen or challenge the tax, legal or other
arrangements affecting the Company’s operations, including, for example, the Relationship Agreement
and the Services Agreement with NC KMG, based on the Government’s own conception of the national
interest or other factors.

The laws and regulations of Kazakhstan relating to foreign investment, subsoil use and licensing, companies,
customs, currency, capital markets, pensions, insurance, banking, taxation and competition are still developing and
uncertainties in the law could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operations.

The laws and regulations of Kazakhstan relating to foreign investment, subsoil use, licensing,
companies, customs, currency, capital markets, pensions, insurance, banking, taxation and competition are
still developing. Many such laws provide regulators and officials with substantial discretion in their
application, interpretation and enforcement. Furthermore, the judicial system may not be fully
independent of social, economic and political forces. Court decisions can be difficult to predict and
enforce, and the Company’s best efforts to comply with applicable law may not always result in compliance
as determined by regulators and/or the courts. Furthermore, because the Kazakhstan Law dated
27 January 1996 on Subsoil and Subsoil Use (“Subsoil Law”) does not define the course of action available
to the Government by reference to the gravity of a breach, a minor breach could conceivably lead to harsh
consequences, such as suspensions or termination of the subsoil user rights. Because of the relative
newness of the Subsoil Law, there are few precedents that would make the consequences of a breach
more predictable.

Given Kazakhstan’s short legislative, judicial and administrative history, it is not possible to predict
the effect of current and future legislation on the Company’s business. The ongoing rights of the Company
under its subsoil use contracts and licences (if applicable) and other agreements may be susceptible to
revision or cancellation, and legal redress in relation to such revocation or cancellation may be uncertain.

As tax legislation in Kazakhstan has been in force for only a relatively short time, Kazakhstan’s tax
laws may not always be clearly determinable which means that they are not always applied in a consistent
manner. In addition, the tax laws continue to evolve. Instances of divergent opinions among local, regional
and national tax authorities are not unusual. While the Company’s tax obligations are clearly established in
its production contracts, some obligations are linked to the tax regulations. Tax legislation is evolving and is
subject to different and changing interpretations, as well as inconsistent enforcement. The uncertainty of
application and the evolution of tax laws create a risk of additional and substantial payments of tax by the
Company, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, financial
position and results of operations. Tax regulation and compliance is subject to review and investigation by
the authorities who may conceivably impose material fines, penalties and interest charges which could be
disputed unsuccessfully by the Company either with the tax authorities or through the courts. See
“Taxation—The Republic of Kazakhstan”.

Any changes in laws, regulations and permit requirements to which the Company is subject could require it to make
substantial expenditures or subject the Company to material liabilities or other sanctions.

The Company is required to obtain, on an ongoing basis, all permits as required by the laws of
Kazakhstan. Failure to obtain all such permits could materially and negatively impact the Company’s
production, its business, financial condition or results of operations.
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Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Shares and GDRs
The financial market in Kazakhstan is less developed than in Western jurisdictions.

The trading market for shares in Kazakhstan is currently insignificant and restricted in comparison
with Western stock markets, which could lead to the illiquidity of the securities (including the Company’s
Shares) on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange.

The Global Offer represents the first public offering of the Shares and the GDRs. There is therefore
no assurance that any active trading market for Shares or GDRs will develop or be sustained after the
Global Offer or that the Offer Price will correspond to the price at which Shares or GDRs will trade in the
public market subsequent to the Global Offer (see “Details of the Global Offer” for further information).

Sales, or the real or perceived possibility of sales, of a significant number of Shares in the public market could
adversely affect prevailing market prices for the Company’s Shares and GDRs.

Sales, or the real or perceived possibility of sales, of a significant number of Shares or GDRs in the
public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices for the Shares and GDRs. Following the
Global Offer, NC KMG will hold at least 60% of the shares. In addition, each of the holders of the Senior
Notes have surrendered all of their holdings as consideration for the issue of approximately 13.2% of the
shares in aggregate. There will be no lock-up in relation to those holders. Further, NC KMG may sell the
Shares it owns at any time after the expiration of 180 days from completion of the Global Offer. The
Company cannot predict the effect, if any, that sales of the Shares, or the availability of the Shares for
future sale, will have on the market price of the Shares or GDRs, but the availability of Shares that are
eligible for public sale could adversely affect the price of the Shares or GDRs.

Shares and GDRs may be subject to market price volatility and the market price of Shares and GDRs may decline
disproportionately in response to adverse developments that are unrelated to the Company’s operating performance.

The market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are not
closely related to the operating performance of particular companies. Factors including oil prices, war,
increased competition, fluctuations in the Company’s operating results, the regulatory environment,
availability of reserves and general market conditions could have an adverse effect on the market price of
the Shares and GDRs.

Upon listing, the Company will form a significant part of the total market capitalisation of companies listed on
the KASE.

Upon listing, the Company will form a significant part of the total market capitalisation of companies
listed on the KASE. As a result, the price of the Shares may be volatile as a result of general illiquidity of
the KASE or by virtue of the fact that the Company is likely to be a significant constituent member of the
KASE. In addition, the price of Shares may suffer from price volatility as a result of news flow and
developments, actual or anticipated, in the Kazakhstan securities market or other markets which are, or
are perceived to be, emerging markets which are unrelated to the Company and its industry. Also, the
price volatility of the Shares may affect the price of the GDRs. Given the potential price volatility, the
trading price of the Shares on the KASE may be different than the price of the GDRs on the LSE.

The recently introduced Kazakhstan corporate governance code has not yet proven effective at ensuring strong
corporate governance practices in Kazakhstan.

In 2001, Kazakhstan introduced its first corporate governance code, which became binding for
companies listed on the KASE in 2003. However, the Kazakh legal system continues to suffer from a lack
of effectiveness and fails to provide adequate support for strong corporate governance practices. In
addition, as a joint stock company incorporated in Kazakhstan, the Company is not required to comply
with the UK Combined Code principles on corporate governance or similar standards of other European
Union member states or the United States.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Global Offer receivable by the Company net of underwriting commissions and
estimated offering expenses will be approximately US$1,970 million. The Company will not receive any
proceeds from the sale of the Parent GDRs by NC KMG.

In line with its strategy, the Company will apply its net proceeds and use its first right of refusal
(through NC KMG) to acquire, in the short to medium term, strategically attractive oil production assets
and contracts and to achieve, in the longer term, a capital structure appropriate to exploit these rights as
well as its preferential access (through NC KMG) to unlicensed onshore oil exploration acreage
in Kazakhstan. To achieve this latter objective, the Company may consider repaying borrowings.
References in this section to “oil” includes petroleum and associated products. Pending application of the
proceeds as described above, the Company will invest the proceeds in short-term bank deposits.

The proposed use of proceeds by the Company is supported by:

* The Services Agreement whereby NC KMG will, at the request of the Company, make reasonable
endeavours to ensure that the State exercises in favour of the Company its right of first refusal over
existing onshore oil and gas exploration and production contracts which are transferred in
Kazakhstan. The Company intends to exploit this right to examine and, if sufficiently attractive,
acquire onshore oil exploration and production contracts.

* An option arrangement as discussed in “The Company—Recent Developments”, which gives it the
right to acquire from NC KMG a 50% interest in KazGerMunai. It is intended that the price which
the Company would pay to NC KMG in respect of the KazGerMunai stake, if it proceeds, would be
offset against all or part of the outstanding inter-group loan provided by the Company to NC KMG
for the purpose of acquiring that interest. It should be noted that the Company is under no
obligation to complete the acquisition of an interest in KazGerMunai.

* The current intention of NC KMG to offer the Company a 33% stake in PetroKazakhstan
(excluding any interest in the Shymkent refinery). It is anticipated that the Company would assume
the associated acquisition financing debt should it acquire the stake in PetroKazakhstan. It should
be noted that the Company is under no obligation to complete the acquisition of an interest in
PetroKazakhstan. After the Global Offer, the Company intends (subject to satisfactory due
diligence and the approval of a majority of its Independent Non-Executive Directors) to enter into
separate negotiations with NC KMG with the purpose of establishing fair-market values for these
interests. After determination of such values and the publication of relevant information to
Shareholders and holders of GDRs the Company will seek approval of the transaction by a simple
majority vote at a shareholders’ meeting at which GDR holders have the opportunity to vote their
underlying Shares and NC KMG does not vote.

* The Company’s review after the Global Offer of other opportunities to acquire onshore subsoil oil
exploration and production assets in Kazakhstan. The Company is aware of production assets likely
to be transferred in the medium term and intends to review such assets as and when they
are transferred.

* NC KMG’s undertaking in the Services Agreement that it will, at the request of the Company,
exercise on the Company’s behalf its right to enter into direct negotiations with the state to acquire
unlicensed onshore subsoil oil exploration acreage, avoiding a competitive tender process. The
Company intends to exploit this right in order to acquire prospective onshore exploration acreage.
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DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Distributions to Shareholders and holders of GDRs may only be made insofar as the Company’s
Shareholders’ equity is greater than the sum of paid-up share capital plus a certain reserves level required
to be maintained by Kazakhstan law. Dividends may not exceed net profit for any given year.

The Company’s dividends are subject to restrictions imposed by covenants in certain financing
arrangements with Esomet SAS (“Esomet Arrangement” and “Esomet”, respectively) and the terms of the
US$800 million principal amount 6.5% fixed rate senior notes (the “Senior Notes”) issued by the
Company’s finance subsidiary, Munaishy Finance B.V.. The Esomet Arrangement restricts aggregate
dividend payments to holders of the Company’s preference shares to a maximum of KZT500 million in any
given year. This restriction will last for the life of the Esomet Arrangement until September 20009.
Preference shareholders are entitled to a minimum annual dividend of KZT25 per preference share. See
“Description of Share Capital and Certain Requirements of Kazakhstan Legislation—Summary of the
Charter—Dividends and other distributions”. Furthermore, dividends paid per Share cannot exceed
dividends paid per preference share in any given year.

At a duly constituted meeting held on 28 August 2006, a majority of the shareholders of the Company
approved the payment of a dividend to the holders of Shares and preference shares of the Company as of
28 August 2006 in the aggregate amount of approximately KZT18.0 billion (KZT382 per Share or
preference share) subject to receiving certain waivers and covenants from various lenders.

The Company paid dividends in the amount equal to KZT74.20 (US$0.55) per Share in 2005,
KZT57.30 (US$0.44) per Share in 2004 and KZT43.04 (US$0.30) per Share in 2003, respectively, based on
the average number of Shares in issue for each respective year.

The Company has set a dividend policy, having regard to its strategic ambitions, of paying dividends
on its shares and preference shares equal in the aggregate to 15% of profit for the year after tax based on
its stand-alone IFRS accounts. The Company may review and revise its dividend policy from time to time.

Dividends paid on the Shares constitute Kazakhstan source income for Shareholders and are subject
to withholding tax at the rate of 15%. This withholding tax is applied to the gross amount of dividends
without allowance for any deductions and satisfies all Kazakhstan income tax obligations with respect to
dividends. Neither Shareholders nor GDR holders should be subject to any other tax reporting, payment,
registration or compliance requirements with respect to dividends received by Shareholders.
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CAPITALISATION

The following table sets out the Company’s capitalisation as at 31 May 2006, as derived from the
Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements as at such date, on an actual basis and as adjusted
to reflect the Global Offer, the issue of the Senior Notes (and subsequent transfer of all of the Senior
Notes to the Company as payment in kind for Shares), the making of certain loans to NC KMG, the
payment by the Company of a special dividend on 28 August 2006, certain other borrowings referred to
below and the pre-emptive offer of shares in August 2005.

This table should be read in conjunction with the sections headed “Selected Consolidated Financial
Information” and “Operating and Financial Review” and the Company’s audited and unaudited
consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this document.

As at 31 May 2006 (in millions)

Actual As adjusted
KZT US$ KZT US$
Cash and cash equivalentsV®®C) 000 oL 30,327 250 166,382 1,370
Other current financial assets® . . ... ... ... . ... 60,361 497 60,361 497
Non-current financial assets® . .. ... ... ... . . ... ... 2,229 18 98,672 812
Current portion of long-term borrowings® . ............... 19,129 157 20,998 173
Long-term borrowings, net of current portion®® . . ... ... ... 41,990 346 142,481 1,173
Total long-term borrowings . .. ......... ... ... ... 61,119 503 163,478 1,346
Share capital® .. 11,792 97 263,195 2,167
Retained earnings® .. ....... .. ... ... ... ... ... 203,757 1,677 185,732 1,529
Minority interest . .. .. ...t 80 1 80 1
Total shareholders’ equity . . ....... ... ... ... ....... 215,629 1,775 449,007 3,696
Total capitalisation . .. .......... ... .. 276,748 2,278 509,246 4,192

(1) Assuming the receipt by the Company of the estimated net proceeds of the Global Offer of
KZT250,382 million (US$1,970 million), after deducting the underwriting commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by the Company.

(2) Adjusted to reflect the issue of the Senior Notes (and subsequent transfer of all of the Senior Notes to
the Company as payment in kind for Shares), the proceeds of which, together with an additional
KZT24.4 billion, were lent to NC KMG in connection with financing the acquisition of its interest in
KazGerMunai. See “Operating and Finacing Review—Recent Developments—Bond Issue and
Loan”.

(3) Adjusted to reflect the payment of a KZT18 billion special dividend which was approved by the
Company’s shareholders on 28 August 2006.

(4) Adjusted in respect of a further US$50 million advance payment from Esomet. See “Operating and
Financial Review—Recent Developments—Esomet Arrangement”.

(5) Adjusted to reflect the pre-emptive offer of shares which was completed in August 2006.

Save for the adjustments reflected above there has been no material change in the total capitalisation
or indebtedness of the Company since 31 May 2006.

The Company’s share capital as of 31 December 2005 and as of 31 May 2006 consisted of 43,051,132
Shares and 4,117,699 preference shares.
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REGIONAL OVERVIEW OF THE OIL AND GAS INDUSTRY

The information contained in this section is intended to give an overview of the upstream oil and gas
industry in Kazakhstan and the Caspian Sea region. This information has, unless otherwise stated, been
extracted from documents, websites and other publications released by the President of Kazakhstan, the
Statistics Agency of Kazakhstan, the Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan, MEMR, the National Bank of
Kazakhstan and other public sources, including the National Bank of Kazakhstan’s Annual Report for
2005, 2004 and 2003 and the National Bank of Kazakhstan Statistical Bulletin No. 7 (140) dated July 2006.

Some of the market and competitive position data appearing in this document under “Regional
Overview of the Oil and Gas Industry” has been obtained from US government publications and other
third-party sources, including publicly available data from the World Bank as well as from Kazakhstan
press reports and publications, edicts and resolutions of the Government. In the case of the presented
statistical information, similar statistics may be obtainable from other sources, although the underlying
assumptions and methodology, and consequently the resulting data, may vary from source to source.

Overview

The Caspian region includes those parts of the states (including Russia and Iran) bordering the
Caspian Sea which are adjacent to the Caspian Sea. A part of Uzbekistan is also considered to be part of
the Caspian region due to its proximity. To date, the two significant crude oil producing countries in the
Caspian region have been Kazakhstan and Azerbaijan. It is expected that these countries will continue to
lead the region in crude oil production in the near future, driven by production growth from existing fields
and the development of recently discovered fields. Turkmenistan and Uzbekistan are the predominant gas
producers in the Caspian region but do not produce significant crude oil volumes relative to Kazakhstan
and Azerbaijan. In addition, the areas of Russia and Iran near the Caspian Sea are not a source of
substantial crude oil production for these countries. Russia, however, plays an important role in the region
by providing a transportation corridor between the Caspian Sea and the Black Sea.

Kazakhstan’s Oil and Gas Industry
Investment in Kazakhstan’s Oil and Gas Industry

Since 2000, Kazakhstan has experienced significant economic growth. Two of the main catalysts for
this growth have been economic reform and foreign investment, much of which has been concentrated in
the energy sector. Exports of crude oil have grown significantly and most oil from Kazakhstan is currently
delivered to international markets via pipelines through Russia to shipping points on the Black Sea. The
opening of the CPC pipeline in 2001 substantially raised the crude oil export capacity of Kazakhstan.

International investment in the oil and gas sector in Kazakhstan has taken the form of joint ventures,
including with NC KMG, the state oil and gas company, as well as production-sharing agreements and
exploration/field concessions. Major projects in Kazakhstan include Tengiz, Karachaganak and Kashagan
fields. Tengizchevroil LLP (““TCO”), a joint venture between ChevronTexaco, ExxonMobil, Lukarco and
NC KMG, is developing the Tengiz and Korolevskoye oil fields pursuant to a production licence granted in
1993. This production licence was initially granted for 10 years, but can be extended by TCO for up to a
total of 40 years; it was extended by TCO in 2003 until 2013. Karachaganak Petroleum Operations, which is
developing the Karachaganak field, operates under a 40-year final production sharing agreement entered
into with the Government in 1997. The Kashagan consortium, which is developing the Kashagan field, was
also established in 1997 under a 40-year production-sharing agreement with the Government, covering oil
structures in Kashagan, Kalamkas, Aktoty and Kairan. More detail on these and other significant oil and
gas developments in Kazakhstan is provided below.

In May 2003, President Nazarbayev approved a new Caspian Sea development programme for the
period to 2015, which called for new offshore blocks (or potential oil fields) to be auctioned between 2003
and 2010. Under Kazakhstan law, the Government is authorised to approve the specific list of blocks to be
auctioned and MEMR is responsible for conducting such auctions. NC KMG has a mandatory share of at
least 50% in all projects related to the new offshore blocks.

In December 2004, certain amendments to the Subsoil Law were adopted. The amendments provide
that the state (through the Government) has a priority right, in the case of a proposed transfer of an
interest under both existing and new contracts for subsoil use, to purchase such interest on terms no worse
than those agreed by the parties to the proposed transfer. Such an interest can be direct or indirect, for
example, through the sale of shares in an entity holding such contract for subsoil use. In connection with
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the Global Offer, on 11 July 2006 the Company was granted a formal waiver with respect to this provision
of the Subsoil Law, the effect of which is that the Global Offer and subsequent trading in the Shares and
GDRs are not subject to the state’s priority right. See “The Company—Regulatory Matters in
Kazakhstan—Article 71 of the Subsoil Law.”

Oil Supply and Demand

As at 31 December 2005, Kazakhstan ranked eighth in the world by oil reserves and eleventh in the
world by oil and gas reserves. Kazakhstan is the second largest oil producer (after Russia) among the
former Soviet republics and has the Caspian region’s largest recoverable crude oil reserves. According to
the BP Statistical Review, Kazakhstan’s proved oil and gas reserves were 7.9 billion tonnes (58 billion
barrels) as at 31 December 2005.

Between 1999 and 2005, Kazakhstan’s oil production grew at a compounded annual growth rate of
approximately 12.8%. During the years 2004 and 2005 the country produced an aggregate of 108.8 million
tonnes (800.8 million barrels) of crude oil. The Government has stated that it expects that the country will
produce 90 million tonnes per year (1.8 million bopd) by 2010, and 150 million tonnes per year
(3.0 million bopd) by 2015. It is expected that most of this growth will come from the Tengiz, Karachaganak
and Kashagan fields.

Kazakhstan produced approximately 51.3 million tonnes of oil and gas condensate in 2003,
59.2 million tonnes of oil and gas condensate in 2004 and 61.5 million tonnes of oil and gas condensate
in 2005.

Kazakhstan has three major oil refineries supplying the northern region (at Pavlodar), the western
region (at Atyrau) and the southern region (at Shymkent), with an estimated total refining capacity of
21.0 million tonnes per year (approximately 427 thousand bopd).

In 2003, the three refineries together processed a combined average of 8.7 million tonnes per year
(approximately 174 thousand bopd) of crude oil (2.5 million tonnes per year (50 thousand bopd) at
Pavlodar, 2.3 million tonnes per year (46 thousand bopd) at Atyrau and 3.9 million tonnes per year
(78 thousand bopd) at Shymkent).

In 2004, the three refineries together processed a combined average of approximately 9.4 million
tonnes per year (188 thousand bopd) of crude oil (approximately 2.9 million tonnes per year
(58 thousand bopd) at Pavlodar, 2.9 million tonnes per year (58 thousand bopd) at Atyrau and 3.5 million
tonnes per year (70 thousand bopd) at Shymkent).

In 2005, the three refineries together processed a combined average of approximately 11.2 million
tonnes per year (224 thousand bopd) of crude oil (approximately 3.7 million tonnes per year
(74 thousand bopd) at Pavlodar, 3.6 million tonnes per year (72 thousand bopd) at Atyrau and 3.9 million
tonnes per year (78 thousand bopd) at Shymkent).

The refinery at Pavlodar is supplied mainly by crude oil from western Siberia; the Atyrau Refinery
runs solely on domestic crude from the western region of Kazakhstan; and the Shymkent refinery generally
uses oil from the southern region of Kazakhstan. The Atyrau Refinery is undergoing modernisation to
provide some additional capacity and to allow the refinery to meet current European fuel standards.

Gas Supply and Demand

Kazakhstan is a net exporter of gas. Increases in its own gas production are expected to come
primarily from associated gas at the Tengiz, Karachaganak and Kashagan fields. Most of Kazakhstan’s gas
reserves are located in the west of the country near the Caspian Sea, with roughly 25% of proved reserves
located in the Karachaganak field. Another important gas field, Amangeldy, is situated in the south of the
country and is being developed by KazTransGas, a subsidiary of NC KMG.

Gas production in Kazakhstan has increased significantly since 1999 when the Government passed a
law requiring subsoil users (primarily oil companies) to include gas utilisation projects in their
development plans. As a result, gas production in 2000 doubled compared to 1999, reaching 314 billion
cubic feet, the highest level since independence in 1991. Production has generally continued to increase
since then, reaching 926 billion cubic feet in 2005. According to the 15-year development strategy of
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MEMR, Kazakhstan will increase its gas production to 1.85 trillion cubic feet by 2010, and to 2.80 trillion
cubic feet by 2015.

Transportation

An important aspect of increasing hydrocarbon production in Kazakhstan has been the development
of transportation infrastructure, as this in turn has raised the export capacity of Kazakhstan.

Crude Oil. Historically the lack of pipeline capacity providing access to international markets has
impeded Kazakhstan’s ability to exploit its oil reserves. Since Kazakhstan is essentially landlocked, the
pipelines have to transit through neighbouring countries in order to reach international markets. The
exploitation of Kazakhstan’s hydrocarbon resources has been assisted by the development of the
hydrocarbon transportation infrastructure in the region:

* In 2003, approximately 14.8 million tonnes per year (300 thousand bopd) of crude oil were shipped
through the CPC pipeline and approximately 13.3 million tonnes per year (269 thousand bopd) of
crude oil were shipped through the UAS pipeline out of total exports of approximately 40.5 million
tonnes per year (820 thousand bopd);

* In 2004, approximately 22.5 million tonnes per year (450 thousand bopd) of crude oil were shipped
through the CPC pipeline and approximately 15 million tonnes per year (300 thousand bopd) of
crude oil were shipped through the UAS pipeline out of total exports of approximately 48.9 million
tonnes per year (978 thousand bopd); and

* In 2005, approximately 30.5 million tonnes per year (610 thousand bopd) of crude oil were shipped
through the CPC pipeline and approximately 15.2 million tonnes per year (310 thousand bopd) of
crude oil were shipped through the UAS pipeline out of total exports of approximately 52.4 million
tonnes per year (1.1 million bopd).

The CPC pipeline, which has been operational since 2001, represents a major export route. It extends
1,510 kilometres, originating in the Tengiz field, running through Russia and terminating at the CPC
marine terminal on the Black Sea near the Russian port of Novorossiysk. The CPC pipeline is significant in
that it is the first major pipeline in Russian territory not owned by the Russian pipeline operator, Transneft.

The UAS pipeline transports oil from fields in the Atyrau and Mangistau regions to Russia. The
pipeline system runs for approximately 1,500 kilometres, from Uzen in southwest Kazakhstan to Atyrau,
before crossing into Russia and linking with Russia’s Transneft system at Samara. In June 2002,
Kazakhstan signed a 15-year oil transit agreement with Russia. Under this agreement, Kazakhstan will
export at least 17.5 million tonnes per year (350 thousand bopd) of crude oil using the Russian
pipeline system.

The 1,767 kilometre Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan pipeline delivers crude oil from Baku in Azerbaijan to a new
marine terminal in the Turkish port of Ceyhan on the Mediterranean and is the first direct pipeline link
between the Caspian Sea and the Mediterranean Sea. The Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan pipeline project, which cost
approximately US$4.0 billion, is designed to transport up to approximately 50 million tonnes (1.0 million
bopd) per year by 2010. BP is the largest stakeholder in this project with 30.1%. In May 2005, construction
of the pipeline was completed and the pipeline began operating in July 2006. The Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan
pipeline is expected to be largely dedicated to production from the Azeri-Chirag-Gunashli fields in the
Azerbaijan sector of the Caspian Sea but to the extent there is available capacity, the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan
pipeline may be used to transport Kazakhstan crude oil shipped across the Caspian Sea to Baku by tanker.
Kazakhstan is now in discussions with Azerbaijan for access.

In December 2005, China and Kazakhstan put into operation the 614 mile Atasu-Alashankou
pipeline, forming part of the Atasu-Dushantsty pipeline. The initial capacity of the Atasu-Alashankou
pipeline is approximately 10 million tonnes (200 thousand bopd) per year, with a projected increase up to
20 million tonnes per year (400 thousand bopd).

Other pipeline routes from Kazakhstan are being considered, such as routes through the Caucasus to
Turkey and routes through Iran and Afghanistan.

Rail transportation was the primary export route for Kazakhstan crude production before the
development of the UAS and CPC pipelines. The rail infrastructure remains an alternative
transportation option.
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Major Oil and Gas Projects in Kazakhstan
TCO

The TCO joint venture was created in 1993 with the aim of developing the Tengiz and Korolev fields.
The participants in the joint venture are Chevron Overseas Company (50%), ExxonMobil (25%),
NC KMG (20%) and LukArco (5%).

The Tengiz field is one of the largest fields to be developed in the world in the last 25 years and is
located on the south-eastern part of the Pre-Caspian Basin on the north-eastern edge of the Caspian Sea.
It was discovered in 1979 in the Atyrau region. According to current estimates, the Tengiz field has
recoverable reserves of between 750 million tonnes (5.5 billion barrels) and 1,125 million tonnes
(8.3 billion barrels) of oil. In 2003, 12.7 million tonnes (255 thousand bopd) of oil were produced at the
Tengiz field, in 2004, 13.7 million tonnes (276 thousand bopd), and in 2005, 13.6 million tonnes
(274 thousand bopd). The output of the Tengiz field is shipped through the CPC pipeline. Future
shipments are also expected to be shipped through the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan pipeline.

Karachaganak Project

The Karachaganak field is a large gas-oil-condensate field located in the North-West region of
Kazakhstan, with an area of about 280 square kilometres. The field was discovered in 1979 and the
consortium developing it are party to a 40-year production sharing agreement with the Government. The
consortium includes affiliates of ENI SpA (32.5%), BG Group (32.5%), Chevron (20%) and LUKOIL
Overseas (15%). BG Group and ENI SpA are the project operators. The output of the Karachaganak field
is expected to be shipped through the CPC pipeline.

The field holds an estimated 1.2 billion tonnes of liquid hydrocarbons and 1.3 trillion cubic metres of
gas. In 2003, Karachaganak’s total production was approximately 7.5 million tonnes (approximately
150 thousand bopd) of liquid hydrocarbons and 15 million cubic metres per day of gas.

North Caspian project

The Kashagan field is located off the northern shore of the Caspian Sea, near the city of Atyrau. In
1997, a consortium of companies signed a 40-year production sharing agreement covering five structures,
namely Kashagan, Kalamkas, Aktoty, Kairan and Kashagan SW. The structures consist of eleven offshore
blocks and cover an area of 6,000 square kilometres. In June 2000, as a result of drilling and testing of wells
in East Kashagan-1, the discovery was announced of the largest oil and gas field to be discovered for the
past 30 years. The field is currently in development and its output is expected to be shipped through the
CPC pipeline. The project is owned by a consortium that currently includes ENI SpA (18.52%),
ExxonMobil Corporation (18.52%), Shell (18.52%), Total S.A. (18.52%), ConocoPhillips Company
(9.26%), INPEX Corporation (8.33%) and NC KMG (8.33%). ENI SpA is the operator.

Resource Classifications

Kazakhstan has its own classification system of oil and gas reserves which is based on the system
employed in the former Soviet Union, and approved by an order of MEMR, that differs from accepted
practices in most other parts of the world. Accordingly, under this system, stated reserves do not
necessarily correspond to economically recoverable reserves and reserves calculations performed using
different methodologies cannot be accurately reconciled.

The classification system is based on the degree of development of the field (reserves). All
hydrocarbon accumulations in a field are grouped together. Once development commences in a field, all
hydrocarbon accumulations in that field are included in the developed reserves. Each field has two
subgroups: profitable and unprofitable reserves.

Profitable (recoverable) reserves are reserves, extraction of which is economical using existing
technologies and techniques. These reserves are determined on the basis of the recovery ratio. By the
degree of exploration, reserves are also divided into proved (A, B, Cl) and preliminary estimated
(not explored) (C2) reserves. Proved reserves are further divided into reserves to be developed—A and
B—and explored reserves—Cl.

Reserves not currently identified as commercial are classified as “resources”. Resources are divided
into prospective resources—C3—and forecasted resources—D0, D1 and D2.
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As a rough approximation, recoverable A and B reserves can be compared to proved reserves, C1 to
proved/probable reserves, C2 to probable/possible reserves, and C3, DO, D1 and D2 to contingent/
prospective resources in accordance with international methodology. The estimation of recoverable
reserves under the Kazakh system is usually higher than under the international system.

International standards (for informal

Kazakh classification Kazakh explanation (for guidance only) comparison only)"
A Proved reserves Proved reserves
B Proved reserves Proved reserves
C1 Explored proved reserves Proved/Probable reserves
C2 Preliminary estimated reserves Probable/Possible reserves

(not explored)

C3 Prospective resources Contingent/prospective resources
DO Forecasted resources Contingent/prospective resources
D1 Forecasted resources Contingent/prospective resources
D2 Forecasted resources Contingent/prospective resources

(1) The International standards are those of the SPE/WPC.

The Company’s internal estimates of oil and gas reserves, as opposed to the reserves information in
this document extracted from the section headed “GCA Report”, are based on total “explored reserves”,
consisting of oil and gas reserves in categories A, B and C1, and “preliminary reserves” in category C2 of
the Kazakh classification system.

All figures set out in this document in respect of gas and gas condensate are figures for categories A,
B and C1 only.
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OVERVIEW OF THE REPUBLIC OF KAZAKHSTAN

The information contained in this section is intended to provide background information regarding
Kazakhstan and its Government and has, unless otherwise stated, been derived from documents, websites
and other publications released by the President of Kazakhstan, the Statistics Agency of Kazakhstan, the
Ministry of Finance of Kazakhstan, the MEMR, the National Bank of Kazakhstan and other public sources
in Kazakhstan, together with extracts from The World Fact Book published by the US Central Intelligence
Agency and reports by the Economist Intelligence Unit.

Introduction

Kazakhstan is rich in natural resources, including oil, gas and minerals. Kazakhstan is a leading
producer of chrome, aluminium, iron ore, copper, zinc, manganese, coal, uranium, lead and, to a lesser
extent, gold and silver. The country is also a significant exporter of oil, grain, wool, meat, machinery and
various chemicals. Kazakhstan enjoys relatively high levels of foreign direct investment compared to most
developing nations, particularly in the oil and gas sector.

Economic and structural reforms undertaken since 1991 have helped to revive Kazakhstan’s economy
following several years of falling GDP after the dissolution of the Soviet Union. Real GDP in Kazakhstan
grew at an annual rate of 9.5% in 2002, 9.2% in 2003, 10.1% in 2004 and 9.4% in 2005. Further,
year-on-year consumer price inflation in Kazakhstan decreased from 1,258% at the end of 1994 to 7.6% at
the end of 2005. Kazakhstan was granted “Market Economy Status” by the EU in 2001 and by the USA in
2002, the first CIS country to be granted this status. Kazakhstan was also the first CIS country to be moved
by Moody’s to investment grade status (in 2002).

A legal framework is being created for the development of a market-oriented economy, including
implementing new tax, securities, bankruptcy, joint-stock company, currency control and auditing laws.

Area and Population

Kazakhstan is located in Central Asia and is bordered by Russia to the north and west, China’s
Xinjiang-Uigur Autonomous Region to the east, the Kyrgyz Republic, Uzbekistan and Turkmenistan to the
south and the Caspian Sea to the west. The capital, Astana, is located in central Kazakhstan but Almaty, in
the south east of the country, is the principal business and financial centre of the country and is by far its
largest city.

The country covers an area of 2.717 million square kilometres, approximately the same size as western
Europe, and spans two time zones from the Caspian Sea in the west to the Altai Mountains in the east. In
terms of landmass, Kazakhstan is the ninth largest country in the world and the second largest country,
after Russia, in the CIS.

As of 30 June 2006, the population of Kazakhstan was approximately 15.3 million, making Kazakhstan
one of the most sparsely populated countries in the world, with an average population density of
approximately 5.59 people per square kilometre. The population of Kazakhstan is ethnically diverse.
Kazakhs are the largest among the country’s more than 120 different ethnic groups, accounting for
approximately 55% of the population, followed by Russians (30%), Ukrainians (3.7%), Tatars, Germans,
Uzbeks, Poles and others. The relative size of the Kazakh ethnic group has increased since the country’s
independence, mainly because of the emigration of non-Kazakh ethnic groups and because of the return of
many ethnic Kazakhs to the country.

Historically, Kazakhstan belongs to the Turkic-speaking world. Kazakh, the official language, is
spoken by approximately 50% of the population. Russian is spoken by more than three-quarters of the
population and is also officially recognised for use in State matters and local government. Kazakhstan’s
adult literacy rate is approximately 99%.

Kazakhstan’s position in the international community

Kazakhstan has established diplomatic relations with over 120 countries. Kazakhstan is a full member
of the United Nations, the International Monetary Fund, the World Bank, the United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation, the International Atomic Energy Agency, the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Asian Development Bank, the International Development
Association, the Multilateral Investment Guarantee Agency, the International Finance Corporation, the
International Organisation of Securities Commissions and the Islamic Development Bank. Currently,
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Kazakhstan has observer status with the World Trade Organisation. Kazakhstan agreed an economic
stabilisation programme with the International Monetary Fund and has in the past been granted both
standby and extended fund facilities. Kazakhstan is party to a Partnership and Co-operation Agreement
with the European Union which came into force in 1999 and co-operates with the EU in various scientific
and environmental programmes. In 1994, Kazakhstan joined NATO’s Partnership for Peace Programme.

The Government has pursued its interests by balancing its relations with its large neighbours (Russia
and China) and the United States, although due to geographic proximity and its large Russian minority,
Kazakhstan’s main external ally is Russia. Kazakhstan has ratified all the international and bilateral
agreements that define the current stakes in the Caspian Sea, and Russia and Kazakhstan have reached an
agreement to allow Kazakh oil exports through the UAS pipeline and the Makhachkala-Tikhoretsk-
Novorossiysk pipelines. Joint ventures between Russian and Kazakh firms to develop a series of offshore
oil fields in the Caspian Sea have been agreed. The CPC pipeline, the first independently operated,
privately owned and independent and commercially operated pipeline in Kazakhstan and Russia, has cut
transportation costs from the Tengiz field and enhanced Kazakhstan’s negotiating position with Russia’s
state-owned Transneft pipeline system. JSC “KazRosGas”, a joint venture between NC KMG, Rosneft and
RAO Gazprom, has given Kazakhstan’s gas exporters access to western European markets at Russian
domestic tariff rates. Chinese national firms have acquired interests in Kazakh oil fields and have
constructed an oil pipeline from western Kazakhstan to the Chinese border. The Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan
pipeline from Azerbaijan to the Turkish Mediterranean coast was inaugurated in May 2005, affording
Kazakhstan increased oil export routes and greater geopolitical flexibility.

Kazakhstan is also involved in two efforts to consolidate customs and other economic policies in the
region. Kazakhstan, Russia, and Belarus, and more recently Kyrgyzstan and Tajikistan and Uzbekistan,
have entered into a treaty establishing a new Eurasian Economic Community, a customs union which
removes trade restrictions between the signatory countries and establishes a common external tariff. In
September 2003, Kazakhstan, Ukraine, Russia and Belarus signed an agreement for the creation of a single
economic zone, the “Common Economic Space”, which is expected to result in common economic
policies, harmonisation of legislation implementing such policies and the creation of a single commission
on trade and tariffs.

Kazakhstan’s economy is highly dependent on the successful development of the oil sector. For each
of the past five years, GDP growth in Kazakhstan has been over 9%, fuelled by increased world demand
for oil and high oil prices. This growth in GDP has resulted in a GDP per capita of US$3.685 in 2005. Over
this period, the general economic situation in Kazakhstan has improved, leading to a strong growth in
imports into Kazakhstan. High oil prices have boosted the current account and balance of payments which
moved into surplus and increased foreign exchange reserves, which are being accumulated in the National
Development Fund of Kazakhstan in order to reduce inflationary pressures on the country’s economy.
According to the Kazakhstan Ministry of Foreign Affairs, between 1993 and 2005 Kazakhstan has attracted
more than US$34 billion in foreign direct investment, the highest per capita rate of all of the republics of
the former Soviet Union. One goal of the Government is for Kazakhstan to be in the near future among
the fifty most competitive nations of the world.

The non-oil economy in Kazakhstan has grown at a rate of over 5% per annum over the past 5 years.
Those sectors most closely associated with oil have grown fastest: construction and services related to oil
extraction, transportation, and investment projects, including real estate and related services and, on a
lesser scale, financial services and trade, have shown strong growth.

The table below shows Kazakhstan’s GDP, GDP growth and inflation for the years from 2001 to 2005.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

GDP (USSbn) . ... 215 242 300 38.6 56.1
Real GDP Growth (% change). .. ........ .. ... .. ........ 132 95 92 101 94
Inflation (CPI% change) .............. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 84 66 064 067 76

Source: National Statistical Agency

Rapid economic growth has helped stimulate employment and raise living standards. Unemployment
rates in Kazakhstan fell from 13.5% in 1999 to 8.2% in 2005. Currently, the annual per capita GDP and
monthly wages in Kazakhstan are among the highest of the republics of the former Soviet Union. In 2005,
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Kazakhstan attracted approximately three quarters of the total foreign direct investment into Central Asia,
approximately US$53.8 billion.

Kazakhstan was the first CIS country to achieve an investment grade sovereign rating and is currently
rated BBB — by Standard & Poor’s and Baa2 by Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.

Reforms aimed at moving Kazakhstan further toward a full market economy continue. Kazakhstan
has undertaken one of the more successful pension reform programmes amongst its peer “transition
economies”’. The legislation regulating Kazakhstan’s financial markets has undergone certain reforms to
conform it with international standards and the development of its domestic capital markets remains a key
strategic priority. Privatisation, liberalisation of capital controls and tax reforms have also made headway.
The Government is also moving ahead with the introduction of “e-government” (initially in the customs
service), which is aimed at stimulating greater public sector transparency.

Constitution, Government and Political Parties
Constitution

Kazakhstan has been one of the most politically stable countries of the CIS. The country’s current
constitution (the “Constitution”), adopted in August 1995, provides for a tripartite structure of
government in which power is divided among the executive, legislative and judicial branches. The
Constitution establishes and sets out the powers and functions of the President, the Parliament, the
Government, the Constitutional Council and local governments and administrations and establishes an
independent judicial system. Under Kazakhstan’s current President, Nursultan Nazarbayev, the Presidency
has increasingly dominated the other branches of government.

Executive Branch

Under the Constitution, the President is the head of State and its highest official with primary
responsibility for domestic and foreign policy and representing Kazakhstan in international relations. The
President is also Commander-in-Chief of the armed forces. The President has the power to issue edicts and
ordinances. In special circumstances, the President can issue decrees and orders having the force of law
(provided they are consistent with the Constitution, and which must then be approved by Parliament), to
determine the priority of legislation before Parliament and to call a national referendum on matters of
special importance. The President also has the power, in certain circumstances, to dissolve Parliament.

Under the Constitution, the President also enjoys significant powers of appointment, including the
power to appoint the Prime Minister, subject to the approval of Parliament. The President may also dismiss
the Prime Minister and members of the Government without Parliamentary approval. In addition, the
President has the power to appoint and remove the Governor of Kazakhstan’s central bank, whose
appointment is subject to the approval of Parliament.

The Constitution provides that the President is elected to office by popular vote for a term of seven
years. The Constitution also provides for early termination of the President’s term of office in the event of
death, resignation or impeachment.

Mr. Nazarbayeyv, then the First Secretary of the Communist Party of Kazakhstan, became President of
the Republic of Kazakhstan once it became a sovereign state in December 1991 and has held the position
of President since then. His presidency was confirmed in a referendum in April 1995, he was re-elected in
January 1999 and again in December 2005 and his current term of office expires in 2012. President
Nazarbayev has had and continues to have a dominant influence on economic and political life in the
country and, following two Parliamentary dissolutions, from December 1993 until April 1994 and from
March 1995 through January 1996, legislative functions were vested solely in the President. During these
periods, the President brought into effect over 100 ordinances and decrees (which were subsequently
approved by Parliament) representing a substantial part of the legislative framework for the economic and
structural reforms which have been made in the country.

The Government comprises the Prime Minister, as its executive head, one deputy prime minister and
16 ministers as members of the cabinet. The Government is formed by the President, based on
recommendations of the Prime Minister, for a term of five years, and is automatically dissolved after each
presidential election to allow for the formation of a new administration by the President. Neither the Prime
Minister nor the members of the cabinet are members of Parliament. The Government is responsible for
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implementing laws, decrees and international agreements, preparing and implementing the budget,
establishing fiscal policy, carrying out social policy and defending the rights and freedoms of citizens.

The President appointed the current Prime Minister, Daniyal Akhmetov, in June 2003 and
re-appointed him in January 2006.

Legislative Branch

Kazakhstan’s legislative branch is the Parliament, which consists of an upper chamber (the “Senate”)
of 39 deputies and a lower chamber (the “Majilis”) of 77 deputies. The President appoints seven of the
deputies in the Senate (called “senators”) and representative bodies of the regional and city authorities
appoint the remainder. Ten of the 77 deputies of the Majilis are elected from a list compiled by the winning
party; the other deputies are elected by direct popular vote in single seat constituencies.

Judicial Branch

Judicial authority is vested in the Supreme Court, regional courts and district courts. The Supreme
Court is the highest judicial body for all civil and criminal matters. The Chairperson of the Supreme Court,
the chairpersons of the Supreme Court benches and the judges of the Supreme Court are elected by the
Senate from the candidates submitted by the President based on the recommendations of the Supreme
Judicial Council.

Constitutional Council

The Constitution provides for a seven-member Constitutional Council which is charged with the
responsibility for resolving disputes over presidential and parliamentary elections and public referenda,
providing official interpretation of the provisions of the Constitution, ensuring the constitutionality of
legislation and international agreements, implementing procedures under the Constitution for the removal
of the President from office and investigating claims brought under the Constitution in relation to the
exercise of presidential power. Each of the President, the Chairman of the Senate and the Chairman of
the Majilis appoints two members of the Constitutional Council. In addition, the President appoints the
Council’s Chairperson.

Local Government

Local government is effected through representative bodies (“Maslikhats”) and mayors (“Akims”) for
each of the country’s 14 regions (“Oblasts”) and the cities of Astana and Almaty, which together represent
the first tier of territorial administration. Approximately 160 rural districts (“Rayons”) and a further
86 cities together make up the second tier of territorial administration.

Political Parties

Although multi-party democracy is enshrined in the Constitution, political parties have not played a
significant role to date. This is due to various factors including the fact that deputies in Parliament have
been elected as individuals representing specific constituencies rather than on the basis of political party,
as well as changes in the laws relating to the registration of political parties.
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COMPETITION
Competition for Reserves

Kazakhstan has been a focus for investment by leading oil and gas companies. Since independence in
1991, major western oil companies have dominated the oil and gas sector of Kazakhstan with BG Group,
Chevron, ENI, Exxon, Shell, Total, Mobil, LUKOIL and Texaco acquiring stakes in the world-scale TCO,
North Caspian and Karachaganak projects. Investment from Asian oil and gas companies began in the late
1990s led by Indonesia’s Central Asia Petroleum (which acquired a 60% share in Mangistaumunaigas
in 1997) and CNPC International (which purchased 60% of Aktobemunaigas in 1997 and PetroKazakhstan
in 2005). CNPC International has continued to invest heavily in the country and has been joined by, among
others, Inpex, Sinopec and KNOC. LUKOIL and Rosneft have led the investment of Russian oil and gas
companies in Kazakhstan with a focus on the offshore Caspian. The following table shows foreign
investments in the operating entities in the Kazakhstan oil and gas sector by production.

Company Foreign Investors Production
(thousand bopd)
1. TCO (Tengizchevroil) Chevron Texaco, ExxonMobil, LukArco 290
2. KPO (Karachaganak) Eni, BG, ChevronTexaco, LUKOIL 244
3. The Company Subject of the Global Offer 188
4.  Aktobemunaigas CNPC 123
5. Mangistaumunaigas Central Asia Petroleum 109
6. PKZ Kumkol CNPCI (acquired PKZ) 105
7. Turgai Petroleum LUKOIL, CNPC 72
8. KazGerMunai CNPCI (through PKZ) 60
9.  Karazhanbasmunai Nations Energy 44
10. Kazakhoil Aktoby LUKOIL 31

Note: The table does not include Kashagan, which is still under development.

Alongside this investment by international and national oil companies, foreign exploration and
production companies such as PetroKazakhstan and Nelson Resources, launched their Kazakh operations
in 1996 and 2000, respectively, and built positions as Kazakh focused oil producers. The last few years has
also seen renewed interest, particularly in Western Kazakhstan, from numerous smaller companies which
have been attracted by development opportunities and the region’s existing infrastructure. Examples of
companies in this peer group include, among others, Arawak Energy, Aurado Energy, BMB Munali,
Big Sky Energy, Canargo Energy, Caspian Holdings, Transmeridian and Victoria Oil and Gas.

The recent push by oil companies to secure access to reserves has led to a rapid increase in global
mergers and acquisitions activity. Kazakhstan has seen its share of consolidation with the acquisition by
CNPC International of PetroKazakhstan in October 2005 followed by LUKOILs acquisition of Nelson
Resources in December 2005. Further activity is expected as companies compete for licences, acreage and
producing properties in oil-rich regions in the world.

As such, the Company expects to compete for reserves not only with regional oil companies but also
with the global major oil producers. The Company believes that the rights granted to it under the Services
Agreement will provide the Company with a competitive advantage over its competitors for onshore
reserves in Kazakhstan.

Competition for Pipeline Access

Currently, the Company exports a majority of its crude through the UAS pipeline with the remainder
transported through the CPC pipeline. The Company has access rights to UAS pipeline capacity until the
end of December 2012 and has a reasonable endeavours agreement in its favour with NC KMG for
additional capacity in this pipeline if its capacity is expanded. The Government’s share of capacity in the
CPC pipeline is currently allocated through NC KMG as well as through Kazakhstan Pipeline Ventures.
The Company is the “affiliated shipper” for NC KMG (a shareholder in CPC) and, consequently, has
rights to ship crude oil through CPC until 31 December 2008. See “The Company—Crude
Oil Transportation”.
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NC KMG owns an 8.33% stake in the North Caspian project (“Kashagan field””) which is expected to
begin production in 2008. This project is expected to rely primarily on the CPC pipeline and the Baku-
Thilisi-Ceyhan pipeline for exporting its crude oil and NC KMG’s share of this crude oil will likely be
allocated to the Government’s capacity allocation in the CPC pipeline. The CPC shareholders are
currently holding negotiations for the expansion of the capacity of the CPC pipeline to up to 67 million
tonnes of crude oil per annum. As part of the Services Agreement, the Company has received an
undertaking by NC KMG to use reasonable endeavours to nominate the Company as the “affiliated
shipper” of NC KMG (including all rights and obligations pursuant to which NC KMG has access to the
CPC pipeline) for deliveries of crude oil through the CPC pipeline. This undertaking will be highly
beneficial to the Company and will allow secured access for its exports. However, the Services Agreement
is subject to annual renewal. See “Risk Factors—Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Relationship with
NC KMG—If NC KMG fails to participate in the annual tender for the renewal of the Services
Agreement, the Company will lose its rights under the Services Agreement”.

With rising Kazakh oil production, there is further interest in developing multiple export routes. The
construction of the Atasu-Alashankou pipeline between Kazakhstan and China was completed in
December 2005. The Government is also working on an agreement with the government of Azerbaijan for
Kazakh oil shipments through the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan pipeline. Other export routes are being considered
but economic and geo-political factors are likely to be key impediments.

As a result of its agreements with KTO and the Services Agreement with NC KMG, see “The
Company—Strengths—Access to export pipeline routes”, the Company believes that the arrangements it
has in place provide it with sufficient pipeline capacity for its planned production.
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THE COMPANY
OVERVIEW

The Company was created in March 2004 through the merger of JSC UzenMunaiGas and JSC
EmbaMunaiGas and the Company is the third largest crude oil producer in the Republic of Kazakhstan
(based on MEMR 2005 data) in terms of annual production volumes of hydrocarbons (including crude
oil), with proved plus probable oil reserves of approximately 1,515.2 million barrels (205.9 million tonnes)
according to GCA. The Company is engaged in the production of crude oil and gas and undertakes its
hydrocarbon exploration activities in order to maintain and augment its reserve base.

The Company extracts hydrocarbon resources from 44 oil and gas fields located in western
Kazakhstan. MEMR has granted the Company exclusive rights for exploration and production on these
fields pursuant to the terms of existing licences and contracts. The Company conducts its principal
exploration and production activities within the geographic area specified in these production contracts
and licences through its UMG and EMG production divisions in the Mangistau and Atyrau regions,
respectively. In this document, the seven fields operated by the UMG division are referred to as the
“UMG fields” and the 37 fields operated by the EMG division are referred to as the “EMG fields”.
Together, the UMG fields and the EMG fields cover an area of 837.4 square kilometres. As at
31 December 2005, the estimated proved plus probable oil reserves at the UMG fields were 155.9 million
tonnes (1,147.3 million barrels) and at the EMG fields were 50.0 million tonnes (367.9 million barrels).
The report of GCA setting forth the Company’s estimated proved, probable and possible oil reserves is
included in the section headed “GCA Report”.

For estimating reserves of gas and gas condensate, the Company uses the Kazakhstan methodology
for the calculation of reserves developed by scientific-research institutes in Kazakhstan and further
approved by the State Committee for Reserves of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The estimated proved gas
and gas condensate reserves at the UMG fields of the Company were 16.3 billion cubic metres and
1.6 million tonnes (about 12.7 million barrels), respectively. Applying the reserves definition as
promulgated by the SPE/WPC, GCA has determined that the Company does not have any gas reserves as
the volumes available are not commercially viable.

In 2005, the Company produced approximately 9.3 million tonnes (188.3 thousand bopd) of crude oil.
From 1 January 2002 to 31 December 2005, the compound annual growth rate in the Company’s oil
production was 9% and the Company produced a cumulative total of approximately 33.5 million tonnes
(246.6 million barrels) of crude oil over that period.

As described in “—Exploration”, the Company is currently conducting or planning to conduct
exploration activities in several regions in onshore Kazakhstan, including the R-9, Liman, and Taisoigan
blocks, the territories adjoining, and the Triassic reservoirs of, the Uzen and Karamandybas fields, and is
planning exploration with a view to expanding the Nurzhanov, Makat East and Akingen fields.

The Company faces competition primarily in relation to acquisition of reserves and access to pipelines
for transport of its products. See “Competition”.

STRENGTHS

The Company’s key strengths are principally based on its relationship with NC KMG set forth in the
Services Agreement. The Company believes its key strengths are the following:

e Right of first refusal through NC KMG for existing onshore subsoil oil and gas exploration and
production contracts. Under current Kazakhstan law, the state is entitled to a right of first refusal to
acquire from the holder any interest in an existing onshore subsoil oil and gas exploration and
production contract in Kazakhstan that the holder proposes to transfer, on terms at least as
favourable as those offered by the holder to the proposed transferee. The Services Agreement,
which expires on 31 December 2006 and must be renewed by annual tender, provides that NC KMG
must make reasonable efforts, if requested to do so by the Company, to procure the State to
exercise this right of first refusal on behalf of the Company over any existing contracts that are
proposed to be transferred.

Preferential Access through NC KMG to rights to unlicensed onshore oil and gas acreage. Under the
Services Agreement, the Company has the right to request that NC KMG exercise its right under
Kazakhstan law to enter into direct negotiations for exploration and production contracts with
respect to any unlicensed oil and gas acreage in Kazakhstan without engaging in a tender process.
Pursuant to the Services Agreement, NC KMG has undertaken with the Company that, if any such
unlicensed oil and gas acreage is licenced to NC KMG, it will, at the Company’s request, grant a
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right of first refusal to acquire the oil and gas exploration and production contracts for such
acreage. NC KMG’s undertakings under the Services Agreement will remain in effect for so long as
the agreement, which is subject to annual renewal, remains in force. See “Principal Shareholders,
Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements with NC KMG and
its affiliates”.

* Significant existing oil reserve base. As of 31 December 2005, the Company’s estimated proved plus
probable oil reserves at the UMG fields and EMG fields were 205.9 million tonnes (1,515.2 million
barrels), of which 42% were classified as proved reserves. The UMG fields include the Uzen field,
which is the third largest oil field in Kazakhstan in terms of current annual crude oil production
volumes. The Company has exclusive rights under its contracts and licences with MEMR to develop
the UMG fields and EMG fields until up to 2025 depending on the field. Upon completion of the
Global Offering, the Company will be the largest publicly-listed crude oil production company
operating predominantly in Kazakhstan, based on both production and reserves.

 Extensive experience in crude oil and gas production. Although the Company was created on
31 March 2004, the history of its production divisions goes back nearly 100 years which gives the
Company extensive knowledge of the geology of its fields and of exploration and production in the
region. EMG was the precursor of the oil industry in Kazakhstan and many of the most significant
oil professionals in Kazakhstan received their first work experience there. UMG has been engaged
in production activity since 1965.

The top management of the Company has substantial technical and commercial professional
experience in the oil and gas sector and has played a key role in the creation and development of
such major projects as TCO, Kashagan and Karachaganak. It has also taken part in formulating the
state development programme for the Kazakhstan sector of the Caspian Sea.

From 1 January 2002 to 31 December 2005, the compound annual growth rate in the Company’s oil
production was 9% and the Company produced a cumulative total of approximately 33.5 million
tonnes (about 246.6 million barrels) of crude oil over that period. The Company has achieved this
growth in production mainly as a result of the Uzen Rehabilitation Project, drilling new wells and
completing well workovers and applying enhanced oil recovery methods. In addition, it has applied
well stimulation techniques such as hydraulic fracturing and a range of thermal and chemical
methods. In this way, the Company expects its annual level of production at the UMG fields and
EMG fields to remain stable in the medium term. The Company believes its long production history
and comprehensive understanding of the geology of its fields has significantly contributed to its
strong record of production growth.

* Access to export pipeline routes. The Company has entered into a contract with KTO that
contractually guarantees its right to ship specified minimum volumes of crude oil, subject to MEMR
quotas, through the UAS pipeline until the end of 2012. NC KMG has agreed in the Services
Agreement to procure oil transportation capacity for the Company from KTO after 2012 on terms
at least equal to those offered to third parties. In addition, the Company has the right to ship crude
oil through the CPC pipeline until the end of 2008. As part of the Services Agreement, NC KMG
has agreed to endeavour to nominate the Company as its “affiliated shipper” for deliveries of crude
oil through the CPC pipeline for so long as the Services Agreement remains in force. See “Principal
Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements with
NC KMG and its affiliates”. The Company believes that these arrangements provide it with
sufficient pipeline capacity for its planned production.

STRATEGY

The Company’s goal is to maintain its position as a leading oil and gas company in Kazakhstan. As
part of the process of achieving this, the Company has developed a five year strategy, with the following
key priorities:

* Increase the Company’s overall production and replace the Company’s reserves through acquisitions in
the short-to-medium term and exploration in the long term. As described under “—Exploration”, the
Company is currently concentrating its exploration activities on the Taisoigan, R-9 and Liman blocks
and the Triassic reservoirs of the Uzen and Karamandybas fields (and adjoining territories) and on
expanding the size of the Nurzhanov, Makat East and Akingen fields. The Company has entered
into an option agreement to acquire the 50% interest in KazGerMunai currently held by NC KMG,
although the exercise of this option is subject to a number of conditions precedent. In addition, the
Company understands that NC KMG is prepared to offer to sell to the Company its 33% interest in
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PetroKazakhstan (excluding any interest in the Shymkent refinery) following the Global Offer,
although the Company has not entered into any definitive arrangements in respect of either such
transaction. See “—Recent Developments—Possible Acquisitions”. Furthermore, the Company
intends through the Services Agreement (i) to take advantage, with NC KMG’s assistance, of any
exercise by the state of its right of first refusal to acquire existing onshore subsoil exploration and
production contracts for oil and associated products that are transferred, and (ii) to exploit its rights
to unlicensed onshore acreage for oil and associated products. Through the Services Agreement,
the Company believes it is well placed to lead the consolidation of oil and gas production rights in
onshore Kazakhstan. The Company may also consider strategic investments outside Kazakhstan
that will enhance its reserve asset base.

* Sustain current levels of oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields over the medium term. The
Company intends to sustain its current level of production at the UMG fields and EMG fields over
the medium term principally through drilling and completing new wells, completing well workovers
and continuing various secondary and enhanced oil recovery methods. The Company expects that
these recovery methods will permit it to maintain current production levels from its existing oil
reserves at a volume of approximately 9.5 million tonnes (approximately 192 thousand bopd) per
year over the medium term (in 2005, the volume was approximately 9.3 million tonnes or
188.3 thousand bopd).

* Rationalise the Company’s operations by divesting non-core and ancillary businesses. The Company
believes the rationalisation of its business will enable it to focus its operating activities and strategic
plans on the exploration and production of oil and gas resources in onshore Kazakhstan. As part of
the Company’s Asset Optimisation Programme, the Company has begun divesting its ownership
interests in most of its subsidiaries whose operations are non-core to the Company’s upstream
operations and development strategy. In December 2005, the Company sold its interest in the
Atyrau Refinery to a subsidiary of NC KMG. An agreement is in place for the sale, not yet fully
completed, of the Company’s 35% interest in JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries (formerly
known as JSC Atoll), a petrochemical operation, to the other shareholder, LLP SAT & Company,
for KZT3.4 billion. This amount was due on 30 June 2006, and is still outstanding as an
unprovisioned receivable. The Company is currently considering selling its remaining 15% stake on
JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries.

* Bring the Company’s operations into line with international environmental, labour and safety standards.
As part of its development plan, the Company is in the process of implementing policies that it
believes will enable it to meet international standards for environmental protection, human
resource management and employee safety in all of the Company’s operations.

e Cost Reduction Plan. The Company has developed a cost reduction plan designed to enable
significant cost reductions. The central components of this plan include: (i) optimisation of
production through the application of enhanced reservoir modelling capabilities; (ii) extending well
lives of existing fields through the application of electric rotary and screw pumps, in addition to
monitoring the quality of oil well tubing; (iii) increasing pipeline life through the replacement of
steel pipes with fibreglass pipes; (iv) modernisation of collection and preparation stations including
the construction of a new preparation facility at Uzen; and (v) optimisation of logistics and business
processes through the automation and improvement of measurement and other systems. The
objective of these cost saving initiatives is a reduction in annual operating expenses of
US$100 million by 2010 compared with 2005.

HISTORY AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s share capital is divided into Shares (which carry the right to vote) and preference
shares (which do not carry the right to vote). The Company’s major shareholder is NC KMG which, prior
to the Global Offer, and after the Pre-emptive Offer, held Shares comprising 96.9% of the Company’s
voting share capital. Following the Global Offer NC KMG will own at least 60.1% of the Company’s voting
share capital. See “Principal Shareholders Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions”,
and “Description of Share Capital and Certain Requirements of Kazakhstan Legislation”.

NC KMG is wholly-owned by the state holding company JSC Kazakhstan Holding Company For The
Management Of State Assets Samruk (“Samruk’) which in turn is wholly-owned by the Government. See
“Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Principal
Shareholders—Samruk.” The following is a brief summary of the establishment and reorganisations of the
various oil and gas companies that were eventually combined to form the Company.
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Prior to 1991, when Kazakhstan became an independent sovereign state, various state-owned entities
operated the UMG fields and EMG fields under the management systems of the Soviet Union. During the
early 1990s, the Kazakh oil and gas regulatory bodies created a number of joint stock companies to carry
out exploration and production activities within the Republic of Kazakhstan. In March 1993, the President
of the Republic of Kazakhstan approved a programme for the partial privatisation of these state-owned
companies through a process called a “specialised coupon auction”. Prior to the merger of EMG and
UMG, non-voting preference shares were offered to the employees of EMG and UMG, and, through a
specialised coupon privatisation auction process, voting shares were sold to certain investment funds. As a
consequence of this merger, non-voting preference shares of the Company are held by employees and
2.1% of voting shares are held by private investors.

In 1997, the Government transferred all of its Shares in EMG and UMG to KazakhOil NNC CJSC,
the Kazakh national oil company. KazakhOil NNC CJSC and Oil & Gas Transportation NC CJSC, the
national oil and gas transportation company, then merged to form NC KMG in February 2002. In
March 2004, the merger of EMG and UMG resulted in the creation of the Company. The Company
currently conducts its exploration and production operations through its EMG and UMG production
divisions. For a description of the Company’s production divisions, see “—Operations—Production”. In
December 2005, the Company divested its interest in the Atyrau Refinery and a portion of its interest in
JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries, a petrochemicals operation. In addition, in order to focus upon
the Company’s core business operations, the Company is in the process of disposing of its non-core and
ancillary businesses pursuant to an Asset Optimisation Programme approved by the Board of Directors in
December 2005. For a further description, see “—Asset Optimisation Programme”.

The Company’s corporate headquarters are located in Astana, Kazakhstan. The headquarters of the
UMG and EMG production divisions are located in Zhanaozen and Atyrau, respectively. As at 31 May
2006, the number of employees of the Group was 22,663. See “—Employees, Health and Safety—
Employees”.

OVERVIEW OF RELATIONSHIP WITH AND ROLE OF THE COMPANY’S PARENT COMPANY

NC KMG is the national company for oil and gas operations in the Republic of Kazakhstan. NC KMG
is a holding company for approximately 35 companies, which include certain oil and gas companies
operating in Kazakhstan and various other companies that are focused on activities other than exploration.
NC KMG and its subsidiaries conduct their business in Kazakhstan and with neighbouring countries
including Iran.

According to its charter, NC KMG’s main objectives are to create and develop a vertically integrated
structure capable of implementing government policy in Kazakhstan’s oil and gas sector, ensure the
security of the Republic of Kazakhstan’s energy supplies, ensure the effective development of energy
resources and assist in the overall regulation and progress of the industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan,
including by encouraging various types of investment in the oil and gas sector.

NC KMG and its subsidiaries also own or have an interest in oil production companies such as TCO,
KazGerMunai, PetroKazakhstan, the North Caspian project and others, in a wide network of oil and gas
pipelines, including KTO, CPC, KazTransGas and Kazakhstan Pipelines Ventures, trading and marketing
businesses such as KMG TradeHouse and KazRosGas and in other petroleum-related businesses operating
in Kazakhstan. See “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—
Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates—KMG TradeHouse Agreements”.

After the Global Offer, NC KMG will continue to hold over 60% of the Company’s voting share
capital even if the Underwriters do not exercise the Underwriters’ Put Option and as a result will continue
to have significant influence over the strategy and activities of the Company.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Relationship Agreement and the Charter, NC KMG will be able
to exercise considerable influence over the results of voting of shareholders, over the selection of directors,
over decisions of the Board of Directors and over other decisions relating to the Company. The Company
currently enjoys a good relationship with NC KMG and its affiliates.

The arrangements between the Company and NC KMG are set out more fully in the Services
Agreement and the Relationship Agreement (see “Principal Shareholders, Relationship With NC KMG
And Related Party Transactions”).
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Disposal of Atyrau Refinery and Petrochemicals

As part of its strategy of rationalising the Company’s operations, the Company has begun divesting its
ownership interests in most of its subsidiaries whose operations are non-core to the Company’s upstream
operations and development strategy. In December 2005, the Company sold its interest in the Atyrau
Refinery to a subsidiary of NC KMG. An agreement is in place for the sale but not yet fully completed, of
the Company’s 35% interest in JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries, a petrochemical operation,
to LLP SAT & Company. The sale amount was due on 20 June 2006 and is still outstanding as an
unprovisioned receivable. The Company is currently considering selling its remaining 15% stake in JSC
Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries.

Possible Acquisitions

In July 2006, NC KMG acquired a 50% stake in KazGerMunai for approximately US$1 billion and a
33% stake in PetroKazakhstan for approximately US$1.4 billion.

The Company is considering the possibility of acquiring these assets from NC KMG (but is under no
obligation to do so). If the Company does determine to proceed with either acquisition, it will be subject to
certain conditions precedent including full due diligence by the Company, approval of the majority of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, sending a circular to shareholders (including holders of GDRs) and
receipt of the approval of the transaction by a simple majority vote at a shareholders’ meeting at which
GDR holders have the opportunity to vote their underlying Shares and NC KMG does not vote.

The information provided below regarding KazGerMunai and PetroKazakhstan has been extracted
from publicly available information, including 2004 annual financial statements of PetroKazakhstan,
prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP. The Company has not undertaken any review of or
performed diligence on the information regarding KazGerMunai and PetroKazakhstan provided below or
elsewhere in this document.

KazGerMunai

NC KMG has recently acquired 50% of the participating interests in KazGerMunai; the remaining
50% is owned by PetroKazakhstan. The Company has entered into an option agreement with NC KMG to
acquire its interest in KazGerMunai. See “Principal Shareholders, Relationship With NC KMG and
Related Party Transactions—Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates—Option Agreement for
KazGerMunai.”

KazGerMunai, which was formed in 1993, holds the exploration and production licences for the
Akshabulak, Nurali and Aksai fields in Kazakhstan. As of 31 December 2004, those three fields contained
aggregate estimated proved plus probable oil reserves of 375.4 million barrels. KazGerMunai produced
37.5 thousand bopd in 2005, 45.4 thousand bopd in 2004 and 33.2 thousand bopd in 2003. The decline in
2005 production was a result of cut backs initiated in April 2005 in order to comply with instructions from
the MEP to stop gas flaring immediately, in accordance with legislation passed in December 2004.
KazGerMunai sells all of its crude oil into the export market. Its total revenues in 2004 and 2003 were
US$451.8 million and US$223.8 million, respectively.

On 30 June 2006, the Company entered into an option agreement with NC KMG to acquire NC
KMG’s interest in KazGerMunai, representing 50% of the participatory interests in KazGerMunai (the
“KazGerMunai Interest”). Under the terms of the option agreement, in consideration of the Company
providing financial support to NC KMG to finance NC KMG’s acquisition of the KazGerMunai Interest,
the Company was granted an option, which if exercised will enable it to acquire the KazGerMunai Interest
at a price to be negotiated and determined between the Company and NC KMG in good faith.

Under this option agreement, NC KMG is bound for a period of 18 months—which may be extended
for a further six months—following the closing of the acquisition of the KazGerMunai Interest (i) not to
negotiate the sale of the KazGerMunai Interest to a third party; (ii) to permit the Company to carry out its
due diligence of KazGerMunai; and (iii) to use all reasonable endeavours to procure that the other
shareholders in KazGerMunai provide access to facilities, personnel and information, such as financial
statements and information in relation to oil reserves, when the Company exercises its option.

Any exercise of the option will be subject to certain conditions (including independent shareholder
approval) as described above. The Company can give no assurance that it will exercise the option (and is
under no obligation to do so), agree the price and other terms at which it may acquire the interest or
receive the relevant approvals or if it does, that it will be able to complete the acquisition.
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PetroKazakhstan

PetroKazakhstan was formed in 1986 and operates in the 80,000 square kilometre South Turgai Basin
in South Central Kazakhstan. PetroKazakhstan has interests in 11 fields; as at 31 December 2004 these
fields contained aggregate estimated proved plus probable oil reserves of 549.8 million barrels.
PetroKazakhstan produced 117 thousand bopd in 2005, 151.1 thousand bopd in 2004 and 151.3 thousand
bopd in 2003. The decline in 2005 production was a result of cut backs initiated in April 2005 in order to
comply with instructions from the MEP to stop gas flaring immediately, in accordance with legislation
passed in December 2004. Its total revenues in 2004 and 2003 were US$1.6 billion and US$1.1 billion,
respectively. NC KMG has recently acquired a 33% stake in PetroKazakhstan for US$1.4 billion from
CNPC.

The Company is aware that NC KMG is prepared to offer its stake (excluding any interest in the
Shymkent refinery) after the Global Offer. The terms of this transaction have yet to be agreed but are
likely to be similar in effect to the terms of the option agreement for KazGerMunai. Any such transaction
will be subject to similar conditions precedent (including independent shareholder approval) as described
above. (See “—Possible Acquisitions—KazGerMunai”).

OPERATIONS
Overview

The Company is the third largest crude oil producer in the Republic of Kazakhstan (based on 2005
data) in terms of current annual production volumes of hydrocarbons (including crude oil). All of the
Company’s crude oil and gas reserves and production-related assets are located onshore in western
Kazakhstan in the Pre-Caspian and Mangistau basins, which have constituted the major oil producing
regions in Kazakhstan throughout the twentieth century. Production from some of the EMG fields, located
in the Pre-Caspian basin, dates back to 1911, but the start of production at the Uzen field, located in the
Mangistau basin, in 1965 marked the beginning of the Company’s predecessor’s large-scale production
activities. The UMG fields together cover an area of 459.8 square kilometres and the EMG fields together
cover an area of 377.6 square kilometres.

The Company conducts its production activities at the UMG fields and EMG fields through its UMG
and EMG production divisions. The UMG and EMG production divisions consist of several oil and gas
production units which carry out production-related activities. There are also well workover units, drilling
units and others.

As of 31 December 2005, the Company’s estimated proved plus probable oil reserves at the UMG
fields were 155.9 million tonnes (1,147.3 million barrels) and the Company’s estimated proved plus
probable oil reserves at the EMG fields were 50.0 million tonnes (367.9 million barrels). The Company
estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that recoverable reserves of gas and gas condensate at the
UMBG fields as of 31 December 2005, were 16.3 billion cubic metres and 1.6 million tonnes (12.7 million
barrels), respectively. GCA has determined that the Company does not have any gas reserves as the
volumes available are not commercially viable.

In 2005, oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields was 6.5 million tonnes
(132.0 thousand bopd) and 2.8 million tonnes (56.3 thousand bopd) respectively. For the five months
ended 31 May 2006, oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields was 2.7 million tonnes and
1.1 million tonnes (132.7 thousand bopd and 55.3 thousand bopd, respectively). In 2005, gas production at
the UMG fields was 812.1 million cubic metres and gas condensate production at the UMG fields was
23.3 thousand tonnes (about 502 bepd). For the five months ended 31 May 2006, gas production at the
UMG fields was 311 million cubic metres and gas condensate production at the UMG fields was
8.4 thousand tonnes (about 439 bepd). See “—Gas Processing Plant” for a description of how this gas is
used.

The Company explores and produces oil and gas at the UMG fields and EMG fields on the basis of
contracts and licences granted by MEMR. As part of these contracts and licences, there are a variety of
taxes, fees and cash royalty payments, including excess profit taxes and social obligations, which the
Company is obliged to pay. See “—Licences and Contracts” for a summary of the key terms of the
Company’s contracts and oil and gas exploration and production licences.

The Company owns and maintains a network of pipelines almost 7,000 km in length together with a
network of waterlines and gas pipelines which are generally in good working condition. Between 1 January
2000 and 31 December 2005, the Company repaired approximately 11% of its field pipelines (which
include oil pipelines, waterlines and gas pipelines).

55



The following map sets forth the location of the principal UMG fields and EMG fields:
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The UMG Fields
The UMG fields are comprised of the following seven fields:
* Uzen (oil and gas);

» Karamandybas (oil and gas);

Zhetybai South (gas and gas condensate);

Tenge West (gas and gas condensate);

Aktas (gas and gas condensate);
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 Tasbulat (gas and gas condensate); and
* EastUzen (gas).

The UMG fields comprised approximately 76% of the Company’s total proved plus probable oil
reserves as of 31 December 2005, with proved plus probable reserves of 155.9 million tonnes
(1,147.3 million barrels) of crude oil. The Company estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that
recoverable reserves of gas and gas condensate at the UMG fields as of 31 December 2005 were
16.3 billion cubic metres and 1.6 million tonnes (about 12.7 million barrels) respectively.

As of 31 December 2005, the UMG fields had 3,615 production wells and 1,244 injection wells.

The following is a summary of the principal characteristics of the UMG fields for 2005. For
production information for the five months ended 31 May 2006, see “—Production—Oil Production”.

Uzen Field

The Uzen field was the third largest oilfield in Kazakhstan in terms of 2005 annual crude oil
production volumes. The Uzen field was discovered in 1961 and has been in production since 1965. It is the
Company’s largest oil field both in terms of crude oil reserves and production volume and, as of
31 December 2005, comprised approximately 73% of the Company’s total proved plus probable oil
reserves and 22% of the Company’s total recoverable gas reserves (according to Kazakhstan methodology).
As at 31 December 2005, GCA estimated that proved plus probable reserves at the Uzen field were
149.6 million tonnes (1,100.8 million barrels) of crude oil. The Company has estimated the field has
reserves of 3,603 million cubic metres of gas (according to Kazakhstan methodology).

Oil production at the Uzen field is from 13 horizons or strata in the Jurassic formation, located at
depths shallower than 1,800 metres. In 2005, the Uzen field produced 6.2 million tonnes of oil
(124.1 thousand bopd) with 3,316 producing wells as at 31 December 2005 and produced 27.4 million cubic
metres of gas. In 2005, the Uzen field comprised 66% of the Company’s total oil production volume and
3% of the Company’s total gas production volume.

Karamandybas Field

The Karamandybas field was discovered in the mid-1960s to the west of the Uzen field. The
Karamandybas field has been producing since 1973. As of 31 December 2005, as estimated by GCA, it
comprised approximately 3% of the Company’s total proved plus probable oil reserves. The Company
estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that, as of 31 December 2005, it comprised 18% of the
Company’s total recoverable gas reserves. As of 31 December 2005, GCA estimated that proved plus
probable reserves at the Karamandybas field were 6.3 million tonnes (46.5 million barrels) of crude oil.
The Company has estimated the field has reserves of 2,951 million cubic metres of gas (according to
Kazakhstan methodology).

Oil production at the Karamandybas field is from nine horizons in the Jurassic formations, located at
depths shallower than 2,200 metres. In 2005, the Karamandybas field produced 394.5 thousand tonnes of
oil (8.0 thousand bopd) from 299 producing wells and produced 30.1 million cubic metres of gas. In 2005,
the Karamandybas field comprised 4.2% of the Company’s total oil production volume and 3.7% of the
Company’s total gas production volume.

Other Gas and Gas Condensate Fields

In addition to the Uzen and Karamandybas oil fields, the UMG fields contain gas and/or gas
condensate reserves at the Zhetybai South, Tenge West, Aktas and Tasbulat and Eastern Uzen fields. The
Company estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that, as of 31 December 2005, these fields comprised
approximately 60% and 100% of the Company’s total gas and gas condensate reserves, respectively. The
Company estimates (using Kazakhstan methodology) that recoverable reserves at these fields were
9.7 billion cubic metres of gas and 1.6 million tonnes (12.7 million barrels) of gas condensate as of
31 December 2005.

In 2005, these fields produced 754.6 million cubic metres of gas and 23.3 thousand tonnes (502 bcpd)
of gas condensate and comprised 93% and 100% of the Company’s total gas and gas condensate
production volumes, respectively.
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The UMG fields also have a gas processing plant with an installed capacity of 1.5 billion cubic metres
of gas and 91.6 thousand tonnes (1.8 thousand bcpd) of gas condensate. See “—Gas Processing Plant” for
a further description of the Company’s gas processing plant.

Technical Information

Treated crude oil extracted from the UMG fields generally has an API gravity of 35-37 degrees and a
sulphur mass fraction percentage of between 0.16% and 0.24%. The Company’s primary benchmark
crudes are Urals Blend (approximately 33 degrees API with 1.25% sulphur), CPC Blend (approximately
42-43 degrees API with 0.5%—0.6% sulphur) and Brent (approximately 38 degrees API and with 0.4%
sulphur). Generally, the Company’s oil has a relatively high water content, or water cut.

Transportation

The Uzen and Karamandybas fields are linked to the UAS pipeline, to the Atyrau Refinery and via the
UAS pipeline to the CPC oil pipeline, and through a network of field pipelines to the Aktau seaport. The
gas and gas condensate fields are linked to the Company’s gas processing plant at Uzen and by gas pipeline
to Aktau. During 2005, approximately 236 kilometres of the field pipelines in the UMG fields were
repaired.

The EMG Fields

The EMG fields comprise a total of 37 oil fields located around the northern and eastern shores of the
Caspian Sea. Thirty-five of the EMG fields are in production and the two remaining fields, the Sagiz and
Tazhigali fields, are shut in due to depletion and sea water flooding. Of the producing EMG fields, the
following eight fields are the largest in terms of reserves as well as in terms of production volume:

* Kenbai (Moldabek East/North Kotyrtas);
» Kamyshitovoye South-West;

e Zaburunye;

e Zhanatalap;

e Nurzhanov;

e Botakhan;

* Makat East; and

» Kamyshitovoye South-East.

The 35 producing EMG fields comprised approximately 24% of the Company’s total proved plus
probable oil reserves as at 31 December 2005, with proved plus probable reserves of 50.0 million tonnes
(367.9 million barrels) of crude oil.

The eight largest EMG fields listed above accounted for approximately 74% of the total proved plus
probable reserves of the EMG fields as of 31 December 2005, and 72% of the total crude oil production at
the EMG fields in 2005.

As at 31 December 2005, the EMG fields comprised 2,175 production wells and 435 injection wells.

The following is summary of principal characteristics of the eight major EMG fields listed above for
2005. For production information for the five months ended 31 May 2006, see “—Production—Oil
Production”.

Kenbai (Moldabek East/North Kotyrtas)

The Kenbai (Moldabek East/North Kotyrtas) field was discovered in 1986 and has been producing
since 1996. As of 31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Kenbai (Moldabek East/
North Kotyrtas) field were 4.6 million tonnes (33.7 million barrels), which accounted for approximately
2.2% of the Company’s total proved plus probable oil reserves. Production is from 15 horizons in the
Cretaceous, Jurassic and Triassic formations, located at depths shallower than 1,900 metres. In 2005, the
Kenbai (Moldabek East/North Kotyrtas) field produced 422 thousand tonnes of oil (8.5 thousand bopd), or
4.5% of the Company’s total oil production, from 327 producing wells.
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Kamyshitovoye South-West

The Kamyshitovoye South-West field was discovered in 1967 and has been producing since 1972. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Kamyshitovoye South-West field were
6.4 million tonnes (47.3 million barrels), which accounted for approximately 3% of the Company’s total
proved plus probable oil reserves. Production is from seven horizons in the Cretaceous, Jurassic and
Permotriassic formations, located at depths shallower than 850 metres. In 2005, the Kamyshitovoye
South-West field produced 240 thousand tonnes of oil (4.8 thousand bopd), or 2.6% of the Company’s total
oil production, from 185 producing wells.

Zaburunye

The Zaburunye field was discovered in 1982 and has been producing since 1989. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Zaburunye field were 3.7 million tonnes
(27.4 million barrels), which accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Company’s total proved plus
probable oil reserves. Production is from three horizons in the Cretaceous formation, located at depths
shallower than 920 metres. In 2005, the Zaburunye field produced 203 thousand tonnes of oil
(4.1 thousand bopd), or 2.2% of the Company’s total oil production, from 80 producing wells.

Zhanatalap

The Zhanatalap field was discovered in 1968 and has been producing since 1974. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Zhanatalap field were 4.4 million tonnes
(32.4 million barrels) of crude oil, which accounted for approximately 2.1% of the Company’s total proved
plus probable oil reserves. Production is from seven horizons in the Jurassic and Permotriassic formations,
located at depths shallower than 1,200 metres. In 2005, the Zhanatalap field produced 168
thousand tonnes of oil (3.4 thousand bopd), or 1.8% of the Company’s total oil production, from
76 producing wells.

Nurzhanov

The Nurzhanov field was discovered in 1964 and has been producing since 1967. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Nurzhanov field were 8.2 million tonnes
(60.6 million barrels), which accounted for approximately 4% of the Company’s total proved plus probable
oil reserves. Production is from nine horizons in the Cretaceous, Jurassic and Triassic formations, located
at depths shallower than 3,320 metres. In 2005, the Nurzhanov field produced 377 thousand tonnes of oil
(7.6 thousand bopd), or 4% of the Company’s total oil production, from 136 producing wells. The
Nurzhanov field also includes the West field of Central-East Prorva.

Botakhan

The Botakhan field was discovered in 1980 and has been producing since 1981. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the Botakhan field were 2.7 million tonnes
(20.0 million barrels), which accounted for approximately 1.3% of the Company’s total proved plus
probable oil reserves. Production is from two horizons in the Jurassic formation, located at depths
shallower than 1,400 metres. In 2005, the Botakhan field produced 229 thousand tonnes of oil
(4.6 thousand bopd), or 2.5% of the Company’s total oil production, from 102 producing wells.

Makat East

The Makat East field was discovered in 1988 and has been producing since 1993. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable reserves at the Makat East field were 4.0 million tonnes
(29.2 million barrels) of crude oil, which accounted for approximately 1.9% of the Company’s total proved
plus probable oil reserves. Production is from six horizons in the Cretaceous, Jurassic and Permotriassic
formations, located at depths shallower than 1,350 metres. In 2005, the Makat East field produced
225 thousand tonnes of oil (4.5 thousand bopd), or 2.4% of the Company’s total oil production, from
52 producing wells.

Kamyshitovoye South-East

The Kamyshitovoye South-East field was discovered in 1982 and has been producing since 1987. As of
31 December 2005, proved plus probable reserves at the Kamyshitovoye South-East field were 3.0 million
tonnes (22.0 million barrels), which accounted for approximately 1.5% of the Company’s total proved plus
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probable oil reserves. Production is from four horizons in the Cretaceous and Jurassic formations, located
at depths shallower than 650 metres. In 2005, the Kamyshitovoye South-East field produced
146 thousand tonnes of oil (3.0 thousand bopd), or 1.6% of the Company’s total oil production, from
70 producing wells.

Technical Information

Treated crude oil extracted from the EMG fields generally has an API gravity of 22 to 45 degrees and
a sulphur mass fraction percentage of between 0.01% and 1.38%. Generally, the Company’s oil tends to
have a relatively high water content, or water cut. The Company’s primary benchmark crudes are CPC
Blend (approximately 42-43 degrees API and with 0.5%—0.6% sulphur) and Urals Blend (approximately
33 degrees API with 1.25% sulphur) and Brent (approximately 38 degrees API and with 0.4% sulphur).

Transportation

The EMG fields are linked through a network of field pipelines to the UAS pipeline (giving access to
the Atyrau Refinery) and to the CPC oil pipeline (via the UAS pipeline). During 2005, approximately
107 kilometres of the field pipelines in the EMG fields were repaired.

Company’s Reserves

As of 31 December 2005, proved plus probable oil reserves at the UMG fields were 155.9 million
tonnes (about 1,147.3 million barrels), proved plus probable oil reserves at the EMG fields were
50.0 million tonnes (about 367.9 million barrels). The Company estimates (using Kazakhstan
methodology) that recoverable reserves of gas and gas condensate at the UMG fields were 16.3 billion
cubic metres of gas and 1.6 million tonnes (12.7 million barrels), respectively.

Oil Reserves

The Company’s proved, probable and possible oil reserves at the UMG fields and the EMG fields as
of 31 December 2005 are set forth in the table below:

Proved plus Proved plus
Proved plus Probable Proved plus Probable
Proved Probable plus Possible  Proved Probable plus Possible
(million tonnes) (million barrels)
UMG Fields
Uzen.................. 63.4 149.6 225.4 466.3 1100.8 1659.3
Karamandybas . . ... ...... 33 6.3 9.2 24.6 46.5 67.6
Total UMG Fields ........ 66.7 155.9 234.6 490.9 1147.3 1726.9
EMG Fields
Kenbai (East Moldabek/

North Kotyrtas) ........ 2.2 4.6 8.8 16.0 33.7 65.1
Kamyshitovoye SW .. ..... 2.1 6.4 7.3 15.7 47.3 53.8
Zaburunye. ............. 1.4 3.7 4.6 10.5 27.4 33.7
Zhanatalap ............. 1.4 44 5.6 10.3 324 41.1
Nurzhanov.............. 3.8 8.2 9.5 28.3 60.6 69.7
Botakhan .............. 1.0 2.7 33 7.6 20.0 24.1
Makat East . ............ 1.5 4.0 5.4 11.4 29.2 39.4
Kamyshitovoye SE . . ... ... 1.1 3.0 39 7.8 22.0 28.8
Other EMG fields ........ 5.4 12.9 17.6 39.9 95.3 129.5
Total EMG Fields ........ 20.1 50.0 65.9 147.6 367.9 485.2
Total UMG fields and EMG

fields . ............... 86.8 205.9 300.6 638.5 1515.2 22121
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Based on current 2005 production levels, and as at 31 December 2005, the remaining proved plus
probable oil reserve life of the UMG fields is 24 years and of the EMG fields is 18 years.

For a discussion of the assumptions used by GCA in the preparation of the reserve information, see
the GCA Report. For a description of the UMG fields and EMG fields see “—Exploration and
Production—Overview”. For a description of the resources classification used in Kazakhstan, see
“Regional Overview of the Oil and Gas Industry—Resource Classifications”.

Gas and Gas Condensate Reserves

The Company’s estimates according to Kazakhstan methodology of gas and gas condensate reserves at
the UMG fields, as of 31 December 2005, are set forth in the table below. GCA has determined, on the
basis of SPE/WPC methodology, that the Company does not have any gas reserves as the volumes available
are not commercially viable.

Gas condensate  Gas condensate

Gas reserves reserves reserves

(million cubic metres) (million (million

tonnes) barrels)

UMG Fields

Uzen . . ... 3,603 0.0 0.0
Karamandybas . ........ ... ... ... ... ... 2,951 0.0 0.0
Zhetybai South . ....... ... ... ... ... ... 3,275 1.1 9.0
Tenge West .. ... 3,517 0.3 24
AKtas ... 638 0.0 0.2
Tasbulat. . .......... ... ... . .. . .. ... 2,035 0.1 1.1
East Uzen .......... ... ... . .. .. ... 247 0.0 0.0
Total . . ... ... ... . . ... 16,266 1.6 12.7

The Company does not produce gas or gas condensate at the EMG fields for external consumption.
Based on current production levels, the Company estimates (based upon Kazakhstan methodology) that,
as of 31 December 2005, the average remaining period of exploitation of the UMG gas fields is 20 years.

Production
Oil Production

The Company is the third largest crude oil producer in the Republic of Kazakhstan (based on 2005
data) in terms of annual crude oil production volumes. Oil production at the UMG fields and EMG fields
in 2005 was 9.3 million tonnes (188 thousand bopd), which represents a 5% increase compared to 2004 and
during the five months ended 31 May 2006 was 3.9 million tonnes (188 thousand bopd), which represents a
2% increase compared to the same period in 2005. As the UMG fields and EMG fields are at a late stage
of their development, the Company has reached its current production levels by carrying out various field
development and rehabilitation projects, which include drilling and completing new wells, completing well
workovers and introducing various secondary, enhanced recovery and well stimulation techniques, which
are described below under “—Oil Field Development and Rehabilitation”.
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The following tables set forth certain data regarding crude oil production for the periods specified for
the UMG fields and EMG fields:

For the five months ended 31 May

2006 2005 2006 2005

Wlillion tonne? (thousand bopd)
UMG Fields
Uzen ... 2.6 2.5 124.6 122.7
Karamandybas .................. ... 0.2 0.1 8.2 7.3
Total UMG Fields .................. 2.7 2.7 132.7 130.0
EMG Fields
Kenbai (East Moldabek/North Kotyrtas) . . 0.2 0.2 8.7 79
Kamyshitovoye SW .. ..... ... ... ... 0.1 0.1 4.7 4.8
Zaburunye . .. ...... ..o 0.1 0.1 4.0 4.1
Zhanatalap. . ........... ... ... .... 0.1 0.1 33 33
Nurzhanov . ........ ... ... ... . ... 0.2 0.2 7.6 7.4
Botakhan . ......... ... ... ... ... 0.1 0.1 4.6 4.6
Makat East . ....... ... ... ....... 0.1 0.1 4.4 4.5
Kamyshitovoye SE .. ................ 0.1 0.1 2.8 2.9
Other EMG fields .................. 0.3 0.3 15.2 15.2
Total EMG Fields. . . ................ 1.1 1.1 55.3 54.7
TotalD . ... ... ... ... ... 3.9 3.8 188.0 184.7

(1) Production amounts are calculated before losses, which generally are less than 1%.

For the year ended 31 December

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Tnillion tonne? (thousand bopd)
UMG Fields
Uzen ... ... 62 58 5.0 124.1 116.6 100.2
Karamandybas .......... ... ... ... . ... 04 04 03 8.0 8.0 5.7
Total UMG Fields . . . ..................... 65 62 53 132.0 124.5 105.9
EMG Fields
Kenbai (East Moldabek/North Kotyrtas) . ....... 04 04 03 8.5 8.3 6.8
Kamyshitovoye SW ... ... ... ... ... . ... 02 02 02 4.8 4.8 4.7
Zaburunye .. ... ... 02 02 02 4.1 4.1 4.1
Zhanatalap . . ....... ... ... L 02 02 02 34 3.1 3.1
Nurzhanov .............. ... ... ... ..... 04 03 03 7.6 7.0 6.9
Botakhan .......... ... ... ... L L, 02 02 02 4.6 4.6 4.6
Makat East. . ........ .. ... ... ... . ... 02 02 02 4.5 4.5 4.5
Kamyshitovoye SE. . . ... ... ... ... . ... 0.1 01 0.1 3.0 3.0 3.0
Other EMG fields . . . ..................... 08 08 08 15.8 15.4 15.4
Total EMG Fields . .. ..................... 28 27 26 56.3 54.7 53.0
TotalD ... ... ... 93 89 79 188.3 179.3 158.9

(1) Production amounts are calculated before losses, which generally are less than 1%.
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Gas and Gas Condensate Production

In 2005, the Company extracted 812.1 million cubic metres of gas at the UMG fields. The following
table sets forth certain data regarding gas production at the UMG fields for the periods indicated:

For the five

months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(million cubic metres)
Uzen. ... ... 8.6 12.1 27.4 37.6 47.9
Karamandybas . . ........ ... ... .. .. 13.4 10.2 30.1 26.9 38.4
Zhetybai South . ...... ... ... ... ... . ... 2443 263.1 632.3 674.4 717.9
Tenge West . .. ... 27.6 321 77.1 86.5 85.1
AKLaS .« .. 3.5 4.2 9.7 10.9 11.4
Tasbulat . ..... ... ... . .. 13.6 15.4 35.6 40.3 39.7
East Uzen .. ..... ... ... ... . ... 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.6 12.2
Total) . .. ... . 311.0 337.1 812.1 881.2 952.6

(1) Production amounts are calculated before losses, which generally are less than 1%.

The following tables set forth certain data regarding gas condensate production at the UMG fields for
the periods indicated:

For the five months ended 31 May

2006 2005 2006 2005

(thousand tonnes) S (bcpd) S

Uzen . ... ... . . e 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Karamandybas. . ........ ... ... ... ... 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Zhetybai South . ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... 5.7 6.7 296.4 346.7
Tenge West . ... ... o il 1.7 2.0 86.8 106.5
AKtas . ... 0.1 0.1 5.8 7.2
Tasbulat . ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 1.0 1.0 50.6 50.5
East Uzen........... ... ... ........... 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total® . ... ... .. .. ... ... 8.4 9.8 439.6 511.0

(1) Production amounts are calculated before losses, which generally are less than 1%.

For the year ended 31 December
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

(thousand tonnes) (bcpd)
Uzen . ..o e 0 0 0 0 0 0
Karamandybas . ....... ... ... .. .. . . 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhetybai South . . . ... .. .. .. 15.8 179 21.3 340.7 385.7 458.2
Tenge West . .. .o 48 52 43 1035 1120 922
AKLaS . . .. e 03 03 03 6.5 7.1 6.7
Tasbulat . ......... .. . . . 24 27 21 517 587 46.0
East Uzen ... ....... . .. ... i, 0 0 0 0 0 0
TotalD . .. .. 233 261 28.0 5024 563.6 603.1

(1) Production amounts are calculated before losses, which generally are less than 1%.

All gas and gas condensate from production at the UMG fields is sent to the gas processing plant. See
“—~Gas Processing Plant.”

In 2005, the Company extracted 261.9 million cubic metres of associated gas at the UMG fields. Of
this, 160.1 million cubic metres (approximately 61%) were used for the internal needs of the UMG fields
and the remainder was sent to the Company’s gas processing plant for processing. See “—Gas Processing
Plant” for a description of the Company’s gas processing plant. The Company also produces approximately
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168.4 million cubic metres per year of associated gas at the EMG fields, which is used to satisfy its internal
needs. Gas utilised for internal needs is used to heat the oil contained in the Company’s pipelines because
the Company’s oil generally solidifies at temperatures below 35 degrees Celsius due to its paraffinic nature.

Qil Field Development and Rehabilitation
General

The overall level of the Company’s oil production from its existing fields has been and will continue to
be affected by several key factors, including the relative age of the Company’s fields and, to a lesser degree,
the characteristics of the Company’s oil and the complex geological formations of the Company’s
reservoirs. The Uzen field, one of the UMG fields, is the Company’s largest field in terms of crude oil
reserves and current production volumes, has been developed since 1965 and is now in a late stage of
development. The Uzen field and several of the EMG fields with the largest reserves and production
volumes, including Kenbai (the East Moldabek and North Kotyrtas areas) and Kamyshitovoye SE, contain
highly paraffinic oil within shallow, low permeability formations. Oil from the EMG fields also tends to
have a high water content, or water cut. Taken together, these factors make the Company’s oil difficult
to extract. However, the Company’s long production history has provided it with a comprehensive
understanding of the geology of its fields and it has benefited from the relatively shallow depths of its
reservoirs and the onshore location of its reserves.

Following a period of underinvestment in the Company’s oil production operations, the Company
began during the mid-1990s taking steps to sustain and increase its oil production levels and to optimise its
recovery from the Company’s existing well stock. In addition to completing well workovers, these steps
initially included drilling new wells, which included both injection wells, which are used to pump water and
other agents into reservoirs to maintain pressure and enhance oil recovery, and production wells, which are
used to extract oil and gas. More recently, the Company began applying a wide variety of field
development and rehabilitation techniques, including secondary, enhanced recovery and well stimulation
techniques, such as hydro-fracturing and various chemical and thermal methods. The Company does this
to meet its strategic objective of sustaining its current production levels.

In 1997, the Company commenced its first major project utilising secondary and enhanced recovery
and well stimulation techniques with the start of the Uzen Rehabilitation Project. This project is described
under “—Uzen Field Rehabilitation Project”.

The Company uses third party contractors as well as its own subsidiaries to perform secondary,
enhanced recovery or well stimulation techniques at the UMG fields and EMG fields. Since 2004, the
Company has engaged external consultants to commission more sophisticated geological models which will
help the Company better to assess the Company’s reserves and production and exploration plan. Some
models are still in the process of development: this process is expected to be finished in 2007.

During the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2005, the Company estimates that the total
incremental increase in oil production attributable to hydrofracturing and well workovers was 2.1 million
tonnes at the UMG fields and 267 thousand tonnes at the EMG fields. Of the total incremental increase
between 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2005, the Company estimates that approximately 1.2 million
tonnes (9.1 million barrels), or 71% of this total increase, is attributable to the use of hydro-fracturing as
the increase was measured following the initial application of the hydro-fracturing technique.

Incremental increase in production from its use of enhanced recovery and well stimulation techniques
was 1.7 million tonnes (12.7 million barrels) at the UMG fields and the EMG fields combined, which
translates to an average incremental increase in production of 4 tonnes per day (29.4 bopd) per well.

To carry out its oil field development and rehabilitation projects, the Company has increased the level
of its related capital and operating expenditures substantially from those in the year ended 31 December
2003 to those in the year ended 31 December 2005. For a description of the Company’s capital
expenditures and commitments, see “Operating and Financial Review—Liquidity and Capital Resources—
Capital Expenditures and Commitments”.
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The following tables set forth the principal activities of the Company’s oil field rehabilitation and
development projects for the periods specified at the UMG fields and EMG fields and the related
incremental increase in production that the Company has achieved as a result of these activities.

1 January 2003 to 31 December 2005

Incremental Incremental
Increase in Increase in
Production at Production at
UMG Fields UMG Fields EMG Fields EMG Fields

(number of wells)  (thousand tonnes) (number of wells) (thousand tonnes)

Wells where hydro-fracturing

applied . . ......... ... . ... 523 1,228.0 21 3.2
Well workovers. . ............. 2,814 896.3 825 263.8
Total incremental increase . . . . . .. 2,124.3 267.0
New wells drilled:

Production wells . ........... 239 649.3 258 260.9

Injectionwells. . . ........... 78 0.0 53 0.0

Total new wells drilled . . . ... .. 317 649.3 311 260.9

1 January 2006 to 31 May 2006
Incremental Incremental
Increase in Increase in
Production at Production at
UMG Fields UMG Fields EMG Fields EMG Fields

(number of wells)  (thousand tonnes) (number of wells)  (thousand tonnes)

Wells where hydro-fracturing

applied . . ........ . ... .. 74 57.9 0.0 0.0
Well workovers. . ............. 447 77.3 113 Q
Total incremental increase . . . .. .. 135.2 ﬂ

New wells drilled:

Productionwells . ........... 36 34.3 34 6.3
Injectionwells . . ............ 12 0.0 4 0.0
Total new wells drilled . . . ... .. 48 34.3 38 6.3

In 2006, the Company expects to drill a total of 220 new wells at the UMG fields and EMG fields, of
which 172 will be production wells and 48 will be injection wells.

From 1 January 2001 to 31 May 2006, the total number of the Company’s active production wells
increased from 4,625 to 5,727, or by 24%, and the total number of its active injection wells increased from
996 to 1,653, or by 66%. During the same period, the total number of the Company’s non-active
production wells decreased from 682 to 86, or by 87% and the total number of its non-active injection wells
decreased from 569 to 44, or by 92%.

Uzen Rehabilitation Project

In 1997, the Company commenced a major project to rehabilitate a section of the Uzen field called
the 3A block. Located in the centre of the Uzen field, the 3A block accounts for approximately 8.8% of the
total area of the Uzen field.

The key objective of the project was to double production from the 3A block by performing well
workovers and applying secondary and enhanced recovery and well stimulation techniques, and to provide
a case study for training the Company’s personnel in best practice field and reservoir management
techniques that can be applied across the whole of the Uzen field and to other fields in the
Company’s portfolio.

The total cost of the project is approximately US$151.0 million, which is being partially financed with
a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“IBRD”) in the amount of
US$109.0 million. The remainder was financed from the Company’s own funds.
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The project is expected to be completed in December 2006 and nearly all of its principal objectives
have already been achieved, including the doubling of production from the 3A block, which increased to
725.2 thousand tonnes in 2005 from 344.0 thousand tonnes in 2000.

Gas Processing Plant

The Company owns and operates a gas processing plant located at Uzen, which is in the Mangistau
region of western Kazakhstan that treats all gas and gas condensate produced at the UMG fields. The gas
processing plant also treats gas and gas condensate produced by third parties in the region. The plant has a
capacity of 1.5 billion cubic metres and produces LPGs, pentane, hexane, heating oil and dry gas. In 2005,
revenue earned from the sale of processed gas accounted for approximately 1% of the Company’s total
consolidated revenue.

The following table shows total gas and gas condensate accepted for processing and the volumes
produced by product for the periods indicated.

For the five months For the year ended
ended 31 May 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

Gas accepted for processing:
Gas from UMG and third parties (in millions of cubic

MELIes) . . ..ottt 320.8 362.1 910.9 977.8 1,009.1
Associated gas from UMG and third parties (in millions

of cubicmetres). .. ........ .. .. 66.1 76.0 2042 176.6 125.5
Gas condensate from UMG (in thousands of tonnes) . .. 8.4 9.8 233 261 28.0
Volumes produced:
LPGs (in thousands of tonnes) . . .................. 38.0 40.1 107.3  100.0 77.1
Pentane and hexane (in thousands of tonnes) ......... 19.2 19.9 509 541 46.4
Heating oil (in thousands of tonnes)................ 2.6 35 8.4 93 10.6
Dry gas (in millions of cubic metres) ............... 290.3 329.8 825.7 895.5 939.1

Products produced by the gas processing plant are sold domestically. Dry gas and LPGs are sold in
Kazakhstan at regulated prices pursuant to the anti-monopoly law and other gas products are sold at
market prices. Approximately 90% of the dry gas produced is sold to an electric power utility in the
Mangistau region in exchange for the provision of electricity to the Company. The regulated tariff charged
by the electric power utility is shown in operating expenses and a similar value is shown in revenue.

CRUDE OIL TRANSPORTATION
Overview

The crude oil produced by the Company is transported via infrastructure owned or operated by third
parties. Kazakhstan has no direct access to the open sea, and crude oil must be exported using routes
through other countries.

Transportation routes for the export of hydrocarbons by the Company and other oil and gas producers
in Kazakhstan are important because of the country’s land-locked position. In particular, Kazakhstan is
heavily dependent upon Russia’s transportation infrastructure for export routes. Crude oil is exported from
Kazakhstan through pipelines and railways and across the Caspian Sea and currently the Company
transports crude oil through the territory of Russia to the Black Sea ports. Therefore, the Company
substantially depends on the intergovernmental agreement on oil transportation executed between
Kazakhstan and Russia. Any restrictions or termination of access to the existing pipelines caused by any
serious malfunctions, political events or force majeure circumstances would require the suspension of the
Company’s oil deliveries and cause severe disruption to the production process.

The Company’s oil production is presently transported through the following routes:
* through the Uzen-Atyrau segment of the UAS pipeline to the Atyrau Refinery;

e through the UAS pipeline and further either through the Russian Transneft transportation system
to seaports on the Black Sea or through the Druzhba pipeline to Baltic seaports and eastern and
central Europe; and

* through the CPC pipeline in both Kazakhstan and Russia to the seaport at Novorossiysk, Russia.
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The following map details existing and planned major pipeline routes in Kazakhstan and neighbouring
countries:
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The Kazakhstan segment of the UAS pipeline is owned and operated by KTO, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NC KMG and is approximately 1,500 kilometres (approximately 932 miles) in length. The
UAS pipeline system as a whole runs from Uzen in southwestern Kazakhstan to Atyrau and then to the
Kazakhstan/Russia border and into Russia, where it links with Russia’s Transneft system at Samara for
crude oil export to Black Sea ports, or through the Druzhba pipeline to Baltic ports and central and
eastern Europe.

The CPC owns, operates and maintains a 1,510 kilometre (approximately 938 mile) pipeline system
(including storage and loading facilities) that connects oil fields in western Kazakhstan to the Russian coast
of the Black Sea at the Novorossiysk seaport. The CPC pipeline, which has been operational since 2001,
represents a major additional export route and is the first major pipeline passing through Russian territory
not owned by the Russian pipeline operator, Transneft.

In 2005, the Company exported 6.5 million tonnes (131 thousand bopd) of crude oil, which
represented approximately 69% of the Company’s crude oil production for 2005. For the five months
ended 31 May 2006, the Company exported 2.7 million tonnes of crude oil (54 thousand bopd), which
represents approximately 72% of the Company’s crude oil production for that period.
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The tables below provides a summary of the Company’s exports by region and deliveries to
Kazakhstan oil refineries for the periods indicated.

For the five

months ended For the year ended

31 May 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

(million tonnes, except percentages)
Percentage of total production exported. . ........... 72% 1% 69% 74% 74%
UAS Pipeline: . ....... ... 3.3 3.1 7.7 7.7 7.2
Odessa . . oot 2.2 2.1 4.8 4.9 3.7
Primorsk ........ .. .. . .. .. — — — — 0.8
Yuzhny. . ... — — — — 0.08
Buting . ... . — — 0.2 — —
Central Europe . . .. ... ... i — — — — 0.03
CIS . e — — — 0.7 0.8
Atyrau Refinery . ........ ... ... .. . .. .. ... 1.1 1.0 2.6 2.1 1.8
Shymkent Refinery . ............ ... ... ..... — — 0.1 — —
CPC Pipeline: . ........... . ... 0.6 0.6 1.5 1.0 0.4
Novorossiysk. . . . ..o 0.6 0.6 1.5 1.0 0.4
Total sales . . ......... ... .. .. .. ..., 3.9 3.7 9.2 8.7 7.6

The following table shows the Company’s sales volumes and realised prices for the periods indicated:
For the five months ended
31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(KZT thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Export sales of crude oil
UAS pipeline

Netsales . .................... 114,373,572 79,441,685 224,556,207 170,081,382 134,273,449
Volume (in thousand tonnes) . .. ... 2,179 2,062 4,953 5,658 5,397
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ...... 52,489 38,527 45,337 30,060 24,879
Average price (US$/bbl)D) .. ... ... 56.47 40.77 4719 30.56 23.01
CPC pipeline
Netsales .. ..., 35,913,149 25,249,197 75,474,091 32,978,225 11,894,210
Volume (in thousand tonnes) . .. ... 614 619 1,536 967 424
Average price (KZT/tonne) ....... 58,490 40,790 49,137 34,104 28,052
Average price (US$/bbl)@ .. ... ... 58.40 40.06 47.47 32.18 24.07
Total sales of crude oil—exported. . . . . 150,286,721 104,690,882 300,030,298 203,059,607 146,167,659

Other sales of oil and oil products
Net domestic sales of crude oil and

total oil products . ............ 17,206,377 14,332,767 40,394,425 25,374,080 26,142,775
Volume (in thousand tonnes)® . . . .. 1,080 1,060 2,733 2,106 1,822
Average price (KZT/tonne) ....... 15,932 13,521 14,780 12,048 14,348
Average price (US$/bbl)® .. ... ... 17.14 14.31 15.38 12.25 13.27

Total domestic sales of crude oil and
total oil product sales . . .......... 17,206,377 14,332,767 40,394,425 25,374,080 26,142,775

Total sales of oil and oil products
Total net sales of crude oil and

oil products . . ................. 167,493,098 119,023,649 340,424,723 228,433,687 172,310,434
Total volume (in thousand tonnes) . . .. 3,873 3,741 9,222 8,731 7,643
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ........ 43,246 31,816 36,914 26,164 22,545
Average price (US$/bbl) . .......... 45.96 33.24 37.93 26.37 20.76
Othersales . .................... 3,231,363 2,732,512 6,004,722 8,669,531 5,446,939
Total revenue . .................. 170,724,461 121,756,161 346,429,445 237,103,218 177,757,373

(1) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne.
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(2) Converted at 7.79 barrels per tonne.
(3) Volume of crude oil delivered for processing and crude oil sales.

(4) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne.

UAS Pipeline

The UAS pipeline is the Company’s principal export pipeline. UAS has an annual capacity of
approximately 15.0 million tonnes of crude oil, and this capacity is currently fully utilised by the Company
and other oil producers.

The Company has entered into a contract with KTO that contractually guarantees its right to ship
specified minimum volumes of crude oil, subject to MEMR quotas, through the UAS pipeline until the end
of 2012 on terms at least equal to those offered to third parties. The Company is obliged to ship through
the Atyrau-Samara segment of the UAS pipeline at least the following specified minimum volumes of oil
approved by MEMR (as described below):

For the year ended 31 December
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

(million tonnes)

Minimum Volumes . .. ................... 5.6 5.6 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.0

After 2012, the Company will seek to rely on the undertakings of NC KMG in respect of the UAS
pipeline under the Services Agreement. See “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and
Related Party Transactions—Services Agreement” for information regarding the Services Agreement.

In 2005, the Company exported approximately 5.0 million tonnes of crude oil (99.9 thousand bopd), or
76% of the Company’s export production, through the UAS pipeline. For 2005, this constituted 33% of the
capacity of the pipeline. In the five-month period ending 31 May 2006, the Company shipped
approximately 2.2 million tonnes of oil (44.4 thousand bopd), or 78% of the Company’s export production,
through the UAS pipeline.

The Company is not restricted to the minimum volumes specified above. During the period from 2003
to 2005, larger volumes requested by the Company have all been approved by MEMR.

By the end of August of each year, in order for the oil transportation quotas to be finalised, the
Company submits to KTO and MEMR its forecast of the volume of oil that it intends to ship through the
UAS pipeline for the following year. No later than 15 days before the beginning of each month of that
following year, MEMR draws up the oil delivery schedule for that month and sends it to KTO to be put
into effect. The volume of oil transported by the Company for such month cannot exceed the volume set
out in this schedule. In addition, with respect to export shipments through the Atyrau-Samara segment of
the pipeline, MEMR also must give consideration to the provisions of an intergovernmental agreement
signed in June 2002 between Kazakhstan and Russia, which expires in 2017. This agreement guarantees
transit of at least 17.5 million tonnes of Kazakhstan oil via the Russian Transneft pipeline system per year,
of which 15.0 million tonnes are allocated to oil from the UAS pipeline and 2.5 million tonnes to oil from
the Makhachkala-Tikhoretzk pipeline, which the Company does not use. The transit quota is determined
annually at the end of each year with a quarterly breakdown by MEMR.

Under the Company’s contract with KTO, if the Company ships through the Atyrau-Samara segment
of the pipeline less than the minimum specified volume in a given month, the Company is entitled to make
up for the shortfall by shipping additional volumes in the next month, which cannot exceed 5% of the
previous month’s declared minimum volume. If the Company fails to deliver the minimum specified
volume for three consecutive months, the Company is obliged to pay KTO for lost tariffs for the volumes
committed but not delivered. In addition, if the Company’s failure to ship the volume specified in the
monthly schedule causes a suspension in the pipeline system, the Company would be assessed an
additional penalty equal to 20% of the established tariff for the shortfall. However, the Company is not
required to pay any penalties under the contract if the volume approved by MEMR is less than the
minimum amount specified in the contract. Historically, although the Company has not always delivered
the specified minimum volumes under its contract with KTO, the smaller volumes which it has delivered
have always been approved by MEMR, and accordingly, no penalties have been payable by the Company.

KTO, which is classified as a natural monopoly in Kazakhstan, charges the Company accordingly a flat
tariff for shipments through the UAS pipeline. The amount of the tariff is approved by the Antimonopoly
Agency and is based primarily on KTO’s costs for maintaining and operating the pipeline. KTO can apply
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to the Antimonopoly Agency up to twice annually for a revision of the tariff in accordance with the
methodology approved by that agency, but in practice it has revised the tariff only annually. There is no
quality bank adjustment mechanism for shipments through the UAS pipeline or the Transneft pipeline
system (as opposed to the CPC pipeline: see “—CPC Pipeline”). As of 31 May 2006, the weighted average
KTO tariff from pumping stations (Uzen, Prorva, etc) to Samara was KZT2,700 per tonne.

Tariffs for the transportation of crude oil via the Transneft pipeline are set by the Russian Federation’s
Federal Service on Tariffs. As of 31 May 20006, the Transneft tariff through Russia was US$7.96 per tonne,
and the tariff for transportation through Ukraine and loading at the port of Odessa was
US$12.60 per tonne.

KTO is currently in negotiations with Transneft to increase the capacity of the UAS pipeline from its
current 15.0 million tonnes per year to up to 25.0 million tonnes per year and has completed a feasibility
study with respect to the portion of the UAS pipeline located in Kazakhstan. The Company’s contract with
KTO does not grant the Company a priority right for any additional capacity in the pipeline that may
become available if the pipeline capacity is increased in this or any other manner.

Under the Services Agreement, NC KMG must procure, in respect of itself, and must use all
reasonable endeavours to procure, in respect of any act required of any third party, that (i) KTO will
continue to provide the Company with transportation facilities as provided in the Agreement on Rendering
Services of Crude Oil Transportation between the Company and KTO dated 10 September 2004
(the “KTO Transportation Agreement”) and the Company will provide the volume of crude oil for
transportation and make payments as provided in the KTO Transportation Agreement; (ii) after the
expiration of the KTO Transportation Agreement, KTO will allocate to the Group at the relevant time oil
transportation capacity on terms no less adverse than those offered to other users provided that KTO may
give a preferential right of first refusal to users which are in compliance with their contractual obligations
to KTO; and (iii) the transportation of resources of the Company through the UAS pipeline is envisaged in
the volumes agreed between the Company and KTO in accordance with the KTO Transportation
Agreement with the presentation by the Company of guarantees for the volumes applied for.

CPC Pipeline

The CPC pipeline has annual capacity of approximately 28.2 million tonnes. In 2005, the Company
exported approximately 1.5 million tonnes (30 thousand bopd) through the CPC pipeline or 24.0% of the
Company’s total crude oil exports. For 2005, this constituted 5.4% of the capacity of the CPC pipeline. In
first five months of 2006, the Company transported approximately 0.6 million tonnes (12 thousand bopd)
or 22% of the Company’s total crude oil exports.

Only CPC shareholders have access rights to capacity in the CPC pipeline. Such access rights are of
two types: “preferential capacity rights” to specified amounts of capacity, and “excess capacity rights”,
which are rights to use pipeline capacity not being used by other CPC shareholders.

The Government has a 19% ownership interest in CPC, held by NC KMG. Another shareholder in
CPC is Kazakhstan Pipeline Venture (“KPV”), which owns 1.75% of the shares of CPC. KPV is a joint
venture between NC KMG and BP plc in which NC KMG has a 51% stake. Therefore, in addition to the
19% of CPC which NC KMG holds on behalf of the Government, NC KMG has an indirect 0.8925%
interest in CPC.

A shareholder of CPC can transfer to its “affiliated shipper” all or some portion of the capacity rights
which it holds. Under the CPC shareholders agreement, an “affiliated shipper” is defined to include any
affiliate, subsidiary or joint venture in which the ultimate parent of a shareholder of CPC has a direct or
indirect interest. Affiliated shippers then enter into an identical contract with each of CPC-R and CPC-K,
the legal entities that own CPC pipeline assets in Russia and Kazakhstan, respectively.

NC KMG transferred certain capacity rights to EMG as its “affiliated shipper” and in April 2003,
EMG entered into contracts with CPC-R and CPC-K, which the Company assumed in the merger of EMG
and UMG in March 2004. The Company is therefore currently one of the designated affiliated shippers of
NC KMG in respect of the capacity rights of NC KMG to capacity in the CPC pipeline. The contracts
remain in force until 31 December 2008 and then automatically renew or are renegotiated for successive
one-year terms unless terminated by the Company giving 90 days’ advance notice subject to contractual
terms and conditions.

Two months before the planned shipment, each shipper provides CPC with a flexible six-month plan
for deliveries of oil, which is fixed on a monthly basis. By the first day of the month preceding that in which
the delivery is planned, CPC advises each shipper whether its applications for each month in the following
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six-month period are accepted in full or partially as a prorated allocation for the six-month period. The
determination of CPC will form the definitive transportation schedule.

Tariffs are set by the CPC shareholders. The CPC pipeline provides for the transportation of crude oil
of varying quality and market value for export to international markets as a common blend, referred to as
“CPC Blend.” CPC charges shippers a transportation tariff based on the quantity of CPC Blend delivered.
Under the shipment contracts with the CPC, all shippers are required to participate in a quality bank
settlement procedure. The procedure provides for monetary adjustments between shippers to equitably
compensate for differences in the relative value of each shipper’s crude oil injected into the pipeline arising
from differences in the qualities of crude oil received into and delivered from the CPC system as
CPC Blend. Because the crude oil produced from the Company’s fields has a lower API gravity than crude
oil from other fields, the Company is a net payer to the CPC quality bank. These payments are reflected as
deductions to revenue.

The shareholders of CPC are currently in negotiations to approve an increase in the capacity of the
CPC pipeline from its current 28.2 million tonnes of crude oil per year to 67 million tonnes of crude oil per
year. The capacity increase is expected to be completed in three phases during 2007 to 2009. The
Company’s business plan for the period 2006-2010 assumes that there will be available to the Company,
CPC capacity of 1.5 million tonnes in 2006-2007 and 2.3 million tonnes in 2008-2011, based upon
NC KMG’s capacity allocation as a CPC shareholder.

Other Export Routes

Other potential transportation routes for the export of oil from Kazakhstan which are available to the
Company include:

e from the Aktau seaport by oil tankers to Caspian Sea ports and then to European markets by
pipeline or via the Volga-Don rivers, Black Sea and Azovskoe Sea;

* through the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan pipeline (which would require that the Company transport the
crude oil to Baku by barge from Aktau);

* as a possible option in the future, through the Atasu-Alashankou pipeline towards western
China; and

* by rail.

The Company does not currently use nor does it intend to use any of the above export routes due to
the availability of sufficient capacity through the UAS pipeline and the CPC pipeline which are currently
less costly and more efficient for the Company.

SALES AND MARKETING

The Company is required to supply a certain amount of its crude oil production to the domestic
market and it exports the remainder. The Company currently has three major customers for its production,
the Atyrau Refinery for its domestic sales, and KMG TradeHouse AG and Esomet for its exports which
together account for approximately 99% of the Group’s sales. The table below shows a breakdown of the
Company’s oil exports and supplies to refineries in Kazakhstan for the periods indicated.

For the five months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

(million tonnes, except percentages)

KMG TradeHouse AG

Odessa............... 1.4 37% 1.3 35% 30 32% 46 53% 24 31%
Primorsk ............. — — — - — - — — 08 11%
Yuzhnyi/Central Europe — — — — — —_ — — 01 1%
Buting ............... — — — — 02 2% — — — —
Novorossiysk . ......... 0.6 16% 0.6 17% 15 17% 1.0 11% 04 6%
Esomet ................ 0.8 19% 0.8 20% 1.8 20% 0.3 4% — —
Odessa (Naflex, Unioil) . ... — — — - — — — — 13  16%
CIS countries . . . ......... — — — — — — 07 8% 08 11%
Domestic market
Atyrau Refinery ........ 1.1 28% 1.0 28% 26 28% 21 24% 18 24%
Shymkent Refinery . .. ... — — — — 0.1 1% — — — —
Total .................. 39 100% 3.7 100% 9.2 100% 8.7 100% 7.6 100%
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Since 2002, the Company has employed KMG TradeHouse, a subsidiary of NC KMG, to handle the
sales and marketing function of the Company. Pursuant to an agency agreement dated 26 December 2005
(the “KMG TradeHouse Agency Agreement”), KMG TradeHouse acts in an agency capacity to find buyers
for the Company’s production, arrange transport and shipping and handle export licences and other sales
documentation. The relationship between the Company and KMG TradeHouse is currently subject to the
requirements of the annual state procurement tender. However, the Company expects its relationship with
KMG TradeHouse to remain in place for the foreseeable future. See “Principal Shareholder, Relationship
with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates—KMG
TradeHouse Agency Agreement”.

The crude oil which the Company sells FOB Odessa and FOB Novorossiysk is sold at a price
representing the average of quotes for Urals (RCMB) and Brent (DTD) crude, as published in Platt’s
Crude Oil Marketwire, less a discount made up of freight and insurance expenses, loss, traders commission
and other trading and transportation costs. In each case, the Company pays KMG TradeHouse an agency
fee of US$0.50 per tonne for its agency services. Title passes from the Company to the buyer at Odessa or
Novorossiysk, as the case may be. Payment terms are 30 days after the shipment has occurred.

Although the Company does not pay a commission for crude oil delivered to the domestic market, it
does pay KMG TradeHouse US$1 per tonne for sold refined products.

KMG TradeHouse AG

KMG TradeHouse AG, a subsidiary of KMG TradeHouse, is one of the main buyers of the Company’s
production. The Company sells to KMG TradeHouse AG at the ports of Odessa and Novorossiysk through
KMG TradeHouse, acting as sales agent under the terms of the Agency Agreement. In 2005, the Company
sold 4.7 million tonnes to KMG TradeHouse AG which was 50% of the Company’s production, accounting
for 51% of the Company’s sales volume.

The Company transports the oil to the port of Odessa through the UAS and Transneft pipelines,
where it is sold to KMG TradeHouse AG on an FOB basis and is then resold by KMG TradeHouse AG to
Vittol. Oil transported through the CPC pipeline is likewise sold to KMG TradeHouse AG at the port of
Novorossiysk on an FOB basis. The crude oil transported through the CPC pipeline is re-sold by KMG
TradeHouse AG as principal on a CIF-Augusta basis to such companies as BP, Shell, Total and Repsol.

Esomet

On 16 August 2004, the Company entered into the Esomet Arrangement and received an advance
payment from Esomet of which US$442.2 million was outstanding as of 31 May 2006. This funding
arrangement currently bears interest at Libor plus 1.1% per annum (amended on 24 July 2006) and
principal repayments are now US$12.4 million monthly. To assure Esomet that payments are made, the
Company has agreed to ship certain amounts of crude oil to Esomet which are sold at market prices
(by reference to Platt’s Crude Oil Marketwire) with the proceeds being used to fund the capital payments
due to Esomet. In 2005, the Company sold 1.8 million tonnes (13.2 million barrels) to Esomet pursuant to
the Esomet Agreement in lieu of principal repayments which was 19% of the Company’s production and
accounted for 20% of the Company’s sales volume. See “Operating and Financial Review—Borrowings”
and “Additional Information—Material Contracts”. The Company is obliged to deliver 150,000 tonnes per
month until September 2009. Any surplus funds arising from the sale of the 150,000 tonnes per month
above the required capital repayments are transferred to the Company.

The Company transports the oil in respect of the Esomet Arrangement to the port of Odessa through
the UAS and Transneft pipelines, where it is sold to Esomet on an FOB basis. Amounts shipped under the
Esomet Arrangement are also subject to the terms of the KMG TradeHouse Agency Agreement and to the
US$0.50 per tonne agency fee payable to KMG TradeHouse noted above.

Supply to the domestic market

Pursuant to governmental requirements as established by MEMR, the Company is required to supply
crude oil to the domestic market, mainly to the Atyrau Refinery. Quotas for domestic deliveries of oil by
the Company to the Atyrau Refinery are established on a monthly basis by MEMR. Historically, these
deliveries have represented approximately 50% of the processing capacity of the Atyrau Refinery.

In February 2006, a memorandum was executed between MEMR and the principal Kazakhstan
natural resources entities (including the Company), entitled “On Social Partnership for the Provision to
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the Domestic Market of Oil Products in 2006”. Pursuant to this memorandum and to the terms of the
Company’s Relationship Agreement with NC KMG, the Company is obliged to supply KMG TradeHouse
(which now owns the Atyrau Refinery) with 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum between 2006 and
2010 at a price equal to the Company’s aggregate cost of production and transportation, together with a
margin of 3%. For the years 2011 to 2015, the volume of crude oil to be supplied will be determined in
accordance with the Company’s business plan (as approved by the Board of Directors, which it currently
anticipates will be no more than 1.9 million tonnes per annum) at a price equal to the Company’s cost of
production and transportation, together with a margin of 3% (the “Supply Obligation”). In addition, to
meet the Company’s own need for refined products, a further 0.3 million tonnes (2.2 million barrels) of
crude oil is supplied to the Atyrau Refinery per annum which is tolled for a fee with the surplus refined
products from this crude oil being sold on the domestic market. Starting in 2007, the Company plans to
terminate their own product tolling arrangement with the Atyrau Refinery and to sell to the Atyrau
Refinery at commercial prices sufficient quantities of crude oil and to purchase from the Atyrau Refinery
refined products required to meet the Company’s own needs. However, notwithstanding the terms of the
Supply Obligation, the Government can mandate additional deliveries of crude oil to domestic refineries at
levels exceeding the agreed 1.9 million tonnes (38 thousand bopd) of crude oil per annum. For example,
the planned volume for the domestic market in 2005 was 2.2 million tonnes, but in fact the amount so
supplied was 2.7 million tonnes (55 thousand bopd) of crude oil, which was 29% of the Company’s
production and sales volume and represented about 12% of the Company’s total revenue, out of which
0.1 million tonnes was supplied to Shymkent refinery and the balance to the Atyrau Refinery. An
additional 0.5 million tonnes were sent to the refineries in 2005 at the direction of MEMR. In 2006, the
Company expects to be required to supply a total of 2.44 million tonnes (49 thousand bopd) of crude oil to
the domestic market. For the five month period ended 31 May 2006, the Company has already shipped
1.1 million tonnes (22 thousand bopd) of crude oil which reflects certain additional requirements
by MEMR.

While the price for such additional supplies of crude oil is determined by NC KMG, this price will be
materially below international market prices and is referenced from the level of the cost of production.
Should the energy needs of Kazakhstan increase, the Company cannot rule out an increase in its domestic
supply obligation. Such supplies take precedence over export or other market sales. See “Risk Factors—
Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Business—The Government has the ability to require additional
deliveries of crude oil to domestic refineries and these may be at prices that are materially below
international market prices”.

EXPLORATION
Overview

Historically, the Company’s predecessors’ operations focused primarily on the production of oil from
existing reserves. Beginning in the late 1990s, the Company’s predecessors began exploring for additional
oil reserves around the Pre-Caspian basin in areas that are now being developed by the EMG production
division. Since 2002, the Company’s predecessors were also exploring the Mangistau basin. The Company
has identified exploration as a key aspect of its long-term strategy not just for replacing existing reserves
but also for increasing its overall production levels. The Company is continuing exploration activities in
selected areas and also within the UMG fields and EMG fields, where the Company is currently reviewing
geological data, drilling exploration wells and commissioning 2D and 3D seismic surveys.

Although much of the geology of western Kazakhstan is relatively well explored, the Company is
currently reviewing onshore geological data with respect to other areas in the region of western
Kazakhstan, and other areas in Kazakhstan, that are less well explored. Depending on the outcome of this
review, the Company intends to seek exploration and production contracts for areas that it believes are
economically attractive including through the services of NC KMG under the Services Agreement. For a
description of the preferential access to unlicensed onshore acreage in Kazakhstan provided to the
Company under the Services Agreement, see “Additional Information—Material Contracts”. The
Company intends to take full advantage of the services provided to it by NC KMG under the Services
Agreement. For a description of the process of obtaining exploration and production contracts in
Kazakhstan, see “—Licences and Contracts”.

The Company’s budget for exploration is approximately US$24 million per year.

73



Exploration Areas

The Taisoigan, Liman, Nurzhanov, Makat East and Akingen blocks are those in respect of which the
Company already has an exploration contract. For the R-9 block, NC KMG has an exploration contract
which it is in the process of surrendering to the Company. With respect to the territories adjoining, and the
Triassic reservoirs of, the Uzen and Karamandybas field, neither NC KMG nor the Company has an
exploration contract but the Company is undertaking preliminary exploration activity with the consent of
MEMR. If potential structures are discovered, then NC KMG will negotiate with MEMR to obtain an
exploration contract for the Company. Currently, NC KMG is negotiating with MEMR to obtain an
exploration contract for the Company for the Tengiz Post-Salt Deposit for which neither the Company nor
NC KMG has an exploration license.
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The following map sets forth the location of the planned onshore exploration activities:
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The information below regarding the timing during which the Company believes production may
commence in these areas represents only the Company’s current estimate and is subject to numerous
assumptions and uncertainties. See “Risk Factors—Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Business—
Failure by the Company to gain access to additional reserves or to acquire additional reserves could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve its long term growth strategy” for a
description of the risks relating to the Company’s exploration activities and “—Licences and Contracts” for
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a summary of the process for obtaining exploration and production contracts in Kazakhstan, as well as
“Forward-Looking Statements”.

Areas where the Company already has an Exploration Contract
Taisoigan

In September 1999, the Company was granted an exploration and production contract for the
Taisoigan block. The permitted time period for exploration was to expire in 2005, but has been extended
until the end of 2009. In 1999 and 2000, two new fields were discovered at the block but all exploration
activity there ceased in 2001 because the Government leased the region to the Russian Ministry of Defence
for military training purposes. Although military activity is planned to continue at the block, the Company
has been able in 2006 to recommence exploration and also to commence initial production activities at the
sites that it has already explored. The Company has drilled 2 wells in the Kondybai field in the Taisoigan
block, conducted 2D seismic surveys over 150 km and reopened 6 discovery wells to date. The Company
plans to drill a further 2 exploration wells on the Uaz field in the remainder of 2006.

Prior to the cessation of the Company’s exploration activities at the Taisoigan block, the Company
discovered reserves (according to Kazakhstan methodology) at two fields. The Company’s internal
estimates of recoverable oil resources (based on Kazakhstan methodology) in the block are approximately
1.5 million tonnes (11 million barrels) of category C1+C2 and 6.7 million tonnes (49 million barrels) of
category C3. GCA has estimated the unrisked best estimate contingent resources at 7.4 million tonnes
(54 million barrels) using international standards. See “GCA Report”.

Liman

The Company acquired the 6,030 square kilometre Liman contract area in February 2006. Before the
Company was granted the subsoil use right for exploration and production, other companies had been
carrying out geological explorations. MEMR has extended the exploration period for two years until
February 2009. Geological and geophysical studies are expected to be conducted in the second half
of 2006.

The Company’s internal estimates of recoverable oil resources based on Kazakhstan methodology are
approximately 5.1 million tonnes (38 million barrels) of category C3.

Nurzhanov

In 2000, the Company was granted an exploration and production contract for the western section of
the Nurzhanov field. The Company is currently conducting production activities and additional exploration
in deposits with category C2 reserves in order to increase reserves, on the basis of 3D seismic work carried
out in 2003. In 2005, the Company drilled one exploration well to a depth of 3,400 metres and a production
horizon was discovered. By the end of 2006, the Company plans to have drilled another exploration well.

The Company’s internal estimates of recoverable oil resources (based on Kazakhstan methodology)
are approximately 4.4 million tonnes (32 million barrels) of category C2 and 1.8 million tonnes (13 million
barrels) of category C3.

Makat East

The Company has been producing from the Makat East field since 1993. In connection with positive
new 3D seismic data for the western part of the field, in September 2005 the Company drilled one
exploration well to a depth of 930 metres and a production horizon was discovered. The Company is
currently carrying out tests at the well on this production horizon.

The Company’s internal estimates of oil resources based on Kazakhstan methodology are
approximately 412 thousand tonnes (3 million barrels) of category C2.
Akingen

The Company has a production contract and plans to conduct supplementary exploration in 2006 in
order to expand the deposit area. Previous work revealed the productivity of Cretaceous formations in the
field. The interpretation of the 2003 3D seismic results has revealed potential traps in Jurassic formations
on the southern flank. An exploration well with a target depth of 2,200 metres is planned to be drilled in

76



2006 for the purpose of studying the productivity of Jurassic and, possibly, Triassic formations within the
southern flank.

The Company’s internal estimates of recoverable oil resources based on Kazakhstan methodology are
approximately 128 thousand tonnes (0.9 million barrels) of category C2.

Areas where NC KMG, but not the Company, already has an Exploration Contract
R-9

The Company currently does not possess an exploration contract for the R-9 block. The Company is
currently carrying out work on these areas on the basis of a contract granted to NC KMG in September
2005, and negotiations are under way for the transfer of the contract to the Company at fair value pursuant
to which the Company will reimburse NC KMG for past costs.

Between May 2004 and October 2005, the Company completed 1,180 kilometres of 2D seismic surveys
which are currently being processed and analysed. The Company drilled a 1,688 metre exploration well in
the second half of 2005 at the Kulsary structure which failed to flow, and by the end of 2006 the Company
plans to drill five additional exploration wells in other structures of R9. In addition, a further
800 kilometres of seismic surveys will be completed in September 2006.

The Company’s internal estimates of recoverable oil resources (accordingly to Kazakhstan
methodology) are approximately 7.7 million tonnes (57 million barrels) of category C3.

Areas where neither NC KMG nor the Company has an Exploration Contract but the Company is undertaking
preliminary exploration activity with the consent of MEMR

Territories Adjoining, and the Tiiassic Reservoirs of, the Uzen and Karamandybas Fields

The Company is currently conducting exploration activities in the Triassic reservoirs of the Uzen and
Karamandybas fields and the territories adjoining the Uzen and Karamandybas fields. As the Company’s
existing exploration and production contract for the Uzen and Karamandybas fields does not extend
beneath the Jurassic reservoir within the Uzen and Karamandybas fields and the Company does not have
an exploration contract for the adjoining areas, the Company has requested NC KMG to obtain and
transfer to the Company an exploration contract covering the Traissic reservoir and the adjoining
territories. NC KMG is currently in preliminary negotiations with MEMR and the Company is not able to
determine at this time when, whether or on what terms NC KMG will obtain and transfer to the Company
an exploration contract covering these areas. Although the Company has received a letter of consent from
MEMR permitting the Company to conduct its current exploration activities in these areas, until the
Company obtains an exploration contract, it will not be entitled to commence negotiations with MEMR to
obtain a production contract even if commercial discoveries are made. See “—Licences and Contracts” for
an overview of the process for obtaining exploration and production contracts in Kazakhstan.

The principal purpose of geological exploration on this territory is to determine the geological
structure and discover deposits in the Jurassic and Triassic reservoirs and to search for and explore
industrial deposits in the Triassic reservoir within the Uzen and Karamandybas fields themselves. During
2005, the Company completed a 3D seismic survey for 300 square kilometres in the territories adjoining
Eastern Uzen. The drilling of the first well in the Triassic reservoir with a depth of 2,500 metres was begun
at Eastern Pasmurun. A prospective productive horizon has been discovered in the lower Jurassic
formation. The drilling of this well is planned to be completed in 2006. Depending upon results of drilling
and testing, the Company plans to drill another two wells on the Uzen and Karamandybas fields. In
March 2006, the Company began the drilling of an exploration well on the Karamandybas territory. In
2006, the Company also plans to complete a 2D seismic survey over a length of 700 kilometres.

The Company’s internal estimates of recoverable oil resources (according to Kazakhstan
methodology) are approximately 13.5 million tonnes (99 million barrels) of category C3.

Areas where neither NC KMG nor the Company has an Exploration Contract

NC KMG is conducting preliminary negotiations with MEMR for an exploration contract with respect
to the post-salt deposits located within the area of the Tengiz field which is located at pre-salt deposits and
which belongs to TCO. TCO has a licence only for the pre-salt deposits of this area. The Company is
currently unable to predict the likelihood of obtaining an exploration contract for this area and the
required work programme.
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ASSET OPTIMISATION PROGRAMME

In December 2005, the Board of Directors approved an Asset Optimisation Programme to rationalise
the Company’s business operations by divesting or liquidating most of its non-core businesses and by
selling or winding up some parts of its business which can be more efficiently outsourced. The Company
inherited these businesses as a result of various asset and share transfers and other internal reorganisations
that occurred when the Company’s operations were managed by the authorities of the former Soviet
Union. The Company’s non-core businesses include businesses such as hotels, health centres and sanatoria
and the production and sale of bricks. Although the Company will have to pay third parties for the services
provided by these businesses the Company believes the divestment or winding-up of its non-core
businesses will enable it to streamline its operations and enable it to focus on its position as a pure
upstream core oil and gas exploration and production business.

In addition, as part of the Company’s Asset Optimisation Programme, the Company also intends to
divest or wind up its subsidiary companies that perform drilling, well workovers and related activities, such
as equipment and vehicle repair. Rather than continuing to support these operations in-house, the
Company intends to engage third party contractors and consultants that have developed specialised
expertise and that maintain the equipment and technology necessary to perform these services. The
Company has already begun to utilise, to some extent, third party contractors in its UMG division. The use
of contractors to carry out drilling and well workovers reflects broader trends in the oil industry, which the
Company believes will lead to enhanced operating efficiency. If the Company is unable to sell certain of its
non-core or auxiliary businesses on commercially acceptable terms, it may seek to transfer these businesses
to the local authorities in the areas where they operate.

In total, the Company intends to divest or wind up approximately 30 non-core and ancillary
businesses. The Asset Optimisation Programme will result in a reduction of the Group’s workforce but the
Company does not expect this will materially affect operating expenses.

As at 31 December 2005, the assets that are subject to the Asset Optimisation Programme accounted
for 4% of the Company’s net assets. The Asset Optimisation Programme is expected to be completed by
the end of 2007.

In addition, in December 2004, the Company acquired a 50% stake from SAT & Co. in JSC
Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries, which wholly-owns a non-operational plastics plant in Atyrau and a
polystyrene plant in Aktau which is only occasionally operational due to a lack of raw material (styrene and
ethylbenzene). In December 2005, the Company sold its interest in the Atyrau Refinery to a subsidiary of
NC KMG. An agreement is in place for the sale, but not yet fully completed, of the Company’s 35%
interest in JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries (known as JSC Atoll), to the other shareholder,
LLP SAT & Company, for KZT3.4 billion. As at 31 December 2005, a receivable of KZT3.4 billion was
recorded within current assets. This amount was due on 20 June 2006, and is still outstanding as an
unprovisioned receivable. The Company is currently considering selling its remaining 15% stake in JSC
Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries.

COST REDUCTION PLAN

The Company has developed a cost reduction plan designed to enable significant cost reductions. The
central components to this plan include:

* optimisation of production through the application of enhanced reservoir modelling capabilities, so
reducing sea water use, power consumption and needs for spare parts;

 extending well lives of existing fields through the application of electric rotary and screw pumps, in
addition to monitoring the quality of oil well tubing so reducing power and fuel consumption,
maintenance and workover costs and needs for spare parts;

* increasing pipeline life through the replacement of steel pipes with fibreglass pipes, reducing
maintenance and replacement costs;

* modernisation of collection and preparation stations including the construction of a new
preparation facility at Uzen, reducing power consumption as well as the need for spare parts,
chemical reagents and replacement pipes; and

e optimisation of logistics and business processes through the automation and improvement of
measurement and other systems.
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The objective of these cost saving initiatives is a reduction in annual operating expenses of
US$100 million by 2010 compared with 2005.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

One of the Company’s key strategic priorities is to bring its operations in line with local and
international standards for environmental protection. Accordingly, as part of the Company’s development
plan, it is in the process of implementing policies and making investments that it believes will enable it to
adhere to these standards in all of the Company’s operations by 2010. In addition and pursuant to the
MOU, the Company is aiming to complete the remediation of all historical contamination prior to the
expiration of the relevant exploration and production licence, which in most cases is 2025. The Company
has made the appropriate provisions for the costs associated with this remediation in its financial
statements.

The Company’s environmental protection policies include the following key objectives: (i) minimise
impact on the environment using the best available technology; (ii) implement both Quality Assurance
(ISO 9001) and Environmental Management (ISO 14001) Systems; (iii) develop technologies to deal with
waste products; (iv) remediate or recultivate areas impacted by petroleum hydrocarbons; (v) monitor the
impact of the Company’s operations on the environment; (vi) put in place emergency procedures to deal
with the environmental impact of spillage; and (vii) utilise associated production gas to produce low cost
power through multi-stage gas turbine power stations.

Compliance with Kazakhstan Requirements

The Company is subject to a variety of Kazakhstan environmental laws, regulations and requirements
that govern air emissions, water use and disposal, waste management, impacts on wildlife as well as land
use and reclamation. In addition, the Company’s exploration and production licences require that all its
operations be carried out in conformity with applicable environmental laws and regulations. Licences may
be suspended and/or cancelled if these requirements are not addressed. See “—Licences and Contracts”.

Environmental regulations in Kazakhstan remain at a developmental stage, and accordingly, current
regulations may be amended, changed or re-interpreted. The Company monitors these changes to the
extent possible and seeks to adjust its operations to ensure continual compliance with the regulations.
MEP, at a national level, conducts inspections on an annual basis and, if violations are found, issues orders
requiring that corrective actions be taken. Regional MEP environmental authorities also conduct
inspections on a regular basis. When either an external body or an internal audit identifies an
environmental issue, the Company endeavours to take corrective action, or develop a corrective action
plan to address the issue, as soon as possible. Corrective action plans are supervised internally, and
reviewed by the regional MEP authority. At the MEP’s most recent inspection in April 2005, issues relating
to gas flaring at the EMG fields were raised. To address these issues, the Company has implemented a gas
flaring elimination programme approved by the MEP. See “—Air Emissions”.

Under the Republic of Kazakhstan Law “On Environmental Protection” (the “LoEP”’) the Company
is obliged to obtain an annual permit for the contamination of the environment and must observe all
requirements set out in such permit. Pursuant to the LoEP and the resolution of the Government “On the
Approval of the Rules for Issuing Environmental Contamination Permits”, the Company is required to
apply to the MEP for an environmental permit specifying maximum levels of air emissions, waste water
disposal and municipal and industrial waste permitted to be discharged by the Company.

The Company’s production divisions have produced fewer emissions than the levels allowed in the
permits issued in 2005 and 2004. The following table sets forth the permitted level of discharges by type of
contaminant under the Company’s permits and the actual level of discharges by it for the periods indicated.

For the year ended 31 December

2005 2004
Permissible level  Actual level of  Permissible level  Actual level of
of discharge discharge of discharge discharge
(thousand tonnes)
Solid ........... .. ... . .. 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.2
Liquid and gaseous. . . ............... 24.8 225 30.6 234

Total ..o 253 229 316 23.6
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In the event that the permitted limits are exceeded, penalty payments are calculated by multiplying the
original specified fee by 10. In 2005, the Company’s environmental fees, fines and penalties were
KZT700 million; in 2004 these increased to KZT258 million and in 2003 they were KZT241 million. The
substantial increase between 2004 and 2005 is primarily due to the Government’s increase in applicable fee
rates and an increased number of environmental fees paid. The Company expects that the Government
will continue to increase these fees in the future.

Every five years, the Company submits a five-year forecast of all emissions to the MEP and other
associated agencies for review and approval. The Company revises these forecasts annually to account for
any change in its operations and circumstances. The accuracy of these forecasts are strengthened by
various scientific and technological studies conducted by the Company and third parties.

AMEC Report

To assist in the creation of accurate emission forecasts and to properly assess the environmental and
financial impacts of historical contamination, the Company commissioned AMEC Earth and
Environmental UK Ltd (“AMEC”) in 2005 to undertake an independent environmental due diligence
assessment of the Company’s assets including EMG, UMG and the Uzen Gas Condensate facility. After
completing this assessment, AMEC delivered a report on 26 June 2006, in accordance with the requested
scope of work, per the requirements of ISO 14015 and, in addition, incorporated International Accounting
Standard no 37 (IAS 37). The key elements of the assessment included detailed reviews of documentation
provided by the Company, site visits comprising physical inspections, interviews with key personnel and the
MEP and detailed discussions with the Company’s management.

AMEC reported that the aggregate anticipated obligatory expenditure necessary for the Company to
address non-compliance with the current regulatory regime in Kazakhstan for the period to 2025 is
approximately KZT31.0 billion (this includes remediation of historically contaminated land for which the
Company is responsible or for which it has accepted responsibility pursuant to the MOU with the MEP but
excludes well remediation on closure which is separately provided for). In accordance with this assessment,
the Company has made a provision for this amount in its balance sheet as at 31 December 2005.
Dependent upon possible future changes in Kazakhstan’s legislation associated with compliance to
international standards or the presence of more extensive, as yet unconsidered contamination, the
Company has, according to the AMEC report, an additional contingent liability of approximately
KZT20.4 billion for the period to 2025.

AMEC’s estimates of the Company’s obligatory costs are set out in the table below.

Expenditure for the period
2006-2025

Obligatory Costs
(US$ millions)®  (KZT millions)

Contaminated Land .. ............ ... ... . . .. ... 114.9 14,941.0
Air Emissions® . . ... — —
Waste Management . ... ... .. .. ...ttt 120.4 15,650.3
Waste Water . .. ... ... e — —
Environmental Compliance . .. ........ ... ... ... . ... 34 442.4
Total®) . 238.7 31,033.7

(1) AMEC has translated US dollar amounts from Tenge at the rate of KZT130.00 to US$1.00.

(2) AMEC made no provision for air emission mitigation expenditure as the Company has already
commenced a gas flaring elimination programme which is fully provided for in its current budget.

(3) Figures are not discounted and represent current costs.

Obligatory costs are costs associated with current liabilities under Kazakhstan legislation. They are, in
the most part, issues that the Company is aware of through regulatory audits, site visits and annual reports.
In addition, obligatory costs also include costs that were identified by AMEC and associated with
regulatory non-compliance of which the Company may not have been aware.
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AMEC’s estimates of the Company’s contingent costs are set out in the table below.

Expenditure for the period
2006-2025

Contingent Costs
(US$ millions)®  (KZT millions)

Contaminated Land . . . . ... ... ... . . .. . . 153.1 19,896.4
Air Emissions® . .. ... — —
Waste Management . . .. ... ..ttt e 0.6 81.9
Waste Water . ... ... 0.1 13.0
Environmental Compliance . ........... . ... ... ... ... 29 373.0
Total®) 156.7 20,364.3

(1) AMEC has translated US dollar amounts from Tenge at the rate of KZT130.00 to US$1.00.

(2) AMEC made no provision for air emission mitigation expenditure as the Company has already
commenced a gas flaring elimination programme which is fully provided for in its current budget.

(3) Figures are not discounted and represents current costs.

Contingent costs are the costs associated with potential future changes in legislation or adherence to
international best practice standards requiring possible additional expenditure to remain in compliance
and also include the potential increase in costs, pending further investigation of specific obligatory issues.

No contingent costs identified in the AMEC report have been provided for in the Company’s financial
statements.

Environmental Impact of the Company’s Operations

The principal sources of material environmental liability for the Company arise from the requirement
to remediate historically contaminated land. In addition, the significant environmental impacts from the
Company’s operations are air emissions, in particular flaring of associated gas and waste management.

The Company has a dedicated remediation programme in place including to address the
environmental issues as agreed with the MEP. Annual expenditures for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
KZT1.4 billion, KZT2.2 billion and KZT1.1 billion, respectively.

Contaminated Land
Historical Oil Pits

Under the oil production technology prevailing during the time of the Soviet Union, open reservoirs
(“Pits”) were formed in natural ground folds or specifically constructed on the land surface to store
accumulations of water-oil fractions for emergency purposes or for the disposal of oil and water-oil
mixtures. The Company currently does not use the Pits for these purposes and it is in the process of
gradually removing the accumulations in them with the assistance of external contractors. The Company
has reduced the number of Pits from 79 in 2002 to only one in 2006 at the Central Oil Transfer Station (the
“COTS Pit” which is internally divided into three sections to aid the remediation process). The COTS Pit
was formed by the discharge of oil, mud waste and a water-oil mixture as a result of previous oil production
operations and due to an emergency oil flood in 1974.

The Uzen Lake was principally formed in the Uzen depression as a result of UMG business
operations, specifically as a result of many years of collecting oil-containing waste water from overflows at
the COTS Pit from 1974 until 1996 and from the general contaminated run-off from the surrounding oil
fields. The total volume of oily emulsion in the lake is sufficiently substantial to have allowed the Company
to engage a third party contractor to remove the emulsion and sell the oil recovered for its own account in
an exercise that is expected to continue for several years. As a result of measures taken, no oil or water
effluents are now discharged by the nearby oil production sites into the lake and the situation is closely
monitored by relevant departments of the UMG.

The Company remediates land contaminated as a result of crude oil discharge using the Company’s
own resources and by hiring third-party contractors. In addition, the Company also takes measures to
remediate historical contamination that occurred during the period of the Soviet Union. Pursuant to a
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Memorandum on Understanding between the Company and the MEP, the MEP has agreed to waive fines
and penalties relating to contamination that occurred prior to the Company’s incorporation in return for
the Company agreeing to remediate such contamination. Notwithstanding the MOU, one fine was recently
assessed by the Mangistau regional branch of the MEP, but has been rejected on appeal by the Company.
See “—Mangistau Claim”. In addition, the MEP has indicated it wishes to renegotiate the MOU.

Historical Contaminated Earth

In order to clean up contaminated earth, the Company has made an inventory of the fields and has
developed an overall remediation plan. The Company is conducting experimental work involving the
testing and treatment of contaminated earth using various biological methods and is conducting a scope
evaluation to determine the extent of the contamination so that the nature of the remediation required and
related costs can be determined.

The remediation of contaminated earth occurs in two separate stages. Firstly, the contaminated earth
is excavated and transported to waste collectors that have a waste water drainage system, fencing and a
waterproof membrane. During this stage of remediation, the waste is only managed and not actually
treated. See “—Waste Management”. The second stage involves remedial treatment of the contaminated
soil, principally by thermal desorption to produce an inert material. Both UMG and EMG are in the
process of selecting new treatment facilities to ensure the accumulated waste soil can be treated.

AMEC estimates that the total land area requiring remediation at the EMG and UMG fields are
approximately 2,280,000 square metres and 187,000 square metres, respectively. During 2005,
387,000 square metres of contaminated earth had been through stage one remediation and 857 tonnes had
been through stage two remediation at EMG. AMEC understand that UMG processed 29,600 square
metres of contaminated earth through stage one in 2005, while the stage two process is still awaiting the
purchase of a suitable facility.

The Company’s historical costs for remediating the crude oil-contaminated areas were KZT1.0 million
in 2004 and KZT404.0 million in 2005. Expenditure in 2004 was primarily directed towards the assessment
and establishment of the remediation programme, whereas expenditure in 2005 was solely related to the
process of actual remediation. The obligatory expenditure considered necessary by AMEC to address
contamination issues is KZT12.6 billion for EMG and KZT2.3 billion for UMG. AMEC has proposed a
potential further liability of KZT1.3 billion for EMG and KZT18.2 billion for UMG contingent on the
possible need for further remediation to a greater depth as a result of deeper than anticipated penetration
of contaminants. AMEC has estimated that for the period to 2025, the Company’s related obligatory costs
incorporating all contaminated land issues will total KZT14.9 billion and additional contingent costs may
total KZT19.5 billion.

The Company commissioned pilot trials in 2006 that confirmed that the Uzen Lake could be
remediated with no significant cost to the Company through engaging specialist contractors who would
retain certain rights to the salvageable fraction of oil recovered from the oily emulsion. Although certain
contractual arrangements have been entered into, no assurance can be provided that the Uzen Lake can be
remediated at no significant cost to the Company pursuant to such or similar contracts. If the Company
had to undertake the removal and treatment of this lake itself, it would be at an estimated contingent cost
of KZT13.3 billion (this amount is included in the above table). See “Risk Factors—The Company and its
predecessors have generated substantial environmental liabilities that the Company is required to
remediate at its cost”.

Mangistau Claim

In November 2003, the Mangistau regional branch of the MEP approved, in respect of the years
2004-2010, the Company’s plan for cleaning the Uzen Lake and, in respect of the years 2003-2010, for
cleaning the COTS Pit. The continuation of removal operations is annually reflected in the Company’s
environmental protection plans for the UMG production division. The Company spent approximately
KZT141.0 million in 2005 on both the Uzen Lake and the COTS Pit in relation to this plan.

In March 2006, the Mangistau department of MEP presented the Company with a claim for
KZT11.4 billion relating to the COTS Pit. This claim was calculated based on a multiple of the volume of
waste (26,548 tonnes) alleged to have been discharged into the COTS Pit during 2005. On 7 July 2006, the
Specialised Inter-District Economic Court of the city of Astana (“SIDECA”) decided the case in favour of
the Company and fully dismissed the claim. On 20 July 2006, the Mangistau department of the MEP filed
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an appeal of the above court decision with the Collegium on Civil Cases of the Astana City Court which
was subsequently rejected on 9 August 2006, reaffirming the SIDECAs decision. The Mangistau
department of the MEP or the public prosecutor can, until 9 August 2007, ask the Astana City Court or the
Supreme Court to reconsider the case as a whole.

Air Emissions

The flaring of gas refers to the burning of gas as a means of disposal when the operator does not or
cannot use the gas for another purpose. Pursuant to the Republic of Kazakhstan Law “On Oil”
(Article 30-5), as amended in 2005, the flaring of gas and associated gas is prohibited, except for
emergency situations and where there is a threat to human life or the environment. Despite this
prohibition, the Company has historically had no viable alternative available other than the flaring of gas.
The following table sets forth the volume of gas flared by the Company for the periods specified.

For the year ended
31 December

2004 2005
(cubic metres)
EMG . .. e 73,957,000 73,006,644
UMG .. e 8,562,000 4,997,100
Total . .. e 82,519,000 78,003,744

Pursuant to the LoEP, the Company has paid penalties as a result of gas flaring totalling
KZT231.4 million for 2005. Prior to 2005, no fines or penalties were levied by the MEP in relation to
gas flaring.

At UMG there is a gas processing plant which allows gas to be collected, stored and later transported
therefore avoiding the need for gas flaring. In 2006, MEP agreed to suspend future sanctions and penalties
for the Company’s gas flaring violations, provided that the Company developed programmes that seek to
reduce and eliminate gas flaring across its entire operations at EMG. MEMR approved the Company’s gas
flaring elimination programme in June 2006. The suspension of future sanctions is dependent upon the
Company complying with this programme. At EMG, the use of associated gas for internal heating has
enabled a reduction in the flaring of gas.

As a part of the overall gas flaring elimination programme, in 2005, the Company implemented a
KZT284.0 million project for the utilisation of associated gas from the Prorva group of fields. The first
stage of this programme was completed in 2005 and enables the utilisation of associated or natural
methane for internal heating. The plant is currently moving towards a production phase and has received a
positive review from the MEP regional department in Atyrau. The second stage of the project includes the
installation of a gas turbine for heat and electricity generation, which the Company believes will eliminate
the need for any gas flaring at the Prorva group of fields. The Company plans to finalise the second stage
of the project by the end of 2008. The Company estimates that completion of the first stage of the project
will reduce gas flaring in the Prorva fields by approximately 70%. The experience and skills obtained at the
Prorva fields will be utilised across the remaining EMG fields over time.

Given that the Parliament of Kazakhstan has yet to ratify the country’s accession to the Kyoto
Protocol, the current gas flaring operations of the Company remain compliant with domestic regulations.
When and if the Kyoto Protocol is implemented, it is more than likely that the Company will be required to
both conduct process engineering works to reduce emissions and accordingly, this may impact on the
Company’s capital expenditure which may in turn be affected by the utilisation of gas.

Waste Management

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s environmental permit issued by the MEP in 2005, it is obliged
to comply with strict regulations regarding the storage, transport, packaging and handling of contaminated
earth and hazardous materials, including radioactive waste. The Company has significant quantities of
contaminated earth currently stored in various polygons and waste collectors which were inherited from
the the Company’s predecessors. There are also a number of unauthorised storage areas. The contents of
all of the storage areas will require treatment and disposal, and the unauthorised storage areas will need to
be remediated in the same manner as contaminated earth. According to AMEC, the total obligatory
expenditure associated with all waste management issues over the duration of the current operating
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licences held by the Company is approximately KZT15.7 billion, in additional to a contingent liability of
KZT81.9 million which is based upon AMEC’s recommendation of increased monitoring and potential
infrastructure upgrades of certain radioactive storage areas to bring them inline with current international
standards.

Due to the natural radioactivity of soils and ground water in the UMG oil fields, all production related
equipment is checked for radiation levels. Metal scrap which is found to have excessive radiation is
collected and stored in a temporary radioactive waste polygon (“TSRWP”) by a team of specialists from
the Company’s Chemical and Ecology Department. The Company simultaneously registers this waste. The
TSRWP was constructed according to the designs set by NIPImunaigas of Aktau and complies with all
MEDP permit guidelines. The surrounding area of the TSRWP is protected with concrete, underground cells
for containers, tanks for storage and designated areas for transport decontamination. The vicinity of the
TSRWP is guarded, equipped with radiation safety warning signs and the approach roads are paved with
asphalt.

Waste Water

Water usage forms an integral part of oil extraction and each individual field is required to possess a
permit in relation to water usage. Both EMG, UMG and other assets operate closed process water
systems, minimising any adverse impacts on the environment. Process water is re-injected back into the
geological formation via pumping stations. According to the AMEC report, the Company is in compliance
with all permit conditions and no significant issues have been identified in relation to any associated
obligatory or contingent costs.

Environmental and Regulatory Compliance

The Company is required under article 25 of the LoEP to monitor and assess its impacts upon the
environment and regulatory compliance. This work is undertaken by two independent contractors. The
Company’s anticipated expenditure for the period to 2025, for environmental compliance is
US$3.4 million. A potential further US$2.9 million in contingent costs may be required if more stringent
legislation is introduced.

EMPLOYEES, HEALTH AND SAFETY

Employees

The table below sets out the number of people (full-time equivalents) employed by the Group as of
the periods indicated:

As of 31 December

As of 31 May 2006 2005 2004 2003
UMG . .. e 10,033 10,107 9,918 9,355
EMG . ... e 6,332 5,952 5,722 6,131
Corporate Headquarters . ........................ 213 218 116 oM
Subsidiaries. . . . ... 4,535 6,386 9,516 6,836
TOtal ..o 21,113 22,663 25272 22,322

(1) The Company was created in March 2004. See “—History and Organizational Structure”.

(2) The increase in 2004 was due to the purchase of the Atyrau Refinery and the decrease in 2005 was due
to its sale.

Trade Union

All employees of the Group’s production divisions are offered membership in the Company’s trade
union upon commencement of employment. The trade union represents the majority of employees and
assists with legal matters on behalf of employees, monitors compliance with labour laws and internal
labour procedures and mediates in the case of labour conflicts and lawsuits.

There have been no strikes in the history of the Group and good relations exist with the trade union.
Regular communication between the trade union and the Group’s management has prevented significant
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labour conflicts from arising. The Group is one of the largest employers in the South-West region
of Kazakhstan.

The general terms and conditions of employment at the Group’s production divisions are governed by
a collective agreement (the “Collective Agreement”) signed on 27 December 2004, between the Company
and the trade unions of the UMG and EMG production divisions as well as a Provision on Employee
Social Support board resolution issued by the Board of Directors on 13 October 2004. In addition, each
employee signs an individual employment contract. Under the Collective Agreement, the terms and
conditions of employment in the Company must be in full compliance with relevant Kazakhstan legislation,
including “Labour Law”, “Law on the Security and Safety of Labour”, “Law on Collective Agreements”,
“Law on Social Partnership” and “Law on Trade Unions”. The Collective Agreement also provides for
additional unpaid leave of absence for employees in a number of circumstances.

Management Compensation Plan

An executive compensation system has been developed for the Company by outside consultants. The
objective was to implement a fair, transparent and competitive compensation system which will be aligned
with shareholders’ interests, the Company’s strategy and best practice, including the practices of companies
listed on LSE.

The new compensation system consists of three parts:

* Fixed pay (salary)—employees’ salaries are set in accordance with job duties and seniority,
functional responsibilities and other specifically selected factors. To achieve this target the following
steps were completed: job analysis and job evaluation followed by building up job hierarchy and
salary benchmarking exercise using information available on the market and relevant for
comparison. The Company introduced a system of 15 job grades with respective salary bands for the
head office.

* Variable pay (performance bonus)—the system was developed to motivate management on the
annual basis for achieving short-term targets, set for individuals, business units and the Company.
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are used to evaluate the level, at which targets are met. An
average bonus amount may get up to 60-70% of annual salary if targets are met. The percentage
varies depending on job level.

* Share Option Plan—to motivate top management and to retain key employees on a long-term basis.

JSC KazMunaiGas EP Option Plan

The principal features of the Company’s Option Plan (the “Plan”) are outlined below. The Plan was
approved in principle by the Company’s shareholders in general meeting on 28 August 2006.

Operation  The Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors, which is responsible for granting
Options and IPO Awards (as defined below) and administering the Plan. The Plan is discretionary and will
only operate in those years that the Board of Directors determines. It is currently anticipated that Options
will be granted once every three years. IPO Awards will be granted only once, following Admission.

Eligibility  All employees or directors (except independent directors) of the Company or subsidiaries
of the Company are eligible to participate in the Plan at the discretion of the Board of Directors. However,
it is currently intended to offer participation only to senior employees and directors of the Company.

Grant of Options Options to acquire GDRs under and subject to the Plan (“Options”) may be
granted at any time on or following Admission. It is currently intended that the first grant of Options will
be made on or shortly after Admission. Further grants of Options may then be made three years after the
first grant of Options. Options may also be granted at different times in connection with the
commencement of an eligible employee’s employment or other exceptional circumstance if this is
appropriate.

Selected employees or directors (excluding the Independent Non-Executive Directors) may be
granted a one-time award (“IPO Award”) within three months of Admission. The purpose of an IPO
Award (which will take the form of an option with a zero exercise price) is to recognise the exceptional
efforts of the relevant participant in the lead-up to Admission.
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No payment will be required for the grant of Options or IPO Awards. Options and IPO Awards will
not be taken into account in determining a participant’s pension rights. Options and IPO Awards are not
transferable, other than on death.

Option exercise price  The price per GDR payable on the exercise of an Option shall be the closing
middle market quotation for a GDR on the dealing day immediately preceding the date of grant. No price
will be payable on the exercise of IPO Awards.

Limits on the use of GDRs The number of Shares underlying each GDR which may be purchased to
satisfy Options and IPO Awards granted under the Plan shall not exceed 1,358,440, which, for the
avoidance of doubt shall represent 5 per cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as
calculated on the first date on which the listing of Shares or GDRs becomes effective. Options which have
lapsed or have been released are ignored for the purposes of these limits.

Individual limits No employee or director may be granted Options under the Plan in any Plan Cycle
over GDRs with an aggregate market value at the date of grant in excess of 375 per cent of his base salary,
unless the Board determines that exceptional circumstances exist which justify exceeding this limit, in
which case, the limit shall be 500 per cent of salary. No employee or director may be granted an IPO
Award under the Plan with an aggregate market value at the date of grant in excess of 200% per cent of his
base salary.

Exercise of Options Subject to the participant discharging any relevant tax liability, Options
(excluding IPO Awards—see below) will normally be exercisable (“vest”) at the following times:

* as to one-third of the GDRs under option, on the first anniversary of the date of grant;
* as to a further one-third, on the second anniversary of the date of grant; and
* as to the remaining one-third, on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

IPO Awards will normally be exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Generally, to the
extent that the IPO Award has not been exercised, it shall lapse on the first day of the second month
following the date on which it becomes exercisable.

Exercise conditions Normally, in order for Options (including IPO Awards) to vest, participants must
remain in employment until the vesting date. For the initial grant of Options, it is not intended that the
vesting of Options will be subject to any performance targets. The Board may, however, determine that
Option granted in future should be subject to performance targets. The vesting of IPO Awards will not be
subject to any performance targets.

Special situations 1If a participant in employment with the Company or a subsidiary dies, his Options
and IPO Awards will be capable of exercise within a period of twelve months following his death. If a
participant leaves employment by reason of injury, disability, redundancy, the sale of the business for which
he works to a third party or retirement, his Options and IPO Awards may generally be exercised within
30 days of cessation. The Board of Directors will have discretion to determine what proportion of the
Options and IPO Awards shall vest taking into account the length of time the participant has held office or
employment and, where applicable, the extent to which any performance targets have been met.

If a participant ceases to be an employee or director of the Company or a subsidiary for any other
reason, his Option or IPO Award will normally lapse unless and to the extent the Board of Directors
decides otherwise.

In the event of a takeover, reconstruction or winding up of the Company, an Option and IPO Award
may be exercised to the extent that any relevant performance targets (if applicable) have been met and the
period elapsed since the date of grant. Alternatively, Options and IPO Awards may be exchanged for new
equivalent options where appropriate.

Rights attaching to GDRs GDRs transferred under the Plan will rank equally with all other GDRs of
the Company for the time being in issue (except for rights attaching to such GDRs by reference to a record
date prior to the exercise of the Option or IPO Award).

The Board may satisfy (generally with the consent of the participant) an Option or IPO Award on
exercise by paying to the participant in cash or other assets the gain (i.e. the difference between the market
value of the relevant GDRs on the date of exercise and the exercise price), as an alternative to transferring
or procuring the transfer of GDRs to the participant.
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Variation of Capital In the event of any variation of share capital, demerger or other corporate event,
the Board may make such adjustments as they consider appropriate to any exercise conditions (where
applicable), the number of GDRs subject to Options and IPO Awards and the price payable on the
exercise of Option.

Alterations to the Plan The Board may recommend alterations or additions to the provisions of the
Plan. These will require approval at the next general shareholders meeting.

Termination of the Plan The Plan shall terminate upon the tenth anniversary of its approval by the
Company or at any earlier time by the passing of an ordinary resolution of the Company in a general
shareholders meeting. Termination of the Plan shall be without prejudice to the subsisting rights of
Participants.

Overseas Employees The Board of Directors may grant Options and IPO Awards to overseas
employees or directors on different terms so as to take account of relevant overseas tax, securities or
exchange control laws provided that the Options are not overall more favourable than the terms of Options
and IPO Awards granted to other employees or directors.

JSC KazMunaiGas EP Employee Trust

The Company’s Employee Trust is a discretionary trust established in Jersey for the benefit of current
and former employees and directors of the Company and other group companies, and their dependants.
The object of the Trust is to encourage and facilitate the holding of Shares or GDRs by or for the benefit
of the beneficiaries. The trustee of the Trust is Abacus Corporate Trustee Limited, a company which is
independent of and unrelated to the Company (the “Trustee”). The Company has provided the Trustee
with a credit facility, advances under which may not exceed US$100 million in aggregate. The Trustee has
drawn down US$100 million and has applied for GDRs with a value of approximately US$30 million in the
Global Offer. The Company proposes to demand repayment by the Trustee of any funds remaining after
the Trustee’s participation in the Global Offer.

Retirement benefits and pensions

The Company provides the following social benefits and financial grants to its non-working retired
employees within the limit stipulated in the approved annual budget of the Company:

Lump sum payments are made upon retirement by reference to monthly salary.

Social benefits such as three tonnes of coal per retired employee with delivery per retired employee
free of charge every year to those who do not have a central heating system in their houses, upon
application, an annual subscription for one of the regional or town newspapers of a retired employee’s
choice, upon application and a free voucher for recreation and medical treatment at spa centres in
Kazakhstan subject to the number of vouchers determined in the approved annual budget. This type of
benefit is granted once in three years.

Financial grants including a grant of KZT5,000 payable to retired women employees on the
International Women’s Day of 8 March, a grant of KZT10,000 payable on the Nauryz Meiramy holiday, a
grant of KZT10,000 payable to WWII veterans on Victory Day, a grant of KZT5,000 payable to former
workers of labour fronts on Victory Day, a grant of KZT10,000 payable on the Day of Workers of the Oil
and Gas Complex, a grant of KZT10,000 payable on Elderly People’s Day, a grant of KZT10,000 payable
on the Republic of Kazakhstan Independence Day, a payment of KZT30,000 on the death of a pensioner
or his/her spouse, upon application filed by members of the family, a payment of KZT30,000 payable on
the 60th, 70th, 80th and 90th birthdays of retired employees, upon application and a payment for
medicines, upon application with supporting documents.

All such payments are subject to taxes and other obligatory payments required by Kazakhstan
legislation and are made at the Company’s expense. In addition, the Company contributes towards the
national pension scheme operated by the Government but does not itself provide a pension scheme.

Health and Safety

The Group is focused on the systematic improvement of labour safety. The Company’s health and
safety policies focus on providing safe working conditions, preventing technical failures and accidents and
increasing employees’ understanding of health and safety issues across its operations. To protect the health
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and safety of its workforce and to prevent accidents and injuries in its facilities, the Group aims to
continuously improve labour conditions and has developed labour safety polices which meet Kazakhstan
standards, which in many cases are similar to international standards. The Group has also conducted
scientific and technological studies to help it implement new engineering mechanisms in its operations that
are aimed at improving health and safety conditions. The Group believes that establishing and adhering to
stringent health and safety standards is an important factor in its success. Therefore, it monitors and
records health and safety incidents and promptly reports them to governmental agencies. The Group
currently maintains an overall health and safety management system for its production divisions and
reviews the performance of its production divisions on a regular basis.

The Group’s Department of Environmental Protection, Labour Protection and Safety develops
internal safety procedures, monitors compliance, investigates production accidents, coordinates safety
training and provides medical check-ups for employees.

The Group’s Department of Environmental Protection, Labour Protection and Safety also conducts
internal annual technical audits of the UMG and EMG production divisions regarding health and safety
conditions. The Group’s most recent internal audit, conducted in November 2005, found a consistent
decline in the levels of work-related injuries at its production divisions. Additional annual inspections are
conducted by the relevant governmental authorities in Kazakhstan. The Group’s monthly management
financial reports also provide health and safety statistics. For the Company, there were 14 accidents and
17 injured persons (including three fatalities) in 2003; 12 accidents and 13 injured persons (including two
fatalities) in 2004; five accidents and eight injured persons (none of which were fatal) in 2005; and two
accidents and two injured persons (including one fatality) for the five month period as at 31 May 2006.

As a result of its continuous audits of health and safety conditions and in conjunction with expert
advice from State agencies, the Group has implemented and is continuing to implement policies to detect
possible unsafe or harmful industrial conditions to protect the Group’s employees from work-related
accidents, injuries and illnesses in each of the Group’s production divisions. As part of the Group’s
policies, it is in the process of implementing ISO 9001:2000, ISO 14001:1996 and OHSAS 18001:1999
policies. By the end of 2007, the Group expects to have fully implemented these policies and will aim to
adhere to established standards for health and safety protection.

Compliance with Kazakhstan Requirements

The Group’s operations are subject to legislation, regulations and other requirements of Kazakhstan
relating to health and safety requirements applicable to oil and gas companies operating in Kazakhstan,
which are regulated by state authorities, including the Ministry of Labour and Social Protection. The
Group’s contracts and production licences require that all its operations be carried out in conformity with
applicable safety and health requirements and in accordance with methods and practices customarily used
in good international oilfield practice. See “—Licences and Contracts”.

As required by Kazakhstan regulations, the Group receives health and safety certification once every
three years.

At present, there are no significant disputes or legal proceedings with regulatory authorities with
respect to the Group’s compliance with the safety or health laws and regulations of Kazakhstan. In 2005,
the Company recorded no safety related liabilities that exceeded US$100,000 and the Company believes
that its work-related fatality rate is well below industry average.

Employer’s Liability Insurance

Pursuant to clause 20 of Article 20 of the Republic of Kazakhstan Law “On Labour Safety”
(No0.528-11, dated 28 February 2004) and the Republic of Kazakhstan Law “On Obligatory Insurance of
Civil Liability of Employer for Infliction of Injury to the Life and Health of Employee when Carrying Out
Work Duties” (No. 30-I11, dated 7 February 2005), an employer is obliged to maintain employer’s liability
insurance. On this basis, on 30 December 2005 the Company acquired from JSC Kazakhinstrakh
(“Kazakhinstrakh™) an annual policy insuring its liability arising from damage to the life and health of all
of its employees as a result of occupational accidents occurring during the period covered by the policy.
Under this policy, the limit of liability is equal to the annual payroll fund of the Company, which conforms
to legislative requirements.
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SOCIAL PROJECTS

The Company is required under the terms of its production contracts and licences to make financial
contributions to assist in implementing various social projects in the regions and cities where the Company
operates. Furthermore, the Company has an obligation under its subsoil use licenses and contracts to
invest in training the local workforce, upgrade the qualifications of its employees and provide educational
grants. Such obligations include funding the construction of medical, cultural, recuperation and
rehabilitation facilities, community centres, athletic facilities, housing and infrastructure in the areas in
which the Company operates.

The Group’s total costs for social projects mandated by subsoil contracts totalled KZT0.8 billion,
KZT0.5 billion and KZTO0.5 billion in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and totalled KZT0.3 billion and
KZTO0.1 billion for the five month periods ended 31 May 2006 and 31 May 2005, respectively.

In addition, at its own initiative or, in the past, at the direction of NC KMG, the Company has
implemented and implements social projects in the areas where it has operations and other areas in
Kazakhstan. The Company’s divisions, for example, are usually the primary employers in towns where they
are located, and the Company provides social aid by, among other things, providing special payments and
sponsor assistance for building roads and recreation centres, constructing residential dwellings and
providing residents with gas, heating and water.

The Group’s total costs for voluntary social projects totalled KZT3 billion, KZT1.9 billion and
KZT1.9 billion in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and totalled KZT3.2 billion and KZTO0.6 billion for the
five month periods ended 31 May 2006 and 31 May 2005, respectively.

LITIGATION

There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which
are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware), during the period covering the 12 months prior
to the date of this document, which may have or have had in the recent past significant effects on the
Group’s financial position or profitability, save for those matters described in “—Environmental Matters—
Mangistau Claim” and “—Taxation—Tax Claims”.

TAXATION

The Company believes that it has paid or accrued all taxes that are applicable to its operations. Where
practice concerning tax law application is unclear, the Company has accrued tax liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. The Company’s policy is to accrue contingencies in the accounting period in
which a loss is deemed probable and the amount is reasonably determinable. To date, the tax authorities of
the Ministry of Finance of the Government have brought a limited number of claims against the Company
in relation to cash royalties and taxes that are alleged to be owed by the Company. Other than these
disputes, which are described in more detail below, the Company is not currently party to any other
material legal or environmental regulatory proceedings relating to any tax claims. The Company is also not
aware of any threatened or unasserted legal or regulatory proceedings relating to any tax claims that it
believes would be material to it. Based on a consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, the
Company does not believe the ultimate outcome of any currently pending matter against the Company
either individually or in the aggregate will have a material adverse effect upon the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition.

Tax Claims

The Company has drawn on the assistance of its sister company, KMG Consulting, to process and
resolve the following tax claims:

Tax audit of UMG for 2002-2003

In November 2004, the Company was assessed taxes, fees and penalties totalling KZT14.6 billion by
the tax authorities in Kazakhstan with respect to the operations of the Company’s predecessor, UMG, for
the years 2002 through 2003 in respect of allegedly unpaid corporate income tax, excess profit tax, VAT
and other incidental amounts, including an administrative penalty in the amount of approximately
KZT4.4 billion. Corporate income tax and excess profit tax assessments were made in relation to the
alleged improper deduction of repair expenses and capitalisation of costs. The amount of VAT claimed by
tax authorities represents the difference between the rate of 16% which the Company was applying for
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sales of refined products and the stabilised rate of 20% which was stipulated under the relevant subsurface
use contracts. After a successful appeal and an agreement to pay an amount in respect of the corporate
income tax, the VAT claim relating to the supplies of oil to the Atyrau Refinery is the only one that
remains outstanding. The Company appealed this issue to the SIDECA in May 2006. In August 2006, the
SIDECA denied the Company’s appeal. The Company has further appealed this issue to the Astana City
Court and is expecting a hearing before 31 December 2006.

Transfer pricing audit of UMG for 2001-2003 and of EMG for 2003

Historically, provisions for taxes have been substantial following assessments alleging incorrect
application of transfer pricing legislation during the years 2001 to 2004. As at 31 May 2006, provisions for
taxes were KZT23.5 billion compared to KZT23.5 billion as at 31 December 2005 and KZT6.1 billion as at
31 December 2003. See “Operating and Financial Review—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Liquidity
and Working Capital”. Future tax provisions are not expected to be of the same magnitude, because the
transaction for supplies of oil to Ukraine, which gave rise to the biggest tax risks, have been terminated.
Currently, the Company does not supply oil to Ukraine.

Another part of the tax provision referred to above related to the VAT on oil transferred to the Atyrau
Refinery for tolling. The Company dramatically decreased tolling operations with the Atyrau Refinery in
2005 and plans to stop them at the end of 2006.

In November 2004, the tax authorities, together with the Department of National Security, the
Department of Customs and Control and the Department of Economic Crimes, commenced a joint audit
of UMG and EMG. The joint audit covered the years 2001 through 2003 for UMG and the year 2003 for
EMG and related to alleged violations of transfer pricing laws and regulations in Kazakhstan. Specifically,
the joint audit concerned the calculation of the amount of the Discount on the export price of the
Company’s crude oil that UMG and EMG provided to KMG TradeHouse AG for the periods covered by
the joint audit. As a result of the joint audit, the tax authorities determined that certain of the discounts
made on a notional FOB price provided to KMG TradeHouse AG for the periods under review either
exceeded the amounts permitted under applicable transfer pricing laws and regulations or were not
supported by adequate documentation and, therefore, were deemed by the tax authorities to exceed such
permitted amounts. In February 2005, the tax committee made an assessment against the Company
totalling approximately KZT2.3 billion, which represents the tax authorities estimate of the amount of
additional income tax and royalties that the Company would have had to pay if the Discounts provided to
KMG TradeHouse AG had not exceeded the permitted amounts. The Company was also assessed
approximately KZT1.4 billion by the tax authorities, which represents interest, administrative fines and
penalties for the alleged violation of applicable transfer pricing laws and regulations.

The Company believes that the position of the tax authorities is without merit and has successfully
challenged the assessments. In February 2006 the Supreme Court of Kazakhstan dismissed the tax
authorities claims of transfer pricing abuses against the Company in respect of the claims related to
trader’s and operator’s commission, however remained silent in respect of risk hedging expenses which
were not a significant part of the total claim. However, KMG TradeHouse AG will remain the Company’s
affiliate, and the Company recognises the inherent tax risk in such a relationship. While the Company has
in the past successfully challenged allegations of transfer pricing there can be no assurance that similar
claims will not be brought successfully in the future. As a consequence, the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005 include a tax reserve in respect of the
additional taxes, fees and penalties that may be assessed by the tax authorities for the alleged violation of
applicable transfer pricing laws and regulations by UMG and EMG.

Tax audit of EMG and the Company’s operations in 2002-2004

In August 2005, the Company was assessed approximately KZT1.2 billion of excess profit taxes and
approximately KZT86 million in fees and penalties. The tax authorities claim that for the years of
2002-2004 the EMG production unit of the Company incorrectly reduced its net profit from some of its
hydrocarbon contracts by unlawfully deducting the current year’s withholding tax on dividends and excess
profit tax for the preceding year.

The Company appealed the tax authorities’ decision to the central Tax Committee and then to the city
and Supreme courts. However, the Company’s appeal has been dismissed both at the Tax Committee and
in the courts. The Company has the right to further appeal the decision to the supervisory board of the
Supreme Court. The Company has already paid the whole amount of taxes together with fines and
penalties assessed pursuant to the results of this tax audit.
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See “Risk Factors—Risk Factors Relating to the Company’s Business—The Company is subject to an
uncertain tax environment which may lead to disputes with taxation authorities”.

REGULATORY MATTERS IN KAZAKHSTAN

The main regulatory bodies that are relevant to the Company’s operations in Kazakhstan include:

* Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources. MEMR is the central executive body of Kazakhstan with

responsibility for the regulation of the energy industry, including mineral resources and
petrochemical industries. MEMR’s functions include regulating the exploration, development and
use of subsoil resources including the preparation of contracts for subsoil use and monitoring the
production, transportation and processing of hydrocarbons and sales of oil products. Additional
regulation is promulgated through MEMR’s committee of geology and subsoil use as well as
through the organisational and territorial departments of the Ministry and its committees.

Commiittee for Financial Control and State Procurement of the Ministry of Finance (State Procurement
Committee). The State Procurement Committee is a committee of the Ministry of Finance that is
responsible for implementing and enforcing the State Procurement Law. The State Procurement
Law establishes mandatory procedures for the procurement of goods and services by state-owned
companies and other companies organised under the laws of Kazakhstan in which the state has a
50% or more direct or indirect ownership interest which gives it control over such company.
Generally, the State Procurement Law requires such companies to conduct a formal public tender
in order to procure most types of goods and services, subject to certain limited exceptions, such as
for goods and services not exceeding the current limit of approximately KZT4.0 million in amount
in any year. The procurement of certain limited categories of goods and services, as well as goods
and services provided by companies that are subject to the anti-monopoly laws of Kazakhstan, are
also not subject to the State Procurement Law.

* Ministry of Environmental Protection. The MEP is the central executive body of Kazakhstan

performing intra-industry coordination and the functions of state regulation and control in the area
of environmental protection. Its functions include approving or coordinating requirements and
establishing limits on discharges of polluting substances and disposal of production and
consumption waste and issuing permits and licences for certain ecologically dangerous activities
and nature use.

* Ministry of Labour and Social Protection. The Ministry of Labour and Social Protection is the

central executive body of Kazakhstan regulating and coordinating industry in the areas of labour
and social protection.

For a description of the taxation regulation the Company is subject to, see “—Taxation.”

Other

Other regulatory requirements to which the Group is subject (and which, in addition to compliance,
may require reporting, applying for permits or undergoing audits for compliance) include:

import and export of goods with customs authorities;
land use and construction permits with regional authorities;
statistical reporting with the Statistics Agency;

activities associated with the operation of facilities that are subject to supervision by Kazakhstan’s
emergency response authority; and

licensed activities associated with the operation of mining facilities.

Article 71 of the Subsoil Law

Article 71 of the Subsoil Law provides, amongst other things, that, in respect of both newly-concluded
subsoil contracts and subsoil contracts concluded before the coming into effect of the Subsoil Law (other
than contracts in respect of underground water and commonly occurring minerals), the state has a priority
right over the other party to the contract or over participants in a legal entity which possesses the subsoil
right, and over other persons, to acquire (on conditions no worse than those offered to other buyers): (i) all
or any part of a subsoil right which is being alienated; and/or (ii) the shares in the legal entity possessing a
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subsoil right and also in a legal entity which can directly and/or indirectly determine the decisions and/or
influence decisions to be taken by the subsoil user, if the main business of this last-mentioned legal entity is
connected with subsoil use in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

In connection with the Global Offer, on 11 July 2006 the Company was granted a formal waiver with
respect to this provision of the Subsoil Law, the effect of which is that the Global Offer and trading in the
Shares and GDRs are not subject to the state’s priority right.

INSURANCE

The Company insures some of its risks under a special insurance programme which includes the
following types of insurance coverage:

* assets insurance, including coverage of certain assets for fire, lightning, explosion and earthquake;
* insurance for wells out of control, which includes coverage of environmental damage done thereby;
 general third party liability insurance;

e directors and officers liability insurance;

e employer’s liability insurance; and

* environmental insurance for which there is a cap of KZT17.5 million.

The Company currently insures most of its risks with Kazakhinstrakh (for asset coverage, wells out of
control, third party liability, directors and officers liability, employer liability and environmental).

The types of coverage structure, limits and quality of the Company’s insurance programme are
comparable with other major Kazakh oil companies.

Under current Kazakhstan law, since 1 July 2005 all employers are obliged to insure against their
liability for damage to the health and life of employees when carrying out their work duties. On
30 December 2005 the Company purchased from Kazakhinstrakh an annual policy to insure against the
Company’s liability for damage to the health and life of employees caused by on-the-job accidents
occurring during the terms of the insurance policy. Under the policy, the limit of liability is the amount of
the Company’s annual payroll fund, which is in line with legislation.

In addition, pursuant to the Law “On Mandatory Environmental Insurance” dated 13 December 2005
the Company maintains insurance for its environmentally hazardous activities. The limit of liability and
other insurance terms are established in line with this legislation. In addition, since the Company owns
certain vehicles and facilities the operation of which is potentially liable to cause damage to third parties, it
is also obliged by Kazakhstan legislation to insure against its liability in connection with such vehicles and
facilities on a yearly basis.

The Company does not maintain business interruption, key-man, terrorism or sabotage insurance.
This is because, given the diversification of the Company’s oil and gas production assets and the overall
political and economic stability in Kazakhstan, the Company believes that the chance of any such event
occurring is small. Historically, the Company has authorised NC KMG to purchase certain types of
insurance services on its behalf. NC KMG puts in place a unified insurance programme for almost all of its
subsidiaries and/or affiliates. This allows the Company not only to reduce its general insurance costs, but
also to gain access to insurance of certain risks which are impossible and/or uneconomic to insure on a
unit-by-unit basis. In addition the Company itself has determined the scope and terms of insurance
coverage on the basis of an analysis of its inherent operation risks, and has entered into agreements for
specific types of insurance and has paid its own insurance premiums. The Company intends to continue to
participate in this insurance programme after the Global Offer.

The Company is also in the process of establishing a risk management committee. See “Directors and
Management Board—Corporate Governance—Risk Management Committee”.

A key aspect of the Company’s insurance programme is the re-insurance of risks assumed by local
insurers with foreign re-insurers having a financial security rating of at least ‘A-” (Standard & Poor’s, Fitch)
or at least ‘A3’ (Moody’s).

As part of the insurance programme, international specialised engineering companies and/or
authorised engineers of foreign re-insurers conduct regular engineering reviews of the Company’s insured
assets. Such reviews are followed by the re-assessment of scenarios and the size of the maximum probable
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damage and recommendations concerning how to improve risk quality. The Company takes into account
such recommendations when planning and implementing a risk management action plan and when
forming a budget for the relevant year (if risk response actions require financial resources).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The company possesses a trademark for the Russian version of its corporate name “KazMunaiGas”
Exploration Production”, but does not possess the trademark for the English version. The Company’s
operations are not materially dependent upon any specific patent or other intellectual property right or
intellectual property licence.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal controls over financial reporting are controls and procedures that are designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements,
and ensure that information required to be disclosed by a public company in the financial reports that it
makes public is recorded, processed, summarised and reported within the appropriate time periods.

In connection with the Global Offer and following identification by its independent auditors of a
material weakness in its internal controls over financial reporting, the Company conducted a review of the
effectiveness of its internal controls on financial reporting. Based upon this review, the Company decided
to implement certain new procedures and processes in order for the Directors to make proper and timely
judgments regarding the financial position and prospects of the Company. Deloitte & Touche was hired to
assist the Company in developing and implementing the new procedures and processes. These new
procedures and processes included the implementation of IFRS and the design of a monthly management
IFRS reporting pack which will be reviewed by senior management and the Board each month.

The Company’s management is devoting resources to the development of internal controls in order to
minimise the risks to critical business decisions regarding budgeting, planning and other matters that may
be based on incomplete or inaccurate information. At present the Company is reliant in part on external
consultants. The Company is aiming to hire additional qualified staff and to train existing staff in the
operation of IFRS, recognising the difficulty of retaining such staff once trained.

For a discussion of material weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls, see “Risk Factors—Risk
Factors Relating to the Company’s Business—The Company’s accounting systems are not as sophisticated
or robust as those of companies with a longer history of compliance with IFRS and certain material
weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls have been identified by the Company’s independent
auditor”.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In March 2005, the Company began the implementation of a SAP information technology platform to
improve the production of accurate financial results in a timely and cost effective manner and to manage
the Company’s information technology systems. The platform consists of seven modules that manage the
following areas: finance, assets accounts, internal accounting controls, record keeping and budgeting,
inventory management, reserve management, sales and distribution, production planning and contract
monitoring. The Company expects to complete the roll out of the SAP platform by the end of 2007.

In addition, in 2000 the Company installed a unified geological information system designed by
Schlumberger. The system is based on a data management technology called Finder, which assists the
Company in monitoring the exploration and development of its oil and gas fields, collecting production
data, carrying out hydrodynamic modelling and interpreting geological and geophysical information. This
software was also employed as part of the rehabilitation measures taken at the 3A block in the Uzen field.

The Company does not currently have a disaster recovery plan but expects to have this in place prior
to the end of 2006.

The Company has improved its information technology security control environment through
purchasing security solutions (including firewalls). However, formal reviews of security configurations,
application security and data access are not performed on a regular basis.
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LICENCES AND CONTRACTS
Overview

The state owns the crude oil and gas in the subsoil of Kazakhstan. It grants hydrocarbon contracts in
the form of exploration, production or exploration and production contracts for fixed periods of time.
Although exploration may be conducted without an exploration contract, an explorer that does not possess
an exploration contract does not have exclusive rights to conduct exploration activities within the explored
area and is not entitled to enter into negotiations with MEMR for a production contract until an
exploration contract is obtained. When commercial discoveries are made, the holder of an exploration
contract has an exclusive right to obtain a production contract through direct negotiations with MEMR.
Hydrocarbons may only be extracted and sold if the producer has entered into a production contract with
MEMR, except for limited production made for trial purposes. The production contract defines the
subterranean zones (for example, the Triassic Zone) from which the holder may extract hydrocarbons.
Production contracts may govern the production rights for more than one block.

The negotiation of a hydrocarbon contract is a complex process requiring the agreement of a number
of governmental ministries, including MEMR, and requires the preparation of economic models with
financial expenditure commitments. In the event a hydrocarbon contract cannot be negotiated, an explorer
or producer risks losing all rights to its exploration and/or production for the geography in question. In
addition, the explorer or producer and a department of the Government, known as a research and design
institute, must formulate a development plan for each field specifying detailed drilling and production
targets once commercial discovery is made. The development plan may be periodically modified with the
approval of MEMR in order to reflect changing circumstances. Default by a producer under the terms of a
hydrocarbon contract or development plan can result in the loss of a hydrocarbon contract and,
accordingly, all production rights.

Prior to 1999, subsurface use rights in Kazakhstan were granted through issuance of an exploration
and/or production licence and a related contract which was negotiated after the issuance of a licence. A
contract would set forth the specific terms of the exploration and/or production activities based upon the
licence terms. Contract terms could not contradict the license as the latter had prevailing force over the
contract. In 1999, Kazakhstan law changed such that licences were no longer separately required. Licences
granted prior to the change in law remain in force until they expire. Since 1999, exploration and/or
production rights are granted pursuant to a contract only.

Royalty and other Payments

The Company is subject to a variety of taxes, fees and royalty payments under its contracts and
licences, including the payment of excess profit taxes. The table below sets forth a description of the
Company’s royalty payments for its UMG oil fields and the eight major EMG fields. All royalty payments
in respect of the Company’s contracts are paid in cash or in kind. Where more than one field is covered by
a single contract, the royalty is calculated on the basis of the level of production achieved at all of the fields
included in the contract. The royalties payable depend upon the cumulative production levels and increase
over time. Due to the length of time during which its fields have been in use, the Company pays the
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maximum level of royalties with respect to its fields. The table sets forth examples of the royalty rates
payable under the contracts relating to the following fields.

Field®

UMG Fields:
Uzen
Karamandybas

EMG Fields:

Kenbai (Moldabek East/North Kotyrtas)

Nurzhanov

Kamyshitovoye South-West

Botakhan
Zaburunye

Makat East . . ... ...

Zhanatalap

Kamyshitovoye South-East

Effective Effective
Average Royalty  Average Royalty
Rate for Rate for
2005@ 2004?
3.0% 3.0%
3.0% 3.0%
8.0% 8.0%
5.0% 5.0%
4.6% 4.6%
4.6% 4.6%
4.6% 4.6%
4.6% 4.6%
4.6% 4.6%
4.6% 4.6%

(1) Royalty terms remain the same throughout the term of the contract unless the contract is amended.

(2) The average royalty rate per contract was calculated by dividing the total annual royalty liabilities by
the total annual royalty base.

As described below, the rate of excess profit tax applicable to a field is set forth in the relevant licence.
In light of the fact that it has made substantial voluntary social payments in the past in connection with the
Uzen fields, the Company is seeking to negotiate a reduction in the rate of excess profit tax applicable to

those fields.

Licences and Contracts

UMG Fields

The following table lists each of the UMG fields according to contract number and sets forth the
licence number, date of issue of the licence and the execution and expiration dates of each contract.

UMG FIELDS
Expiration Execution
Contract Date of Date of Expiration Date
Number Field Licence License Contract of Contract
40 Uzen (oil and gas) | MG#254(H) 05.09.95 | 05.09.2020 | 29.05.96 | 29.05.2021
40 Karamandybas (oil) | MG#255(H) 05.09.95 | 05.09.2020 | 29.05.96 | 29.05.2021
67 Karamandybas (gas) | MG#289(H) 17.07.97 | 11.122020 | 17.06.97 | 17.06.2022
68 Tenge West (gas) MG#287(H) 11.12.95 | 11.122020 | 17.06.97 | 17.06.2022
66 Tasbulat (gas) MG#288(H) 01.02.96 | 01.02.2021 17.06.97 17.06.2022
69 Zhetybai South (gas) | MG#927(B) 24.10.96 | 24.10.2021 | 17.06.97 | 17.06.2022
65 Aktas (gas) MG#286(H) 01.02.96 | 01.02.2021 17.06.97 17.06.2022
458 East Uzen (gas) Al#1561 14.12.99 13.12.2024 | 28.04.2000 13.12.2024
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of Contract No. 40, which is the main production

contract for the Uzen fields.

Contract No. 40

Contract Area

Term

Royalty Payments

Corporate Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Excess Profit Tax

Property Tax

Road Use Tax

Land Fee
Employment Fund Fee

Social Insurance Fund Fee

Social Programmes

Environmental Fund Fee

Training of Personnel

Other Provisions

Contract No. 40 covers 366.26 square kilometres and is divided into two
fields, Uzen and Karamandybas. The fields are located in the
Karakiyansky region of Mahgistan Oblast.

Expires 29 May 2021.

Monthly payment to the state budget of a fixed royalty, equal to 3% of
the volume of extracted hydrocarbons, calculated on the basis of the
average price for the reporting period, payable during the term of the
contract.

Monthly payment of corporate income tax at a fixed rate of 30% of the
Company’s taxable income, each year during the term of the contract.

Fixed at 20% of the value of taxable turnover.

Annual payment of excess profit. Excess profit tax (“EPT”) is
calculated at the following rates:

Real rate of return Rate

less than 20% 0%

more than 20% but less or equal  30% of the profit exceeding 20%
to 25%

more than 25% 50% of the profit exceeding 25%

Quarterly payment to the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 0.5%
of the residual book value of main production and non-production
assets, payable during the term of the contract.

Monthly payment to the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 0.5% of
the volume of the hydrocarbon sales revenues, payable during the term
of the contract.

Quarterly payment to the relevant local budget.

Monthly payment to the state budget at a fixed rate of 12% of
employees’ salaries and wages payable by the Company during the term
of the contract.

Monthly payment into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 30%
of the employee’s salaries and wages fund, payable by the Company
during the term of the contract.

The Company’s participation in the development of social
infrastructure in the contractual area is stipulated in the Company’s
work programmes.

Quarterly payment of a fee into the Kazakhstan Environmental Fund at
annual rates set by local authorities depending on factual emissions of
pollutants during the term of the contract.

No less than one per cent of annual capital expenditure.

Contract No. 40 requires the Company to shut down all wells drilled on
the Uzen and Karamandybas fields that are no longer used by the
Company in its operations.
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EMG Fields

The following table lists each of the EMG fields according to contract number and sets forth the
licence number and the execution and expiration dates of each contract.

EMG FIELDS
Expiration Execution
Contract Date of Date of Expiration Date

Number Field Licence and date of issue License Contract of Contract

413 Western field of Al#1007 (oil) 08.10.2025 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
Nurzhanov 08.04.1999

413 Akingen MG#225 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Aktyube MG#233 (oil) 27.07.2010 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Dosmukhambetovskoye | MG#96 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Karaton MG#226 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Koshkimbet MG#227 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Kisimbai MG#230 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Koshagyl MG#223 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Kulsary MG#221 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Nurzhanov MG#232 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Teren-Uzyuk West MG#229 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Akkuduk MG#231 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Tyulyus MG#224 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 West Prorva MG#97 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
27.07.1995

413 Tazhigali MG#228 (oil) 27.07.2015 | 03.03.2000 03.03.2020
(abandoned) 27.07.1995

211 Altykul MG#262 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Baichunas MG#263 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 S. Balgimbaev MG#279 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Bek-Beke MG#264 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Botakhan MG#265 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995
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EMG FIELDS

Expiration Execution
Contract Date of Date of Expiration Date

Number Field Licence and date of issue License Contract of Contract

211 Dossor MG#274(oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Gran MG#283 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Iskine MG#266 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Kamyshitovoye MG#282 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
South-East 01.12.1995

211 Kamyshitovoye MG#281 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
South-West 01.12.1995

211 Karsak MG#267 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Komsomolskii MG#268 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
(Narmundanak) 01.12.1995

211 Koshkar MG#269 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Makat MG#275 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Makat East MG#276 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Sagiz MG#270 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
(abandoned) 01.12.1995

211 Rovnoe MG#280 (oil) 01.12.2005 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Tanatar MG#271 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Zaburunje MG#284 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 Zhanatalap MG#285 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

211 B. Zholamanov MG#278 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018

211 Zholdybay North MG#277 (oil) 01.12.2015 | 13.08.1998 13.08.2018
01.12.1995

37 Kenbai (Moldabek MG#88 (oil) 08.02.2020 | 16.01.1996 16.01.2021
East/North Kotyrtas) 08.02.1995

61 Novobogatinsk MG#94 (oil) 05.01.2016 | 28.05.1997 | 28.05.2017
South-East 05.01.1996

327 Taisogan GK1#1529 09.01.2030 | 12.05.1999 12.05.2030
09.01.1999

406 Liman — — 19.02.2000 | 19.02.2027
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The following tables summarise the principal terms of Contract No. 37, Contract No. 61, Contract
No. 211 and Contract No. 413 respectively, which are the main production contracts for the EMG fields.

Contract No. 37

Contract Area

Term

Royalty Payments

Corporate Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Excess Profit Tax

Property Tax

Road Use Tax

Land Tax
Employment Fund Fee

Social Insurance Fund Fee

Social Programmes

Environmental Fund Fee

Training of Personnel

Production Bonus

Contract No. 37 covers the 112 square kilometre area that comprises
the Kenbai licence area which is divided into two fields, East Moldabek
and North Kotyrtas. The fields are located in the Kzylkolginsky region
of the Atyrau Oblast in the south-eastern part of the Pre-Caspian Basin.

Expires 16 January 2021.

Annual payments of a fixed royalty, equal to 8% of oil sales proceeds,
each year during the term of the contract. Royalty payments are made
in Tenge. The Government reserves the right to require royalty
payments in kind with prior notification to subsoil user.

Monthly payments of corporate income tax at a fixed rate of 30% of the
Company’s net income during the term of the contract.

Fixed at 20% of the value of taxable turnover and taxable imports.

Annual payment on excess profits depending on the Company’s
internal rate of return.

Quarterly payments of a property tax to the relevant local budget
authorities at a fixed rate of 0.5% of the residual book value of main
production and non-production funds payable during the term of the
contract. Intangible assets are not subject to the property tax.

Monthly payments of a road use tax to the relevant local budget at a
fixed rate of 0.5% of the taxable revenue, payable annually during the
term of the contract.

Quarterly payments to the relevant local authorities of a land tax.

Monthly payments to the state at a fixed rate of 2% of employees’
salaries and wages, payable by the Company during the term of
the contract.

Monthly payments to the state at a fixed rate of 30% of employees’
salaries and wages, payable by the Company during the term of
the contract.

The Company must participate in the development of the social
infrastructure in the area of operation of the contract in accordance
with Kazakhstan legislation and project feasibility.

Quarterly payments into the Kazakhstan Environmental Fund at annual
rates set by local authorities depending on factual emissions of
pollutants during the term of the contract.

Up to 1% of total expenditures.

Production bonuses payable as follows:

Volume of extracted oil Production bonus

1 million tonnes of oil US$500,000

5 million tonnes of oil US$1,000,000
10 million tonnes of oil US$1,500,000
15 million tonnes of oil US$2,000,000

Production bonuses are not calculated for the purposes of ascertaining
the corporate income tax or excess profit tax.
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Contract No. 61

Contract Area

Term

Royalty Payments

Corporate Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Excess Profit Tax

Property Tax

Road Use Tax

Land Tax
Employment Fund Fee

Social Insurance Fund,

Obligatory Medical Insurance
Fund and Pension Fund Fee

Social Programmes

Environmental Fund Fee

Training of Personnel

Signing Bonus

Production Bonus

Contract No. 211

Contract Area

Contract No. 61 covers the 9.2 square kilometre area that comprises the
South Eastern Novobogatinskoye Field which is located 40 kilometres
to the west of the Ural river in the south-eastern part of the Volga-Ural
interfluve.

Expires 28 May 2017.

Annual payments of a fixed royalty, equal to 6% of the volume of
extracted oil, each year during the term of the contract. The
Government reserves the right to change the monetary form of the
royalty payments to payments in kind, with 60 days prior notice to
subsoil user.

Monthly payments of corporate income tax at a fixed rate of 30% of the
Company’s taxable income during the term of the contract.

Fixed at 20%.

Annual payments on the excess profit depending on the Company’s
internal rate of return.

Quarterly payments of property tax to the relevant local authorities at a
fixed annual rate of 1.0% of the residual book value of main production
and non-production funds payable during the term of the contract.

Monthly payments of road use tax to the relevant local authorities at a
fixed rate of 0.5% of the value of hydrocarbon sales revenues, each year
during the term of the contract.

Quarterly payments to the relevant local authorities of a land tax.

Monthly payments into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 2%
of the salaries and wages fund, payable in the course of the contract.

Monthly payments into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 30%
of the salaries and wages fund, payable in the course of the contract.

The Company is required to participate directly in social infrastructure
development in accordance with the feasibility study.

Quarterly payments into the Kazakhstan Environmental Fund at annual
rates set annually by local authorities depending on factual emissions of
pollutants during the term of the contract.

Not less than 1% of total expenditure.

Payment of an amount of US$15,000 within 30 days from the signing
date.

Payment of US$50,000 once production volume reaches 200,000
tonnes, 400,000 tonnes and 600,000 tonnes.

Contract No. 211 covers the operation of 23 fields in two regions within
the Atyrau Oblast. Of these 23 fields the following are still operational:

O Isataisky Region: Zaburunye, Zhanatalap, Gran, Balgimbaev,
Kamyshitovoye SW, Kamyshitovoye SE, Rovnoye.

O Makatsky Region: Botakhan, Karsak, Altykul, Bek-Beke,
Komsomolskoye, Dossor, Iskine, Baichunas, Koshkar, Makat,
Makat East, North Zholdybai, Sagiz.

0 Kzylkoginsky Region: B. Zholamanov.
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Terms

Royalty Payments

Liquidation Fund

Corporate Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Excess Profit Tax

Property Tax

Road Use Tax

Land Tax
Employment Fund Fee

Social Insurance Fund and
Obligatory Medical Insurance
Fund Payment

Expires 13 August 2018.

Annual payments of a variable royalty on the value of extracted
hydrocarbons excluding natural gas. The tax is calculated at the average
cost minus transportation expenses and other taxes, and varies as
follows:

Royalty Rate Annual Production
(in tonnes per year)
3.5% 0 to 500,000
4.0% 500,000 to 1,000,000
5.0% 1,000,000 to 1,500,000
6.0% Over 1,500,000

Annual payments of a royalty on the value of extracted gas at a rate of
3.5%.

In case of the cancellation of the excise tax on crude oil and oil sale
either to the CIS or the domestic market, a monthly payment of a fixed
royalty must be made by the Company equal to EUR 3.00 per tonne
of oil.

US$110,000,000, by annual payments of US$5,500,000.

Monthly payments of corporate income tax at a fixed rate of 30% of the
Company’s taxable income during the term of the contract.

Fixed at 20%.

Annual payments on excess profit depending on the Company’s
internal rate of return and varies as follows:

Tax rate for excess profit,
% to the net income for

Internal rate of return, % the taxable year
Lower or equal to 20 0
Exceeds 20, but lower or equal to 22 4
Exceeds 22, but lower or equal to 24 8
Exceeds 24, but lower or equal to 26 12
Exceeds 26, but lower or equal to 28 18
Exceeds 28, but lower or equal to 30 24
Exceeds 30 30

Quarterly payments of property tax to the relevant local budget
authorities at a fixed annual rate of 1.0% of the residual book value of
main production and non-production funds payable during the term of
the contract.

Monthly payments of a road use tax to the relevant local authorities at a
fixed rate of 0.1% of the value of hydrocarbon sales revenues, each year
during the term of the contract.

Quarterly payments to the relevant local authorities of a land tax.

Monthly payments into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 2%
of the salaries and wages fund, payable in the course of the contract.

Monthly payments into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of
19.5% of the salaries and wages fund, payable in the course of the
contract.
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Social Programmes

Environmental Fund Fee

Ecological Programme

Training of Personnel

Signing Bonus

Commercial Discovery Bonus

Production Bonus

Historical Costs Compensation

The Company must pay US$1,500,000 within 90 days of the beginning
of each calendar year, during the entire term of the contract.

Quarterly payments into the Kazakhstan Environmental Fund at annual
rates set by local authorities depending on factual emissions of
pollutants during the term of the contract.

The Company must pay US$21,698,000 during the term of the contract.
Not less than 1% of annual capital expenditure.

Payment in the amount of US$300,000 within 30 days from the
signing date

Payment at a rate of 0.05% out of the cost of additional reserves
extracted, payable in the course of discovery of additional reserves not
ascertained by the licences.

Payment at a rate of 0.1% out of the factual cost of the extracted
hydrocarbons payable by a single payment every five years.

Compensation of historical costs is payable under the separate
agreement to be concluded not later then 60 days after the signing of
the contract.
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Contract No. 413

Contract Area

Terms

Royalty Payments

Liquidation Fund

Corporate Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Excess Profit Tax

Property Tax

Land Fee

Social Insurance Fund Fee

Contract No. 413 covers the Tengiz group of fields in the Zhylyoisky
region of the Atyrau Oblast, in the Southern part of the PreCaspian
Basin, which are the following:

0 Teren-Uzyuk, Karaton-Koshkimbet, Kulsary, Koschagyl, Akkuduk,
Akingen, Tyulyus, Aktyube, Dosmukhambetovskoye, Nurzhanov,
Western Prorva, Kisimbai.

Expires 3 March 2020.

Annual payments of a variable royalty on the value of extracted
hydrocarbons. The tax is calculated at the average cost minus
transportation expenses and other taxes and varies as follows:

Royalty Rate Annual Production

(in thousands of tonnes
per year)

2.0% 0 to 500

5.0% 500 to 5,000
6.0% 5,000 to 15,000
5.0% 15,000 to 17,500
3.0% Over 17,500

The Government reserves the right to change the monetary form of
the royalty payment to payment in kind with 60 days’ prior notice to
subsoil user.

No fixed royalty

Annual payment in the amount of US$1,753,000 for the term of
the contract.

Monthly payments of corporate income tax at a fixed rate of 30% of the
Company’s taxable income during the term of the contract.

Fixed at 20%.

Annual payments on excess profits depending on the Company’s
internal rate of return and varies as follows:

Tax rate for excess profit,
% to the net income for

Internal rate of return, % the taxable year
Lower or equal to 20 0
Exceeds 20, but lower or equal to 22 4
Exceeds 22, but lower or equal to 24 8
Exceeds 24, but lower or equal to 26 12
Exceeds 26, but lower or equal to 28 18
Exceeds 28, but lower or equal to 30 24
Exceeds 30 30

Quarterly payments of a property tax to the relevant local budget
authorities at a fixed annual rate of 1.0% of the residual book value of
main production and non-production funds payable during the term of
the contract.

Quarterly payments into the relevant local budget of land tax at a rate
to be established pursuant to Part VII of the Law No. 2235 “On taxes
and other obligatory payments to the budget” dated 24 April 1995.

Monthly payments into the relevant local budget at a fixed rate of 26%
of the salaries and wages fund, payable in the course of the contract.
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Ecological Programme
Social Programmes
Environmental Fund Fee
Training of Personnel
Signing Bonus

Commercial Discovery Bonus

Historical Costs Compensation

To be implemented by the Company for a total amount of
US$50,000,000 for the term of the contract.

Payments total into US$1,753,000 for the term of contract.

Quarterly payments into the Kazakhstan Environmental Fund at annual
rates set by local authorities depending on factual emissions of
pollutants during the term of the contract.

Not less than 1% of total annual expenditure.

Payment in the amount of US$355,000 within 30 days from the
signing date.

Payment at a rate of 0.05% out of the cost of additional reserves
extracted payable in the course of discovery of additional reserves not
ascertained by the licences.

The total compensation of historical costs for geological exploration
works is ascertained in the amount of US$1,298,000. Payment for the
right to use information: US$6,490. If the Company enters into
agreement to incorporate the joint venture with the foreign company,
the payment for the right to use information will amount to US$38,940
(these payments are within the total compensation sum).
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth certain historical consolidated financial information derived from the
Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements as at and for the five month period ended
31 May 2006 and from the Company’s consolidated financial statements as at and for the years ended
31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003, which have been audited by Ernst & Young Kazakhstan LLP.
Prospective investors should read this section together with “Operating and Financial Review” and the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included herein, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS and in relation to EBITDA should see “Presentation of Financial and
Other Information”.

Amounts shown in US dollars have been translated solely for the convenience of the reader at the
average rate over the applicable period for information derived from the consolidated statements of
income and consolidated statements of cash flows and the end of the period rate for information derived
from the consolidated balance sheets. See “Exchange Rate Information”.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at 31 May As at 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment . . 2,021,779 245,605,660 1,817,536 243,131,834 257,958,200 223,984,629
Other non-current assets. . . . . . 172,651 20,973,624 468,181 62,628,519 31,961,170 6,926,019
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . 249,645 30,326,888 150,913 20,187,588 14,127,579 9,310,184
Other current assets . ....... 1,071,834 130,206,376 825,565 110,435,767 76,706,675 47,475,495
Total assets . . . ........... 3,515,909 427,112,548 3,262,195 436,383,708 380,753,624 287,696,327
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total equity . . .. .......... 1,775,018 215,629,213 1,298,741 173,732,563 168,733,696 155,559,157
Non-current borrowings . . . . . . 345,650 41,989,591 403,893 54,028,740 50,758,435 8,145,588
Other non-current liabilities . . . 538,871 65,462,032 477,681 63,899,328 67,291,605 65,120,194
Current borrowings . . .. ... .. 157,468 19,129,206 157,892 21,121,175 18,100,418 10,160,262
Other current liabilities . . . . .. 698,901 84,902,506 923,988 123,601,902 75,869,470 48,711,126
Total liabilities and equity . . . . 3,515,908 427,112,548 3,262,195 436,383,708 380,753,624 287,696,327
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Five months ended 31 May

Year ended 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Export:

Crude oil . ....... 1,618,910 150,286,721 104,690,882 2,257,904 300,030,298 203,059,607 146,167,659

Refined products . . . 0 0 651,491 4,903 651,491 6,791,761 3,347,074
Domestic:

Crude oil . ....... 101,577 13,059,758 0 52,159 6,930,889 94,638 3,153,951

Refined products . . . 32,252 4,146,619 13,681,276 246,930 32,812,045 18,487,681 19,641,750

Gas products . . . . . . 12,223 1,571,511 1,408,663 30,720 4,082,068 3,886,963 2,905,790
Other sales and services 12,910 1,659,852 1,323,849 14,469 1,922,654 4,782,568 2,541,149

1,327,872 170,724,461 121,756,161 2,607,085 346,429,445 237,103,218 177,757,373

Operating expenses . . . (530,182) (68,165,441) (70,956,733) (1,539,551) (204,575,552) (162,276,362) (136,586,864)
Profit from operations . 797,690 102,559,020 50,799,428 1,067,534 141,853,893 74,826,856 41,170,509
Finance (expense)

income . . ........ (32,498) (4,178,210) 509,732 8,237 1,094,568 (3,436,830)  (2,228,285)
Profit before tax and

minority interest 765,192 98,380,810 51,309,160 1,075,771 142,948,461 71,390,026 38,942,224
Income tax expense . . . (443,412) (57,009,517) (32,195,396) (746,483) (99,192,639) (58,209,157) (31,513,204)
Profit for the period

from continuing

operations . ...... 321,780 41,371,293 19,113,764 329,288 43,755,822 13,180,869 7,429,020
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit for the period

from discontinued

operations. . . ... .. 0 0 701,563 11,447 1,521,130 283,718 74,211
Profit for the period . . . 321,780 41,371,293 19,815,327 340,736 45,276,952 13,464,587 7,503,231
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the

Company . ....... 321,780 41,371,293 19,721,658 339,213 45,074,642 13,426,853 7,493,361
Minority interest . . . . . 0 0 93,669 1,523 202,310 37,734 9,870
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Five months ended 31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (audited)

Net cash generated from

operating activities . . . . . 203,383 26,148,964 26,687,846 564,823 75,053,723 60,494,214 45,211,534
Net cash used in investing

activities . ... ....... (94,125) (12,101,652) (54,238,665) (748,769) (99,496,430) (82,338,545) (33,465,385)
Net cash (used in) from

financing activities . . . . . (24,037) (3,090,452) 57,393,020 226,385 30,082,102 27,160,949  (5,080,542)
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Other measures

Five months ended 31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2004 2003
(US$ thousands) (KZT thousands) (US$ thousands) (KZT thousands)

Oil Production

and other

costs® . ... .. 267,686 34,416,432 31,592,819 698,525 92,819,968 64,732,557 52,888,027
Oil Production

and other costs

(KZT/USD per

bb)® . L 9.43 1,212 1,133 10.16 1,350 989 911
Consolidated

EBITDA®®) | 893,656 114,897,380 59,475,712 1,250,879 166,216,789 95,926,316 58,906,540
Capital

expenditure® . 121,118 15,572,081 14,512,853 365,106 48,515,340 42,863,008 28,488,186
Consolidated net

debt® ... ... (215,336) (26,158,957) — (47,504) (6,354,581) 20,012,908 2,727,264

(1) Oil production and other costs represent an aggregate of the following operating expenses line items (as presented in the
Company’s IFRS financial statements included elsewhere in this document): employee costs, materials expense, repair,
maintenance and other services, energy and other costs. These include costs related to gas producing and processing activities, oil
processing activities and general and administrative costs which are not directly related to oil production and which increased the
US dollar cost per barrel by approximately US$1 to US$2 for both the year ended 31 December 2005 and for the five months
ended 31 May 2006. Oil production and other costs exclude royalties (production tax) and all other taxes.

(2) The following table provides a reconciliation of the Company’s EBITDA to the Company’s profit before tax and minority
interest for the periods concerned:

Five months ended

31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(KZT thousands)

Profit before tax and minority interest . ......... 98,380,810 51,309,160 142,948,461 71,390,026 38,942,224
Add back:

Finance (income)/expense . .. ............... 4,178,210 (509,732) (1,094,568) 3,436,830 2,228,285
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation . . . . ... .. 12,338,360 8,676,284 24,362,896 21,099,460 17,736,031
Consolidated EBITDA . .. ................. 114,897,380 59,475,712 166,216,789 95,926,316 58,906,540

(3) See also “Presentation of Financial and Other Information”.

(4) Capital expenditures relate to continuing operations and have been calculated on a cash basis. See “Operating and Financial
Review—Capital Expenditures and Commitments”.

(5) See “Operating and Financial Review—Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

Ratio Analysis

The following table sets out a summary of interest cover, relating to the continuing operations of the
Company, and debt/equity ratios relating to the Company. The data used in the ratio calculations has been
extracted without material adjustment from, and should be read in conjunction with, the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Five months ended

31 May Years ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(KZT thousands)
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Interest Cover Ratio
Profit from operations® (A) .. ........ 102,559,020 50,799,428 141,853,893 74,826,856 41,170,509
Interest expense/(income)® (B) ... ... .. (924,270)  (217,633) (818,527) 2,314,065 4,253,183
Interest cover (A/B) . ....... ... .... (111.0) (233.4) (173.3) 32.3 9.7
Debt/equity ratio
Borrowings (A) . ......... ... ... 61,118,797 — 75,149,915 68,858,853 18,305,850
Cash and cash equivalents (B) . .. ...... 30,326,888 — 20,187,588 14,127,579 9,310,184
Current and non-current financial

assets® (C) ... 56,950,866 — 61,316,908 34,718,366 6,268,402
Net debt/(cash) (D =A - B - C)..... (26,158,957) —  (6,354,581) 20,012,908 2,727,264
Total net assets (E) ................ 215,629,213 — 173,732,563 168,733,696 155,559,157
Gross gearing ratio (A/E) . ........... 28.34% — 43.3% 40.8% 11.8%
Net gearing ratio (D/E) . ............ (12.13%) — (3.7%) 11.9% 1.8%

(1) From continuing operations.
(2) Excluding foreign exchange gains/(losses).

(3) Current financial assets exclude loans receivable from NC KMG and other companies under common
control, as at 31 May 2006 and 31 December 2005 respectively, of KZT5.6 billion and KZT12.6 billion.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion and analysis is intended to assist in the understanding and assessment of the
trends and significant changes in the Group’s results of operations and financial condition. Historical results
may not indicate future performance. The forward-looking statements contained in this review are subject to a
variety of factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such statements.
Factors that may cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed in “Forward-Looking
Statements” and “Risk Factors”. In this document, the consolidated financial statements presented are those of
the Company. This discussion is based on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and should be
read in conjunction with its consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes appearing elsewhere
in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise indicated or in relation to production reserve data, all of the financial data
and discussions thereof are based upon financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Overview

The Company was created in March 2004 through the merger of UMG and EMG and is the third
largest oil and gas company in the Republic of Kazakhstan (based on 2005 data) in terms of annual crude
oil production volumes. Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from the production and sale
of crude oil. The Company is also engaged in exploration activities. As at 31 December 2005, the Company
had proved plus probable reserves of over 1.5 billion barrels of oil.

The Company has steadily increased crude oil production during the period under review. In the first
five months of 2006, the Company produced 3.9 million tonnes (28.4 million barrels) of crude oil and
realised profit from continuing operations after tax of KZT41.4 billion from revenues of KZT170.7 billion.
In 2005, the Company produced 9.3 million tonnes (68.8 million barrels) of crude oil and realised profit
from continuing operations after tax of KZT43.8 billion from revenues of KZT346.4 billion. In 2004, the
Company produced 8.9 million tonnes (65.5 million barrels) of crude oil and realised profit from
continuing operations after tax of KZT13.2 billion from revenues of KZT237.1 billion. In 2003, the
Company produced 7.9 million tonnes (58.0 million barrels) of crude oil and realised profit from
continuing operations after tax of KZT7.4 billion from revenues of KZT177.8 billion.

As part of the Company’s focus on its upstream exploration and production activities, in
December 2005 the Company transferred its entire interest in the Atyrau Refinery to a subsidiary of
NC KMG. The Atyrau Refinery has been classified as a discontinued operation. See Note 3 to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and “—Discontinued Operations”.

Key Factors Affecting the Company’s Results of Operations and Financial Condition

The key factors affecting the Company’s results of operations and financial condition during the
periods under review are the following:

* international crude oil prices;

¢ crude oil production volumes and related costs;

* the Tenge-US dollar exchange rate and domestic inflation rates;
* supplies to the domestic market;

* fees and financial support paid to NC KMG and other affiliates;
° transport routes;

e taxes paid under oil production contracts and licences;

* environmental remediation obligations; and

* seasonality of operating costs.
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International Crude Oil Prices

International crude oil prices have increased over the period under review, as shown in the
table below:

Five months
ended
31 May Year ended 31 December
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
Average for the periods indicated (US$/bbl) (US$/bbl)
Brent .. ... e 65.09 4858 5438 3822 28.84
CPCoblend. ...... ... e e e 64.35 47.01 5350 3731 28.51
Urals . ... e 60.67 4426 50.52 34.61 27.90

Source: Bloomberg, Platts

The Company’s export revenues have increased with international market prices for crude oil as its
export sales are priced at the average spot rates for three to five consecutive quotation days from the bill of
lading. In the first five months of 2006, the Company’s average realised price for crude oil exports was
US$418.50 per tonne (US$56.90 per barrel), compared to US$298.80 per tonne (US$40.60 per barrel) for
the first five months of 2005. The Company’s average realised price for crude oil exports increased to
US$348.00 per tonne (US$47.30 per barrel) in 2005 from US$225.30 per tonne (US$30.60 per barrel) in
2004 and US$167.90 per tonne (US$22.80 per barrel) in 2003. For an explanation of the difference
between international crude oil price and average realised price, see below “—Results of Operations”.

Taking into account the Government’s forecast of long term oil prices and other market information
and forecasts, the Company generally expects an average oil price of approximately US$45 per barrel over
the longer term.

Crude Oil Production Volumes and Related Costs

Production in the first five months of 2006 was 3.9 million tonnes (188 thousand bopd). During the
last three years, the Company has steadily increased its production and sales of crude oil. Annual oil
production at the UMG and EMG fields increased 5.0% to 9.3 million tonnes (188 thousand bopd) in 2005
and 12.7% to 8.9 million tonnes (179 thousand bopd) in 2004. Annual sales of crude oil increased 5.6% to
9.2 million tonnes (186 thousand bopd) in 2005 and 14.2% to 8.7 million tonnes (176 thousand bopd)
in 2004.

As most of the Company’s producing assets are mature, the potential to further increase production
from those assets is limited. However, current production levels are expected to remain stable due to an
increased use of enhanced recovery techniques. The Company incurs significant costs to maintain crude oil
production because it has to rely on enhanced recovery methods such as hydro-fracturing, extensive well
workovers, rehabilitation of inactive wells and new drilling. Moreover, the oil of Uzen field, the Company’s
principal producing field, is highly paraffinic which makes extraction and transportation relatively
more expensive.

The Tenge-US dollar exchange rate and domestic inflation rates

Tenge-US dollar exchange rates and domestic inflation, as measured by the consumer price index
(“CPI”), for the periods presented were as follows:

Five months

ended 31 May Year ended 31 December

2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
Tenge—US$ average exchange rate . ................ 128.57 130.70 132.88 136.04 149.58
CPI . 9.0% 7.2% 7.6% 6.7% 6.4%

Source: National Bank of Kazakhstan, National Statistics Agency

Most of the Company’s revenues and borrowings are denominated in US dollars, while most of the
Company’s operating expenses are denominated in Tenge. The impact of foreign currency fluctuations on
the Company’s results of operations depends on the Company’s net foreign currency position and the
magnitude and direction of the fluctuation. In the period under review, the Tenge has strengthened against

110



the US dollar, which has tended to depress the Company’s revenue expressed in Tenge. This is partly
mitigated to the extent there has been a net US dollar denominated liability position. In addition, most of
the Company’s expenses are affected by local inflation which may not be offset by inflation-related
increases in the Company’s revenues.

Supplies to the Domestic Market

The Company is required to supply a certain portion of its crude oil production to meet domestic
market needs at prices agreed with NC KMG. On a per barrel basis, these sales generate substantially less
revenue than crude oil sold on the export market. In addition, MEMR may restrict access to export
pipeline infrastructure if such supplies are not made or further supply requirements are not met. Until late
2005 the Company had a tolling arrangement with the Atyrau Refinery and sold refined products through
agent distributors to meet local market supply requirements. In February 2006, a memorandum was
executed between MEMR and the principal Kazakhstan natural resources entities (including the
Company), entitled “On Social Partnership for the Provision to the Domestic Market of Oil Products in
2006”. Pursuant to this memorandum and to the terms of the Company’s Relationship Agreement with
NC KMG, the Company is obliged to supply TradeHouse KMG (which now owns the Atyrau Refinery)
with 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum between 2006 and 2010 at a price equal to the Company’s
aggregate cost of production and transportation, together with a margin of 3%. For the years 2011 to 2015,
the volume of crude oil to be supplied will be determined in accordance with the Company’s business
plan (as approved by the Board of Directors, which it currently anticipates will be no more than
1.9 million tonnes per annum) at a price equal to the Company’s cost of production and transportation,
together with a margin of 3% (the “Supply Obligation”). In addition, to meet the Company’s own needs
for refined products, a further 0.3 million tonnes (2.2 million barrels) of crude oil is supplied to the Atyrau
Refinery which is tolled for a fee with the surplus refined products from this crude being sold on the
domestic market. The Company plans to terminate by the end of 2006 the own product tolling
arrangement with the Atyrau Refinery and to sell to the Atyrau Refinery at commercial prices sufficient
quantities of crude oil and to purchase from the Atyrau Refinery refined products required to meet the
Company’s own needs. In 2006 the amount tolled was significantly less than 0.3 million tonnes. However
notwithstanding the terms of the Supply Obligation, the Government can mandate additional deliveries of
crude oil to domestic refineries at levels exceeding the agreed 1.9 million tonnes (38 thousand bopd) of
crude oil per annum. For example, the planned volume for the domestic market in 2005 was 2.2 million
tonnes, but in fact the total amount so supplied was 2.7 million tonnes (55 thousand bopd) of crude oil,
which was 29% of the Company’s production and sales volume and represented about 12% of the
Company’s total revenue, out of which 0.1 million tonnes was supplied to Shymkent refinery and the
balance to the Atyrau Refinery. An additional 0.5 million tonnes was sent to the refineries in 2005 at the
direction of MEMR. In 2006, the Company expects to be required to supply a total of 2.44 million tonnes
of crude oil to the domestic market. For the five month period ended 31 May 2006, the Company has
already shipped 1.1 million tonnes to the domestic market which reflects certain additional requirements
of MEMR.

Fees and Financial Support Paid to NC KMG and Other Affiliates

The Company has paid substantial fees in consideration of management and other services provided
by NC KMG. Management fees paid to NC KMG amounted to KZT11.2 billion in each of 2005, 2004 and
2003. In 2006, the Company agreed to pay to NC KMG the sum of KZT7.0 billion per annum (such
amount to increase upon annual renewal of the Services Agreement by the increase in the consumer prices
index of the Republic of Kazakhstan which was 7.6% in 2005), in consideration of the grant of certain
rights and the provision of certain services by NC KMG to the Company under the Services Agreement.
See “Principal Shareholders, Relationship with NC KMG and Related Party Transactions—Agreements
with NC KMG and its affiliates—Services Agreement”.

The Company has also provided substantial amounts of financial support to NC KMG, in the form of
interest-free loans. In April 2005, the Company provided an interest free loan of KZT26.0 billion to
NC KMG, of which the principal amount outstanding at 31 December 2005 was KZT9.0 billion and as at
31 May 2006 KZT2.0 billion. It is proposed that this outstanding balance of KZT?2.0 billion may be set-off
against the obligation by the Company to pay the fee of KZT7.0 billion to NC KMG under the Services
Agreement in respect of 2006. In July 2006, the Company made an interest-free loan to NC KMG in the
amount of KZT24.4 billion to be repaid by 31 December 2006. This loan to NC KMG supplemented an
interest-bearing loan of US$800 million made by the Company’s finance subsidiary to enable NC KMG to
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acquire a 50% interest in KazGerMunai. See “—Recent Developments—Bond Issue and Loan.” Also, in
2005, the Company provided a loan to a related party in the amount of KZT3.6 billion which has since
been repaid in full.

In 2005, the Company made significant investments in the Atyrau Refinery to finance its
reconstruction. Recapitalisation of the Atyrau Refinery prior to its sale resulted in an increase in the
Company’s interest in it from 86.7% to 99.1% through cash contributions of approximately
KZT25.0 billion and a par value share exchange with NC KMG. On 29 December 2005, the Company
disposed of the Atyrau Refinery to a subsidiary of NC KMG for KZT3.5 billion, which resulted in a
decrease in shareholders equity of KZT34.2 billion. See Notes 2, 3 and 11 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and “—Discontinued Operations”.

Transport Routes

The Company delivers its crude oil through three principal routes: export markets via the CPC and
UAS pipelines and the domestic market, as outlined in the following table:

Five months
ended 31 May Year ended 31 December

2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

Exports via CPC

Volume of crude oil (in million tonnes) . .. ................ 0.6 0.6 1.5 1.0 0.4
% total crude oil sales volume . ........................ 16% 17% 17% 11% 6%
% total sales of oil and oil products . .................... 21%  21%  22% 14% 7%
Exports via UAS

Volume of crude oil (in million tonnes) . .. ................ 22 2.1 5.0 5.7 54
% total crude oil sales volume . ........................ 56% 55% 54% 65% 1%
% total sales of oil and oil products . .................... 68% 67% 66% T4% 8%
Other™®

Volume of crude oil (in million tonnes) . .. ................ 1.1 1.1 2.7 2.1 1.8
% total crude oil sales volume . ........................ 28% 28% 29% 24% 23%
% total sales of oil and oil products . .................... 1% 12% 12% 12% 15%

(1) Until 2006, “other” is predominantly sales of refined crude oil, a small proportion of which is
exported.

The Company exports crude oil through the UAS pipeline owned by KTO and through the pipeline
owned by CPC. See “The Company—Sales and Marketing”. Relative profitability of the two export routes
depends on the quality of oil shipped by the Company, prevailing international market prices and
applicable pipeline tariffs. Specifically, CPC tends to be more advantageous for shipments of higher quality
crude oil in a higher price oil environment even after taking into account quality bank payments. Although
it has been more profitable for the Company in recent periods to ship crude oil through the CPC pipeline
rather than the UAS pipeline, MEMR controls the volumes of crude oil that can be shipped through the
pipelines and the Company’s ability to allocate exported volume to different pipelines is therefore
constrained. See “The Company—Crude Oil Transportation”.

Taxes Paid Under Oil Production Contracts and Licences

Under the terms of its production contracts the Company is required to pay excess profit tax,
corporate income tax, royalties and certain other fees at rates and under calculation methods that vary
according to the contract and the relevant legislation.

The Company’s effective corporate income tax rates are, and are expected to continue to be, higher
than the statutory rate as certain of the Company’s expenses are not deductible. This is due to restrictions
on deductions set by the Kazakhstan tax code either because certain costs do not relate to the generation
of income (e.g., expenses in relation to social activities, fines and penalties) or because they are specifically
restricted (e.g., foreign exchange differences).

Pursuant to its production licences and contracts, the Company is required to calculate and pay excess
profit tax if the internal rate of return, calculated on the basis of the Company’s tax accounting, exceeds
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20%. This tax is only applicable to the Company’s crude oil production and sales. The sale of oil and gas
products, as well as other activities, are not subject to excess profit tax. Excess profit tax is determined
either in the relevant subsoil use contract or by reference to the specific regulation of Kazakhstan tax
authorities. For calculating excess profit tax, the internal rate of return is calculated on the basis of cash
flows adjusted for the inflation rate and differs from the commonly accepted concept in a number of
aspects. The Company’s main subsoil use contracts provide for progressive taxation where an increase of
the internal rate of return leads to an increase of the tax rate. Corporate income tax is a deductible expense
in the calculation of excess profit tax. As the internal rate of return from all of the Company’s fields has
exceeded the relevant thresholds, the Company is paying the highest levels of excess profit tax, namely
50% for Uzen and 30% for the main Emba contracts. See “The Company—Licences and Contracts”.
While the taxation terms of the contracts are generally fixed for the duration of the contract, the Company
is currently working with MEMR to clarify and amend certain provisions of the Uzen Karamandybas
contract relating to social tax, VAT and EPT. Management expects the contract amendments to result in a
reduction of those tax rates and an overall reduction in the level of EPT and CIT payable under
those contracts.

Royalties are currently paid at an average rate of about 3.6% and are based on volumes produced and
current sales prices.

See “—Results of Operations—Explanation of Key Items in the Income Statement—Income Tax and
Excess Profit Tax Expenses” for a description of the rates at which the Company is taxed and “The
Company—Licences and Contracts” for a description of the Company’s obligation to pay corporate
income tax, excess profit tax and royalty payments.

Environmental Remediation Obligations

In addition to asset retirement obligations, the Company has certain environmental remediation
obligations. See “The Company—Environmental Matters—Environmental Impact of the Company’s
Operations”. For accounting purposes the Company has recorded the obligations relating to pre-existing
legislation at the earliest period presented.

In March 2006, the Mangistau department of MEP issued a claim against the Company for
KZT11.4 billion in relation to the COTS pit. This claim was calculated based on a multiple of the volume
of waste (26,548 tonnes) alleged to have been discharged into the COTS pit during 2005. On 7 July 2006
the Specialised Inter-District Economic Court of the city of Astana (“SIDECA”) decided the case in favour
of the Company and fully dismissed the claim. On 20 July 2006, the Mangistau department of MEP filed an
appeal of the above court decision which was subsequently rejected by the Collegium on Civil Cases of the
Astana City Court on 9 August 2006, reaffirming the SIDECA’s decision. The Mangistau department of
ME-P or the public prosecutor can until 9 August 2007 ask the Astana City Court or the Supreme Court to
reconsider the case as a whole. Following the favourable outcome of the SIDECA proceedings and the
appeal court decision, management has released the accrual of KZT11.4 billion Tenge as at 31 May 2006.
While there can be no assurance that the decision will not be appealed, the Company’s management
believes that any potential loss is no longer probable and has therefore released the provision. See “The
Company—Environmental Matters—Oil Storage Pits and Oil Lakes”.

Seasonality of operating costs

The Company’s operating costs are subject to seasonal fluctuations, with higher expenses for materials
and repair, maintenance and other services usually expected in the second half of the year than in the first
six months. These fluctuations are mainly due to the requirement to conduct formal public tenders in
accordance with state procurement laws.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Five Months Ended 31 May 2006 and 2005

The information below relates to continuing operations in the five months ended 31 May 2006.
Discontinued operations which, in the five months ended 31 May 2005, related to the Company’s interest
in the Atyrau Refinery, which it divested on 29 December 2005, were insignificant.
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Revenue

The following table shows sales volumes and realised prices for the five months ended 31 May 2006
and 2005:

Five months ended
31 May

2006 2005

(KZT thousands, unless
otherwise stated)

Export sales of crude oil
UAS pipeline

Netsales . ..o e 114,373,572 79,441,685
Volume (in thousand tonNNEs) . .. ... ... .....uuuuuunnnnnnnnnn.. 2,179 2,062
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ........ ... 52,489 38,527
Average price (US$/bbD)D .o 56.47 40.77
CPC pipeline
NEt SALES .« . v v 35,913,149 25,249,197
Volume (in thousand toNNEs) . ... ..........uuuuuunununnnnnn.. 614 619
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ........... ... 58,490 40,790
Average price (US$/bbD)@ ... 58.40 40.06
Total sales of crude oil — exported . ......... ... ... ... ... ... .. 150,286,721 104,690,882
Other sales of oil and oil products
Net domestic sales of crude oil and total oil products. .............. 17,206,377 14,332,767
Volume (in thousand tonnes)® ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 1,080 1,060
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ........... ... 15,932 13,521
Average price (US$/bbD)® ... . 17.14 14.31
Total domestic sales of crude oil and total oil product sales . ........... 17,206,377 14,332,767
Total sales of oil and oil products
Total net sales of crude oil and oil products . ......... ... ... ..... 167,493,098 119,023,649
Total volume (in thousand tonnes) . .................uuuuunnnnn.. 3,873 3,741
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ........... ... ... 43,246 31,816
Average price (US$/bbl) .. ... oo 45.96 33.24
Other sales . . . ........ ... . . e 3,231,363 2,732,512
Total revenue . . .. ... .. ... ... 170,724,461 121,756,161

(1) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne of crude oil.
(2) Converted at 7.79 barrels per tonne of crude oil.
(3) Volume of crude oil delivered for processing and crude oil sales.
(4) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne of crude oil.
Sales of crude oil via the UAS pipeline increased by KZT34.9 billion, or 44.0%, in the first five months
of 2006 compared with the same period in the prior year. In the first five months of 2006 the volume of

crude oil exported via the UAS pipeline increased by 6%, while the average realised price per tonne
(measured in Tenge) from these shipments increased 36%.

Sales of crude oil via the CPC pipeline increased by KZT10.7 billion, or 42.2%, in the first five months
of 2006 compared with the same period in the prior year due to an increase in the average realised price
per tonne from these shipments.

Other sales of oil and oil products increased by KZT2.9 billion, or 20.0%, in the first five months of
2006 compared with the same period in the prior year almost exclusively due to an increase in the average
realised price per tonne from these sales.

In all cases sales of crude oil were positively affected by the increases in international crude oil prices.
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The following tables show the Company’s realised sales prices for oil and oil products adjusted for
transportation and other expenses for the five months ended 31 May 2006 and 2005:

Five months ended

31 May 2006
CPC UAS Other
(US$/bbl)
Benchmark end-market quote™ .. ... ... ... L 64.35 60.67 —
Realised price . ... ... ... 5840 5647 17.14
Transportation . .. ...... ... 3.68 578 0.80
Sales COMMISSIONS . . . . .ottt e 0.06 0.07 0.02
Processing fees. . ... ... . . — — 075
Adjusted realised price . . . .. ... ... ... 54.66 50.62 15.57
Five months ended
31 May 2005
CPC UAS Other
(US$/bbl)
Benchmark end-market quote) .. ... ... ... ... ... 47.01 44.26 —
Realised price . . ... ... i e 40.06 40.77 14.31
Transportation . . . .. ...t te eeee 353 562 0.8
Sales cCOMMISSIONS . . . . .ottt e 0.06 007 0.12
Processing fees. . . .. ... e — — 330
Adjusted realised price . . . . ... ... ... ... 36.47 35.08 10.11

(1) The following quoted prices are used as benchmarks: CPC blend (FOB Novorossiysk) for shipments
through the CPC pipeline and Urals blend (FOB Odessa) for shipments through the UAS pipeline.

The difference between the benchmark quote and realised price on the sales through the CPC
pipeline mainly comprises CPC quality bank payments, port charges, customs fees, certain sales
commissions and averaging effects. The difference between the benchmark quote and realised price on the
sales through the UAS pipeline mainly comprises port charges, customs fees and certain sales commissions.
The price received for other sales of oil and oil products is determined by agreement with NC KMG and
the price is at levels significantly below market prices.

Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses relate primarily to the cost of producing crude oil. The following
table presents the components of the Company’s operating expenses:

Five months ended 31 May

2006 2005
(Unaudited)
(KZT thousands)
Transportation . . . .. ..o vttt e 16,799,017 16,416,459
Employee benefits . ... ... ... 14,809,567 14,854,029
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation. . .. ...................... 12,338,360 8,676,284
Repair, maintenance and other services . . .. ................ ... 7,217,116 4,081,456
Royalties . . . ... 6,205,485 5,423,922
MaterialS . . . ... 5,985,090 7,690,885
Management fees and sales commissions . . ... .............. ... ... 3,158,851 4,961,571
Social infrastructure projects . . . .. ... v vttt 3,150,337 511,001
Energy ... 2,524,995 2,167,203
Taxes other than onincome . ... ... ... .. .. ... .. 2,143,707 1,883,515
Other ... e 3,879,664 2,799,246
Fines and penalties . ......... .. ... . 1,381,207 1,491,162
Release of environmental fine . ............ .. ... . .. ... .. (11,427,955) —
Total operating expenses. . . .. ... ... ...ttt 68,165,441 70,956,733
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Operating expenses in the five months ended 31 May 2006 were significantly impacted by a
non-recurring item, the release of an accrual of KZT11.4 billion for an environmental fine, which is further
described in Note 17 to the Company’s condensed consolidated interim financial statements as at and for
the five months ended 31 May 2006. While most operating expenses remained stable or increased year on
year, this non-recurring item led to a decrease in total operating expenses of KZT2.8 billion, or 4%,
compared to the first five months of 2005. Total operating expenses in the five months ended 31 May 2006
before the effect of the release were KZT79.6 billion representing a 12.2% period on period increase.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation increased by KZT3.7 billion, or 42%, in the first five months
of 2006 as compared to the first five months of 2005 due mainly to higher rates of depletion and higher
average balances of oil and gas production assets in 2006. The depletion rate increased due to a decrease in
oil and gas reserves while production remained stable. Also, in 2006 the Company recorded an impairment
charge in respect of the Liman licence rights due to the passage of time under the contract and the
resulting reduction of the exploration period.

Repair, maintenance and other purchased services increased by KZT3.1 billion, or 77%, in the first
five months of 2006 compared to the first five months of 2005 mainly due to the continued purchases of
services from former subsidiaries the expense of which was eliminated in consolidation in prior periods.
Also, in 2006 the Company incurred higher costs for seismic studies and the application of enhanced
recovery techniques.

Materials expense decreased by KZT1.7 billion, or 22%, in the first five months of 2006 as compared
to the first five months of 2005 mainly due to costs related to former subsidiaries that were disposed by the
Company in late 2005.

Management fees and sales commissions decreased by KZT1.8 billion, or 36%, due to changes in
contractual terms negotiated with NC KMG.

Social infrastructure project costs increased by KZT2.6 billion in five months of 2006 compared to the
first five months of 2005 due to financing of projects in the Uzen region.

Finance Income (Expense)

The Company incurred net finance expense of KZT4.2 billion in the five months ended 31 May 2006,
following net finance income in the same period of the prior year. This fluctuation in 2006 resulted
primarily from foreign exchange losses, following a significant strengthening of the Tenge against the
US dollar in the first five months of the year, during which time the Company’s US dollar-denominated
assets (primarily financial assets) exceeded its US dollar-denominated liabilities.

Income Tax Expense

Total income tax expense increased by KZT24.8 billion, or 77%, in the five months ended 31 May 2006
primarily a result of increased revenues due to global crude oil prices. The 4.8% decrease in the
Company’s effective tax rate in 2006 resulted mainly from an increase in non-taxable items, primarily the
release of accrual for environmental fines, which was partially offset by an increase in non-deductible
items, most notably foreign exchange losses and social expenses incurred in 2006.

Profit from Continuing Operations

As a result of the factors described above, the Company’s profit from continuing operations increased
by 116% to KZT41.4 billion in the five months ended 31 May 2006 compared with the first five months
of 2005.
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Comparison of the Years Ended 31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003
Continuing Operations
Revenue

The following table shows sales volumes and realised prices for the years ended 31 December 2005,
2004 and 2003:

Year ended 31 December
2005 2004 2003
(KZT thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Export sales of crude oil
UAS pipeline

NetsaleS. . ..ot 224,556,207 170,081,382 134,273,449
Volume (in thousand tonnes) . . .................... 4,953 5,658 5,397
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ...................... 45,337 30,060 24,879
Average price (US$/bbl)D ... ... . 47.19 30.56 23.01
CPC pipeline
NetsaleS. . ..ot e 75,474,091 32,978,225 11,894,210
Volume (in thousand tonnes) . . .................... 1,536 967 424
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ...................... 49,137 34,104 28,052
Average price (US$/bbl)@ ... ... . ... 47.47 32.18 24.07
Total sales of crude oil—exported .................... 300,030,298 203,059,607 146,167,659
Other sales of crude oil and oil products
Net domestic sales of crude oil and total oil products . ... 40,394,425 25,374,080 26,142,775
Volume (in thousand tonnes)® . ................... 2,733 2,106 1,822
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ............ ... ....... 14,780 12,048 14,348
Average price (US$/bbD)® ... ... ... oL 15.38 12.25 13.27
Total domestic sales of crude oil and total oil product sales .. 40,394,425 25,374,080 26,142,775
Total sales of crude oil and oil products
Total net sales of crude oil and oil products . ............ 340,424,723 228,433,687 172,310,434
Total volume (in thousand tonnes) . .. ................. 9,222 8,731 7,643
Average price (KZT/tonne) . ............ . ... . ... 36,914 26,164 22,545
Average price (US$/bbl) .. ... ... 37.93 26.37 20.76
Other sales . .......... ... .. ... .. .. 6,004,722 8,669,531 5,446,939
Total revenue . .. ......... ... ... ... 346,429,445 237,103,218 177,757,373

(1) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne of crude oil.
(2) Converted at 7.79 barrels per tonne of crude oil.
(3) Volume of crude oil delivered for processing and crude oil sales.

(4) Converted at 7.23 barrels per tonne of crude oil.

Total volumes shipped, both export and domestic via the UAS pipeline in 2005 remained stable, with
decreases in export volumes offsetting increases in domestic volumes. Sales of exported crude oil via the
UAS pipeline increased by KZT54.5 billion, or 32.0%, in 2005 and by KZT35.8 billion, or 26.7%, in 2004.
Although in 2005 the volumes of exported crude oil through the UAS pipeline decreased by 705,000
tonnes, oil prices increased to KZT45,337 per tonne from KZT30,060 per tonne in 2004 which resulted in
an increase of sales to KZT224.5 billion from KZT170.1 billion. The increase in sales in 2004 compared to
2003 was due to increases in both volumes and prices. The decrease in the volumes of crude oil exported
through the UAS pipeline in 2005 was the result of an increase in domestic market supplies.

Sales of crude oil via the CPC pipeline increased by KZT42.5 billion, or 128.9%, in 2005 and by
KZT?21.1 billion, or 177.3%, in 2004. The increase in sales was due to increases in both volumes and prices.
In 2005 the Company received higher transportation quotas for the CPC pipeline and accordingly reduced
the volumes shipped through the UAS pipeline. Volumes increased in 2004 compared to 2003 because the
Company began to use the CPC pipeline in mid-2003.
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Other sales of oil and oil products increased by KZT15.0 billion, or 59.2%, in 2005 and decreased by
KZTO0.8 billion, or 2.9% in 2004. Growth of sales in 2005 is explained by increases in both volumes and
prices. The relatively flat amount of sales in 2004 was mainly due to falling prices for domestic sales that
were offset by an increased volume of exported oil and oil products. Domestic prices were lower in 2004
because the Company’s sales of refined products became subject to anti-monopoly price controls which
limited selling prices in that year. In 2005 the Company’s sales were no longer subject to those restrictions
which therefore permitted higher selling prices.

The following table shows the Company’s realised sales prices adjusted for oil and oil products
transportation and other expenses for the years ended 31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Year ended
31 December 2005

CPC UAS Other

(US$/bbl)
Benchmark end-market quote™ .. ... ... ... L 53.50 50.52 —
Realised price . .. ... ... 4747 4719 15.38
Transportation . .. ...... ... 371 629  0.63
Sales COMMISSIONS . .. ...ttt 0.08 0.08 0.08
Processing fees. . ... ... . . — — 205
Adjusted realised price . . . .. ... ... ... 43.68 40.82 12.62

Year ended

31 December 2004
CPC UAS Other

(US$/bbl)
Benchmark end-market quote™ .. ..... ... ... .. ... 3731 34.61 —
Realised price . ... ... ... 32.18 30.56 12.25
Transportation . . . .. ...t e 322 561 0.61
Sales cOMMISSIONS . . . . . oot 057 056 0.14
Processing fees. . ... ... — — 249
Adjusted realised price . . . ... ... .. .. 28.39 2439  9.01

Year ended

31 December 2003
CPC UAS Other

(US$/bbl)
Benchmark end-market quote® .. ... ... ... . .. ... 28.51 27.90 —
Realised price . ... ... ... 2407 23.01 13.27
Transportation . . . ... ..ot e 336 527 047
Sales cOMMISSIONS . . . . .o ot 1.09 093 0.14
Processing fees. . . .. ... . — — 232
Adjusted realised price . . . . ... ... ... .. 19.62 16.81 10.34

(1) The following quoted prices are used as benchmarks: CPC blend (FOB Novorossiysk) for shipments
through the CPC pipeline and Urals blend (FOB Odessa) for shipments through the UAS pipeline.

The difference between the benchmark quote and realised price on the sales through the CPC
pipeline mainly comprises CPC quality bank payments, port charges, customs fees, certain sales
commissions and averaging effects. The difference between the benchmark quote and realised price on the
sales through the UAS pipeline mainly comprises port charges, customs fees and certain sales commissions.
The price received for other sales of oil and oil products is determined primarily by agreement with
NC KMG and the price is significantly below market prices.
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Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses relate primarily to the cost of producing crude oil. The following
table presents the components of the Company’s operating expenses:

Year ended 31 December

2005 2004 2003
(KZT thousands)
Transportation . ........... ... 37,647,849 37,562,638 34,947,198
Employee benefits . ........ ... ... ... ... .. 37,116,032 27,391,069 20,014,387
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation . . ............. 24,362,896 21,099,460 17,736,031
Materials .. ... ... . . 21,658,853 13,519,834 12,157,515
Repair, maintenance and other services . ............... 16,845,303 13,910,249 6,870,125
Fines and penalties . . . . ......... ... ... ... . ... ... 15,484,134 6,687,529 1,717,173
Royalties . ... ... 15,180,580 10,663,765 6,902,033
Management fees and sales commissions . .............. 11,976,634 15,449,283 17,604,303
Taxes other thanonincome. . ....................... 7,103,491 6,081,130 4,792,099
Energy ... ... 5,824,741 5,816,881 5,548,549
Other. .. ... e 11,375,039 4,094,524 8,297,451
Total operating expenses . . . . ....................... 204,575,552 162,276,362 136,586,864

Operating expenses increased by KZT42.3 billion, or 26%, in 2005 and KZT25.7 billion, or 19% in
2004 primarily as a result of increases in costs for employee benefits, materials, repair, maintenance and
other services, fines and penalties and royalties primarily for the reasons described below.

Employee benefits increased by KZT9.7 billion, or 35.5%, in 2005 and KZT7.4 billion, or 36.9% in
2004 primarily due to the harmonisation of salary policies following the merger of UMG and EMG.

Materials expense increased by KZT8.1 billion, or 60.2% in 2005 and increased by KZT1.4 billion, or
11.2% in 2004. The significant increase in 2005 resulted mainly from increases in material prices, notably
steel, and increased drilling activity.

Repair, maintenance and other services expense increased by KZT2.9 billion, or 21% in 2005 and
increased by KZT7.0 billion, or 102% in 2004. The increases in 2005 related mainly to increases in well
workovers and increased purchase of services related to enhanced recovery methods. The increases in 2004
related mainly to increases in geophysical and geological services.

Fines and penalties increased by KZT8.8 billion in 2005 and increased by KZT5.0 billion in 2004. The
significant increase in 2005 resulted mainly from the accrual for an environmental fine of KZT11.4 billion
for alleged soil contamination at the COTS Pit. The increase in 2004 resulted mainly from the accrual of
tax fines and penalties related to transfer pricing.

Royalties increased by KZT4.5 billion in 2005, or 42%, and increased by KZT3.8 billion, or 55%, in
2004. The significant increase in both years resulted mainly from increases in the volume and price of
crude oil sold.

Other operating expenses increased by KZT7.3 billion in 2005 and decreased by KZT4.2 billion in
2004. The increase in 2005 related mainly to losses on disposals of fixed assets following significant gains in
the prior year and increased costs related to exploration, purchase of consulting services, inventory
obsolescence and social costs. A main factor contributing to the decrease in 2004 was gains on disposals of
fixed assets following a net loss in the prior year. Also in 2004 the Company recorded total impairment
losses of about KZT3 billion relating to non-core assets which were offset by a number of other decreases
as compared to 2003.

Finance Income (Expense)

The Company’s financial income in each of the periods relates mainly to interest on deposits. The
Company’s financial expense in each of the periods mainly comprises interest on borrowings, the
unwinding of a discount relating to asset retirement obligations and, in 2003, a change in estimate of the
in-kind settlement of one of the Company’s long-term debt obligations.
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Income Tax Expense

Total income tax expense increased by KZT41.0 billion, or 70%, in 2005 and by KZT27.0 billion, or
85%, in 2004 primarily a result of increased revenues due to global crude oil prices. The effective tax rates
were 69% for 2005, 82% for 2004 and 81% for 2003. The main reasons for the fluctuations relate to
non-deductible costs which impact both CIT and EPT. Non-deductible costs included in all periods
depreciation, accrual of risk provisions related to transfer pricing, social expenses, interest expense in
excess of statutory limits and foreign exchange losses. Also, in 2005 the accrual of the environmental fine
was a significant non-deductible item. Finally the Company began paying EPT in relation to Uzen, its
largest subsurface use contract in 2004 and in 2005, began paying the maximum EPT rate.

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

As a result of the factors described above, the Company’s profit for the year from continuing
operations increased by 232% to KZT43.8 billion in 2005 and by 77% to KZT13.2 billion in 2004.

Discontinued Operations

On 29 December 2005, the Company disposed of its 99.1% interest in the Atyrau Refinery to a
subsidiary of NC KMG for KZT3.5 billion. Prior to its disposal, revenue from the Atyrau Refinery was
derived from sales of refined products by the Atyrau Refinery and tolling fees charged by the Atyrau
Refinery to third-party producers of crude oil for its processing services, including tolling services
purchased by the Company from the Atyrau Refinery to meet its local market obligation. Tolling expenses
amounted to approximately KZT5.0 billion in each of the years presented and have been eliminated in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements with all other inter-company transactions. The revenue from
the sales of the relevant refined products by the Company prior to the disposal of the refinery has been
included in revenue from continuing operations in the appropriate year. In late 2005, the Company began
selling crude oil directly to the Atyrau Refinery on a cost plus basis, with sales amounting to approximately
KZT6.5 billion.

Profits from discontinued operations increased by KZT1.2 billion in 2005 and by KZT0.2 billion in
2004 due to increased tolling volumes of refined products.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity and Working Capital

The Company’s liquidity requirements arise principally from the need to finance its existing
operations (working capital) and the need to finance investment (capital expenditure). Management
believes that the Company has adequate liquidity to meet its short-term obligations. In the periods under
review, the Company has been able to meet most of its liquidity needs out of net cash provided by
operating activities and, to a lesser extent, out of borrowings. To the extent that cash flows from operating
activities would not be sufficient to fund the Company’s capital investment programme, including
acquisitions, management intends to use the net proceeds from the Global Offer as well as borrowings.

In the opinion of the Company, taking into account the expected proceeds of the Global Offer and
existing cash resources, the working capital of the Group is sufficient for present requirements, that is, for
at least the 12 months following the date of this document. As at 31 May 2006 the Company had positive
net working capital. However, at 31 December 2005 and in prior periods financial statements show
negative net working capital, primarily as a result of certain accruals and provisions which, in accordance
with IFRS, are recorded as current liabilities because the Company does not have the unconditional right
to defer payment for more than twelve months from the balance sheet date. As a practical matter, the
Company does not expect to pay these amounts during the current fiscal year. These items, which the
Company expects to pay out over a long period of time, or which are contingent in nature, have included
tax provisions, accruals for the environmental fine relating to the COTS Pit and certain obligations related
to subsoil use contracts. Main factors in the improvement in the Company’s net working capital position in
2006 were higher oil prices, a reduction in related party payments and release of accruals for alleged
environmental violations following the successful outcome of legal proceedings. See “—Critical
Accounting Estimates and Judgments—Taxation” and Note 20 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. As at the date of this document and taking into account other current and non-
current financial assets, the Company has a net cash position on its balance sheet.
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Cash Flows

Net cash generated from operating activities was KZT75.1 billion in 2005 compared to
KZT60.5 billion in 2004 and KZT45.2 billion in 2003. The increases were mainly a result of increases in
crude oil prices.

Net cash used in investing activities was KZT99.5 billion in 2005 compared to KZT82.3 billion in 2004
and KZT33.5 billion in 2003. The increase was due primarily to the purchases of property, plant and
equipment related to the refurbishment of the Atyrau refinery and to production optimisation efforts,
increased holdings of held-to-maturity financial assets and an increase in loans to related parties, including

NC KMG.

Net cash flow from financing activities was KZT30.1 billion in 2005 compared to KZT27.2 billion in
2004 and net cash flow used in financing activities of KZT5.1 billion in 2003. The changes in 2005 and 2004
reflected an advance payment received under the Esomet Arrangement and payment of dividends.

Borrowings

The following table below sets forth the Company’s net debt (cash):

As at
31 May As at 31 December
2006 2005 2004 2003
(unaudited) (audited)
(KZT thousands)

Current portion. . . ...t 19,129,206 21,121,175 18,100,418 10,160,262
Maturity between 1 and 2 years .............. 17,141,624 19,082,221 12,074,755 1,415,417
Maturity between 2 and Syears .............. 24,144,484 34,451,834 31,600,352 4,258,865
Maturity over Syears. . . . ..o 703,483 494,685 7,083,328 2,471,306
Total borrowings . . ....................... 61,118,797 75,149,915 68,858,853 18,305,850
Cash and cash equivalents . ................. 30,326,888 20,187,588 14,127,579 9,310,184
Other current financial assets®™ . ............. 54,722,253 7,353,770 26,520,000 6,006,984
Non-current financial assets®™. .. ............. 2,228 613 53,963,138 8,198,366 261,418
Net debt (cash) .. ........................ (26,158,957) (6,354,581) 20,012,908 2,727,264

(1) Portions of current and non-current financial assets, respectively, which comprise US dollar and
Tenge-denominated deposits and bonds.

The growth in sales proceeds in 2006 allowed the Company to increase its net cash position with
highly liquid assets exceeding total debt by KZT26.2 billion. The Company used this liquidity in July 2006
together with the proceeds of the Senior Notes to facilitate the purchase by NC KMG of a 50% interest in
KazGerMunai by providing loans to NC KMG in exchange for a purchase option. See “Capitalisation” and
“—Recent Developments”.

The Company’s borrowings are not seasonal.

The Company’s principal credit facilities and borrowings are described below:

World Bank Loan. The Uzen Rehabilitation Project has been financed by a US$109 million credit
line from the World Bank granted in July 1996. The principal amount of this facility is repayable in equal
instalments of US$4.5 million on 15 May and 15 November of each year from November 2001 through
May 2013. Interest for each semi-annual period is accrued on the outstanding principal amount at a rate
equal to the cost of qualified borrowings plus 0.5%. In addition, the Company pays NC KMG a
commitment charge of 0.25% per annum on the principal amount of the facility not utilised. Pursuant to a
pledge agreement executed by the Ministry of Finance and the Company on 24 March 2005 the Company
pledged property with the value of KZT13.6 billion to guarantee its obligations under the loan documents.
The outstanding balance of this loan as at 31 May 2006 was US$40 million.

Esomet Arrangement. On 16 August 2004, the Company entered into a crude oil sale agreement with
Esomet and received a long term advance with interest at Libor plus 1.75% per annum. To assure Esomet
that payments are made, the Company has agreed to ship certain amounts of crude oil to Esomet which
are sold at market prices (usually by reference to the mean quotations for Urals blend quoted on Platt’s
crude oil market wire) with the proceeds being used to fund the capital payments due to Esomet. The
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Company is obliged to deliver 150,000 tonnes of crude oil per month to Esomet until September 2009. Any
surplus funds are transferred to the Company. In addition to these terms, the Company also agreed to
maintain various financial ratios and significant covenants that require Esomet’s prior written consent to
dispose of assets, grant security or make loans that are not in the ordinary course of business in each case
exceeding a specified threshold. On 12 October 2005, the Company entered into a swap transaction with
Goldman Sachs International and fixed the floating interest term of the crude oil sale agreement at the
rate of 4.6% per annum. As at 31 May 2006, the Company’s long-term debt to Esomet amounted to
US$442.2 million, or KZT53.7 billion.

Private Placement of Notes. On 10 July 2006, the Company’s finance subsidiary, Munaishy
Finance B.V, issued Senior Notes due 2009 and loaned the proceeds of the issue to NC KMG for
NC KMG's purchase of a 50% stake in KazGerMunai. See “—Recent Developments”.

Capital Expenditures

The Company’s total capital expenditures for the five-year period 2006 to 2010 are expected to be
approximately KZT186 billion, reflecting the cost saving initiatives already implemented by the Company.
Most of the Company’s capital expenditure relates to production. As a result of the cost saving initiatives
being implemented by the Company, the average production capital expenditure over 2006-2010 is
expected to be approximately US$50 million lower than the 2005 level. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, the
Company’s capital expenditure, calculated on a cash basis, was KZT61.9 billion, KZT50.5 billion and
KZT28.9 billion, respectively. This represented 17.9%, 21.3% and 16.3% of sales, respectively.

The Company’s capital expenditures on continuing operations over last three years were
KZT48.5 billion in 2005, KZT42.9 billion in 2004 and KZT28.5 billion in 2003 reflecting primarily
purchases of property, plant and equipment for production optimisation. In 2005, the Company built an
apartment building in Astana for KZT3.6 billion to assist in the relocation of employees from Atyrau and
Uzen to Astana as a result of the UMG and EMG merger.

While the Company made substantial investments in the Atyrau Refinery in 2005 to finance its
reconstruction, it has since disposed of the Atyrau Refinery. See “—Discontinued Operations”.
Commitments

Set forth below is information about the maturity of the Company’s capital commitments outstanding
as at 31 May 2006:

2010 and
2006 2007-2009 beyond Total
Oilfield licences and contracts (000 Tenge) . .. ... 29,251,745 14,056,131 25,455,514 66,763,390
Crude oil supply agreements (000 tonnes) . . ... .. 2,406 11,550 2,200 16,156
Purchases (000 Tenge) .. ..........cc..... 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000

In addition, in June 2006 the Company agreed to supply an additional 240 thousand tonnes of crude
oil to the local market during the current year.

Legal proceedings

During the periods under review, the Company was involved in a number of court proceedings (both
as a plaintiff and a defendant) arising in the ordinary course of business. Save as disclosed in “The
Company—Litigation”, there are no current legal proceedings or claims outstanding which management
believes could have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, statement of income or cash
flows and which have not been accrued for or disclosed in the Company’s financial statements.

Current Trading Information and Prospects

Since 31 May 2006, the Company’s scheduled drilling and well workover activity at existing, producing
fields has progressed ahead of plan. Whilst this has led to budgeted capital expenditure being spent earlier
in the year than management had anticipated, the result has been slightly higher than expected levels of
production.
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The current trading of the Company since 31 May 2006 has been in line with management’s
expectations; results for the forthcoming year may be strengthened by the slightly higher than expected
production levels and the continued strong oil prices.

Disclosure about Market Risk
Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk related to crude oil prices is the Company’s most significant market risk
exposure. Crude oil prices are influenced by factors such as OPEC actions, political events and supply and
demand fundamentals. The Company does not hedge against this risk.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

Most of the Company’s cash inflows as well as its accounts receivable are denominated in US dollars,
while most all of the Company’s purchases are denominated in Tenge. There is therefore a significant
exposure related to the Company’s assets and liabilities in these currencies. There is no significant forward
market for the Tenge and the Company does not use other foreign exchange or forward contracts to
manage this exposure. In the first five months of 2006 as the Tenge appreciated against the US Dollar and
the Company’s US dollar denominated assets exceeded its US dollar denominated liabilities, the Company
incurred a net foreign exchange loss of KZT3.3 billion.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk principally relates to interest receivable and payable on its cash
deposits and borrowings. In December 2005, the Company began to hedge its variable rate debt
instruments. Under a swap agreement with Goldman Sachs, the Company swapped its floating rate
obligation under the crude oil sale agreement with Esomet for a fixed rate obligation pursuant to the terms
of the Esomet Arrangement.

Credit risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to credit risk, principally comprise
related party loans, accounts receivable and cash deposits. As of 31 December 2005, 2004 and 2003, the
Company had 68%, 61% and 64%, respectively, of total trade accounts receivable from KMG TradeHouse
AG, a related party. While the Company may be subject to losses up to the contract value of the
instruments in the event of non-performance by its counterparties, it does not expect such losses to occur.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not currently utilise any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgments about facts,
circumstances and the substance of transactions. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 6
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Also described in Note 6 are certain judgments made by
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies which, apart from those
involving estimations, can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
Company’s critical accounting estimates and judgments relate to oil and gas reserves, asset retirement
obligations, valuation of property, plant and equipment, environmental remediation obligations, tax
provisions, certain obligations related to sub-soil use agreements and discontinued operations. See—
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 6 “Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments”.

123



Recent Developments
Bond Issue and Loan

On 10 July 2006, the Company’s finance subsidiary, Munaishy Finance B.V., issued Senior Notes and
loaned the proceeds of the issue to NC KMG. NC KMG has used these funds to acquire an interest in
KazGerMunai. The Company also provided an interest-free loan to NC KMG in an amount of
KZT24.4 billion to fund this acquisition and has entered into an option arrangement which gives it the
right to acquire the interest in KazGerMunai from NC KMG. The loans are repayable on the earlier of the
exercise of the option and 31 December 2007. See “—Borrowings” and “—Key Factors Affecting the
Company’s Results of Operations and Financial Condition—Financial Support and Fees Paid to NC KMG,
the Atyrau Refinery and Other Affiliates.”

In connection with Global Offer, each of the holders of the Senior Notes have surrendered all of their
holdings as consideration for the issue of approximately 13.2% of the shares in aggregate.

Esomet Arrangement

On 24 July 2006, Esomet and the Company amended the Esomet Arrangement to include an
additional payment of US$50.0 million, a reduction of the interest margin from 1.75% to 1.1% and release
of the existing NC KMG guarantee. See “—Borrowings.”

Dividend

At a duly constituted meeting held on 28 August 2006, a majority of the shareholders of the Company
approved the payment of a dividend to the holders of Shares and of preference shares of the Company in
the aggregate amount of approximately KZT18.0 billion (KZT 382 per ordinary or preference share).

Pre-emptive Offer

Under Kazakhstan law, holders of ordinary shares have a pre-emptive right over shares offered to the
public. In order to satisfy this requirement and to ensure that the Shares and the Parent GDRs can be
offered free from this pre-emptive right, the Company, on 28 July 2006, offered then existing shareholders
the right to purchase 27,169,803 Shares at KZT250 per Share in accordance with existing proportional
interests.

On 28 August 2006, the Company had received elections from existing Shareholders to take up their
proportional rights in respect of 4,083,012 Shares pursuant to such pre-emptive offer including an election
from NC KMG in respect of 3,543,887 shares of which 3,463,019 will constitute the Parent GDRs which
are the subject of the Global Offer.
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS, RELATIONSHIP WITH NC KMG AND
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Principal Shareholders

Immediately prior to and following Admission, each of the following persons (not being a Director or
a member of the Management Board of the Company) directly or indirectly, had or shall have an interest
in 3% or more of the Company’s issued and placed voting share capital as follows:

Percentage of

Number of issued share Number of Percentage of issued
Shares before capital before Shares following share capital following

Shareholder Admission Admission Admission Admission
NCKMG®D ... ... 45,676,448 96.9% 42,213,429 60.1%
Bank of New York as Depositary for

the GDRs................... — — 8,650,932 12.3%
Thames Energy B.V. . ............ — — 3,236,780 4.6%
Serene Universe Limited. ... ...... — — 3,236,780 4.6%

(1) Assuming the Underwriters over-allot the Parent GDRs in full and do not exercise the Underwriters’
Put Option.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any person who, as at 28 September 2006, the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, is or immediately following Admission will
be interested, directly or indirectly, in 3% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.

Immediately following Admission, NC KMG will be regarded as a controlling shareholder of the
Company, as it will hold more than 30% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company is not
aware of any other person who, currently or immediately following Admission, will exercise, or could
exercise, directly or indirectly, jointly or severally, control over the Company. For a description of the
measures in place to ensure that the control exercised over the Company by NC KMG is not abused,
please see the section below headed “—Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates”.

Subject to the restrictions imposed on NC KMG pursuant to the Relationship Agreement, there are
no differences between the voting rights enjoyed by the shareholders described above and those enjoyed by
any other holder of Shares in the Company.

Samruk

Samruk was created at the beginning of 2006 pursuant to presidential edict No 50 dated 28 January
2006 “On measures for further securing the interests of the state in the management of the state sector of
the economy” and a decree of the Government, dated 23 February 2006, No 117 “On measures for the
realisation of the Edict of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan No 50 dated 28 January 2006”.
Samruk is a joint-stock company whose charter company is owned 100% by the Kazakhstan Ministry of the
Economy and Budgetary Planning on behalf of the state. Samruk was formed in order to maximise the
long-term value of companies in which the state has an interest. Samruk’s principal business activity is
ensuring the effective management of those joint-stock companies whose shares it owns (in addition to NC
KMG, these companies are currently National Company Kazakhstan Temir Zholy, JSC Kazpochta, the
Kazakhstan energy management company (KEGOC) and JSC Kaztelekom). Samruk’s role will include
approving medium-term business plans, investment programmes and annual budgets, determining the
main performance indicators of these companies, nominating their heads, and making recommendations
as to questions of corporate finance to the Government.

Agreements with NC KMG and its affiliates

The Group has entered into various agreements and transactions with members of the NC KMG
Group from time to time. Set out below are a summary of the material agreements and transactions that
have been entered into by the Group with members of the NC KMG Group other than in the ordinary
course of business (i) in the two years immediately preceding the date of this document and which are, or
may be, material or (ii) which contain any provision under which the Group has any obligation or
entitlement which is material to the Group as at the date of this document.

125



Relationship Agreement

The Relationship Agreement was entered into between the Company and NC KMG on 8 September
2006 and will, conditional upon Admission, regulate (in part) the degree of control that NC KMG may
exercise over the management of the Company. The principal purposes of the Relationship Agreement are
to ensure that:

(i) the Company is capable of carrying on its business as a self-dependent and free-standing business
from NC KMG and of any of its affiliates and in the best interests of shareholders as a whole; and

(ii) the Company’s transactions and relationships with NC KMG and its affiliates are at arm’s length and
on normal commercial terms.

The Relationship Agreement will continue until the earlier of (i) the GDRs ceasing to be admitted to
listing on the relevant competent listing authority and to trading on any relevant stock exchange to which
securities have been admitted (other than the KASE) or (ii) NC KMG (and/or any of its affiliates) ceasing
to be a controlling shareholder in the Company. For these purposes, a controlling shareholder is any
person (or persons acting jointly by agreement whether formal or otherwise) who is entitled to exercise, or
to control the exercise of, 30% or more of the rights to vote at the Company’s general meetings or able to
control the appointment of directors who are able to exercise a majority of votes at the Company’s
board meetings.

Under the Relationship Agreement:
(a) NC KMG undertakes that:

(i) the Company shall be operated in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole and,
subject to the provisions of the Charter, in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code;

(ii) it will allow the Company at all times to carry on its business as a self-dependent and
free-standing business from NC KMG and the NC KMG Group; and

(iii) it shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that no member of the NC KMG Group
shall act in any way or omit to act in any way which shall prejudice the ability of the
Company to carry on its business independently of the NC KMG Group (or render it
unsuitable for continued listing by any relevant competent listing authority or on any
relevant stock exchange by reason of any act or omission on the part of any member of the
NC KMG Group).

(b) Both NC KMG and the Company undertake that they shall (and shall procure that the relevant
members of their respective groups shall), subject to applicable laws and the terms of existing
agreements between NC KMG and the Company (or their respective affiliates), with effect from
the date of the Relationship Agreement conduct any transactions and relationships (whether
contractual or otherwise, including any subsequent amendment thereof or variation thereto,
including the implementation or enforcement thereof) between any member of the NC KMG
Group, on the one hand, and any member of the Company, on the other, on arm’s length terms
and on a normal commercial basis.

(c) Subject to the Joint Stock Company Law and to the terms of the Services Agreement, NC KMG
undertakes that any voting rights in the Company’s share capital held by members of the
NC KMG Group and any voting rights that it might control on the Board of Directors (whether
as a shareholder or through its representation on the Board of Directors) shall:

(i) not be exercised in respect of any resolution which relates to a transaction between the
Company and NC KMG or any member of the NC KMG Group; and

(ii) not be exercised at meetings of the Board of Directors on matters in which they have an
interest as a result of being a director or officer in NC KMG or any member of the
NC KMG Group.

(d) NC KMG undertakes that it shall not separately propose, at a general meeting of Shareholders,
any matter contemplated by the provisions of Article 12.5 of the Charter (relating to the
requirement to obtain the approval of a majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors at
the relevant Board meeting before proceeding with such matter) where such matter has not been
previously approved in accordance with the provisions of Article 12.5 of the Charter by a majority
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of the Independent Non-Executive Directors acting in good faith, reasonably, and justly in
compliance with applicable legislative requirements, moral principles and the rules of
business ethics.

(e) NC KMG undertakes that it shall not require the Company to increase the amount of financial
contribution to assist in implementing social projects in the regions and cities in which members
of the Company operate, save as:

(i) required by the terms of the existing social programmes undertaken by members of the
Company as at the date of the Relationship Agreement;

(ii) required by the terms of the exploration and/or production licences and contracts held by
members of the Company from time to time;

(iii) required by Kazakhstan Laws; or
(iv) otherwise approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Charter.

(f) NC KMG undertakes that it shall not vote on any resolution of the Shareholders (or any
resolution of the Board of Directors) to appoint or remove any Independent Non-Executive
Director unless:

(i) the term of appointment of such Independent Non-Executive Director has expired and such
Independent Non-Executive Director is seeking re-election at a general meeting of
Shareholders; or

(ii) such removal has been recommended by the nominations committee of the Board of
Directors; or

(iii) the Board of Directors has determined that the Independent Non-Executive Director is no
longer independent (as reasonably determined by the Board of Directors and taking into
consideration the factors referred to in the Corporate Governance Code), provided that any
such determination by the Board of Directors shall require the affirmative vote of the
Director General of the Company and at least one other Independent
Non-Executive Director.

In addition, the Company undertook to participate in the annual state crude oil procurement tenders
held by KMG Trade House for a period of 10 years from 1 January 2006. See “—Atyrau Refinery Supply
Arrangements.”

The Directors believe that the terms of the Relationship Agreement, together with certain other
protections contained in the Charter, will enable the Company to carry on its business independently from
NC KMG and its affiliates, and ensure that (subject to other existing contractual arrangements with
members of the NC KMG Group as at the date of Admission) all transactions and relationships between
the Company and NC KMG and its affiliates are, and will be, at arm’s length and on a normal commercial
basis, such that NC KMG is not able to abuse its position as the Company’s controlling shareholder. For
further information about the range of protections in the Charter, see “Description of Share Capital and
Certain Requirements of Kazakhstan Legislation” and “Risk Factors—Risk Factors Relating to the
Company’s Relationship with NC KMG—Changes in the Government’s holding of NC KMG and/or
changes in policy by the Government could have an adverse effect on the Company’s rights under the
Relationship Agreement and the Services Agreement”.

Services Agreement

The Services Agreement was entered into between the Company and NC KMG on 8 September 2006
and provides that NC KMG grants certain rights and renders certain services to the Company and refrains
from undertaking certain business activities in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Services Agreement is subject to the requirements of the State Procurement Law, which means
that the Company will have to conduct, on an annual basis, a tender process for the services to be provided
under the Services Agreement. Accordingly, the Services Agreement will terminate on 31 December 2006
and the agreement will therefore need to be renewed on an annual basis if the Company is able to benefit
from its provisions. The Company has received a written assurance from NC KMG that it will continue to
participate in any such annual tender in respect of the services to be provided under the Services
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Agreement upon the same terms until 2016, although it should be noted that such assurance is not legally
binding on NC KMG.

(@)

(b)

(©

Under the Services Agreement:

NC KMG undertakes that it will not (and will procure that each member of the NC KMG Group will
not) carry on, be engaged in or otherwise interested economically in onshore exploration,
development or production of oil at predominantly oil hydrocarbon deposits in the Republic of
Kazakhstan, save:

(i) where such operations are carried on by a member of the NC KMG Group or by an entity in
which a member of the NC KMG Group has an ownership or participatory interest at the date of
the Services Agreement and/or pursuant to resolutions of the Government and/or international
obligations of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

(ii) in connection with the acquisition or holding of any existing onshore oil asset or new onshore oil
interest (each as defined below) as required in order to perform its obligations under the Services
Agreement;

(iii) where NC KMG has acquired any existing onshore oil asset or new onshore oil interest and the
Company has notified NC KMG that it does not want to acquire such existing onshore oil asset or
new onshore oil interest; or

(iv) as otherwise agreed in writing by the Company provided that the Company undertakes that it
shall only be entitled to grant such consent if validly approved at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Company at which the majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors present
at such meeting approve the granting of such consent.

If the State elects to sell or transfer a controlling interest in any subsoil use right, licence or asset in
respect of predominantly oil onshore hydrocarbon deposits in Kazakhstan, or any unlicensed
exploration areas, fields or blocks in connection with the exploration, appraisal, development and/or
production of onshore hydrocarbon deposits in Kazakhstan owned or controlled by the Republic of
Kazakhstan, MEMR and/or NC KMG (a “new onshore oil interest””), NC KMG will, if requested by
the Company, make a proposal to MEMR that NC KMG wishes to acquire such new onshore oil
interest without undertaking a tender in respect of such new onshore oil interest.

If NC KMG has acquired a new onshore oil interest without undertaking a tender in respect of such
interest or NC KMG decides to sell or transfer a controlling interest in any new onshore oil interest
already held by NC KMG, NC KMG will first grant the Company a right of first refusal to acquire
such new onshore oil interest (or not less than 50% of such new onshore oil interest) at fair market
value. If NC KMG and the Company are unable to agree the terms of such acquisition, NC KMG
must offer such new onshore oil interest (but not less than any part thereof that was offered to the
Company) for sale by way of auction to interested parties, in which event the Company will be entitled
to match the winning bid for such interest and acquire 50% of such offered new onshore oil interest.

If the State elects to exercise its pre-emptive right (pursuant to Article 71 of the Subsoil Law, see “The
Company—Regulatory Matters in Kazakhstan—Article 71 of Subsoil Law”) to acquire an interest in
any subsoil use right, licence or asset in respect of predominantly oil onshore hydrocarbon deposits in
Kazakhstan (or any part thereof), or an ownership or other participatory interest in any entity
(whether incorporated in the Republic of Kazakhstan or elsewhere) owning (wholly or primarily) such
a subsoil use right, licence or asset (other than a new onshore oil interest) (an “existing onshore oil
asset”) in which the Company has declared an interest to acquire, NC KMG must use its reasonable
endeavours to procure that the State exercise such pre-emptive right on behalf of the Company and
the Company will acquire such existing onshore oil asset at fair market value.

If NC KMG elects to dispose of a controlling interest in any other existing onshore oil asset held by
NC KMG and in which the Company has declared an interest to acquire, NC KMG must first grant
the Company a right of first refusal to acquire such existing onshore oil asset (or not less than 50% of
such existing onshore oil asset) at fair market value. If NC KMG and the Company are unable to
agree the terms of such acquisition, NC KMG must offer such existing onshore oil asset (but not less
than any part thereof that was offered to the Company) by way of auction to interested parties, in
which event the Company will be entitled to match the winning bid for such interest and acquire 50%
of such offered existing onshore oil asset.
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If NC KMG has failed to sell a controlling interest in any existing onshore oil asset (whether pursuant
to the exercise of the Company’s right of first refusal or by way of auction or otherwise) and
subsequently the Company requests that NC KMG sells such existing onshore oil asset, NC KMG
must consider such request in good faith (but will not be obliged to sell such existing onshore oil asset
to the Company).

(d) NC KMG must use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that members of the Company continue to
benefit on materially the same terms as at Admission from the export infrastructure used by members
of the Group in the six months prior to Admission for so long as the Services Agreement continues. In
particular, NC KMG must procure, in respect of itself, and must use all reasonable endeavours to
procure, in respect of any act required of any third party, the following:

(i) KTO will continue to provide the Group with transportation facilities as provided in the KTO
Transportation Agreement and the Company shall provide the volume of crude oil for
transportation and make payments as provided in the KTO Transportation Agreement;

(ii) after the expiration of the KTO Transportation Agreement, KTO shall allocate to the Group at
the relevant time oil transportation capacity on terms no less adverse than those offered to other
users provided that KTO may give a preferential right of first refusal to users which are in
compliance with their contractual obligations to KTO; and

(iii) the transportation of resources of the Company through the UAS pipeline is envisaged in the
volumes agreed between the Company and KTO in accordance with the KTO Transportation
Agreement with the presentation by the Company of guarantees for the volumes applied for; and

(iv) NC KMG will use all reasonable endeavours within the rights of the shareholder from the
Republic of Kazakhstan under the CPC Shareholder Agreement and/or as a joint venture party in
KPV to ensure that (A) the Company (or any specified member of the Company) is nominated
“affiliated shipper” of NC KMG (including all rights and obligations pursuant to which NC KMG
has access to the CPC pipeline, whether directly or through KPV) for the purposes of access to
the CPC pipeline in respect of any volume of crude oil proposed in writing by the Company to be
delivered through the CPC pipeline, (B) the Company is entitled to deliver into the CPC pipeline
any volume of crude oil proposed in writing by the Company to be delivered through the CPC
pipeline in accordance with the quota allocated to the shareholder from the Republic of
Kazakhstan and/or to KPV and (C) the CPC consortium allocates any increased capacity
(as notified in writing from time to time by the Company to NC KMG) in the CPC pipeline to the
Company as the “affiliated shipper” of NC KMG (where commercially practicable).

In consideration for the grant of such rights and the provision of such services and for NC KMG
agreeing to restrict its business, the Company has agreed to pay to NC KMG the sum of KZT7.0 billion per
annum. To the extent that NC KMG successfully participates in the annual tender for the provision of
services set out in the Services Agreement, the annual fee for such services shall as specified in the tender
but the Company anticipates that it will increase in line with the consumer prices index of the Republic of
Kazakhstan as provided in the Relationship Agreement.

Atyrau Refinery Supply Arrangements

KMG TradeHouse, as the owner of the Atyrau Refinery, is required by the provisions of the State
Procurement Law to make an annual tender for the supply of crude oil to the Atyrau Refinery to be
processed by the refinery. Pursuant to the Refinery Supply Undertaking dated 28 February 2006, the
Company undertakes to participate in the annual state crude oil procurement tenders held by KMG
TradeHouse for a period of 10 years.

Further, pursuant to the Relationship Agreement and subject to Kazakhstan law, the Company
undertook that any such participation by the Company shall be on the following terms:

(a) the Company shall supply not more than 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum in respect of
any tender declared by KMG TradeHouse between 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2010;

(b) the Company shall supply not less than the volume of crude oil to be supplied to the domestic
market in respect of any tender declared by KMG TradeHouse for the years 2011 to 2015 in
volumes in accordance with the production programme forming part of the business plan of the
Company approved by the Board of Directors for such years (which the Company currently
estimates will be no more than 1.9 million tonnes of crude oil per annum); and
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(c) the price of any crude oil supplied by the Company shall be equal to its cost plus a margin of 3%,
where its cost is calculated as the production cost of one tonne of crude oil for the Company plus
the transportation cost of one tonne of crude oil incurred by the Company, where:

(i) the production cost of one tonne of crude oil is the ratio of (A) the total crude oil production
costs and all administrative and non-production costs (including general administration
costs) under the state procurement tender plan for the relevant calendar year to (B) the total
volume of crude oil production at all production branches of the Company under the state
procurement tender plan for the relevant calendar year; and

(ii) the transportation cost of one tonne of crude oil is the ratio of (A) the total costs of crude oil
transportation from all the branches of the Company to the Atyrau Refinery under the state
procurement tender plan for the relevant calendar year to (B) the total volume of crude oil
supplies to the Atyrau Refinery from all production branches of the Company under the
state procurement tender plan for the relevant calendar year.

KMG TradeHouse Agency Agreement

The agency agreement was entered into between the Company and KMG TradeHouse on
26 December 2005 (the “KMG TradeHouse Agency Agreement”). It is subject to renewal annually under
the state procurement legislation and expires on 31 December 2006.

Under the agreement the Company is obliged, within one month of a request from KMG TradeHouse,
to providle KMG TradeHouse with planned annual volumes for the sale of crude oil for export through
KMG TradeHouse. The Company must also submit to KMG TradeHouse quarterly and monthly
schedules, approved by the MEMR, of oil supplies for export, showing transportation and loading
requirements, 45 days before the beginning of the relevant calendar quarter (for quarterly schedules) and
10 days before the beginning of the relevant month (for monthly schedules).

KMG TradeHouse is obliged to offer the crude oil sold to it by the Company to the market such as to
secure the Company the best possible price, and must solicit as many offers as possible for the Company’s
crude oil to achieve this. Details of each offer must be sent to the Company in prescribed form within
10 working days of receipt by KMG TradeHouse. Each purchase-sale agreement signed by KMG
TradeHouse on behalf of the Company must contain certain specified provisions (including, as to payment,
either provision of a letter of credit, 100% pre-payment or payment within 30 days of delivery) and the
signed original copy must be submitted to the Company within 10 working days of its execution.

Ownership of the crude oil is transferred from the Company to the relevant buyer according to the
terms of the relevant purchase-sale agreement (although the agency agreement requires each purchase-
sale agreement to provide that title transfers no earlier than upon full payment of the purchase price).

In consideration for the agency services provided by KMG TradeHouse, the Company is obliged to
pay KMG TradeHouse commission in the amount of KZT63.50 (plus VAT) per tonne of crude oil sold by
KMG TradeHouse for export. This amount is payable on a monthly basis upon receipt by the Company of
KMG TradeHouse’s invoice and is subject to review every 6 months. The Company is also liable for KMG
TradeHouse’s expenses incurred in carrying out its agency function.

Disposal of Atyrau Refinery

In December 2005, the Company sold its entire holding of participatory interests in LLP Atyrau
Refinery (which owns the Atryrau Refinery), representing approximately 99.1% of the entire issued
participatory interests of LLP Atyrau Refinery, to KMG TradeHouse for a consideration of KZT3.5 billion.

In addition, KMG TradeHouse agreed to indemnify the Company in respect of any and all existing
and possible future losses, expenses, claims, actions or any other costs or requirements incurred or suffered
by the Company based on, arising out of, or otherwise in respect of the sale and purchase and/or the
Company’s participation in LLP Atyrau Refinery on or prior to the date of its disposal, including:

(i) any claim by any third party (including any governmental or regulatory authority in the Republic
of Kazakhstan, any taxation authority and any member of the Partnership) in respect of the
conduct of the business of LLP Atyrau Refinery or as a result of the Company’s participation in,
administration of, or act or omission in respect of, LLP Atyrau Refinery;
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(ii) any claim in respect of any breaches of or non-compliance with applicable environmental laws,
regulations, rules or agreements with any relevant governmental or regulatory authority in the
Republic of Kazakhstan (whether written or oral) incurred in connection with the business
of LLP Atyrau Refinery;

(iii) any breach under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, LLP Atyrau Refinery’s charter or
otherwise in connection with any changes to or increases in the authorised or issued charter
capital of LLP Atyrau Refinery (including for any failure to obtain a waiver of applicable rights of
pre-emption or due registration of such changes or increases); and

(iv) any taxes, duties, excise costs and any other related costs arising as a result of or in connection
with any transfer of the participations (in whole or in part) of LLP Atyrau Refinery by the
Company or KMG TradeHouse.

Disposal of part interest in JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries

In December 2005, the Company sold a 35% interest in JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries, a
petrochemical operation, to LLP SAT & Company. As at 31 December 2005, a receivable was recorded
with current assets of KZT3.4 billion in respect of the sale of the 35% interest in JSC Kazakhstan
Petrochemical Industries. The Company is currently considering selling its remaining 15% stake in
JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries.

Option Agreement for KazGerMunai

On 30 June 2006, the Company entered into an option agreement with NC KMG to acquire
NC KMG’s interests in KazGerMunai, representing 50% of the participatory interests in KazGerMunai
(the “KazGerMunai Interest”). Under the terms of the option agreement, in consideration of the
Company providing financial support to NC KMG to finance NC KMG’s acquisition of the KazGerMunai
Interest, following exercise of the option by the Company NC KMG shall be obliged to sell the
KazGerMunai Interest to the Company at a price to be negotiated and determined between the Company
and NC KMG in good faith.

Under this option agreement, NC KMG is bound for a period of 18 months—which may be extended
for a further six months—following the closing of the acquisition of the KGM Interest (i) not to negotiate
the sale of the KazGerMunai Interest to a third party; (ii) to permit the Company to carry out its due
diligence of KazGerMunai; (iii) and to use all reasonable endeavours to procure that the other
shareholders in KazGerMunai provide access to facilities, personnel and information, such as financial
statements and information in relation to oil reserves, when the Company exercises its option.

In accordance with the terms of the Charter, exercise of the option is subject to the approval of a
majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, and there are no arrangements in place that require
the Company to either exercise the option or to complete the acquisition. Under the terms of the
Company’s Charter, acquisition of the KazGerMunai Interest requires the approval of the independent
shareholders of the Company (including holders of GDRs). The Company has undertaken to provide a
circular to Shareholders and holders of GDRs at the relevant time so as to enable them to consider the
terms of such acquisition.

In connection with this option agreement, the Company’s finance subsidiary, Munaishy Finance B.V.,
lent to NC KMG the proceeds of the Senior Notes and the Company lent an additional amount equal to
KZT24.4 billion in order to finance the acquisition by NC KMG of its interest in KazGerMunai. See
“Operating and Financial Review—Recent Developments”.

Sub-Loan Agreement

On 26 January 2004, NC KMG and UMG concluded a sub-loan agreement for an amount of
US$109.0 million to finance the Uzen Rehabilitation Project, and the Company assumed UMG’s rights
and obligations thereunder pursuant to an additional agreement of 5 May 2005. Pursuant to this
agreement, the Company pays NC KMG equal instalments of principal in the amount of US$4.5 million,
and interest and commission fee payments, on 5 February and 5 August of each year from November 2001
maturing in February 2013.
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Interest Free Loans

The Company and NC KMG entered into an agreement on 26 April 2005 for the provision of a
KZT26.0 billion non-interest bearing loan by the Company to NC KMG.

As described above, on 30 June 2006 NC KMG and the Company entered into an agreement for the
provision of an interest free loan in an amount of KZT24.4 billion for the partial financing of the
acquisition of an interest in KazGerMunai.

On 27 May 2005, a loan of KZT665 million was granted to JSC Kazakhstan Petrochemical Industries
(formerly known as JSC Atoll) which was due to be repaid in full by the end of 2008. However on
13 December 2005, the loan was amended to bring the repayment date forward to 31 December 2006. This
total amount currently outstanding on this loan will be paid prior to 31 December 2006.

See “Operating and Financial Review—Results of Operations—Fees and Financial Support Paid to
NC KMG and other Affiliates”.
Intra-Group Transactions

A highly significant proportion of the Company’s revenue, expenses and financing have been obtained
from NC KMG and its subsidiaries, constituting related party transactions under Kazakhstan law.

The value of the Company’s related party transactions with NC KMG and its subsidiaries in the
financial years ended 31 December 2003, 2004 and 2005 and for the five months ended 31 May 2005 and
2006, respectively, are set out in the notes to the financial statements included elsewhere in this document.
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DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Directors and Members of the Management Board

Directors

Name of Director Position with the Company Age
Zhakyp Nasibkalievich Marabayev . . ......... Chairman and Non-Executive Director 43
Askar Kumarovich Balzhanov .............. General Director, CEO 48
Yerzhan Arystanbekovich Zhangaulov . ....... Non-Executive Director 38
Evgeni Kiponiyevich Ogai . . ............... Non-Executive Director 60
Assia Navimanovna Syrgabekova . ........... Non-Executive Director 46
Christopher Mackenzie . . ................. Independent Non-Executive Director 51
Paul Manduca ........... ... ... ...... Independent Non-Executive Director 54
Eddie Walshe . . . ..... ... ... ... ...... Independent Non-Executive Director 65

Zhakyp Marabayev is a Managing Director of NC KMG. He was appointed as a director of the
Company on 30 March 2004 and Chairman of the Board of Directors on 26 June 2006. Mr Marabayev is
the Chairman of the nominations committee of the Board of Directors. After graduating from the Moscow
Institute of Petrochemical and Gas he has gained broad experience in the oil and gas industry by working
in various positions in the Komsomolskneft NSEH, JSC KazakhstanCaspianShelf, Kazakhoil NOC CJSC,
KTO, the Ministry of Foreign Economical Affairs of Kazakhstan, the Ministry of Energy and Fuel
Resources, and the Halyk Savings Bank of Kazakhstan.

Askar K. Balzhanov was appointed as General Director, CEO of the Company on 7 June 2006. Prior to
this appointment he was a General Director of the JSC “KazMunaiTeniz”, a subsidiary of NC KMG
specialising in off-shore oil and gas operations. After graduating from the Moscow Institute of
Petrochemical and Gas he has gained broad experience in the oil and gas field working in various positions
in such hydrocarbon enterprises as Embaneft PA, KazakhstanNefteGas SE, KazakhstanMunayGas SE,
KazRosGas CJSC, and NC KMG.

Yerzhan A. Zhangaulov was appointed as a director of the Company on 12 June 2006. He was appointed
as a Managing Director of NC KMG on 4 May 2006 and prior to this appointment he was Executive
Director of Legal Support at NC KMG. Also he headed the legal service and HR department in the
Administration of the President of Kazakhstan and also was the adviser to the Vice-President in NC KMG.
He obtained a law degree in Karaganda State Institute in 1992.

Evgeni K. Ogai was appointed as a director of the Company on 12 June 2006. He was appointed as a
Managing Director of NC KMG on 24 November 2004. Prior to which, he worked as director of the
department for share management in joint ventures in NC KMG. He has worked as an oil projects
manager in Needham Group Inc. since 1992. He has graduated from Moscow Oil and Gas Institute in
1969. Dr. Ogai is the author of 2 books, more than 50 publications and holds 7 patents.

Assia Syrgabekova was appointed as a director of the Company on 4 July 2006. She was appointed as a
Managing Director of NC KMG in June 2006. Prior to this appointment she was First Deputy Chairman at
Halyk Bank from October 2003. From 1998 to 2003 Ms. Syrgabekova has worked in the national oil and
gas companies holding various top management positions: KazakhQil, KazTransGas. She graduated from
Kazakh state University’s Department of Economics in 1982.

Christopher Mackenzie was appointed as a director of the Company on 28 August 2006. Mr Mackenzie
is the Chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit and nominations committees
of the Board of Directors. He has over 20 years of international experience in mergers and acquisitions and
investment banking having worked for companies such as JP Morgan, GE Capital and Brunswick Capital
in UK, US, Japan and Russia. He holds a Master’s degree from Oxford University (Law and Modern
Languages) and an MBA from INSEAD.

Paul Manduca was appointed as a director of the Company on 28 August 2006 and is the Chairman of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board of Directors. He has
extensive asset and investment management experience having worked as CEO for companies such as
Threadneedle Asset Management, Rothschild Asset Management, Deutsche Asset Management in UK
and Europe starting from 1973. Mr Manduca has served on a number of boards as an independent director
in the last 10 years. He is currently chairman of two other audit committees. He holds a Master’s degree
from Oxford University (Modern Languages).
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Eddie Walshe was appointed as a director of the Company on 28 August 2006. Mr Walshe is a member
of the audit, nominations and remuneration committees of the Board of Directors. He has over 35 years
experience in the oil and gas sector. Mr Walshe has worked in various roles at British Petroleum and
British Gas and oversaw the overseas exploration and productions operations of these companies in
Nigeria, Abu-Dhabi, Central Asia and South-East Asia. Mr Walshe has a PhD in Chemistry from the
University of Dublin.

The business address of each of the Directors and the Senior Management is the Company’s
registered office, at 20/1 Kabanbay Batyr Avenue, Astana 010000, Republic of Kazakhstan.

Management Board

Name of Management Board member Position with the Company Age
Askar Kumarovich Balzhanov. ... ... ... General Director, CEO 48
Vladimir Yakovlevich Miroshnikov . . . ... First Deputy of General Director 56
Zhanneta Duisetayevna Bekezhanova . ... Deputy General Director, CFO 36
Kairolla Zhetkizgenovich Erezhepov. . . .. Head of Staff 58
Maksim Shafikovich Izbasov........... Director of EMG 51
Murat Izbergenovich Kurbanbayev . . . . .. Director of UMG 55
Askar Aubakirov . ......... ... ... .. Deputy General Director of Corporate Development 36

Askar K. Balzhanov was appointed General Director of the Company on 7 June 2006.

Vladimir Miroshnikov has been the First Deputy of General Director, Deputy CEO of the Company
since April 2004. He had been working in oil and gas industry since 1973 with Uzenneft NSEH as an
operator and chief engineer and in management of Mangistaumunaigas OJSC, JV Karakudukmunai, and
since 2002—in NC KMG.

Zhanneta Bekezhanova has been a Deputy of General Director, CFO of the Company since 2004. She
has been in the oil and gas industry for over seven years, previously holding positions with the Kazakh
Trade House in Hong Kong and the Republican Kazakhintorg Foreign Trade Association where she was a
senior economist and with KTO as Financial Director and Deputy Director General on economics and
finance. She has a degree from the Kazakh State Management Academy.

Kairolla Erezhepov has been working in the oil and gas industry since 1970 and has been the Head of
the Company’s Staff since 2004. He spent nine years as the Deputy of Kazakhstan’s Parliament and has
been awarded the Parasat order and Astana medal. He holds a degree from the Kazakh
Polytechnical University.

Maksim Izbasov has been the Director of EMG since 2004. After graduating in 1976 from the Kazakh
Polytechnical Institution in Almaty he took a position as an oil and gas extraction operator, head of
department, chief engineer with the Kulsaryneft division of EMG, as chief engineer, first Vice President
with PC Tengineftegaz and starting from 1999 as head of Kulsaryneft. He holds a Kurmet Order Award.

Murat Kurbanbayev has been the Director of UMG since April 2004. He has over 30 years professional
experience in the oil and gas sector after graduating from the Kazakh Polytechnical Institution in 1972. He
holds a Kurmet (Honour) order.

Askar Aubakirov has been Deputy General Director of Corporate Development of the Company since
August 2006. He graduated from the Moscow Hydrotechnical Institute in 1999 and has worked in the oil
and gas industry since then. He was formerly first deputy director of EMG on economics and finance.

Interests of the Directors and members of the Management Board

Prior to the Global Offer, none of the Directors or members of the Management Board had any
interest in the Shares. All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have applied for Offer Shares in the
Global Offer in the following amounts:

Number of
Shares
Christopher Mackenzie . . ... ... 1,166
Paul Manduca . . ... ... ... . e 1,138
Edward Walshe . . . . ... e 1,138
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Other Directors and members of the Management Board and the Trustee of the Company’s Employee
Trust have also applied for Shares or GDRs in the Global Offer in the following amounts.

Number of
Shares
Assia Navimanovna Syrgabekova . .. ... ... L 796
Vladimir Yakovlevich Miroshnikov . ....... ... ... . . ... . . . . 401
Zhanneta Duisetayevna Bekezhanova .. ...... ... ... ... ... . i L. 474
Murat Izbergenovich Kurbanbayev . ..... ... ... ... . .. . . 401
Askar Aubakirov . .. ... 565

The Shares so allocated will be subject to lock-up arrangements as described in “Details of the Global
Offer—Lock-up Arrangements”. Immediately following Admission, the Company anticipates that the
Directors and members of the Management Board will hold 6,079 shares in aggregate.

As at 28 September 2006 (the latest practicable date prior to the date of this document) no Director
or any member of their respective families had any interest in the Company’s Share Capital other than
Mr Izbasov who owns 510 preference shares.

It is anticipated that, as a result of the proposed grant of options under the Company’s Share Option
Plan at a time to be determined as described in “The Company—Employees, Health and Safety—JSC
KazMunaiGas EP Option Plan”, the Directors and members of the Management Board will be entitled to
hold contingent rights to acquire Shares with a value (at the date of grant) equal to up to 500% of their
annual base salary in respect of Options and up to 200% of their annual base salary in respect of
IPO Awards.

There are no family relationships between any of the Directors or any member of the Company’s
Management Board.

Mr Marabayev, Mr Zhangaulov, Mr Ogai and Ms Syrgabekova have been appointed to the Board of
Directors by NC KMG and work for NC KMG. Therefore while such Directors owe certain duties to
NC KMGQG, their duties as directors of the Company are regulated in accordance with the terms of the
Company’s Charter, Kazakhstan law and the Relationship Agreement, which require them to act in the
best interests of the Company in their capacity as Directors. In addition, Mr Mackenzie, Mr Manduca and
Mr Walshe hold a number of external directorships and other positions. The Directors have no conflict or
potential conflicts of interest between their duties to the Company and their private interests or duties to
third parties.

Additional information on the Directors and members of the Management Board
Directors’ Service Contracts

Zhakyp Marabayev is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director and Chairman. A formal
letter of appointment is in the process of preparation. He was appointed Director at a general
shareholders meeting held on 30 March 2004. On 7 June 2006 he was appointed a Managing Director of
NC KMG but remained a Director of the Company. On 26 June 2006 the Board of Directors of the
Company elected Mr Marabayev as Chairman. Mr Marabayev will not receive any fee in respect of his role
as a Director of the Company but will be entitled to reimbursement for costs and expenses associated with
such appointment.

Yerzhan Zhangaulov is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director. A formal letter of
appointment is in the process of preparation. He was appointed Director at a general shareholders
meeting held on 12 June 2006. Mr Zhangaulov will not receive any fee in respect of his role as a Director
of the Company but will be entitled to reimbursement for costs and expenses associated with such
appointment.

Evgeni Ogai is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director. A formal letter of appointment
is in the process of preparation. He was appointed Director at a general shareholders meeting held on
12 June 2006. Dr Ogai will not receive any fee in respect of his role as a Director of the Company but will
be entitled to reimbursement for costs and expenses associated with such appointment.

Assia Syrgabekova is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director. A formal letter of
appointment is in the process of preparation. She was appointed Director at a general shareholders
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meeting held on 4 July 2006. Ms Syrgabekova will not receive any fee in respect of her role as a Director of
the Company but will be entitled to reimbursement for costs and expenses associated with such
appointment.

Askar Balzhanov is engaged by the Company as an executive Director and CEO of the Company. He
was appointed CEO on 7 June 2006 and appointed a Director at a general shareholders meeting held on
12 June 2006. Mr Balzhanov will not receive any fee in respect of his role as a Director of the Company but
will be entitled to reimbursement for costs and expenses associated with such appointment.

Christopher Mackenzie is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director on the terms of a
letter of appointment and decision of a general shareholders meeting dated 28 August 2006. Under the
letter of appointment, Mr Mackenzie is entitled to an annual fee of US$100,000, a fee of US$10,000 for
each meeting of the Board of Directors that he physically attends (US$5,000 if attended by telephone or
video conference), a fee of US$2,500 for each separate meeting of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors that he attends and an annual fee of US$15,000 in respect of his duties as chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board of Directors. The letter of appointment may be terminated by either
the Company or Mr Mackenzie on three months’ notice, although it is anticipated that the appointment
will initially be for 24 months from the date of appointment.

Paul Manduca is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director on the terms of a letter of
appointment and decision of a general shareholders meeting dated 28 August 2006. Under the letter of
appointment, Mr Manduca is entitled to an annual fee of US$100,000, a fee of US$10,000 for each meeting
of the Board of Directors that he physically attends (US$5,000 if attended by telephone or video
conference), a fee of US$2,500 for each separate meeting of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
that he attends and an annual fee of US$25,000 in respect of his duties as chairman of the audit committee
of the Board of Directors. The letter of appointment may be terminated by either the Company or
Mr Manduca on three months’ notice, although it is anticipated that the appointment will initially be for
24 months from the date of appointment.

Eddie Walshe is engaged by the Company as a non-executive Director on the terms of a letter of
appointment and decision of a general shareholders meeting dated 28 August 2006. Under the letter of
appointment, Mr Walshe is entitled to an annual fee of US$100,000, a fee of US$10,000 for each meeting
of the Board of Directors that he physically attends (US$5,000 if attended by telephone or video
conference) and a fee of US$2,500 for each separate meeting of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
that he attends. The letter of appointment may be terminated by either the Company or Mr Walshe on
three months’ notice, although it is anticipated that the appointment will initially be for 24 months from
the date of appointment.

Service Contracts with members of the Management Board

All members of the Management Board have entered into service contracts with the Company which
generally provide for business travel insurance, for reimbursement for expenses incurred while travelling
on Company business in accordance with the internal rules of the Company, and for a car and driver.

Save as set out above, there are no existing or proposed service contracts between the Directors or
members of the Management Board and any member of the Group.

Other

The aggregate remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board for the year ended
31 December 2005 (including any contingent or deferred compensation) and benefits in kind granted to
the members of the Management Board by the Company was KZT133.5 million. The members of the
Board of Directors did not receive any remuneration (including any contingent or deferred consideration)
or benefits in kind for the year ended 31 December 2005. Other than the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, who each receive certain fees as noted above, the members of the Board of Directors are not
entitled to any remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2006, but in future years will be entitled to
remuneration at the discretion of shareholders.

At 31 December 2005 there were no contingent or deferred compensation benefits. Also, there were
no benefits set aside or accrued by the Company to provide pension, retirement or similar benefits to the
Directors or members of the Management Board.
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Details of the past directorships, other than those with Group companies, within the last five years,
held by the Directors and members of the Management Board, are as follows:

Askar Balzhanov.............

Vladimir Miroshnikov . ........

Zhanetta Bekezhanova ........

Askar Aubakirov.............

Christopher Mackenzie .. ... ...

Paul Manduca

Eddie Walshe

Company

Position still held

TOO Katrako
JSC KazRosGaz
ZAO KazMunaiTeniz

JSC Karakudukmunai
JSC KazTransOil

EuroAsiaGroup

TME Kaspiyneft

JSC EMG

EMG

Equilibrium Ltd.

WPP plc

Minerva plc

Champagne Jacquesson et fils

Brunswick Capital Limited
TrizecHahn Corporation
(and various of their respective subsidiaries)

MEPC plc

Henderson Small Companies Investment Trust plc
Deutsche Asset Management Group Limited
(and their subsidiaries)

Rothschild Asset Management

(and their subsidiaries)

Wolverhampton Wanderers FC Limited
Development Securities plc

Said Holdings

Wm Morrison plc

Uniq pension fund

Al-Futtaim trust

Aon Corp. UK

Bridgewell plc

JP Morgan Fleming Investment Trust plc
Intrinsic Limited

St. Justines Properties Limited

Foresight Oil Ltd.
Caremeasure Ltd.

Assam Oil Ltd.

Eddie Walshe Consulting Ltd.
Foresight Ltd.

Bergesen LNG Ltd.

Zhakyp Marabayev, Yerzhan Zhanganlov, Evgeni Ogai and Assia Syrgabekova are Managing
Directors of NC KMG. Although they are not directors of the board of NC KMG, they may be directors of
one or more of NC KMG’s subsidiaries.

None of the Directors or members of the Management Board has at any time in the last five years:

(a) been a partner in any partnership which, at the time at of or within the 12 months preceding, has
been subject to a compulsory liquidation administration or partnership voluntary arrangement;

(b) had any convictions (Whether spent or unspent) relating to offences involving fraud or dishonesty;

(c) been declared bankrupt or been subject to any individual voluntary arrangement;
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(d) been a director or other officer of any company which at the time of or within 12 months
following his directorship, has been subject to a receivership, compulsory liquidation, creditor’s
voluntary liquidation, administration, company voluntary arrangement or any composition or
arrangement with creditors generally or any class of creditors of such company;

(e) been a partner of any partnership at the time of or within 12 months preceding a receivership of
any assets of such partnership;

(f) had any of their assets subject to any receivership; and

(g) been the subject of any official public incriminations and/or sanctions by any statutory or
regulatory authorities (including designated professional bodies) or been disqualified by a court
from acting as a director or other officer of a company or from acting in the management or
conduct of the affairs of a company.

Corporate Governance

As an overseas company with GDRs admitted to the Official List, the Company will not be required
to comply with the provisions of the UK Combined Code on Corporate Governance (“Combined Code”).
In addition, it is not required to disclose in its annual report whether or not it complies with the corporate
governance regime of the Republic of Kazakhstan and the significant ways in which its actual governance
practices differ from those set out in the Combined Code. However, the Directors consider corporate
governance to be very important and support high standards of corporate governance.

Corporate governance best practice in Kazakhstan is set out in the Kazakhstan Corporate
Management Code. The Kazakhstan Corporate Management Code is based on existing international best
practice in the area of corporate governance and sets out recommendations for applying the principles of
corporate governance by Kazakhstan joint-stock companies. It was approved by the Expert Council for
Securities Market Matters under the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan in September 2002.
The Company currently complies with the provisions of the Kazakhstan Corporate Management Code.
The Company currently complies with the provisions of the Kazakhstan Corporate Management Code in
all material respects.

The Company has adopted the Kazakhstan Corporate Management Code, modified to include certain
provisions from the Combined Code, as its Corporate Governance Code with effect from Admission. The
modifications adopted by the Company impose additional corporate governance obligations on the
Company and include certain requirements that are set out in the Combined Code. The Company believes
that these additional modifications significantly strengthen the corporate governance regime to be adopted
by the Company. The Company will also take into consideration the terms of the Combined Code and will
seek to improve its standards of corporate governance in the future. See “Risk Factors—The recently
introduced Kazakhstan corporate governance code.”

The Combined Code provides that the board of directors of a UK listed company should include a
balance of executive and non-executive directors, with non-executive directors comprising at least one-half
of the board of directors (excluding the Chairman). The Combined Code states that the board of directors
should determine whether a director is independent in character and judgement and whether there are
relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, the director’s judgment.

The Company currently operates with two boards, the Board of Directors (the supervisory body) and
a separate Management Board (the executive body). The General Director, who heads the Management
Board, is also a director of the Company. The Board of Directors therefore only contains one executive
member of the Company’s management. In order to improve the balance of the Board of Directors, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Christopher Mackenzie, Paul
Manduca and Edward Walshe, with effect from Admission. The Independent Non-Executive Directors will
work closely with the other directors and the Management Board to ensure that the Company complies
with its corporate governance obligations. Under the terms of the Company’s Corporate Governance
Code, the Company will use the same standards set out in the Combined Code to determine the
independence of its directors.

The Company’s Management Board comprises senior executives of the Company, including its
General Director (CEO) and General Director (CFO).

The Directors have adopted terms of reference for and have formed an audit committee, a
nominations committee and they are in the process of establishing terms of reference for the remuneration
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committee. All the members of the audit committee and remuneration committee and a majority of the
members of the nominations committee will be Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee which is still in the process of being established will normally meet not less than
twice a year. This committee will be staffed exclusively by the Independent Non-Executive Directors being
Mr Manduca, Mr Mackenzie and Mr Walshe, and it will be chaired by Mr Manduca. The audit committee
will have responsibility, for amongst other things, the planning and review of the Company’s annual report
and accounts and half-yearly reports and the involvement of the Company’s auditors in that process. It will
also have the benefit of the services of the Company’s Internal Audit Service, which reviews the Company’s
internal controls. The committee will focus in particular on compliance with legal requirements,
accounting standards, the applicable rules of the UK Listing Authority and the KASE and on ensuring that
an effective system of internal financial control is maintained. The ultimate responsibility for reviewing and
approving the annual and interim report and accounts will remain with the Board of Directors.

The terms of reference of the audit committee will cover such issues as membership and the frequency
of meetings, as mentioned above, together with the role of the secretary and the requirements of notice of
and quorum for and the right to attend meetings. The duties of the audit committee to be covered in the
terms of reference are: financial reporting, internal controls and risk management systems, whistleblowing,
internal audit, external audit, and reporting responsibilities. The terms of reference will also set out the
authority of the committee to exercise its duties.

Nominations Committee

The nominations committee will meet when appropriate. The majority of members of the nominations
committee will be Independent Non-Executive Directors, with the remaining member being the Chairman
of the Board of Directors. It will be Chaired by Mr Marabayev and its other members will be
Mr Mackenzie and Mr Walshe. The nominations committee considers the composition of the Board of
Directors, retirements and appointments of additional and replacement directors and makes appropriate
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee will normally meet not less than twice a year. This committee will be
staffed exclusively by the Independent Non-Executive Directors. It will be chaired by Mr Mackenzie and its
other members will be Mr Manduca and Mr Walshe. The remuneration committee has responsibility for
making recommendations to the Board of Directors on the Company’s policy on the remuneration of
certain senior executives (including the Management Board), the implementation and operation of share
incentive schemes and for the determination, within agreed terms of reference, of specific remuneration
packages for each of the members of the Management Board, including pension rights, contracts of
employment and any compensation payments. In addition to making recommendations on remuneration
and share packages, the remuneration committee maintains reports for corporate governance purposes.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee cover such issues as membership and
frequency of meetings, as mentioned above, together with the role of secretary and the requirements of
notice of and quorum for and the right to attend meetings. The duties of the remuneration committee
covered in the terms of reference relate to the following: determining and monitoring policy on and setting
arrangements, authorising claims for expenses from the General Director and Chairman, reporting and
disclosure, and remuneration consultants. The terms of reference also set out the reporting responsibilities
and the authority of the committee to exercise its duties. Because the Remuneration Committee will only
be established after the Global Offer is completed, it has not yet had the opportunity to consider or
approve current remuneration arrangements or the Company’s Plan.

Other Corporate Governance provisions

In addition to the Corporate Governance Code, the Company has also entered into the Relationship
Agreement with NC KMG which seeks to limit the degree of control that NC KMG may exercise over the
management of the Company. See “Principal Shareholders, Relationships with NC KMG and Related
Party Transactions” for further details regarding the Relationship Agreement.
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The Company has also incorporated certain provisions into the Charter which requires the approval of
a majority of the Independent Non-Executive Directors at the relevant board meeting before the Company
may implement certain transactions or undertake certain acts that include the following:

* changes to the Charter;
* changes to the Services Agreement or the Relationship Agreement;
* the implementation of transactions with NC KMG or any of its affiliates; and
* the acquisition of new licences or assets which represent more than 10% of the Company’s assets.
See “Description of Share Capital and Certain Requirements of Kazakhstan Law—Summary of the
Charter—Independent Non-Executive Directors”.
Risk Management Committee

NC KMG has engaged AON to develop and gradually implement a corporate risk management
system (Enterprise Risk Management) which would encompass most of the largest subsidiaries of
NC KMG, including the Company.

In this regard, the Company is developing its internal risk management policies and creating a risk
management committee which is proposed to include the General Director, CEO, the First Deputy
General Director and also the Deputy General Director, CFO. The committee will examine the risks of
current production activity and of new investment projects. In respect of major risks, the Company’s board
of directors will approve the committee’s decisions. The proposed principal function of the committee is
the identification, evaluation and control of such risks.
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DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF
KAZAKHSTAN LEGISLATION

Share capital

The Company was incorporated with an issued share capital of KZT10,340,268,750, divided into
37,224,968 shares with a par value of KZT250 each and 4,136,107 preference shares with a par value of
KZT250 each and a dividend of a minimum of KZT25 per preference share.

On 17 November 2004, the shareholders of the Company resolved at general meeting to increase the
number of issued Shares to 43,051,132.

Of the additional 5,826,164 shares, 124,312 were placed between 31 December 2004 and
16 February 2005 for cash in the amount of KZT31,078,000 and the remaining 5,701,852 shares were
acquired by NC KMG for the transfer of a 86.7% participatory interest in the share capital of the Atyrau
Refinery valued at KZT1,425,463,000.

As at 31 December 2005 and 31 May 2006, the number of placed shares was 43,051,132 Shares and
4,117,699 preference shares.

On 31 May 2006, the Company had an issued and placed share capital of KZT11,792,208,000.

On 11 July 2005 at the EGM it was resolved to issue 27,169,803 new shares the issuance of which was
registered on 15 August 2005.

On 25 July 2006, the Board of Directors approved placement of these new shares to existing
shareholders at KZT250 per Share, and notified existing shareholders thereof, in order to allow them to
exercise their pre-emptive right. As of 10 September 2006, 4,083,012 shares had been acquired by existing
shareholders under their pre-emptive right, and no further shares can be acquired under this pre-emptive
right.

On 25 August 2006, the remaining issued but unplaced preference shares, in an amount of
18,408 preference shares, were placed at par value.

The Company has no convertible securities, exchangeable securities or securities with warrants
in issue.

Save as disclosed above:

(a) there has been no changes in the issued capital of the Company or the number or classes of
shares of which such capital is composed in the three year period ending on
31 December 2005; and

(b) no capital of the Company is under option or is, or will, immediately following Admission, be
agreed, conditionally or unconditionally, to be put under option.

All shares are in registered form in the shareholders register of the Company, maintained by an
independent third-party registrar. The registrar is JSC Fondovy Center of Kazakhstan 050091, Almaty,
Zheltoksan St, 79A. Ownership of the Company’s shares is evidenced by an extract from the share register
of the Company.

Summary of the Charter

The current charter of the Company was adopted by a resolution of the Company passed by a majority
of not less than three-quarters of the total number of shares in issue (a “special resolution”) at an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on 4 July 2006 and became effective upon its
registration at the Kazakhstan Ministry of Justice on 17 August 2006.

The Charter provides that the Company’s principal objective is to effectively and profitably develop
hydrocarbon resources and, in doing so, to explore for, appraise, develop, produce, process, export and sell
for profit, economically commercial hydrocarbons, hydrocarbon products and petroleum products. The
Company’s objects are set out in full in clause 3 of the Charter.
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The Charter includes provisions to the following effect:

Share rights

Subject to the provisions of the JSC Law and without prejudice to any rights attached to any existing
shares or class of shares, the Company may issue shares and preference shares.

Subject to the Charter and to provisions of the Joint Stock Company Law, the issuance of shares of
the Company are at the disposal of the general meeting of Shareholders.

Voting rights

Voting may be open or closed with every shareholder present in person or by proxy (except holders of
preference shares) shall have one vote for each fully paid share of which he is the holder and the holders of
the preference shares shall not be entitled to vote.

No resolution of shareholders in writing shall be effective without a quorum (which is 50% or more of
the voting shares or 40% in the event of a reconvened meeting).

Dividends and other distributions

The Joint Stock Company Law and the Charter set out the procedure for determining the dividends
that the Company distributes to its shareholders. Subject to the provisions of the Joint Stock Company
Law, the Company may by a resolution of shareholders passed by a simple majority of shares present and
voting at the general meeting (an “ordinary resolution”) declare dividends in accordance with the
respective rights of shareholders.

Subject to the provisions of the JSC Law, the Company may pay interim dividends if it appears to the
Board of Directors that they are justified by the profits of the Company available for distribution.

The Joint Stock Company Law prohibits payment of dividends if the Company’s shareholders’ equity
is negative or would become negative as a result of such payment or if the Company demonstrates
characteristics of insolvency or if payment of dividends will cause such a situation. Under Kazakh
legislation and its Charter, the Company may distribute dividends on its shares based on its three-month
and/or six-month results (as determined by the Board of Directors), as appears to the Board to be justified
by the financial position of the Company. A majority of the Board of Directors recommends annual
dividends to the general shareholders meeting, which then approves the annual dividends by majority vote.
A decision on interim dividends must be taken within three months of the end of the relevant period; a
decision on annual dividends must be taken at the annual general shareholders meeting. The shareholders’
right to receive dividends, once declared, does not lapse.

The list of shareholders entitled to receive dividends is drawn up on the date preceding the date on
which payment of the dividends in question begins.

If a dividend payable in respect of a share is delayed by the Company, then additional interest is
payable by the Company to the shareholder. No dividend may be paid on any share unless all outstanding
dividends declared on the preference shares have been paid in full.

Under the terms of the Esomet Arrangement (see “Operating and Financial Review—Borrowings—
Esomet Arrangement”) the Company may not pay dividends on the preference shares exceeding
KZT500.0 million per financial year, and as dividends on preference shares may not be less than dividends
payable on common shares this restricts the total dividends payable by the Company. Under the terms of
the Senior Notes and the Esomet Arrangement (See “Operating and Financial Review—Recent
Developments—Bond Issue and Loan”) the Company may not pay dividends in aggregate amounts
exceeding the net income for the period in respect of which the dividend is being paid.

Except as otherwise provided by the rights and restrictions attached to any class of shares, all
dividends will be declared and paid according to the amounts paid-up on the shares on which the dividend
is paid.

If the Company has received the written consent of the shareholder concerned, then it may pay
dividends with respect to the shares in the form of issued shares or bonds issued by the Company (but not
in the form of any other type of securities).
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Except as provided by the rights and restrictions attached to any class of shares, the holders of the
Company’s shares will under the Joint Stock Company Law be entitled to participate in any surplus assets
in a winding up in proportion to their shareholdings. A liquidator may divide among the Shareholders
in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Variation of rights

Pursuant to the Joint Stock Company Law, there are two types of shares: ordinary and preference.
Each type has attached to it the rights set out in the Law. These rights may be extended by a company’s
charter (although the Charter does not purport to extend such rights), but they cannot be restricted.

Rights of holders of preference shares

A preference share gives to its holder the right to a preferential right, as compared to holders of
Shares, to:

(a) a dividend representing not less than 25KZT per preference share, provided always that it shall
not be less than the dividend paid on Shares in the same period; and

(b) participate in the Company’s assets on a winding up of the Company in priority to holders of
Shares up to the nominal value of the preference share.

A preference share does not give its holder the right to vote at a general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders, except:

(a) at a general meeting of shareholders that considers any issue, where the decision may lead to the
limitation of the rights of holders of preference shares. Decisions on such issues may be taken
only if approved by holders of not less than two-thirds of the issued preference shares;

(b) at a general meeting of sharcholders that reviews a question about the reorganisation of the
Company or its winding up;

(c) if dividends on preference shares are not paid in full amount within 3 (three) months from the
expiry date stipulated for its payment.

Each holder of preference shares that has the right to vote at general meeting of shareholders and is
present thereat in person or through his representative shall have one vote for each preference share held.

Unpaid and bought-back shares

The Joint Stock Company Law states that, until a share is paid in full, a company must not instruct the
share to be credited to the personal account of the would-be acquirer. Instead, the share will be credited to
the personal account of the company itself with the registrar. Therefore, a share cannot be placed unless it
is fully paid-up.

Shares which have been bought back by a company are credited to the same personal account of the
company with the registrar.

No dividends accrue or are payable on unplaced shares or shares bought back by a company, such
shares are not counted for the purposes of determining a quorum, and such shares do not carry the right
to vote.

Transfer of Shares

To transfer a share, the holder (or its representative) must sign a written order and submit it to the
registrar or nominee for execution, or give suitable electronic instructions as permitted by legislation.
The registrar or nominee will execute a buy order by pairing it with a sell order, and vice versa.

All dealings in shares must be registered by way of making entries on the personal accounts in the
registry system or the nominee’s books. Legal title to a share arises from the moment when the transaction
is so registered (unless each party to the transaction has a different nominee, in which case legal title arises
from the moment when the transaction is registered in the personal accounts of each nominee in the
Kazakh central depository).

An extract from the personal account of a shareholder in the registry system or a nominee’s books is
evidence of that holder’s legal right to a share.
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A registrar or nominee can refuse to register a transaction if the documents submitted do not conform
to legislative requirements.

In addition, the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan on the Regulation and Supervision of Financial
Markets and Financial Organizations (the “FMSA”) has the right (by notifying the relevant issuer, the
registrar and the central depository) to suspend trading in shares by blocking all or certain personal
accounts in the registry or nominee systems if legal requirements establishing (i) the rights and interests of
investors when acquiring shares, or (ii) the terms and procedures for trading shares, have been violated.

A fee will ordinarily be payable to the registrar or nominee for registering the transfer, under
contractual terms.

Alteration of share capital

The Company may from time to time by a three-quarters majority of voting shares at a general
shareholders meeting (but by no other method) increase its authorised share capital.

Authority to place shares

Under the Joint Stock Company Law, the Directors may place shares by board resolution unless
authorised to do so by an ordinary resolution in a general meeting. Any decision must state the maximum
amount of shares that may be placed under it.

Pre-emption rights

Under the Joint Stock Company Law, a shareholder of the Company has a pre-emptive right to
acquire newly-placed shares of the Company.

Within 10 days from the date upon which the Company takes a decision to place a specified number of
shares, it must make an offer to each existing sharecholder (either by written notification or by way of
publication in the mass media) to acquire the shares pro rata to its shareholding at the placement price
established by the Company in the decision. Each shareholder then has 30 days from the date of such
notification or publication to submit an application to acquire shares (i.e. to exercise its pre-emptive right).
Upon the expiry of this 30-day period, the right to submit an application will lapse.

Purchase of own shares

Subject to the Joint Stock Company Law and without prejudice to any relevant special rights attached
to any class of shares, the Company may purchase any of its own shares of any class in any way and at any
price (whether at par or above or below par). Such shares will be credited to the Company’s personal
account with the registrar.

The Company cannot purchase any of its shares which are being placed in a primary offering, and
cannot purchase its own shares before the confirmation by the FMSA of the results of the placement
of shares.

Any such purchase must be effected with the consent of the relevant shareholder using a valuation
methodology which has been approved in advance by a general shareholders meeting of the Company.

Subject to certain conditions set forth in the Joint Stock Company Law, a shareholder may request the
Company to buy back shares belonging to the shareholder, which the Company must do within 30 days of
receipt by it from the shareholder of a duly formalised request.

Shares being bought back by the Company cannot exceed 25% of the total number of placed shares of
the Company, and the purchase price cannot exceed 10% of the size of the Company’s own capital.
General meetings

The Board of Directors must convene and the Company must hold general meetings as annual
general meetings in accordance with the requirements of the JSC Law. The Board of Directors may call
general meetings at such times as it determines. In addition, a general meeting may be convened on the
written request of any holder or holders of shares representing not less than 10% of the placed shares.

All general meetings must be held in Astana, the Republic of Kazakhstan. Shareholders are entitled to
receive not less than 30 days’ notice of the holding of any general meeting.
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The general meeting of shareholders shall have exclusive competence to determine certain matters,
including the following:

(a) the introduction of amendments and supplements to, or the approval of new versions of,
the Charter;

(b) the voluntary reorganisation or winding-up of the Company, including any change of the
Company’s status as a Kazakhstan joint-stock company;

(c) any increase in the charter capital of the Company or any change in the type of any authorised
shares of the Company which have not been placed;

(d) any proposal to de-list from the KASE or to de-list from the Official List of the UK Financial
Services Authority and from trading on the London Stock Exchange;

(e) the approval of the Corporate Governance Code and introduction of amendments and
supplements thereto;

(f) the determination of the quantity and the expiry dates of the powers of the Board of Directors,
the selection of members of the Board of Directors and early termination of their powers, as well
as determination of the amount and payment terms of remuneration to members of the Board
of Directors;

(g) the appointment of an auditing company to undertake the audit of the Company;

(h) if such decision may not be taken by the Board of Directors, decisions for the Company to
conclude any transaction by the Company with any affiliate of the Company; and

(i) subject to Legislation, approval of the adoption of any share option schemes or long term
incentive plans for the officers, management and employees of the Company.

Matters referred to in paragraphs (a) to (e) above shall require the approval by a qualified majority
of shareholders.

The general meeting of shareholders has a right to cancel any decision made by any other
management body of the Company on issues related to the internal organisation of the Company.

Under Kazakhstan law unless the Company’s charter provides otherwise (which the Company’s
Charter does not), a general meeting is quorate only if shareholders holding 50% or more in aggregate of
the shares have registered for attendance and attend. If the meeting cannot be held because of lack of a
quorum, a further meeting can be called which will be quorate only if shareholders holding 40% or more in
aggregate of the shares have registered for attendance and attend. Therefore, for so long as NC KMG
holds more than 60% of the shares of the Company, no general shareholders meeting will be quorate
unless NC KMG registers for and attends such meeting. If NC KMG fails to do so, then the meeting
cannot be held.

Directors

The Charter provides that the number of Directors shall be not less than eight. Directors shall be
appointed by shareholders by way of cumulative voting (whereby each shareholder has the number of votes
equal to the number of shares owned multiplied by the number of directors being elected and has a right to
give the votes owned by such shareholder completely to one candidate or to be distributed among several
candidates to the Board of Directors. Candidates collecting the majority of votes are considered to be
selected members of the Board of Directors. If two or more candidates gain an equal number of votes then
an additional election is carried out with regard to such candidates).

The quorum required for a duly convened meeting of the Board of Directors shall comprise two-thirds
of the members of the Board of Directors, including not less than two-thirds of Independent
Non-Executive Directors, save that where any matter for determination by the Board of Directors relates
to a transaction with an affiliate of the Company, the quorum required for a duly convened meeting of the
Board of Directors shall comprise not less than 2 members of the Board of Directors who have no interest
(or are deemed to have no interest) in the relevant transaction. Each member of the Board of Directors
has one vote. Decisions of the Board of Directors are made by simple majority of votes of members of the
Board of Directors present at the meeting unless otherwise stipulated by the Joint Stock Company Law or
the Charter (see below regarding necessary approvals by Independent Non-Executive Directors). There
will be six board meetings per annum.
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A director shall not be required to hold any shares in the capital of the Company by way
of qualification.

A general meeting of shareholders has a right to terminate early the powers of all or any members of
the Board of Directors and to remove any member of the Board of Directors from their office.

The Board of Directors shall, subject as set out below in the paragraph headed “Independent
Non-Executive Directors”, have exclusive competence to determine certain matters, including
the following:

(a) decisions regarding the allotment of shares, including the price and number of the Company’s
shares to be placed;

(b) the determination of quantity and expiry dates of powers of the Management Board, the selection
of the General Director (chairman of Management Board) and members of the Management
Board, and early termination of their powers;

(c) recommendations of the amount of official salary and payment terms of remuneration and
bonuses to the members of the Board of Directors (including the General Director (chairman of
the Management Board)) and the determination of the amount of official salary and payment
terms of remuneration and bonuses to members of the Management Board;

(d) the making of decisions on the conclusion of major transactions (being a transaction or
combination of inter-related transactions which result or may result in the purchase or disposal by
the Company of assets representing 25% or more of the total value of the Company’s assets) and
related party transactions;

(e) the acquisition, transfer or variation of subsoil use rights in the Republic of Kazakhstan or
elsewhere by the Company;

(f) the approval of the strategic plan of joint development of the Company and the Company’s
annual operation plan, annual budget and business plan and the investment plans of
the Company;

(g) recommendations on the amount of dividends to be paid by the Company on its common shares
based on year results; and

(h) the making of decisions on the grant of options or awards under the Company’s share option
plans and long term incentive plans.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent Non-Executive Directors, being members of the Board of Directors who are determined
by the Board of Directors to be independent in accordance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code, shall represent not less than one third of the total members of the Board of Directors.
Independent Non-Executive Directors shall meet without the other members of the Board of Directors
being present at least four times each year (or more as otherwise required) to consider issues of general
management of the Company.

The Board of Directors shall only make decisions on any of the following matters, or shall only
propose any of the following matters be resolved at a general meeting of the shareholders, where a
majority of the members of the Board of Directors, including a majority of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, approve such decision at the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors:

(a) any transaction (including the entry into any agreement or arrangement relating to such
transaction or relationship) between any shareholder of the Company holding more than 50% of
the Company’s issued common shares (or any of its Affiliates) and the Group, including any
material amendment to, variation or termination of any existing agreement, arrangement or
understanding between any such persons;

(b) the acquisition or transfer of subsoil use licences and production rights for the exploration or
development of crude oil in the Republic of Kazakhstan or elsewhere by the Company, where
such licences or production rights represent 10% or more of the Company’s assets;

(c) the approval of any changes and additions to the By-Laws or amendments or changes to the
Corporate Governance Code;
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(d) the making of decisions on the conclusion of major transactions (being a transaction or
combination of inter-related transactions which result or may result in the purchase or disposal by
the Company of assets representing 25% or more of the total assets of the Company);

(e) the making of decisions on the increase in the Company’s liabilities for amounts equal to 25% or
more of the total shareholder equity;

(f) the making or decisions on the conclusion of a transaction or combination of inter-related
transactions resulting in the potential purchase by the Company of its outstanding securities or
the sale of the Company’s securities that were purchased by the Company representing 25% or
more of the total number of outstanding securities of the relevant class of securities to the
purchased or sold;

(g) any proposal on voluntary dissolution or reorganisation of the Company, including the change of
the Company’s status as a Kazakhstan legal entity;

(h) any proposal to de-list from the KASE or the Official List of the UK Financial Services Authority
and from trading on the LSE;

(i) the appointment or removal of the Company’s auditors; and

(j) the approval of social expenditures of the Company (other than as required by law or existing
contractual requirements).

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration of Directors shall be determined by the Company following the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors.

Permitted interests of Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Joint Stock Company Law, and provided that he has disclosed to the
Board of Directors the nature and extent of any material interest of his, a Director notwithstanding
his office:

(a) may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement with the Company
in which the Company is otherwise interested;

(b) may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any transaction or
arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate promoted by the Company or in
which the Company is otherwise interested or as regards which the Company has any powers of
appointment; and

(c) shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any remuneration or benefit
which he derives from any such office or employment, or from any such transaction or
arrangement, or from any interest in any such body corporate, and no such office, employment,
transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest
or benefit.

Restrictions on voting

Save as otherwise provided by the Charter, a member of the Board of Directors shall not vote on, any
resolution of the Board of Directors or of a committee of the Board of Directors concerning any matter in
which he has to his knowledge, directly or indirectly, an interest (other than his interest in shares or
debentures or other securities of, or otherwise in or through, the Company) or duty which (together with
any interest of a person connected with him) is material, unless his interest arises only because the
resolution concerns any of the following matters:

(a) his subscribing or agreeing to subscribe for, or purchasing or agreeing to purchase, any shares,
debentures or other securities of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings as a holder of
securities, or his being, or intending to become, a participant in the underwriting or
sub-underwriting of an offer of any such shares, debentures, or other securities by the Company
or any of its subsidiary undertakings for subscription, purchase or exchange;

(b) any arrangement for the benefit of employees of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings under which he benefits in a similar manner as the employees and which does not
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accord to any member of the Board of Directors or member of the Management Board as such
any privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to whom the arrangement relates; and

(c) any contract concerning any insurance which the Company is empowered to purchase or maintain
for, or for the benefit of, any member of the Board of Directors or members of the
Management Board.

Borrowing powers

The Board of Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money, to guarantee,
to indemnify, to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property, assets (present and future) and uncalled
capital, and to issue debentures and other securities whether outright or as collateral security for any debt,
liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party. There is no requirement on the Directors to
restrict the borrowings of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Indemnity of officers

Subject to the provisions of the Joint Stock Company Law but without prejudice to any indemnity to
which a Director may otherwise be entitled, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability incurred by him in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour (or the proceedings are
otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on his part) or in
which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to him by the court
from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of
the Company.

Under the Joint Stock Company Law, the director and members of the Management Board are liable
to the Company for harm caused to the Company by their actions (or omissions), in accordance with
Kazakhstan legislation.

Compulsory Acquisition Procedures

Neither the Charter nor the Joint Stock Company Law provides for any mechanism whereby a person
acquiring a minimum percentage of the total issued share capital of the Company is able to compulsorily
require the remaining minority shareholders to transfer their shares to such person, whether pursuant to a
takeover offer or otherwise. The provisions of the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers will not apply to
the Company.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE GLOBAL DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

The following terms and conditions (except for paragraphs in italics) will be endorsed on each certificate
representing GDRs.

The Global Depositary Receipts (“GDRs”) represented by this certificate are denominated in US
dollars and are each issued in respect of one-sixth of a common share (the “Shares”) in JSC KazMunaiGas
Exploration Production (the “Company”) pursuant to and subject to an agreement expected to be dated
4 October 2006, and made between the Company and The Bank of New York in its capacity as depositary
(the “Depositary”) (such agreement, as amended from time to time, being hereinafter referred to as the
“Deposit Agreement”). Pursuant to the provisions of the Deposit Agreement, the Depositary has
appointed JSC Kazkommertsbank as Custodian (the “Custodian”) to receive and hold on its behalf any
relevant documentation respecting certain Shares (the “Deposited Shares”) and all rights, interests and
other securities, property and cash deposited with the Custodian which are attributable to the Deposited
Shares (together with the Deposited Shares, the “Deposited Property”). The Depositary shall hold
Deposited Property for the benefit of the Holders (as defined below) as bare trustee in proportion to their
holdings of GDRs. In these terms and conditions (the “Conditions”), references to the “Depositary” are to
The Bank of New York and/or any other depositary which may from time to time be appointed under the
Deposit Agreement, references to the “Custodian” are to JSC Kazkommertsbank or any other custodian
from time to time appointed under the Deposit Agreement and references to the “Main Office” mean, in
relation to the relevant Custodian, its head office in the city of Almaty or such other location of the head
office of the Custodian in Kazakhstan as may be designated by the Custodian with the approval of the
Depositary (if outside the city of Almaty) or the head office of any other custodian from time to time
appointed under the Deposit Agreement.

References in these Conditions to the “Holder” of any GDR shall mean the person or persons
registered on the books of the Depositary maintained for such purpose (the “Register”’) as holder. These
Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Deposit Agreement,
which includes the forms of the certificates in respect of the GDRs. Copies of the Deposit Agreement are
available for inspection at the specified office of the Depositary and each Agent (as defined in
Condition 17) and at the Main Office of the Custodian. Terms used in these Conditions and not defined
herein but which are defined in the Deposit Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the Deposit
Agreement. Holders of GDRs are not party to the Deposit Agreement and thus, under English Law, have
no contractual rights against, or obligations to, the Company or Depositary. However, the Deed Poll
executed by the Company in favour of the Holders provides that, if the Company fails to perform the
obligations imposed on it by certain specified provisions of the Deposit Agreement, any Holder may
enforce the relevant provisions of the Deposit Agreement as if it were a party to the Deposit Agreement
and was the “Depositary” in respect of that number of Deposited Shares to which the GDRs of which he is
the Holder relate. The Depositary is under no duty to enforce any of the provisions of the Deposit
Agreement on behalf of any Holder of a GDR or any other person.

1. Withdrawal of Deposited Property and Further Issues of GDRs

1.1  Any Holder may request withdrawal of, and the Depositary shall thereupon relinquish, the
Deposited Property attributable to any GDR upon production of such evidence of the entitlement
of the Holder to the relative GDR as the Depositary may reasonably require, at the specified office
of the Depositary or any Agent accompanied by:

i) a duly executed order (in a form approved by the Depositary) requesting the Depositary to
cause the Deposited Property being withdrawn to be delivered at the Main Office of the
Custodian, or (at the request, risk and expense of the Holder, and only if permitted by
applicable law from time to time) at the specified office located in New York, London or
Kazakhstan of the Depositary or any Agent, or to the order in writing of, the person or
persons designated in such order;

(i)  the payment of such fees, taxes, duties, charges and expenses as may be required under these
Conditions or the Deposit Agreement;

(iii)  the surrender (if appropriate) of GDR certificates in definitive registered form properly
endorsed in blank or accompanied by proper instruments of transfer satisfactory to the
Depositary to which the Deposited Property being withdrawn is attributable; and
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1.2

1.3

1.4

(iv)  the delivery to the Depositary of a duly executed and completed certificate substantially in
the form set out either (a) in Schedule 3, Part B, to the Deposit Agreement, if Deposited
Property is to be withdrawn or delivered during the Restricted Period (such term being
defined as the 40 day period beginning on the latest of the commencement of the offering of
GDRs, the original issue date of the GDRs, and the latest issue date with respect to the
additional GDRs, if any, issued pursuant to the over-allotment option granted to the
Managers pursuant to the Subscription Agreement) in respect of surrendered Regulation S
GDRs, or (b) in Schedule 4, Part B, to the Deposit Agreement, if Deposited Property is to
be withdrawn or delivered in respect of surrendered Rule 144A GDRs.

Upon production of such documentation and the making of such payment as aforesaid for
withdrawal of the Deposited Property in accordance with Condition 1.1, the Depositary will direct
the Custodian, by tested telex, facsimile or SWIFT message, within a reasonable time after receiving
such direction from such Holder, to deliver at its Main Office to, or to the order in writing of, the
person or persons designated in the accompanying order:

i) a certificate (if any) for, or other appropriate instrument of title (if any) to or evidence of a
book- entry transfer in respect of the relevant Deposited Shares, registered in the name of
the Depositary or its nominee and accompanied by such instruments of transfer in blank or
to the person or persons specified in the order for withdrawal and such other documents, if
any, as are required by law for the transfer thereof; and

(ii)  all other property forming part of the Deposited Property attributable to such GDR,
accompanied, if required by law, by one or more duly executed endorsements or instruments
of transfer in respect thereof; provided however that the Depositary may make delivery at its
specified office in New York of any Deposited Property which is in the form of cash;

PROVIDED THAT the Depositary (at the request, risk and expense of any Holder so surrendering
a GDR):

(a)  will direct the Custodian to deliver the certificates for, or other instruments of title to, or
book-entry transfer in respect of, the relevant Deposited Shares and any document relative
thereto and any other documents referred to in sub-paragraphs 1.2(i) and (ii) of this
Condition (together with any other property forming part of the Deposited Property which
may be held by the Custodian or its agent and is attributable to such Deposited Shares); and/
or

(b)  will deliver any other property forming part of the Deposited Property which may be held by
the Depositary and is attributable to such GDR (accompanied, if required by law, by one or
more duly executed endorsements or instruments of transfer in respect thereof);

in each case to the specified office located in New York or London of the Depositary (if permitted
by applicable law from time to time) or at the specified office in Kazakhstan of any Agent as
designated by the surrendering Holder in the order accompanying such GDR.

Delivery by the Depositary, any Agent and the Custodian of all certificates, instruments, dividends
or other property forming part of the Deposited Property as specified in this Condition will be made
subject to any laws or regulations applicable thereto.

The Depositary may, in accordance with the terms of the Deposit Agreement and upon delivery of a
duly executed order (in a form reasonably approved by the Depositary) and a duly executed
certificate substantially in the form of (a) Schedule 3, Part A of the Deposit Agreement (which is
described in the following paragraph) by or on behalf of any investor who is to become the beneficial
owner of the Regulation S GDRs or (b) Schedule 4, Part A of the Deposit Agreement (which is
described in the second following paragraph) by or on behalf of any investor who is to become the
beneficial owner of Rule 144A GDRs from time to time execute and deliver further GDRs having
the same terms and conditions as the GDRs which are then outstanding in all respects (or the same
in all respects except for the first dividend payment on the Shares corresponding to such further
GDRs) and, subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, the Depositary shall accept for deposit
any further Shares in connection therewith, so that such further GDRs shall form a single series
with the already outstanding GDRs. References in these Conditions to the GDRs include (unless
the context requires otherwise) any further GDRs issued pursuant to this Condition and forming a
single series with the already outstanding GDRs.
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1.5

1.6

1.7

The certificate to be provided in the form of Schedule 3, Part A, of the Deposit Agreement certifies,
among other things, that the person providing such certificate is located outside the United States and
will comply with the restrictions on transfer set forth under “Transfer Restrictions”.

The certificate to be provided in the form of Schedule 4, Part A, of the Deposit Agreement certifies,
among other things that the person providing such certificate is a qualified institutional buyer (as defined
in Rule 144A under the Securities Act (“QIB”)) or is acting for the account of another person and such
person is a QIB and, in either case, will comply with the restrictions on transfer set forth under
“Transfer Restrictions”.

Any further GDRs issued pursuant to Condition 1.4 which correspond to Shares which have
different dividend rights from the Shares corresponding to the outstanding GDRs will correspond
to a separate temporary global Regulation S GDR and/or Rule 144A GDR. Upon becoming
fungible with outstanding GDRs, such further GDRs shall be evidenced by a Master Regulation S
GDR and a Master Rule 144A GDR (by increasing the total number of GDRs evidenced by the
relevant Master Regulation S GDR and the Master Rule 144A GDR by the number of such further
GDRs, as applicable).

The Depositary may issue GDRs against rights to receive Shares from the Company (or any agent
of the Company recording Share ownership). No such issue of GDRs will be deemed a
“Pre-Release” as defined in Condition 1.7.

Unless requested in writing by the Company to cease doing so, and notwithstanding the provisions
of Condition 1.4, the Depositary may execute and deliver GDRs or issue interests in a Master
Regulation S GDR or a Master Rule 144A GDR, as the case may be, prior to the receipt of Shares
(a “Pre-Release”). The Depositary may, pursuant to Condition 1.1, deliver Shares upon the receipt
and cancellation of GDRs, which have been Pre-Released, whether or not such cancellation is prior
to the termination of such Pre-Release or the Depositary knows that such GDR has been
Pre-Released. The Depositary may receive GDRs in lieu of Shares in satisfaction of a Pre-Release.
Each Pre-Release will be (a) preceded or accompanied by a written representation from the person
to whom GDRs or Deposited Property are to be delivered (the “Pre-Releasee”) that such person,
or its customer, (i) owns or represents the owner of the corresponding Deposited Property or GDRs
to be remitted (as the case may be), (ii) assigns all beneficial right, title and interest in such
Deposited Property or GDRs (as the case may be) to the Depositary in its capacity as such and for
the benefit of the Holders, (iii) will not take any action with respect to such GDRs or Deposited
Property (as the case may be) that is inconsistent with the transfer of beneficial ownership
(including without the consent of the Depositary, disposing of such Deposited Property or GDRs,
as the case may be), other than in satisfaction of such Pre-Release, (b) at all times fully
collateralised with cash or such other collateral as the Depositary determines in good faith will
provide substantially similar liquidity and security, (c) terminable by the Depositary on not more
than five (5) business days’ notice, and (d) subject to such further indemnities and credit regulations
as the Depositary deems appropriate. The number of GDRs which are outstanding at any time as a
result of Pre-Release will not normally represent more than thirty per cent. of the total number of
GDRs then outstanding; provided, however, that the Depositary reserves the right 